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Explanation or reason for introduction of bil l/resolution :  

A B ILL for a n  Act to provide a n  appropriation for defraying the expenses of the parks and 
recreation department and for providing a grant to the International Peace Garden ; to 
provide for matching funds; and to declare an emergency 

Minutes :  Attachments # 1-5 

Chairman Skarphol:  Cal led the meeting to order on HB 1 0 1 9  by cal l ing the rol l  and 
announcing everyone present. Allan Knudson took a few minutes to explain the Executive 
Budget recommendation for salary increases for state employees and how that is related to 
performance standards. . 
The Committee wil l  open the hearing on HB 1 01 91ntroduced was Mark Zimmerman, 
Director of the North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department (NDPRD). 

01 :26 to 08:06 
Zimmerman:  Began h is testimony, see Attachment # 1 and using Power Point, 
Attachment # 2 to explain the 201 1 -201 3 Revenue Review, marketing, Audit F indings, 
budget request. 

Chairman Skarphol: How are you going to deal with the cash flow needs if you comply 
with that? 
08:39 to 
Zimmerman : The cash flow is at $50,000. We wi l l  continue to have that amount in the 
fund to purchase goods. Continu ing with Power Point NDPRD Quarti le Distribution. 

Chairman Skarphol: How does that compare with other agencies post Hay? Has this 
brought you to a more comparable position with other state agencies? 

Zimmerman :  We are looking at i t  long term. 

Vice Chairman Monson: On your find ing by the auditors, how are you going to meet the 
aud itors request for daily receipts reporting? 

Zimmerman: We have to go out to the sites and do reviews at the park for our 
administrative assistants and our seasonals. 
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Vice Chairman Monson: Spot checks? 

Zimmerman: Hesitate to call it that but we will go into the park with a scheduled visit. 
The checks and balances are in place to watch those receipts. 

1 3:01 to 1 7: 1 3  
Brad Pozarnsky, Field Director for NDPRD: Continuing with power point presentation ,  
Attachment # 2 .  

1 7:46 to 25: 1 1  
Jesse Hanson, Manager of the Parks and Recreation Planning Division NDPRD: See 
Attachment.# 1 pp.4-6 and Power Point. Reviewing the Planning and Resources Division ,  
Energy conservation grant, P lanning and Natural  Resources Division,  Native and non­
Native grass seeding, Capital budget, extraordinary repairs, Master plans and a summary 
of the capital and extraordinary repair budget. 

Vice Chairman Monson : 900 acres of minera l  ownership see p. 5. Is there revenue 
anticipated from this or is this new revenue? 

Hanson:  That is the balance of the funds left from the mineral base of $1 M,  this money 
was designated to legislatively approved projects 

Vice Chairman Monson: The amount on your last page is a little over $ 1 M for the dock. 

Hanson: Those are one time projects. 

Vice Chairman Monson : That is for purchase of the Marina slip docks, da da da, is that 
the Capitan Kits Marina? 

Hanson:  Money left over. We wil l  devise an appraisal system that wil l  provide a fair and 
equitable price that is fair to both parties. This budget is prepared for complete 
replacement of the docks if that does not work out. The docks are also for sale to the 
general public at this time. 

Rep. Martinson : I t  is purchase of docks for Capitan Kits Marina, what is the asking price 
or the appraisal price. 

Hanson:  It is difficult to get an accurate appraisal .  We are trying to buy only the docks, 
cables, the physical developments. Most of it under water. 

Rep. Martinson: If the replacement cost is less than buying it, why would you buy it? 

Hanson: When we can get an appraisal ,  it wil l  be less than our budget for the ful l  
purchase price. We don't know what the true value is. 

Rep. Martinson: You would be amenable to a statement that you wou ld not pay more 
than the appraised value or what the replacement value would be. 
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Vice Chairman Monson: The intent for this, what benefit wou ld do for your  parks? 

Hanson : The intent wou ld be to get revenues from the slip rentals under concession 
services that can pay expenses. We would miss that if we rent it out 

Chairman Skarphol : Do you have a business plan , do you have docks at this facility as 
wel l  as Captain Kits 

Hanson : All of the docks, gangways are owned by the private entities. We own two of the 
docks at Fort Stevenson and one at Lewis and Clark State Park. Explaining the proximity 
of the State Parks and the Marinas. 

Chairman Skarphol:  You leased for $3.2M the 900 acres. 

Hanson :  The lease price was two separate leases and they range from $200 to $220 an 
acre. 

Chairman Skarphol :  Are they under production and do you have royalties coming i n  on a 
month ly basis? 

Hanson: Roughly 400 acres has an oil wel l  on it, it started operating in May of last year 
but may be the least producing wel l  in North Dakota . There was about $ 1 600 in June, 
$ 1 400 in July and over $900 in the fal l .  The remainder of the land is around Federal lands 
and oil companies tend to stay away. Another parcel is near Crow Flies High Monument 
has about 270 acres of mineral leases, surrounded by Corps land. 

Chairman Skarphol : What is the length of the lease? 

Hanson:  It is five year lease. 

36:43 to 41 :28 
Arik Spencer, Recreation Division Manager: Provided testimony, See Attachment # 1 ,  
pp.  6-8 describing g rants and the outdoor recreation plan . There was a $75,000 loss on 
Snowmobile trails during the mild winter last year. 

Chairman Skarphol :  The loss of $75,000 was this a dollar for dol lar offset for you? 

Spenser: It was a dollar for dollar loss, we have fixed costs for maintenance of machines 
and insure the trails. We were able to save $75,000. 

Chairman Skarphol:  Pools? Are those swimming pools? 

Spenser: Yes. We have a onetime funding request in this biennium for a community 
outdoor recreation program, first funded in 2009 to offer matching grants to outdoor 
recreation providers. There wil l  be an amendment to this budget line which wil l  a l low us 
carry over authority to the 20 1 5-201 7  biennium.  This is needed because we offer this as a 
reimbursement grant and they have to be completed before we can reimburse. Continuing 
with testimony pp. 8 -9 .  
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Chairman Skarphol: I n  the buyout of $4. 3M Addressing Joe Morrissette, Office of 
Management and Budget Analyst. 

Morrissette: The majority of that is federal funds. $400,000 is state money proposed for 
the continuation of the grant. 

Chairman Skarphol: In the funding sources it shows $2. 1 M general funds, $2.5M federal 
and $ 1 . 3  special .  Is some revenue from park activities? What portion of the $ 1 .3M goes 
into grants? 

Morrissette: Most of that is for their salaries. 

Chairman Skarphol: $400,000, is that money that was not included in this biennium's 
budget but there was a similar line item in the budget last time? 

Morrissette: I n  2009 you appropriated $400,000 for that program. The statuary authority 
had been in place before that but there was a $400 ,000 with authority to carry unspent 
moneys over into the current biennium.  $200,000 and some was carried over into the 
current biennium. It was the reason for the amendment and it wou ld give them authority to 
carry it out in this biennium .  

Chairman Skarphol :  That carried forward, $200,000 and some, did we add to that? No, 
so that wasn't money they had available for grants in this biennium, 

Morrissette: That was the money they had available for the community grant program. 

Spenser: We obligate funds each year in the biennium. Even though they are obligated to 
programs, that won't get done until 2014 .  We need carry over authority to see a project to 
completion ,  see Attachment A. 

Vice Chairman Monson: What goes on in this community g rant program? 

Spenser: It is a 50-50 matching grant program. The State Comprehensive Outdoor 
Recreation Plan (SCORP) provides funds for any outdoor recreation program. We use the 
data to look at projects and need. 

Dana Scharr, Executive Director of the North Dakota Recreation and Park 
Association (NDRPA): I ntroducing Ron Meritt, a board member to provide testimony in 
support of HB 1 01 9 . 

50:51 to 54:44 
Ron Merritt, Member NDRPA and Director of the Minot Park District: Gave Testimony 
See Attachment # 4. 
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Chairman Skarphol :  Addressing Spenser, did you have any requests beyond money 
available last time? Do you have any numbers from the previous biennium as far as 
requests? 

Spenser: The requests exceed available funding. We had $400,000 available, g rant fund 
requests of $ 1 .7M.  With what we were able to fund with local match was more than we 
were able to offer. The match was over $1 .6M indicating that communities demonstrate 
that they want to be equal partners in developing projects and improving outdoor recreation 
across North Dakota and so the $400,000 is certainly needed to aid with large and smal l  
park districts. 

Chairman Skarphol:  How did you carry $200,000 forward? 

Spenser: We offer a grant round in each year of the biennium,  the 2009 projects were 
mostly completed by the end of the biennium.  

Chairman Skarphol: Grant money was used to complete projects that were requested in 
the previous biennium. You didn't have a chance to grant any monies in this biennium from 
any of the dollars that you had available. 

57:45 to 1 :05 
Doug Hevenor, CEO International Peace Garden : Provided Testimony, See Attachment 
# 5. Because we are across the border we find that we are losing funding . We work on the 
I nternational building code and we cannot get a building permit. 
The Peace Towers are fal ling. We have had no federal funding. The $4.4M would al low us 
to complete these projects. $200,000 are requested for wage increases to keep 
employees. Key employees were lost to the Bakken. 

Vice Chairman Monson: Do you keep the revenue from park entrance fees and use it as 
needed? 

Chairman Skarphol : Are your  employees state employees? 

Hevenor: No,  they are not. It is an extra incurred cost for the 3rd party liability. 

Rep. Wil l iams: Last session we put money into the cactus col lection . .  

Chairman Skarphol:  How is that Cactus collection being expanded? You have increased 
the size of the facility and you have al l  of the col lection moved in there, some 53 species of 
cacti that were known are in the col lection. The attempt is to acquire the balance. 

Hevenor: There are 56 species that occur on earth and we have 53 of them on display. It 
is a rectangle of 3,000 feet and there wil l  be 7 ,000 feet of display space. Pieces are 
garnered from donations from nurseries in Manitoba. We hosted the national forestry and 
shelter belt system ,  87 delegates were at the garden and we streamed it to over 1 ,200 
participants national ly and internationally. 
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C hairman Skarphol: I appreciate your dilemma, are you charging enough for what you 
provide? 

Hevenor: Before the entrance fee we had more visitors. Donations generated $37,000 
last year. 

C hairman Skarphol: Hearing adjourned. Break to 1 0:30 
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House Appropriations Education and Environment Division 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 
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Job 1 8729 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bil l/resolution : 

Parks and Recreation .  

Minutes :  

Chairman Skarpol :  We have lots of one time on  the green sheet here. The budge it not 
a significant change its $521 ,000 increase in general fund however there is a $5. 5 mi l lion 
decrease, it removes the 201 1 /201 3 capital assets funds and adds back in a lot of other 
smaller numbers to this budget. Master plan? 

Rep Grande: I don't know if the dollar amount was worth it, usually master plans are 
always changing , you have several individuals plans pieced together to make a master 
p lan .  

Chairman Skarpol:  Was there any reference if any to what this master p lan was going to 
provide. Do we want them to come back and walk through these expenditures? 

Rep Streyle:  On number 1 1  is it asking to add to their base budget? 

Becky: That is my understanding because it is a base adjustment so it wil l  stay in there .  

Chairman Skarpol :  Both the $450 and $875 wou ld be added? 

Becky: Correct. 

Chairman Skarpol :  So it would become part of the operating line? 

Becky: Which ever it was added to, it wil l  be in there forever and ever. 

Rep Streyle: I don't think that is appropriate. 

Chairman Skarpol :  Last time we funded equipment and I understood that was a one-time 
thing ,  was it not Becky? 
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Becky: They increase the base budget and then they wil l  also do the one times. I am not 
sure what their base budget is up to right now. 

Chairman Skarpol :  I n  item 4 above, one time funding for extraordinary repairs at various 
State Parks and other funds 1 82,800 is that park fees that they have col lected that are 
utilized for those specific parks? 

Becky: I wou ld guess that is what it is. 

Chairman Skarpol :  So what they are asking for is a general fund appropriation on an 
ongoing basis of 875,000 plus .  

Rep Grande: Handout from a Brad Bozarnsky, he  goes into a parks operations budget 
request and he asks for various equipment, where are those in the budget, wil l  they use 
that in number 1 1 ?  

Becky: They have that listed as equipment over $5,000 so that wou ld be included in 
p robably n umber 5 on the green sheet. 

Chairman Skarpol :  Let's move on, we need more details from them on this. 
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D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bil l/resolution: 

Parks and Recreation Department. 

Minutes : 

Chairman Skarpol :  Opens discussion on HB 1 01 9 . Let's discuss purchasing docks. 

Rep Martinson : What kind of impact wil l  this have if there is no funding is approved? 

Mark Zimmerman, Parks and Rec: Explanation (3 : 1 3) .  

Chairman Skarpol :  Why shou ld the State own them? 

Mark: State verses private explanation . 

Chairman Skarpol: Why should we as a state operate a business that is not profitable? 

Mark: The Business Model, in the long term is can be profitable, Fort Stevens is a good 
example. (5 :  1 5) 

Rep Martinson:  Didn't the federal government pay for Lake Sakakawea: 

Mark: They paid to construct the marina, not the docks or the electrical service. 

Rep Martinson :  How much did the federal government pay. 

Jesse: For the construction is was about 1 1  mil lion dollars. 

Rep Martinson : (6 :30) Do you have a business plan showing that it would at least break 
even? 

Mark: We used the services from N O  Smal l  Business Development. 

Rep Dosch: At what price is that based on (7 :52)? 

Mark: I t  was about 450,000, .we have also requested a second appraisal ( 1 0:00) .  
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Rep Martinson : What is the name of the other marina up there? 

Mark: BayPoint, it is on property leased by our department from the core of engineers. 

Rep Martinson : That individual approached us and has said that they would like to sel l  if 
we decide to buy. How would that fit into the mix? 

Mark: That should be considered that development came out in the 1990 due to bad 
relations with the other. ( 13: 13) 

Chairman Skarpol :  I f  you were to buy this , what kind of vision do you have , for instance, 
with employees? 

Mark: We have a ful l  time ranger and full time operating manager; the rest would be and 
currently are seasonal workers. 

Chairman Skarpol :  Let's discuss Fort Lincoln? What do you own and how do you 
anticipate operating without that partner being in place? 

Mark: (14:36) Explanation of furnishings and their agreement. The attorneys are currently 
reviewing a contract, also discussed a trust fund and the agreement. 

Chairman Skarpol :  What is the operational cost associated with this? 

Mark: We have hired a seasonal employee, as a seasonal employee it comes from our 
revenue account. 

Chairman Skarpol : You don't anticipate any more money that wil l  be required from the 
State in regards to that change in operations? 

Mark: Some additions to buy some equipment, painting a building or two. Our list 
indicates about $94,000 would help us. 

Rep Dosch: Is there an analysis, in regards to park and entrance fees, and revenue 
verses expense? 

Mark: Revenues at Fort Abraham Lincoln within the last 6 months of the biennium 
$494 ,000 at 82% of our goa l .  (22 :10) 

Chairman Skarpol :  Let's run through the green sheet. Why should we spend a $100,000 
on a strategic master plan? 

Mark: There are many ways that we cou ld improve revenues with the parks. We are 
seeing change in our demographics across our system.  We have been doing it the same 
way for 50 years and we need to change with the times. We need it to be more efficient. 

Chairman Skarpol :  Who are you going utilize? 
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Mark: A third party to help with the master plan . 

Chairman Skarpol :  How much was it to hire a 3rd party? 

Jesse: $24,000. 

Rep Streyle: In that master plan, is there any talk of selling some of the unused land? 

Mark: Not sure we wou ld want to sel l any State land , and if we did the land that is not 
utilized would have to be accessed by going through the park. (25 : 1 4) 

Monson:  Do you own the boy scout camp plus the park? 

Mark: Yes we purchased the scout camp in 1 994 (25 :40) 

Monson:  Do the boy scouts still have their camp there now? 

Mark: They use the camp and so do a number of other groups but the state does own that 
property. Within that land a church owns a small portion of it privately. 

Monson:  Do you stil l  own the 4H? 

Jesse: Yes, that would be the dorms and the kitchen building and that is  part of the 
original state park. 

Monson:  Who operates or utilizes this? 

Mark: We operate that, we utilize those dorms for family reunions, church groups 

Rep Streyle: In the strategic master plan do you completely rule out selling of land . 

Mark: We would not absolutely rule is out however the access to that property is directly 
through the State parks, people like the security of the State Park that is one of the reasons 
they choose it? I would have a concern selling land where the only access was through our 
property to get there. (28 : 1 5) 

Monson:  I somewhat agree with Rep Streyle. 

Mark: Most of the parks we have are not that large in acreage, the bigger ones we lease 
from the core of engineers. 

Chairman Skarpol. Let's close and revisit on Friday around 1 0:30 about the budget. 

Rep Dosch :  Please provide details for al l  the changes o n  the green sheet, in print if 
possible. 
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House Appropriations Education and Environment Division 
Roughrider Room , State Capitol 

HB 1019 
February 15, 2013 

Job 19066 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution: 

Parks and Recreation 

Minutes: 

Chairman Skarphol :  Opens HB 1019, reviews handout. 

Attachment 1,2,3,4,5,6 

Mr. Mark Zimmerman Director of Parks and Rec: I did not have this document when we were 
prepping our budget; the budget submission was for $800,000 

Chairman Skarphol : Funding sources? 

Mark: The funding sources was $400,000 general fund and $400,000 other park revenue 
funds. 

Chairman Skarphol: Those revenue funds are available? 

Mark: Yes we do . Keep in mind that the marina is an expected service with the park. (3: 08) 

Chairman Skarphol : For comparative purposes is there a similar price tween Ft. Stevens and 
this facil ity, is one less than the other? 

Mark: Ft. Stevens is h igher than at Lake Sakakawea 

Rep Streyle: When is this lease up? 

Mark: February 28, 2013 

Rep Streyle: Has there been any other interest expressed other than that State for 
purchasing this? 

Mark: I do know Kit has worked to sel l  to private individuals; it has not been successful yet. 
We have in past extended the lease, I am not aware of any other parties interested. 

Chairman Skarphol:  Would you be willing to extend the lease to market the facil ity? 
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Mark: I wou ld be wil ling to enter into that discussion ,  my concern is the next cycle of the 
legislative session ,  it is in the executive budget and the agreement with the Governor's office 
was to al low this purchase to go forward (6: 1 9) 

Rep Dosch :  Are the current lease payments up to date? 7 :00 

Mark: They are not, our agreement with Mr. Hettinger was for a couple of years to wait and 
see if this purchase goes through .  There are a couple years lease payments outstanding from 
Kit . 

Rep Streyle: With that being said and Feb 28, even if this is passed you cannot expend until 
July 1 unless there is an emergency clause. The lease is going to be up no matter which way 
we do it. 

Mark: I n  our budget there is an amendment that we for emergency declaration provision for 
parts of the budget, but also in our visits with Kit that if the purchase was to go through we 
would certainly work with Kit throughout the summer of 20 1 3  just to have his expertise to help 
with the transition (8 :22) 

Rep Streyle: What is the total dollar amount of back lease? 

Mark: I think it is a little under $1 5 ,000. 

Rep Martinson :  Is that just partial or the whole season? 

Mark: The lease payment is 2% of the sales or the money revenue. There are more back 
payments owed that we are working out with Kit. I would state that my opinion that I believe 
this is a profitable business; we have a business model that indicates this. 

Rep Martinson : Why have you not been paid your rent? 

Mark: I don't know why, I stepped into this; those were agreements that were made prior to 
me being on board. 

Rep Martinson: If we did this, would you make adjustments to your  slip rental rates? 

Mark: Yes and we would also adjust others based on the size of the slips. 

Rep Martinson : If the rates went up do the renters have other options, would they go 
elsewhere? 

Mark: At that end of the lake there are other marinas at Hazen and Beulah Bay however keep 
in mind not all of the facilities are like lake Sakakawea ( 1 5:  1 5) 

Rep Martinson: The amount of money the Governor put in here was for the purchase of used 
docks? 



House Appropriations Education and Environment Division 
HB 1 0 1 9  
February 1 5, 201 3 
Page 3 

Mark: Our budget request at $800,000 would to be to put in new docks and continue to 
explain (17 :15) 

Rep Martinson :  I f  your intention is not to pay that much money why would we authorize that 
amount? 

Mark: When we had to submit our budget, we were in negotiations with Kit, at that time we 
were not even close on a purchase price. We wanted a figure for the budget submission and 
we put in the highest price for new docks. We are not opposed at looking at a lower amount. 

Rep Streyle: We have a new dock estimate for 1 million dol lars, we got $800,000 in the 
budget, an appraised value of 400 and some. I don't know why we would pay for anything 
over the appraised value. 

Rep Dosch :  I move to reduce the amount authorized by $350 ,000. 

Rep Monson : Second. 

6-1-1 

Discussion :  

Joe: For clarification ,  the original recommendation was split general and special funds, this 
reduction ,  wou ld that also be split? 

Chairman Skarphol :  Stay with half and half. 

Eric Spencer, Parks and Recreation :  I do have a breakdown for the al l  the different 
smaller communities. 

Joe: We did ask that if you approve this that there would be an amendment that would 
give them the authority to carry any unexpended money over that program. 

Dosch:  What was the amount last year of the grants line? 

Eric: The last time this was funded was the 2009/2011 biennium,  not last biennium? It 
was 700,000 and 400,00 was approved at the end of the session .  

Rep Dosch :  And out of that how much was given out 

Eric: All of it. 

Rep Dosch :  Why do you need carry over language it if was al l  used? 

Eric: Explanation (24 :55) 

Rep Dosch: Mark, who determines who gets these grant dol lars, is that within your office? 
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Eric: Every 5 years we develop a state wide comprehensive outdoor recreation plan, that sets 
priorities and we also set criteria for where the need it. 

Rep Dosch: These are al l  matching grants? 

Eric: Correct, they are al l  matched 50% local ly. 

Rep Streyle: I think this is a good thing in their line budget, some put over and above the 50% 
match in .  

Rep Dosch : Could we see the detail on the 800, 000? 

Mark: Yes, we wil l  distribute (27:00) 

Jesse: The funding source is from park revenues. 

Chairman Skarphol :  How old are your groomers now? 

Jesse: 30 years old and they were even bought used. 

Chairman Skarphol : What about the crack seal machine? 

Jesse: That item is pretty crucial ,  and it would be moved around. We have not had one in the 
past, this would be new for us. 

Chairman Skarphol :  The revenue stream is the park revenues? 

Jesse: That is correct. 

Rep Monson:  For $30 , 000 it can't be much of a machine, are park employees capable of 
operating this? 

Jesse: These are specia lized and smal ler, they are pul led behind a vehicle , it is not like the 
large ones that the DOT use. 

Rep Dosch: What is the average summer seasonal help wage? 

Mark: This would bring us up to about $1 0 per hour; it varies in the different parks. 

Chairman Skarphol : What trails are including in this? 

Jesse: Most of these are the summer time trails. 

Chairman Skarphol : Contract it out or state employees? 

Jesse: We have not decided yet, we are looking at both options. 
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Rep Monson :  When you increase these numbers of trai ls do you see revenue in return? 

Jesse: Not the summer trai ls; it does attract more vis itors (34 :06) .  

Chairman Skarphol : What does long time refer to? 

Mark: We have long term ( 1 5-20 year) fu l l  time temps. 

Chairman Skarphol : You have 4 ful l  time temps and then al l  the other temps? 

Mark: Correct. 

Joe: The agency d id request in their budget asked for 3 FTE to address that issue and only 
one of those was included in the executive budget. 

Chairman Skarphol : We wil l come back to this one. Let's look at number 9. 

Mark: The international Peace Garden d i rector has not communicated with our dept. to what 
h is needs are. 

Chairman Skarphol :  Is  that strictly a pass through? And wasn't there something about 
concrete fal l ing off the tower and endangering publ ic. 

Mark: That is correct, and I do think someth ing l ike that was in h is testimony that wou ld be in 
the binders .  (38 :03) 

Chairman Skarphol :  All the other categories that show other funds, are they al l  fees? 

Mark: Correct, park revenue, our department does have oi l  revenue and that is consider that 
other funds. 

Chairman Skarphol :  Do we know the dollar amount on oil revenue? 

Joe: Not sure but I can find out. (30: 50) 

Chairman Skarphol :  Moving forward to item 1 1  on the green sheet. 

Rep Monson : That 1 .325 has been in the base so it is not a change? 

Joe: Correct. (42 :45) I wi l l  provide the l ist to Rep Dosch since he is carrying this bi l l .  

Chairman Skarphol :  Should we be adopting some type of language that gives some d i rection 
to the util ization (44 :33) . 

Rep Streyle: I agree we need the language if this explodes. 

Joe: We made that effort in the budget to not use those funds for reoccurring expenditures 
that is why things l ike item number 3 .  
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Rep Streyle: Wouldn't it make more sense to itemize that out in the budget so one knows. 

Chairman Skarphol :  Should we have counsel to draft an amendment to OMB that wou ld 
requ i re that OMB adopts language in regards to direction of oil royalties by state agencies 
must be l im ited to non-reoccurring expenditures un less otherwise approved by leg islature. 

Rep Dosch : Wouldn't we have to appropriate those dollars out? 

Chairman Skarphol :  I think it should be pointed out to on any budget about oi l  royalties . 

Discussion on Game and Fish : 

Joe: Ongoing program that we have had (47:40) 

Rep Dosch :  Moving it to Buck Stop Junction 

Mark: It is not a park entity, it is owned by the county. 

Chairman Skarphol : Gaining ownership of al l  of the memorabil ia out at Fort Lincoln ,  there is 
a concern if a l l  of it should be owned by Parks and Rec or the State Historical Society. 

Mark: A number of items on d isplay are on loan from the State Historical Society collections, 
we would continue working with them . (52 :45) 

Joe?: I believe the majority of the contents that would be transferred from the Fort Abraham 
Lincoln Foundation to the NO Parks and Rec are reprod uctions or its they bought from time 
periods.  (54 :00) 

Chairman Skarphol : Committee make note that the concern of the historical prospective 
must be maintained in the artifacts and should be considered owned by the State Historic 
Society and up to you to negotiate what the proper d istribution is. 

Rep Boe: I bel ieve they were concerned that it remain a commitment of preserving the h istory 
and make it a learning destination . 

Rep Dosch : Can we go back to number 3 on the green sheet (56:00). 

Joe: Provides an overview on items on budget (1 :00) 

Rep Dosch: Item number 1 0, does that connect with number 1 2  on the green sheets? 

Joe: There was just an error when the budget was submitted , I had to make that correction in 
the executive budget to reduce their federal fund authority because it  got added , j ust an error. 
Line 1 2  is the budget to remove the capital project authority they have in the current biennium 
and that is being replaced by item 3 on the green sheet. 

Rep Monson :  I would l ike Kathy Stremick, Economic Development Director to come up .  
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Kathy Stremick, Economic Development Director: Here to d iscussion The Pembina River 
Gorge , ecotourism. See attachment 5 (ended 1 :07:34) 

Chairman Skarphol :  What exactly do you have in mind? 

Kathy: If N O  Park and Rec were able to acquire Frost F i re Mounta in ,  we see it  as an 
interpreter center for the whole Pembina Gorge and that would be headquarters for tourism 
development? 

Chairman Skarphol : What do you want from us? 

Kathy: I want the State of NO to appropriate the funds to buy Frost Fire Mountain and to be 
managed by N O  Park and Rec. 

Chairman Skarphol :  For how much? 

Kathy: 2 .8  mi l l ion dol lars .  

Chairman Skarphol : Why should the State own it? 

Kathy: To make sure it stays in its natural state. 

Chairman Skarphol : How much wil l ingness to do you from the locals to participate in the 
purchase. 

Kathy: We have not d iscussed the dollar amount with the counties. 

Rep Dosch :  It is d ifficult for the State to purchase anything beyond its appraised value, is the 
surrounding reg ions wi l l ing to make up the d ifference. 

Kathy: I do bel ieve the counties and the communities wi l l  step forward . 

Chairman Skarphol :  Closes. 
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Brady Larson, LC : Spoke about the marina. 

Chairman Skarphol : We acted on a motion to reduce it to 450. We d id not take any action 
on language with regard to the purchase or appraisal .  I don't recal l  we made a motion that 
we passed on that, we talked about. 

Rep. Streyle: (0:37) Gave h is explanation of why he has a change of heart. I th ink the 
government is putting undo p ressure on him because he has no other option.  

Discussion fol lows about the marina and leasing. (3:41 ) 

Rep. Dosch: (5 :03) what was h is orig inal business plan with h is orig inal lease? 

Rep. Boe: (6:09) Maybe we should be leasing it back from h im? I don't know if we really 
want to be in  any more business. 

Chairman Skarphol : Further d iscussion? (6:54) Discussion on boat dock lease continues. 

Chairman Skarphol: (8:45) we d id have some d iscussion about budget aspects of this and 
we didn't take any action based on what Brady said with regard to changes in dol lars .  

Rep. Boe: Was there the Lawrence Welk amendment, d id we do that? 

Chairman Skarphol:  No, we talked about it and possibi l ity of moving the facil ity here. 

Joe Morrissette, OMB: There is the one amendment that I had d istributed that the 
department asked for regarding the authority to carry over grant funds. 

Chairman Skarphol: ( 1 0:24) that's 400 ,000 dollars for community grants p rogram? 
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Rep. Dosch : I move we accept that. 

Chairman Skarphol : We have a motion to amend what was d istributed by Mr. Morrissette, 
it says up to 400,000 dollars of the recreational l ine item contained this bi l l  may be carried 
forward ; the unexpended funds may be carried forward to the next biennium. Second by 
Rep. Martinson, voice vote, motion carried . 

Rep. Monson : ( 1 1 :40) Went over notes about mineral ownership .  Discussion fol lows. 

Chairman Skarphol: The revenue that may come from those minerals if they were to be 
increased development, money has to go into a fund and be appropriated , right? 

Joe Morrissette:  Correct. 

Rep. Monson : ( 1 3:32) About Fort Abraham Lincoln seasonal stuff. 

Rep. Dosch: They would have those funds out of their normal operating budget with 
anticipated revenue coming in to offset those expenses. 

Rep. Monson: I had the amendment 0 . 1 001 , Frost Fire.  If we do this, my intention is we 
make sure we add language to this saying no purchase can be over the appraised value 
and I th ink it would be wise to require some local match. 

Rep. Monson: I move 0 . 1 001  with the change or add ition of language that says that the 
purchase price of any land or bui ld ings cannot be more than the appraised value and that it 
wou ld require a match of 1 /3 local ,  2/3 state. 

Chairman Skarphol : We have a motion ,  second by Rep. Martinson . 

Discussion (1 6: 1 1 )  on the motion and the amounts of local funds versus state funds. 

Rep. Streyle: If you do the 2/3, 1 /3,  2.8 that wou ld real ly push it over 3 mi l l ion,  3.5 

Rep. Monson: (21 :26) the intent would be the 2.8 is the maximum amount of the whole 
project, the purchase and development. If less than that it doesn't get spent. 

Rep. Streyle: The state share would be rounded up, 1 .9 mil l ion . I sti l l  don't see why we 
need to appropriate that amount of money. 

Rep. Monson: My proposed language would be 1 /3 local match then it would be special 
funds. So the total amount of money from the state would be down to 1 .9 roughly. 

Rep. Streyle: (23:23) Discussion continues. 

Rep. Monson: You would sti l l  put in the special funds, correct? 

Brady Larson:  We can put in  the special funds authority in  the event the Parks and Rec 
Dept. receives the money from the locals and then expends it. 
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Chairman Skarphol : So your  amendment would remain the same, 1 /3 ,  2/3 match , not to 
exceed appraised value. 

Brady Larson : As part of that amendment then the general fund portion would be reduced 
to about 1 .86 mi l l ion dol lars and then special fund authority added to get up to the 2 .8  
mi l l ion dol lar total .  So i t  would be 2/3 general fund, 1 /3 local .  

Chairman Skarphol : Are we going to require local match be in p lace before the state 
expends their dol lars .  

Rep. Monson: That is very prudent business and i t  should be in  cash,  not in  k ind i f  you 
would l ike. 

Rep. Streyle: Putting this number out there pretty much guarantees what they wi l l  demand 
because they know it is in l ine item. 

Chairman Skarphol : If you can't exceed an appraised value doesn't that l imit it? 

Rep. Streyle: We already had an appraisal, I thought. 

Rep. Monson :  They are working on a second appraisal .  

Rep. Dosch: (26:30) Discussion continues. Can it be part of the amendment that there 
must be a business plan showing a break even on this? 

Rep. Monson: The hope of the people that have this Frostfire is that they get an appraised 
value of 2 .5  mi l l ion.  Parks and Rec. felt they needed 300 ,000 in order to come up with a 
business p lan.  

Chairman Skarphol : If the appraised value stays at 1 .2 ,  the cost of the state could be 
conceivably 1 . 1 with 400,000 from local .  Any further discussion? The clerk wi l l  take the rol l .  
8-0-0. Brady, state how you perceive the amendment to be drafted, just th is last one. 

Brady Larson : There was a total of 2.8 mi l l ion dollars appropriated. Of that amount 1 .866 
mi l l ion dollars is from the general fund and the remainder is from local funds. That is a 2/3 
general fund to 1 /3 local match requirement. A purchase cannot be made over the 
appraised value and the local match must be in cash and not in in-kind equ ivalent before 
the state expenditures. And for the language for the local part to be in  place we wi l l  put 
together some language so it doesn't require the entire 900,000 but instead just the portion 
that's expected for the project. That way if the appraised value does come lower you're sti l l  
not requiring the entire 900,000 dollars to be in place. It would be the adequate portion .  

Rep. Streyle: (32:5 1 )  shared other ideas on  this budget. What about earmarking 20% of al l  
new wel ls to the commun ity grant fund? 

Rep. Dosch: Would l ike Rep. Streyle to explain why he would l ike to see that. 
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Rep. Streyle: Make explanation . (34:00) 

Chairman Skarphol : (34 :3 1 ) it's a lmost as if those types of things become sacred once we 
do them . Discussion fol lows on oi l revenues. 

Chairman Skarphol : Any add itional thoughts with regard to the 20% of new oi l  wel l  
royalties. 

Rep. Streyle: Yes, 20% to the commun ity grant program.  Not sure 20% the right number, 
but 80% wou ld sti l l  go to whatever one-time projects they wanted . 

Chairman Skarphol : Is  that a motion Rep . Streyle? 

Rep. Streyle: I move that 1 5% of any new oi l  revenue go to the community grant program 
and the rest has to go to capital improvement projects, one -time funding. 

Rep. Monson :  Second . 

Joe Morrissette: For clarification,  that would be saying it can only be used for one-time 
th ings not strictly capital .  In their budget the recommendation would include some that 
m ig ht be used for one-time equipment. I just want to make sure that it wasn't worded as 
capita l ;  otherwise it would be in  conflict with the budget as it sits now. 

Rep. Streyle: Yes, one-time funding. 

Chairman Skarphol : Any d iscussion on the motion of 1 5% of new oi l  wells. 8-0-0 , motion 
passes. 

Chairman Skarphol : Brady, we have all the amendments covered. Do we have a motion 
on the Parks and Rec. budget, HB 1 0 1 9, a do pass as amended . Rep. Dosch moves, Rep.  
Monson second . Clerk takes the rol l ,  8-0-0. 
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Minutes: Attachment 1 

Rep. Dosch: Made motion to adopt amendment 1 3.8 148 .01 002 . 

Rep. Skarphol : Seconded the motion . 

1 :45 Rep. Dosch: Explained amendment 1 3.8 148.01 002 . 

3 :20 Chairman Delzer: It looks under 1 0 1 9, your top ones, you added $2 ,450,000 to the 
governor's recommendation in  al l  funds. The general fund addition is $ 1 ,600,000. Go 
down to the bottom on 750, and go across that, you've got your executive compensation. 
And then what we d id with the current l ines, and then it looks l ike you added $2 .8  mi l l ion to 
purchase some, operate Walhalla Gorge. What's that about? 

4:08 Rep. Dosch : The Pembina Gorge is for sale; it is currently owned by a private 
i nd ividual .  They want $2.8 mi l l ion for that. The appraised value is about $ 1 .3 mi l l ion. We 
increased the general fund dol lars to purchase that at the specified level .  If they are unable 
to raise the other dol lars to fund that, it wil l  go by the wayside. Parks & Rec did have an 
interest in  operating the entity up there. The committee agreed that perhaps wou ld be a 
good add ition if it could be acquired for that price. 

Chairman Delzer: What price d id you say? The $1 .3 mi l l ion it appraised for? Certain ly 
we're not going to pay more than appraised value, I would hope. 

Rep. Dosch: No, M r. Chairman. I defer that to Rep. Monson.  

5 :40 Chairman Delzer: Has th is been a standalone bi l l ,  hear anywhere else? 

Rep.  Monson : No, it wasn't. I apologize about the late amendment; I had been approached 
a while before by the owners, and I wasn't going to put in a bi l l  or amendment. When I got 
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down here for the session, I d id some more exploring with the d irector of Parks and Rec, 
and when he said he was interested in this and that they have a need for it . . . .  I'm going to 
go through some of the things th is is about. I d id put in an amendment. The Parks and 
Rec d i rector is very wi l l ing to tackle this is the opportunity arises. Parks and Rec would not 
do th is without a plan in  p lace. Of the money in here, $300,000 is for the planning and a l l  
the things that would be needed before i t  got out of the chute. Parks and Rec would 
defin itely not run it but would consign it out if they were to purchase it. Parks and Rec, 
Game and Fish, and possibly the state forester would be able to use this faci l ity. Right 
now, the state forester is located in  Walhal la. The state forestry owns an old house, and 
the on ly entity that uses that is the state forester and to some extent the Parks and Rec 
people responsible for doing the trai ls. Gave add itional information about various trai ls in 
the area put in  by Parks and Rec. If there is an emergency on the trai l  or if there are 
violators on the trai ls, it is usually too late by the time Parks and Rec staff arrives because 
they are too far away. That is one of the reasons they are interested. I talked with the 
d i rector of Game and Fish , and he said that if we had a facil ity they could use, their game 
wardens wou ld be very interested in  some of the avai lable space. We put in  a lot of 
provisions to make sure that this wil l  not happen unti l the cash is raised local ly. Under no 
circumstances can more be paid for th is than the appraised value, which is approximately 
$1.2 mi l l ion.  The Johnsons, the owners, said they wi l l  not sel l  for that; they want $2.5 
mi ll ion .  They are working on getting another appraised , but at this point the value of the 
property is appraised at $1._ mil l ion (audio unclear) and if th is were to go forward without 
a d ifferent appraisal, th is would never happen.  The chance that this purchase wi l l  ever 
happen is s l im to remote. Rep. Streyle indicated that the possibi l ity of the doubl ing of an 
appra ised value on a second opinion is not very l ikely. This is a reg ional or even state-wide 
issue because the trai ls are used by people from al l  over eastern North Dakota . It 's an 
issue of the wardens and the patroll ing authority to do their job better and more safely. 

11:10 Chairman Delzer: Did you put any time certain that it needs to be done by? 

Rep. Monson : I d id not, and I would not be opposed to that. 

Chairman Delzer: I don't think I can support it in any way, but if it d id go forward , I hope we 
p ut a time certain when this goes away. You say they have to have the local money first, 
but then you are g iving general fund money for the ful l  appraised value. Why is that? What 
are you expecting them to do with the local funding? 

Rep. Monson : The local people would be responsible for one third of it. So if the 
appra ised value is $1.2 mi ll ion,  $800,000 would be the state's share, and $400,000 would 
be the local share. If it were to go to $2.5 mil l ion, for instance, you'd be looking at 1 .67 
from the state and 830,000 in  other funds. 

C hairman Delzer: So this 1 .67 that you put in  here and the 830 would be to take it a l l  the 
way to 2.4 so that. . . .  

Rep. Monson : That's right. 

Chairman Delzer: Questions on that section? Section 6. 
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1 3: 1 0 Rep. Dosch resumed discussion of amendment with explanation of Section 6 .  

1 4:22 Chairman Delzer: Is  there a continuing appropriation on the oi l  related-reven ue? 

Rep. Skarphol:  We do have to appropriate it. The community grants program d istributes 
money out to communities, to various local and county parks across the state. They had a 
$400,000 appropriation last time. I don't think we put anything it because it had money that 
was carried forward . Section 5 was included to give them that carry forward authority. The 
committee felt that 1 5% of any oi l-related revenue would al leviate us having to put money 
i n  period ically. 

Chairman Delzer: Why d id they end up having $400,000 carried over out of that? 

Rep. Skarphol:  It was not that they had the much to carry forward . They had about half of 
that carried forward last time. We d id not put anyth ing add itional into it last t ime. Because 
there is $400 ,000 i n  it this time, the language has always previously reflected that. I t  was 
overlooked in the bi l l  itself for this session. We added this section because it has always 
p reviously been in the b i l l .  

C hairman Delzer: So this is the $400,000 that is up above in the budget, and you're g iv ing 
them authority for the next session to spend that, whether or not they spend that during the 
i nterim or after next legislative session . 

Rep. Skarphol:  They'd be able to carry it forward and util ize it as they saw fit. 

Rep. Dosch. That about does if for the amendments, other than the normal state salary 
adjustment packages and those sorts. 

1 6:38 Chairman Delzer: Did you make any other changes on the green sheet items or any 
of the items the governor had in  there? 

Rep. Dosch: Yes.  If you'd l ike ,  we can go through the green sheets now. 

Chairman Delzer: Let's go through the green sheets. All you r  changes are on the 
a mendment, too, right? 

Rep. Glassheim: Back to the Frostfire d iscussion. I see that there is no anticipated 
income. If the th ing were to happen, would al l  the income be taken by the people they get 
to run it, or would there be any potential income for the state? 

Rep. Monson:  We never got into those d iscussions because it would be treated in  the 
same fash ion as when the state consigns out the boat docks. I don't know that it wil l 
h appen . 

Chairman Delzer: Most that I am aware of have to have estimated income. But I would 
g uess that must be up here in  the less estimated income l ine. 
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Rep. Kempenich: On the same subject, obviously he just got into the land purchase , not 
the business side of the coin .  That's where some of the blue sky you're talking about 
between the facil ity and the business. 

Rep. Skarphol : I believe park fees are an ongoing appropriation . 

Joe Morrissette, OMB: They are not. They would go into their park's fund and have to be 
appropriated each biennium just l ike the oi l revenue you mentioned earlier. 

Chairman Delzer: Where do they get appropriated in the other l ines up there? 

Joe Morrissette:  As part of their other income in the bi l l .  

C hairman Delzer: The less estimated income. That is appropriation of that income l ine. 

Chairman Delzer: Committee wil l  stand in recess for lunch. 

20:41 Chairman Delzer: Cal led the committee back to order. 

Rep. Glassheim: Presented attachment 1 related to state employee compensation g rowth 
scenarios. It is for informational purposes. 

24:27 Chairman Delzer: We'l l  resume 1 0 1 9. We were going through the green sheet. 

24:41 Rep. Dosch:  Continued to go through the green sheet. 

27 :57 Chairman Delzer: Did you ask how many other p laces? Gave examples. Are there 
others? Are there any in  Oahe? 

Rep. Dosch:  No others that I'm aware of in Oahe; no others than just those that you 
mentioned. Resumed going through green sheet. 

3 1 :23 Chairman Delzer: Did you ask how much the amount for the I nternational Peace 
Gardens increased last time? 

Rep. Skarphol: That's actual ly down from last time. Last time we did the bui lding. 

C hairman Delzer: We did a bunch on cactus last time. Did you ask about just the 
operational side, not the total g rant? 

Rep. Skarphol : I don't know. 

3 1  :55 Rep. Dosch :  Resumed review of green sheet, starting with number 1 0. 

34 :30 Chairman Delzer: Joe, you had some answers for us? 

Joe Morrissette:  The operations grant on the Peace Garden was increased about $40 , 000 
in the last bienn ium.  
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Rep. Skarphol: We have al l  seen p ictures of the towers. Those towers have aged and are 
now dangerous due to fal l ing materials. We d id not put any additional money in for that. 
They do have issues they need with which they need to deal but which we d id not address. 

Rep. Kempenich: Is  there any cost estimate? 

Rep. Skarphol :  They d id not provide one; I don't th ink they had one. 

Chairman Delzer: Did you d iscuss if there was any way a person could sign in at customs 
and then have an easier way getting back out of the Peace Garden? 

Rep. Skarphol :  We d id not have that d iscussion. The d i rector of the Peace Gardens has 
very l ittle to do with the customs aspect of it. 

36:50 Rep. Skarphol: One th ing we haven't d iscussed yet is Fort Lincoln .  How do they 
intend to operate it? If they don't have a continuing appropriation of receipts, is there 
money for an operation since there is that separation between Fort Lincoln and the 
foundation that had provided some financial support? 

Joe Morrissette: The department thought they had adequate authority to operate that. 

Chairman Delzer: If they money didn't come in to cover what they needed , they would turn 
a round and not do some of the other things they have l isted with their estimated income. 

Joe Morrissette: They'd have to make that choice. 

Rep. Skarphol : There was some concern over who would have ownersh ip  of what. That 
p rocess is u nder negotiations between the foundation and the park. In the end , if there a re 
valuable artifacts out there, this committee maybe wants to g ive some d i rection as to 
whether  or not we feel those artifacts belong to the park service or of the state historical 
society. If they are valuable historic artifacts, who is the appropriate owner? 

38:50 Chairman Delzer: At this point, I th ink it would be hard to come up with the p roper 
language of how to address that. I think if we put it on the minutes that we had a 
d iscussion about it, you cou ld have some sort of d iscussion about that in  the conference 
comm ittee when there is one on this. 

Rep. Glassheim: I 'm concerned about the ongoing use of the faci l ity for i nterpretive 
h istorical activities. What brings people there are the interpretive gu ides walking around 
and interacting with visitors as sold iers of that time. If the interpretive gu ides are not there 
and it's only things to look at, I think over time people wil l  stop coming. I hope Parks & Rec 
intends to continue to operate it as a historical interpretive center. 

Rep. Skarphol :  We were approached by Sen . Erbele to put an amendment on here to buy 
the Lawrence Welk home. The committee was not wi l l ing to do it. We d id have some 
d iscussion about the appropriate thing to do with it. 
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Rep. Dosch :  Rather than purchase and maintain it, it may be appropriate to buy the home 
and move it elsewhere, l ike Bismarck's Buckstop Junction. 

Chairman Delzer: I had heard they weren't interested in sel l ing it to the parks without 
sign ificant money. 

Rep. Brandenburg :  The Lawrence Welk I nterpretive Center is very important to my 
d istrict, and I think it would be a mistake to move it from its h istorical location .  This has 
h istorical value on H ighway 83. 

43:08 Rep. Bel lew made a substitute motion to remove section 7 and the associated 
money from amendment .0 1 002 but keep the rest of the amendment. 

Rep. Pollert seconded the substitute motion. 

Rep. Bellew: My concern is that there was no hearing on it but it just appeared . It is a 
p rivate property. 

Chairman Delzer: With this one, I think we are really going beyond what we should be 
doing as an amendment in the budget bi l l .  If this had been a standalone thing and had 
gone through so that the ful l  assembly had seen it ,  whatever about that. I don't see that we 
want to put money in there with the possibi l ity that the appraised value could come in  at 
twice as much which we wou ld then sti l l  cover. 

Rep. Monson: I apologize for bringing this in at such a late date and as an amendment. I 
th ink this is important to that area and to the whole northeastern corner of the state. When 
someth ing l ike that comes up for sale, it is an opportun ity. 

Chairman Delzer: A lot of the members on the floor have told me what upsets them the 
most about the appropriations committee is when something shows up that no one has 
heard about. Each thing should stand on its own. If it's a great idea for the state and a 
good use of the money, we should support it. Personally, I th ink there are other p laces I 'd 
l ike to see the money go. 

47 :00 Rep. Glassheim: This place is a gem, $ 1 M or $3M doesn't matter, it's a great p lace. 
To have it be a state park is a bargain no matter the price. 

Voice vote on substitute motion to remove section 7 of .01 002. Voice vote fai ls. 
Division requested. 

Roll  call vote on substitute motion to remove section 7 of .01 002 . Motion fails. 

Yes = 8  No = 1 3  

C hairman Delzer: Rep.  Dosch , you said something about 400,000. Do you want to make 
an amendment to your  motion to cover that? 

Rep. Dosch :  Yes, we need to decrease that by $400,000. 
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Chairman Delzer: I th ink we' l l  go ahead and adopt this amendment and then further 
amend. 

Voice vote on orig inal motion to adopt amendment .01 002. Voice vote carries. 

Chairman Delzer: We have the amended bill before us. 

Rep. Dosch: I 'd l ike to move to further amend to reduce . . .  I need help with which l ine. 

Joe Morrissette: That would be out of the Natural Resources l ine. The d iscussion in 
subcommittee was to reduce that l ine by $350,000, half of which would come from the 
general fund and half from special funds. 

Rep. Skarphol:  Seconded . 

Chairman Delzer: We have a motion to further amend to reduce the natural resources l ine 
by $350,000, half general fund and have special funds. 

Rep. Skarphol:  That left $450 ,000 for that purpose. 

Joe Morrissette: That is correct. That $450,000 is a lso split evenly between general funds 
and other funds.  

Chairman Delzer: There are special funds here. Are there collection monies? 

Unidentified speaker: It wou ld be mixture of their park revenues and their oil bonus 
money already received . 

Voice vote on motion to further amend . Voice vote carries. 

5 1 :52 Rep. Monson :  Since Section 7 is sti l l  in this bi l l ,  I do not th ink it is worded right. I t  
makes it sound l ike the money would go to buy the whole Pembina Gorge. It should not 
say just the Frost F ire area . Instead of saying "the Walhal la Gorge" it shou ld say "purchase 
of property in the Walhalla Gorge."  We do not need to specify . . .  

Chairman Delzer: Shouldn't we have this tight enough so that they cannot just p ick some 
p lace up there? 

Rep. Monson: If you want to leave it as that, fine, but the words "the Walhal la Gorge" 
sounds too broad . 

Chairman Delzer: I agree. But to say "area purchase" leaves it too open. 

Rep. Monson: Well ,  j ust "the purchase of property in the Walhal la Gorge and Frost Fire 
area ."  

Rep. Brandenburg :  You should be able to get a legal description of what the property is .  



House Appropriations Committee 
HB 1 01 9  
February 22, 201 3 
Page 8 

Rep. Monson : Motion to change ofto in. 

Rep. Sanford :  Second. 

Voice vote on motion to further amend. Voice vote carries. 

Rep. Dosch: Makes a motion to Do Pass as Amended for HB 1 01 9. 

Rep. Skarphol : Seconded. 

55:34 Rep. Skarphol : The Park Service actual ly received $3 . 1  m il l ion in lease money for 
the land that they own that has potential .  The spent about 1 .9 and have about 1 .2 left in  
here of that lease money. Joe, is that relatively correct? Is  that part of the reven ue that is  
being referenced? 

Joe Morrissette:  That is part of the revenue being appropriated in this coming budget. I 
am not sure if 1 .9 in  the current biennium is the right amount. 

Rep. Skarphol :  There is $ 1 .2M left in here .  It i s  going to be used for their purposes. Like 
Rep .  Dosch said, they are getting about $3000 a month . The lease money was sign ificant 
and has been used for the improvements of the parks. 

Chairman Delzer: Is it gone, or wil l  there be $1 .2 mi l l ion that they figu re to use next 
biennium? 

Rep. Skarphol : That's 1 .2 to use this next biennium in the capital projects. 

Chairman Delzer: Why did you leave that much there as compared to using more of it 
instead of the general fund this time? 

Rep. Skarphol:  It is all going to be util ized in the 1 3-1 5 bienn ium.  

Chairman Delzer: Thank you .  Further discussion 

Rol l call vote on motion for a Do Pass as Amended. Motion carries. 

Yes = 1 5  
No = 6 
Absent = 1 

Carrier: Rep .  Dosch 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE B ILL NO. 1 0 1 9  

Page 1 ,  l ine 3 ,  after the semicolon insert "to provide an exemption ; "  

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 1 5  through 20 with: 

"Admin istration 
Accrued leave payments 
Natural resources 
Recreation 
Total al l  funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general fund 

Page 2, replace l ines 9 through 1 1  with : 

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total special funds 
Grand total al l  funds 

Page 2, replace l ine 1 7  with: 

$2,484 ,885 
0 

1 2 ,768,203 
7 ,489,091 

$22,742, 1 79 
1 1 ,641,532 

$1 1 , 1 00,647 

$1 1 ,874, 346 
1 1 ,641 ,532 

$23,5 1 5 ,878 

"Parks capital projects and deferred maintenance 

Page 2, replace lines 24 through 26 with: 

"Total a l l  funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general fund 

Page 3, after l ine 1 4, insert: 

$ 1 67 , 1 1 5  
1 8 1 , 577 

8 ,488, 1 50 
( 1 , 5 1 5 ,640) 
$7 ,32 1 , 202 

797,980 
$6, 523,222 

$6,723,222 
797,980 

$7 , 52 1 , 202 

$5,269,2 1 0  

$5 ,777 ,2 1 0 
1 ,028,000 

$4,749 ,2 1 0  

$2,652,000 
1 8 1 ,577 

21 ,256, 353 
5,973,451 

$30,063,381 
1 2,439,51 2  

$1 7 ,623, 869" 

$1 8 ,597,568 
1 2.439,51 2  

$31 ,037,080" 

$6,362,800" 

$7, 1 62,800 
1 ,937,800 

$5,225,000" 

"SECTION 5. EXEM PTION. Up to $400,000 of commun ity grants funding from the 
general fund included in the recreation l ine item contained in subdivision 1 of section 1 
of this Act is not subject to the provisions of section 54-44 . 1 - 1 1 .  Any unexpended funds 
from this appropriation may be expended during the biennium beg inning Ju ly 1 ,  201 5, 
and ending June 30, 201 7 ,  for the purposes provided in  section 55-08- 1 4. 1 .  

S ECTION 6. O I L-RELATED REVE N U E  - N EW WELLS. F ifteen percent of any 
revenue received by the department from oil wel ls completed after Ju ly 1 ,  201 3, must 
be used for the commun ity grants program for the bienn ium begi nn ing July 1 ,  201 3, 
and ending June 30,  20 1 5. Any remaining revenue received from these oi l  wel ls may 
only be used for one-time funding items. 

S ECTION 7. P ROPERTY PURCHASE IN WALHALLA G O R G E  A N D  FROST 
F I RE AREA. The natura l  resources l ine item in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act 
includes $2, 800,000 for the purchase of property in  the Walhal la gorge and frost fire 
area. Of this amount, up to $1 ,670 ,000 from the general fund and $830,000 of other 
funds from local matching funds may be used for the purchase of land and bui ldings. 
For each $2 of funding from the general fund used for the purchase , $1 of other funds 
from local matching funds must be received in cash by the department before the 
purchase is made. The land and bui ldings may not be purchased for more than the 

Page No.  1 



appraised val ue. The remaining amount of $300,000 from the general fund may be 
used for operations, a business plan, and other related expenses . "  

Renumber accordingly 

STATEME NT OF P URPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

House Bi l l  No. 1 0 1 9 - Summary of House Action 

Parks and Recreation 
Department 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

International Peace Garden 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Bill total 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Executive 
Budget 

$27,962,785 
11 ,791 ,835 

$16,170,950 

$973,699 
0 

$973,699 

$28,936,484 
11 ,791,835 

$17,144,649 

House 
Changes 

$2,100,596 
647,677 

$1 ,452,919 

$0 
0 

$0 

$2,100,596 
647,677 

$1 452 919 

House 
Version 

$30,063,381 
12,439,512 

$17,623,869 

$973,699 
0 

$973,699 

$31 ,037,080 
12.439,512 

$18,597,568 

House Bi l l  No. 1 0 1 9 - Parks and Recreation Department - House Action 

Administration 
Natural resources 
Recreation 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Executive 
Budget 

$2,719,322 
19,234,022 
6,009,441 

$27,962,785 
11 ,791,835 

$16,170,950 

55.00 

House 
Changes 

($67,322) 
2,022,331 

(35,990) 
181,577 

$2,100,596 
647,677 

$1 ,452,919 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$2,652,000 
21 ,256,353 
5,973,451 

1 81 577 

$30,063,381 
12,439,512 

$17,623,869 

55.00 

Department No. 750 - Parks and Recreation Department - Detail of House Changes 

Adjusts State Provides Adds Funding 
Corrects Employee Separate Line for Purchase Reduces 

Executive Compensation Item for and Operation Funding for 
Compensation and Benefits Accrued Leave of Walhalla Marina 

Package1 Package' Payments' Gorge Property4 Purchase5 

Administration $695 ($41 ,260) ($26,757) 
Natural resources 4,887 (290,386) (142,170) 2,800,000 (350,000) 
Recreation 400 (23,740) (12,650) 
Accrued leave payments 181 ,577 

Total all funds $5,982 ($355,386) $0 $2,800,000 ($350,000) 
Less estimated income 1 19  {7,442) 0 830,000 {175,000) 

General fund $5,863 ($347,944) $0 $1 ,970,000 ($175,000) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding is added due to a calculation error in the executive compensation package. 

2This amendment adjusts the state employee compensation and benefits package as follows: 

Total House 
Changes 

($67,322) 
2,022,331 

(35,990) 
181 ,577 

$2,100,596 
647,677 

$1 ,452,919 

0.00 

Reduces the performance component from 3 to 5 percent per year to 2 to 4 percent per year. 
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Reduces the market component from 2 to 4 percent per year for employees below the midpoint 
of their salary range to up to 2 percent for employees in the first quartile of their salary range for 
the first year of the biennium only. 
Removes funding for additional retirement contribution increases. 

3A portion of salaries and wages funding from the general fund ($1 76, 1 30) and from other funds ($5,447) 
for permanent employees' compensation and benefits is reallocated to an accrued leave payments l ine 
item for paying annual leave and sick leave for eligible employees. 

4Adds funding for the pu rchase and operation of property in the Wal hal la Gorge and Frost F i re area. 

5Funding included in the executive budget recommendation for the purchase of a marina is reduced from 
$800,000 to $450,000. Of the $450,000, $225,000 is from the general fund. 

This amendment also adds sections related to the following: 
An exemption from Section 54�44. 1 � 1 1  of $400,000 for community g rants included in the 
recreation l ine item. 
Provisions for the revenue received from newly dri l led oil wells. 
Provisions for the purchase of property in the Walhalla Gorge and Frost Fire area. 
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Date: [s- r elo -
Roll Cal l  Vote #: _.._! __ _ 

201 3 HOUSE STAN DING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES I BI LURESOLUTION NO. 7J 1 Cf 

House Education and Environment Division 

D C heck here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Counci l  Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken:  0 Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 0 Amended �opt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By -----T:::ID"--'o"'---')'-C/...;;;;__�---=-- Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Robert Skarphol \/ Rep. Clark Will iams / 
Vice Chairman David Monson v Rep. Tracy Boe v 
Rep. Bob Mart inson v 
Rep. Roscoe Streyle · -v_ 
Rep. Mark Dosch �I 
Rep. Bette Grande \/ 

Total (Yes) ____ ........ ? ____ ...,....- No ___ / __________ _ 
Absent I 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate i ntent: 



Date : l-- 1 8 ,..} 3  
Roll Cal l Vote #: I 

201 3 H O U SE STAN DI N G  COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. /IJ f1 
House E ducation and Environment Division C o m mittee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 
Legislative Council  Amendment N umber 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass D Amended � Adopt Amendment 
0 Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Reconsider 

M otion Made By ��q-.�""'"Q-"P..:::::5-=c-=-h.____ ____ Seconded By�M«r T i J150n 
Representatives Yes N o  Representatives Yes 

Chairman Robert Skarphol Rep. Clark Wil l iams 
Vice C hairman David Monson Rep. Tracy Boe 
Rep .  Bob Martinson 
Rep. Roscoe Streyle 
Rep. Mark Dosch 
Rep. Bette Grande 

Total N o 

N o  

(Yes) -------------------- ----------------------------
Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

If(} tl, r}t; iJ MM; t e 
Ct;vtr-f eJ fb1'- vc-V?-J . 

t/C(c� !l6 fe 
Yvt o  -h' � ctt yvitd 



Date: 2 - } � - / 3  
Roll Cal l Vote #: �'aC"""""---

201 3 H OUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL C ALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. I 0 t1 
House Education and Environment Division 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 
Legislative Council  Amendment N umber o. / 0 0 ) 

C o m m ittee 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended �Adopt Amendment 
D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

M otion Made By� 0 !1 5  0 n seconded By Nplk1ar f(n 5t/n 

Representatives Yes N o  Representatives Yes 

C hairman Robert Skarphol ,/_ Rep. Clark Wil l iams v .. 
Vice C hairman David Monson � Rep. Tracy Boe v 
Re�. Bob Martinson v 
Rep. Roscoe Streyle V' 
Rep. Mark Dosch v 
Rep.  Bette Grande ,/ 

N o  

Total (Yes) 
___ $� ____ 

N o 
__ 0 ________ __ 

Absent 0 
Floor Assignme nt 

If the vote is on an amendm ent, briefly indicate intent: 

/I 3 J ouq I 2/3 5tttte 

[. '(&& 'rill if 1; OVc -Pvff'!o/1 J �eN'� � cl {}.AA-J_ 
� 1'�"--ctw ¥� I oc� �J J'_ 



Date .?, ·� n-B 
Roll Cal l ote #: j; 3 

201 3 H O U S E  STAN DIN G  COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTJZ B ILL/RESOLUTIO N  No. J I q 

House Education and Environment D ivision 

D Check here for Conference Committee 
Legislative Counci l  Amendme nt N umber 

C o m mittee 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 0 Amended � Adopt Amendment 
0 Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Reconsider 

M otion Made sft; . 5 t ( eyl C Seconded sff'·M 0 n 5t? {) 

Representatives Yes N o  Representatives 

C hairman Robert Skarphol �v. Rep. Clark Wi l l iams 
Vice C hairman David Monson V__ Rep. Tracy Boe 
Rep. Bob Martinson v 
Rep. Roscoe Streyle \I 
Rep. Mark Dosch \/, 
Rep. Bette Grande _,'/ 

0 

Ye� N o  

V' v 

Total (Yes) � N o ------�--�------------------------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: t/ 0-t · lhe..-W o i  I vvt .f, . !51()f-:Jccs 1 o  omm--cr.tfgm.� t fryvo.,� 
fl*jOOF\51 



Date: 2 � /J - J  3 
Roll Cal l Vote #: It q 

201 3 H O U S E  STAND I N G  COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION N O .  I tJ 11 
House Education and Environment Division C o m m ittee 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 
Legislative Counci l  Amendment N umber 

Action Taken: � Do Pass D Do Not Pass liQ' Amended D Adopt Amendment 
D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

M otion Made By --+<D'---=-0_..5'--'C:;;_:_h.;_____ Seconded By Mon5on 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes N o  

Chairman Robert Skarphol v Rep. Clark Wi l l iams 17 
Vice Chairman David Monson \/ Rep. Tracy Boe i/ 
Rep . Bob Martinson v 
Rep.  Roscoe Streyle v 
Rep . Mark Dosch t/ 
Rep. Bette Grande v 

Total (Yes) --�P _______ 
N o 

__ L/�-----------
Absent 0 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

P IJJY �s -.f f2- e c .  btfoi J lb+ 



Date: 'L/ z_:z, /1 � 
Roll Cal l Vote #: ----+---

House Appropriations 

201 3 HOUSE STANDING C O M M ITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

B I LL/RESOLUTION NO. ----�-�/D...u.l_,t'l'---

D C heck here for Conference Comm ittee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken: D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended 00 Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By fle(. L&5 t)A 
Representatives 

Chairman Delzer 
Vice Chairman Kempenich 
Rep. Bel lew 
Rep. Brandenburg 
Rep. Dosch 
Rep. Grande 
Rep. Hawken 
Rep. Kreidt 
Rep. Mart inson 
Rep. Monson 
Rep. Nelson 
Rep. Pollert 
Rep. Sanford 
Rep. Skarphol 

Total Yes 

Seconded By ff;'· Sht!fh_o\ 
Yes No Representatives 

Rep. Streyle 
Rep. Thoreson 
Rep. Wieland 

Rep. Boe 
Rep. Glassheim 
Rep. Guggisberg 
Rep. Holman 
Rep. Wil l iams 

No ---------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly ind icate intent: 

Yes N o  



Date : �{uz. { 13  
Roll Cal l  Vote # :  _____;?/:;....__ __ 

House Appropriations 

201 3  HOUSE STANDING C O M MITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BI LL/RESOLUTION NO. /011 

D C heck here for Confe rence Comm ittee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken :  D Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 0 Amended I,N Adopt Amendment 

0 Rerefer to Appropriations 0 Reconsider 

Motion Made By ((f{. � lw 
Representatives 

Chairman Delzer 
Vice Chairman Kempenich 
Rep. Bel lew 
Rep. Brandenburg 
Rep. Dosch 
Rep. Grande 
Rep. Hawken 
Rep. Kreidt 
Rep. Mart inson 
Rep. Monson 
Rep. Nelson 
Rep. Pollert 
Rep. Sanford 
Rep. Skarphol 

Yes 

'1. K 
'{ " 
)( 
)( 

:( 
$ 

Seconded By 

No Representatives 
Rep. Streyle 
Rep. Thoreson 
Rep. Wieland 

)( 
Rep. Boe 

X Rep. Glassheim 
Rep. Guggisberg 
Rep. Holman 

y Rep. Wil l iams 

)( 
X X 

Yes N o  

X )( 
)( 

)( X X 
X 

>C 

Total Yes Z No 
-------=------------- ----��--------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly ind icate intent: 



Date: 1..--[ �?...-{I 3 
Roll Cal l  Vote #: _1.__ __ 

House Appropriations 

201 3 H O U SE STANDING COMM ITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BI LL/RESO LUTION NO. fo/ Cf 

D C heck here for Conference Comm ittee 

Leg islative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken: D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended � Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By ILif- lbs { h Seconded By � SkArth.,l 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes 

Chairman Delzer Rep. Streyle 
Vice Chairman Kempenich Rep. Thoreson 
Rep. Bel lew Rep. Wieland 
Rep. Brandenburg 
Rep. Dosch 
Rep. Grande Rep. Boe 
Rep. Hawken Rep. G lassheim 
ReQ. Kreidt Rep. G uQgisbecg 
Rep. Martinson Rep. Ho lman 
Rep. Monson Rep. Wil l iams 
Rep. Nelson 
Rep. Pollert 
Rep. Sanford 
Rep. Skarphol 

Total Yes No 

N o  

--------------------------------------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

�,� avW'JMJJ � reJMu. by  135o, ooo 
v 

;Vo..kf'CA, I {(u CM.VltJ ( 1• N 



Date: z..,f t,Z, / I  ..S 
Roll Cal l Vote #: ___;:4l----

House Appropriations 

201 3 HOUSE STANDING C O M MITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BI LL/RESOLUTION NO. /01 q 

0 C h eck here for Confe rence Comm ittee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken:  0 Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended � Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By �· M.oVI.Scr-V\ Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Delzer Rep. Streyle 
Vice Chairman Kempenich Rep_. Thoreson 
Rep. Bel lew Re_p. Wieland 
Rep. Brandenburg 
Rep. Dosch 
Rep. Grande Re!)_. Boe 
Rep. Hawken Rep. Glassheim 
Rep. Kreidt Rep. Guggisberg 
Rep. Martinson Rep. Holman 
Rep. Monson Rep. Wil l iams 
Rep. Nelson 
Rep. Pollert 
Re_Q. Sanford 
Rep. Skarphol 

Total Yes No 

Yes No 

--------------------- ----------------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly ind icate intent: 

�tlioV\ 7 \JcJWl\ G-o� 
,, � 0� f�Ui-y \Jt>JIAal(o. Go-ry-

•I 

fv..r I I\  

� 0� ' voW. (Yjf�iS 
tu ' " v�'u_ 



Date: z.J z.-z../ ( ) 
Roll Cal l  Vote #: ....,.,..L.r __ _ 

House Appropriations 

201 3 HOUSE STAN DING COMM ITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BI LL/RESOLUTION NO. 101 '\ I 

D C heck here for Conference Comm ittee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken: ElJ Do Pass D Do Not Pass IKJ Amended D Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By {l._-ep 'J:t>v\0 Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Delzer X Rep. Streyle 
Vice Chairman Kempenich K Rep. Thoreson 
Rep. Bel lew X Rep. Wieland 
Rep. Brandenburg v 
Rep. Dosch K 
Rep. Grande '{ Rep. Boe 
Rep. Hawken X Rep. G lassheim 
Rep. Kreidt )(' Rep. Guggisberg 
Rep. Martinson Rep. Holman 
Rep_. Monson )( Rep. Wi l l iams 
Rep. Nelson x 
Rep. Pol lert X 
Rep. Sanford )( 
Rep. Skarphol )( 

Total Yes 

Yes N o  
J( 

J( 
K 

X X K 
)( <' 

) No --------��--------- ---�+-----------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly ind icate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 26, 201 3  10 :53am 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_36_01 4  
Carrier: Dosch 

Insert LC: 1 3.81 48.01 003 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMIITEE 
HB 1 0 1 9 :  Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends DO PASS 
( 1 5  YEAS, 6 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTI NG). HB 1 0 1 9  was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3 ,  after the semicolon insert "to provide an exemption;" 

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 1 5  through 20 with : 

"Admin istration $2 ,484,885 
Accrued leave payments 0 
N atural resources 12 ,768,203 
Recreation 7,489,091 
Total al l funds $22,742, 1 79 
Less estimated income 1 1,641,532 
Total general fund $ 1 1  ' 1 00,647 

Page 2, replace l ines 9 through 1 1  with: 

"Grand total general fund $1 1 , 874, 346 
Grand total special funds 1 1 ,641,532 
Grand total al l  funds $23,51 5,878 

Page 2 ,  replace l ine 1 7  with : 

"Parks capital projects and deferred maintenance 

Page 2, replace l ines 24 through 26 with : 

"Total al l  funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general fund 

Page 3, after l ine 1 4, insert: 

$ 1 67, 1 1 5  
1 8 1 , 577 

8,488 , 1 50 
( 1  ,51 5,640) 
$7, 321 ,202 

797,980 
$6, 523, 222 

$6,723,222 
797,980 

$7,521 ,202 

$5,269,2 1 0  

$5,777,2 1 0  
1.028,000 

$4,749,2 1 0  

$2,652,000 
1 81 , 577 

21 ,256,353 
5 ,973 ,451 

$30 ,063,381 
1 2,439,51 2  

$1 7,623,869" 

$1 8 , 597,568 
1 2,439,5 1 2  

$3 1 ,037,080" 

$6, 362, 800" 

$7, 1 62,800 
1,937,800 

$5,225,000" 

"SECTION 5. EXEMPTION. Up to $400,000 of community grants funding from 
the general fund included in the recreation l ine item contained in subd ivision 1 of 
section 1 of this Act is not subject to the provisions of section 54-44. 1 -1 1 .  Any 
unexpended funds from th is appropriation may be expended during the biennium 
beginning Ju ly 1 ,  201 5, and ending June 30, 201 7 , for the purposes provided in  
section 55-08- 14. 1 .  

SECTION 6. OIL-RELATED REVENUE - NEW WELLS. Fifteen percent of any 
revenue received by the department from oil wells completed after July 1 ,  201 3, 
must be used for the community grants program for the biennium beginn ing July 1 ,  
20 1 3, and ending June 30, 201 5 . Any remaining revenue received from these oi l  
wel ls may only be used for one-time funding items. 

SECTION 7. PROPERTY PURCHASE IN WALHALLA GORGE AND FROST 
FIRE AREA. The natural resources l ine item in subdivision 1 of section 1 of th is Act 
includes $2,800,000 for the purchase of property in the Walhalla gorge and frost fire 
area. Of this amount, up to $1 ,670,000 from the general fund and $830,000 of other 
funds from local match ing funds may be used for the purchase of land and bui ldings. 
For each $2 of funding from the general fund used for the purchase, $1  of other 
funds from local match ing funds must be received in cash by the department before 
the purchase is made. The land and bui ld ings may not be purchased for more than 
the appraised value. The remaining amount of $300,000 from the general fund may 
be used for operations, a business plan, and other related expenses." 

Renumber accordingly 
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STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

House Bil l  No. 1 0 1 9 - Summary of House Action 

Parks and Recreation 
Department 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

International Peace Garden 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Bill total 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Executive 
Budget 

$27,962,785 
1 1,791 ,835 

$16,1 70,950 

$973,699 
0 

$973,699 

$28,936,484 
11 791 835 

$17,144,649 

House 
Changes 

$2,100,596 
647,677 

$1,452,919 

$0 
0 

$0 

$2,100,596 
647 677 

$1 452,919 

House 
Version 

$30,063,381 
12,439,512 

$17,623,869 

$973,699 
0 

$973,699 

$31 ,037,080 
12,439,512 

$18,597,568 

House Bill  No. 1 0 1 9 - Parks and Recreation Department - House Action 

Administration 
Natural resources 
Recreation 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Executive 
Budget 

$2,719,322 
19,234,022 
6,009,441 

$27,962,785 
1 1,791,835 

$16,1 70,950 

55.00 

House 
Changes 

($67,322) 
2,022,331 

(35,990) 
181,577 

$2,100,596 
647 677 

$1 ,452,919 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$2,652,000 
21 ,256,353 
5,973,451 

181 ,577 

$30,063,381 
12,439,512 

$17,623,869 

55.00 

Department No. 750 - Parks and Recreation Department - Detail of House Changes 

Adjusts State Provides Adds Funding 
Corrects Employee Separate Line for Purchase Reduces 

Executive Compensation Item for and Operation Funding for 
Compensation and Benefits Accrued Leave of Walhalla Marina Total House 

Package' Package' Payments' Gorge Property' Purchase' Changes 

Administration $695 ($41 ,260) ($26,757) ($67,322) 
Natural resources 4,887 (290,386) (142,170) 2,800,000 (350,000) 2,022,331 
Recreation 400 (23,740) ( 12,650) (35,990) 
Accrued leave payments 181 577 181 577 

Total all funds $5,982 ($355,386) $0 $2,800,000 ($350,000) $2,100,596 
Less estimated income 1 19  (7,442) 0 830,000 (175,000) 647 677 

General fund $5,863 ($347,944) $0 $1,970,000 ($175,000) $1 ,452,919 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding is added due to a calculation error in the executive compensation package. 

2This amendment adjusts the state employee compensation and benefits package as 
follows: 

Reduces the performance component from 3 to 5 percent per year to 2 to 4 percent 
per year. 

Reduces the market component from 2 to 4 percent per year for employees below 
the midpoint of their salary range to up to 2 percent for employees in the first quartile 
of their salary range for the first year of the biennium only. 

( 1 )  DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_36_014  
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• Removes funding for additional retirement contribution increases. 

3A portion of salaries and wages funding from the general fund ($1 76, 1 30) and from other 
funds ($5,447) for permanent employees' compensation and benefits is reallocated to an  
accrued leave payments line item for paying annual leave and  sick leave for eligible 
employees. 

4Adds funding for the purchase and operation of property in the Walhalla Gorge and Frost 
Fire area. 

5Funding included in the executive budget recommendation for the purchase of a marina is 
reduced from $800,000 to $450,000. Of the $450,000, $225,000 is from the general fund.  

This amendment also adds sections related to the following: 

• An exemption from Section 54-44 . 1 - 1 1  of $400,000 for community grants i ncluded in  
the recreation line item. 

• Provisions for the revenue received from newly drilled oil wells. 

Provisions for the purchase of property in the Walhalla Gorge and Frost Fire area. 
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D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resoluti 

A B I LL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the parks and 
recreation department and for providing a grant to the I nternational Peace Garden 

Minutes: Testimony attached # 1 - 7 

Leg islative Council - Sheila M .  Sandness 
OMB - Joe Morrissette 
Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on HB 1019. All committee members were 
present. 

Mark Zimmerman,  Director, North Dakota Parks and Rec 
Testified in favor of HB 1019 
Testimony attached # 1 Written Testimony 
Testimony attached # 2 NO Parks and Recreation 2011-2012 Annual Report 
Testimony attached # 3 North Dakota State Parks Gu ide 

Brad Pozarnsky, Dept. Field Manager, ND Parks and Recreation Department 
Testimony is included in attachment # 1. 

(11 :17) Senator O'Connel l :  Being in oi l country, are you having a hard time getting people 
part time and where are you getting them from? Can they find any living accommodations? 

Brad Pozarnsky: We're at a $9-10 average now and we're going to up it to $11 or maybe a 
l ittle higher. The oi l  field is sucking away al l  our older or over 18 crew. Housing is an 
issue, but in  al l  our state parks, we provide some type of seasonal housing.  

Senator O'Connel l :  Where does the part time help come from? Are they local or coming 
from around the whole state? 

Brad Pozarnsky : The people who are majoring in Parks and Recreation, we get them out 
of colleges. The ones that aren't are usually younger people who wi l l  work maintenance, 
etc. 
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Senator Warner: There are a lot of d ifferent forms of vacations and NO does a very good 
job on some of them, such as boats and docks, trai ls and winter trai ls .  Have you ever 
considered the day trippers around the country who go to the beach? Have you considered 
purchasing beach grooming machinery? Some places have sandy beaches where the 
mach inery goes over it, sifting the sand for glass and contouring the beach . Has that been 
considered? 

Brad Pozarnsky: We have self-made things. It doesn't actually pick up the g lass. We 
walk through and try to pick everything up,  but we have l ittle d iscs that lays it al l  flat, but 
that is a good idea and someth ing to consider. Someth ing l ike that would cost $30, 000-
50,000. 

Senator Wanzek commented that he had a brother-in-law that spent a year and a half in 
Grand Isle when the BP spi l l  happened . It 's a Jamestown business and they have a factory 
in MN .  They bui lt a beach cleaning piece of equipment that cleans right down to a d ime up 
out of the beach . So we have that capabi l ity right here in NO and I can share that with you 
if you ever wanted to look into that. They were on CNN News and Fox News when they 
were doing that. It was a N O  company that helped to clean up a lot of beaches in Grand 
Isle from the BP spi l l .  

Chairman Holmberg : Well ,  that was a brazen plug. (laughter) 
Senator Wanzek: I d idn't mention the name of the company or anything else. 

Senator O'Connel l :  From two years ago , there were a number of people who were 
working for Parks & Rec that were considered part time but had been there 1 1 - 1 2  years. 
How many people do you have that are ful ltime but considered part time temporary? 

Brad Pozarnsky: I would say between 5 and 7 fu l ltime temporary, but we pay their 
insurance. 

( 1 6: 1 7) Jesse Hanson, Planning and Natural Resources Division, NO Parks and 
Recreation Dept. 
Testimony is included in attachment # 1 .  

Chairman Holmberg: (read ing from testimony) What is forb seed ing? Answer: Native 
flowers. 

Senator Mathern sa id he camped at the Cross Ranch and was surprised by the 
connection between the Nature Conservancy and the Ranch . He asked about their  
p lanning with private organizations and wanted to know if there was a staff person to 
coord inate . 

Jesse Hanson: Typically our park manager and the manager of the Nature Conservancy's 
Cross Ranch work together to provide programs. They wi l l  plan scheduled tou rs in the 
summertime, but probably not in the winter. 

Senator Mathern : So that is locally managed . You don't have a staff person that manages 
that? Answer: No. We leave all that up to the Park Manager. 
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Senator Carl isle: On the $800,000 for the docks at Kit's Marina that was red uced to 
$450 ,000, was that an appraised value or how d id they come up with that number. 

Jesse Hanson:  That dollar amount was set arbitrari ly by the House Appropriations 
Committee. It wasn't a number that our agency provided . 

Senator Carl isle: There must have been some dynamic that they came up with $800, 000 . 

Jesse Hanson: When our agency came up with $800 ,000, it was a process of working 
through an appraisal of the docks wh ich is a very d ifficult situation . It's appraising a dock 
system with cables, underwater anchors,  . . .  So what our agency d id was - we had to have 
something in place should the owner of the dock system decide to exit the property. That 
budget request was put in with the idea that that's what it would take for our agency to 
rep lace the docks in the marina new. 

(29: 1 0) Arik Spencer, Recreation Division Manager, NO Parks and Recreation 
Department 
Testimony is included in attachment # 1 .  

Senator Grindberg wanted to g ive them a kudos. His sister farms near Langdon and they 
were four  wheel ing in the Pembina Gorge on a Sunday in June or Ju ly when they came 
upon a young man cleaning up after a wind storm. They asked "Why are you working on a 
Sunday?" and he said they have great pride in what we do. 

(36 : 0 1 )  Doug Hevenor, CEO, International Peace Garden 
Testified in favor of HB 1 0 1 9  
Testimony attached # 4 

(4 1 :50) Ron Merritt, Board Member, North Dakota Parks and Recreation Association 
(NDPRA) 
Testified in favor of HB 1 0 1 9  
Testimony attached # 5.  

(45:07) Chairman Holmberg : The $400 ,000 that he's talking about, is that the l ine 22 in 
the engrossed bi l l  for commun ity grant program? Answer - Yes . 

(45 :30) Kathy Stremick, Rendezvous Region 
Testified in favor of HB 1 0 1 9  
N o  written testimony, but handed a brochure - see attached # 6 .  

I n  H B  1 0 1 9 , I am referring to Section 7 .  The Pembina Gorge consists of 1 2 , 500 acres. The 
State of N O, through its agencies NO Park & Rec and NO Game & Fish are the largest 
landowners in the Pembina Gorge. In 2005, former Governor Hoeven made a visit to the 
Pembina Gorge area and they explained the help they need to properly ensure protection ,  
development, and preservation of the Pembina Gorge. At that time he gave us funding to 
do a study and develop trai ls. That went on and then through an appropriation to the N O  
Parks and Rec, trai ls were developed . We need to ensure that proper management is 
done. We feel ,  at the local level ,  who better to do that than NO Park & Rec, therefore we 
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feel that N O  Parks & Rec needs a home. Out in the Pembina Gorge is Frost F i re Mountain .  
Frost F i re Mountain has al l  the amen ities and would serve as the perfect home to become 
the Pembina Gorge I nterpretive Center, Pembina Gorge State Recreation area, to trai l  
head al l  activities out of that faci l ity. We want this to grow to make the Pembina Gorge a 
must see destination which is un ique to NO.  

(47 :40) Shane Goettle representing Kit Henegar, dba Captain Kit's Marina 
Testified in favor of HB 1019 . 
No written testimony. 
He was contacted by some boat owners in  Captain Kit's Marina who asked if he would get 
involved after the House cut the amount that the governor had recommended for the 
potential purchase of this marina by the state . The governor had worked with the Parks 
and Rec department and bel ieves $800, 000 is the amount needed to purchase this faci l ity. 
Kit Henegar has been operating this facil ity for more than 20 years. The state stands in the 
role as competitor, land lord and the only market that can potentially buy this facil ity 
because there is no long term lease that anybody in the private market cou ld possibly be 
interested in ,  so Mr. Henegar is competing against the state with the state being the 
land lord as well as its only potential buyer. This issue has l ingered for a long time, but the 
governor's office and parks and rec wanted to move forward and get this dea l done. 
While there is no deal yet, it would take this amount to get everything in motion so we could 
u ltimately arrive at a conclusion of this. There is no lease in  place for this season .  That 
has made some boat owners nervous. We're here to support the governor's orig inal 
request of $800 ,000 and ask the committee to restore that. 

V.Chairman Bowman asked if the marina was self-supporting and are there enough 
resources coming in  to run it after it's purchased? Wil l  it increase the bottom l ine to the 
cost of government? 

Shane Goettle: The Henegar's have operated this facil ity for more than 20 years .  They've 
had debt seNice to cover during that time . There is a cantina up there that can be 
operated . This is a nice facil ity and the state would own something that would be n ice to 
operate. With the sl ip fees, and if the state operates it, it just needs to be cash flow to the 
point where it covers the cost. I bel ieve that would be possible. 

Senator Carl isle: Fort Stevenson is a big park. One of our former senators got several 
mi l l ion dol lars to re-do Fort Stevenson and put that in d irect competition with Captain Kits 
Marina,  so he's between a rock and a hard place because we have the government 
supporting Fort Stevenson.  I th ink Senator Dorgan was a player behind it and it was a 
several m i l l ion dol lar dea l .  It's out there and it's a neat place, but I asked the question 
earl ier of how the $800,000 went to $400 ,000. Do you have any obseNations on that? 

Shane Goettle: I wasn 't in that hearing because I wasn't representing the marina at that 
t ime. I 've learned that some of the committee members wanted to cut the funds and didn't 
feel that they needed justification in the record . The $800,000 doesn't represent any kind of 
final deal .  The Parks and Rec wil l sti l l  have to do its due d i l igence,  but there is no possible 
deal at the level that the House cut this to. The Parks & Rec d id their due d i l igence to put 
that figure in the budget and say that's the level we need to negotiate this out and bring it to 
final conclusion. 
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Senator Carl isle said there is another smaller marina across the bay that h is friend owns 
and he's in the same situation,  only in a smaller situation .  When this happened , the whole 
dynamic changed . 

Shane Goettle: These marina owners are in a box, with the state as competitor and 
landlord and the only market they have. There is no one in the private market that is going 
to come here unless the state says they wil l offer a 7 year lease or longer so they could 
consider doing cap ital improvements and get a return on my investment. There is no lease 
right now and it's being done on a season by season basis .  You can't interest anyone in 
the private market with that kind of arrangement. 

(54: 1 0) Tracy Potter, Executive Director, Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation 
Testified in favor of HB 1 0 1 9  
N o  written testimony. 

I want to d i rect the committee's attention to one specific issue and one general one. In the 
last 23 years , the Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation has put about $ 1 OM into Fort Lincoln in 
either the bui ld ings they bui lt and left there. Much was done with federa l  funds, some with 
private funds and they operated the interpretive program and the book store. We're no 
longer provid ing this at Fort Lincoln and have notified the Parks dept. in late December. I 
have no financial interest in  the topics I 'm about to bring to you . I 'd l ike to call your  
attention to the Harold Brady collection.  

I sent an emai l  to you earlier today about the collection . Harold is 92 years old and when 
he was about n ine, he started riding his bike out to Fort Lincoln and he was col lecting 
things. Legal ly or i l legally, the statute of l imitations has certain ly run out so Harold's 
col lection was obtained and he was there when the CCC was d igging and they were 
throwing th ings away, so he'd pick them up. Over the years , he col lected a lot; 1 0 ,000 
square nails, items that represent the fort, General Custer and that area very wel l .  He 
d isp layed these items in 75 cases, 2 foot by 3 foot, and I was able to convince him to 
provide them to the Fort Lincoln Foundation on permanent loan for a d isplay at Fort Lincoln 
State Park. The items are sti l l  at the park. Harold had a stroke in December and that led 
his daughter to contact me. This col lection is part of h is estate and they feel they wil l  be 
forced to take the col lection back and sell it. It is only useful to them if it's converted to an 
asset and for sale. It has been appraised at $42 ,500 and the appraisal stated that it's worth 
more as a tota l collection and d isplayed at Fort Lincoln State Park than it would be 
anywhere else. It's at the park currently and is a valuable asset and it wi l l  be lost, I 'm 
afra id ,  if it is not purchased . I would encourage you to place into the Parks budget 
sufficient resources to negotiate the purchase of these items. 

I have a rooting interest in the interpretive program at Fort Lincoln State Park. Our 
foundation is donating an insured value of $350,000 worth of exhib its and items to the state 
so they can maintain that. The Custer House is going to remain as is, with the items owned 
by the Foundation being donated to the state so it can continue the interpretive effort out 
there .  We've also encouraged our interpretive staff to take positions with the state if those 
positions are offered . The parks d i rector is somewhat restrained in going beyond the 
executive budget and I would encourage you to take a close look during the subcommittee 
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and make sure the interpretive effort does not suffer any decrease with the absence of the 
Foundation . 

Chairman Holmberg said that the subcommittee wil l be: Senator Krebsbach, Senator 
Gary Lee and Senator O'Connell .  

(1 :00 :04) Bill  Butcher, Friends of Lake Sakakawea 
Testified in  favor of HB 1 0 1 9  
No written testimony, but asked the committee to reverse the House decision to purchase 
Captain Kit's Marina and placing it under Parks and Rec. 

( 1 : 02 : 1 6) Doug Prchal, State Park System A dvocate and Park User 
Testified in opposition to amended section 7 in itiated by House Appropriations in the state's 
purchase of the Frost Fire Ski Area . 
Testimony attached # 7 

( 1  : 05 :36) Senator Carlisle (to OMB or Leg islative Counci l) :  If there is oi l  in whatever 
entity of a state agency, they get to keep the oil lease revenue, correct? And Parks and 
Rec would be an example? 

Joe Morrissette: It does depend on the statutory authority that governs the agency's abi l ity 
to collect and retain revenue. There are cases, l ike the State Historical Society, where any 
oi l leases that they have, that revenue goes to the general fund . But in the case of Parks, 
their  statutory authority is broad enough that it al lows them to retain that in their  special 
fund .  

Chairman Holmberg said there are o i l  interests at Dickinson State, at the Veterans' Home, 
the capital grounds. 

Joe Morrissette: The capital grounds fund that is administered by the Land Department 
does have oil revenue that flows to it. 

Senator Erbele: to (Mark Zimmerman) Several staff people have mentioned that over the 
next five years ,  $ 1 02M of unmet capital needs, and if this Outdoor Heritage bil l that is 
currently in the hopper gets passed and is funded , your agency would qual ify for some of 
those funds. Do you have any projects in that unmet needs area, that $ 1 02M,  that would 
qual ify under the conservation part of the Park system? 

Mark Zimmerman : Absolutely. I n  our d iscussions with the governor's office and h is 
budget for the Outdoor Heritage Fund as well as our visits in the House, we would certain ly 
apply for our department for some of those grant funds and work with NDRPA in p itch ing 
that money out in some of those unmet needs. 

Senator Erbele: Could you g ive me an example of what some of those projects would be 
that would fa ll under conservation? 

Mark Zimmerman : I don't know if it would fal l  under the conservation part ,  but the 
provision in the bi l l  for the Outdoor Heritage Fund is for Parks and Recreation .  We would 
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seek and advise them to submit project appl ications to make improvements in  parks with 
p layground equipment or in city parks with a campsite or two. 

Senator Erbele: (speaking of the $1 02M) I would l ike to know what some of those specific 
unmet needs are. Playground equ ipment, what else? 

Arik Spencer: We did an 'outdoor recreation provider' survey. We sent out 303 surveys, 
and 200 returned the survey that indicated d ifferent types of unmet needs. Those can 
range from pools, playgrounds or cou ld even be larger infrastructure needs l ike at the 
Peace Garden. It includes campground needs, so it's the fu l l  spectrum of all the outdoor 
recreation needs that we bel ieve were reported . Some of that could be related to more 
people coming to western North Dakota as wel l  as some flood impacts . The outdoor 
recreation needs include getting parks back up to useable stance.  

It's not a specific project but a whole range of things across the entire spectrum of outdoor 
recreation providers and we do have those individual surveys if we need to go back into 
more depth . 

Senator O'Connel l :  (to Brad Pozarnsky) The Parks and Recs owns equipment, you don't 
go through the motor pool for any leasing? 

Brad Pozarnsky: The only equipment that goes through the motor pool are cars. The rest 
is purchased . 

Senator O'Connell asked about the vintage of the tractors and Brad Pozarnsky said they 
were over 20 years old . Senator Robinson asked if they cou ld access some tractors from 
DOT but they hadn 't checked into that. 

Senator Erbele: (question to Kathy Stremick - of Cross Fire) We're looking at $2.8 M 
and of that, you're going to ask $830, 000 of private matches and you can't buy that without 
the appraised value, but the appraisal has been done? 

Kathy Stremick: The Pembina County J DA and the Cavalier County J DA committed the 
funds for the bui ld ing assessment, the environmental and the appraisal .  The appraisal has 
been completed and right now is being reviewed by a second appraiser because there is so 
much equipment involved . 

Senator Erbele: Do you have a l ist of what we would be getting for $2 .8M? How many 
bu i ldings, the size of the bui ldings, how many acres, equ ipment, and so on? 

Kathy Stremick: Yes , that is al l  included in  the bu ild ing assessment. The bui lding 
assessment and the environmental was done by YHR Eng ineering F irm out of Fargo and I 
can provide you with that information.  

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on HB 1 0 1 9 . 
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A Subcommittee hearing for Parks and Rec. 
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C hairman Krebsbach cal led the subcommittee hearing together on Wednesday, March 27,  
201 3  at 1 0:30 am in the Harvest Room . The conferees present are :  Krebsbach , Lee, and 
O'Connel l .  
Becky J.  Keller- Leg islative Council 
Lori Laschkewitsch- OMB 

Senator Krebsbach: On the second engrossment, of HB 1 01 9 . At th is t ime to go into what 
we need to do the salary issue is a non-issue because we are reverting back to the 
governor's budget on this bi l l .  

Mark Zimmerman, Director, ND Parks and Rec here to explain the d ifferences looking at 
the green sheet dated March 1 3, 201 3 .  If  I would go through those the one t ime funding to 
u pdate the strateg ic master plan that was in the House budget and that stays. The one time 
funding for community grant that stays as is; one-time funding for capital projects at various 
state parks, the House increased that funding by $2,450,000 of which $ 1 ,795, 000 for the 
general fund and that would be for the purchase of the Frost Fire Ski area. The one time 
funding for extraord inary repairs is the same as before, the one- time funding for equ ipment 
was in the Governor's recommended budget; and then the other items dealing with 
salaries, the trai l  crew, the FTE position ,  and then the funding for the I nternational Peace 
Garden . 

Senator Krebsbach The salaries that you're speaking of in 6 ,7 ,8 were in  the Governor's 
budget? Mr. Zimmerman yes,  they were. Senator Krebsbach the number 9 issue, could 
you go through that with us again? I know part of it is for the tower. 

Mr. Zimmerman None of that is for the tower, I understood from the Director of the 
I nternational Peace Garden that $200,000 increase is for his salary requests to increase 
the seasonal salaries at the I nternational Peace Garden. Senator Krebsbach that was 
included by the governors' budget. Mark Zimmerman rep l ied yes. 
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Mark Zimmerman The other side, funding for increased operating costs, those i n  the 
Governor's budget, the equipment purchase and extraord inary repairs were in the 
Governor's budget, #1 2 removers funding for capital assets that was more of a 
bookkeeping issue, and then the compensation package. 

Senator Gary Lee: What do you mean bookkeeping issue there? What does that tel l  me? 

Becky J.  Kel ler We typically show the one time funding for capital projects and stuff to 
come out so that you don't think it is sti l l  in there and carried forward . Senator Gary Lee: 
Its one funding for this biennium that's here. 

Mr. Zimmerman there are a couple of items. From the time of the Governor's budget 
recommendation ,  the House reduced an item the amount of $800,000 for the purchase of 
the marina facil ities at Lake Sakakewa State Park. The House amended that and reduced it 
to $450,000; we would ask the Senate to consider return ing that to the Governor's 
recommended budget at $800 ,000. 

Senator Krebsbach We're trying to find that in  here. 

Becky J. Kel ler If you go back up to # 3 the House increasing th is funding by $2.54 mi l l ion,  
that net of the funding that was added for the Frost Fire area, and then the reduction of the 
marina purchase. Senator Krebsbach I see that, I 've got to rework the math so that I 
understand it but I know what you're saying . 

Mark Zimmerman: Shane Goettle is here specific to the marina as wel l .  

Senator Krebsbach we wi l l  not address that issue now. Senator Armstrong wants to come 
in and we will deal with that next week. 

Senator Krebsbach we would l ike to see what we need to look at. 

Senator Gary Lee In terms of that number # 3 what was the Frost F ire cost and the 
marina cost to beg in with? 

Becky Kel ler repl ied the cost for the Frost fire area was $2.8 mi l l ion,  and of that $ 1 .97 
M i l l ion is from the General Fund , $830,000 is matching; the marina was red uced by 
$350,000 of that $ 1 75, 000 was general .  

Senator Gary Lee What was the total for that to begin with the $800,000? Becky Kel ler 
$800 ,000. Senator Gary Lee It was reduced by $375,000? Becky Kel ler $350,000. 

Mark Zimmerman Of that requested $800,000 I wish to point out that half of that is genera l  
fund or park revenue for the marina purchase. We are not asking for al l  genera l  funds. 

Senator Krebsbach In park marina, that would that come from the properties that they do 
own at Fort Stevenson now, that is the Park and Recs? 
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Mark Zimmerman The department owns the land . We lease the land from the Corp of 
Engineers .  We are purchasing what I would call the infrastructure, the docks, the cables, 
the anchors ,  the pump-out system . There is no real estate involved , our department leases 
from the Corp of Engineers. 

Senator Krebsbach Any further requests. Welcome Senator Carlisle. 

Senator Carl isle District 30 provided a proposed amendment # 1 3. 8 1 48 .03001 . This is for 
the collection ,  what I am putting an amendment for consideration there's a collection of 
approximately 42, 500 with the idea that 1 )  before you act on the amendment we need an 
appraisal of verification to make sure that is the correct figu re ,  2) if  any consideration is 
g iven to the amendment, that the parks and rec, need to have them on d isplay 3) what I am 
k ind of worried about i f  somebody would purchase it, i f  there isn't any action ,  between here 
and the Historical Society, the col lection could be broken up and sold p iece meal .  That 
amendment is for your consideration . It needs to be d isplayed and not stored . 

Senator Krebsbach Has it run d i rectly through the Parks and Rec, is that correct? 

Senator Carl isle I don't know if the parks and rec can own stuff. If we have it on record the 
d i rector of parks and rec would indeed d isplay this. 

Senator Krebsbach From information , Century Code does not let the department own or 
accept artifacts. The Historical Society cou ld own them and have the departments d isplay 
them . 

Senator Carl isle That would work, whatever you're committee verifies. As long as there is 
a potentia l  to purchase them so they get on d isplay as part of a complete collection .  

Senator Krebsbach The dol lar amount is $42 , 500. 

Senator Carl isle We'l l  need an appraisal ;  that's the figure they al l  heard . They all come 
with a written appraisal . 

Senator Krebsbach we would just need a copy of that appra isal .  

Mark Zimmerman I would l ike to add to that. I d id visit with Merle Paavarud at S H S ,  they 
wou ld not be interested in  own ing it, and they felt it would be better if our department would 
purchase it rather than the h istorical society. I d idn't realize in  the code that we are u nable 
to do that. I would echo Senator Carl isle's comments that it would be unfortunate to have it 
sp l it up and have 6 people whoever purchased those artifacts. I n  SB 2259 to maintain 
these archeolog ical/ paleontolog ical sites, so however, we could work that amendment. 
Just based on what Merle said to me they are not interested in them based on their eth ics 
of what they should be purchasing. Merle said we most l ikely would put it in  archives, not 
d isplayed . It wou ld be great to have them at Fort Abraham Lincoln .  I would ask for some 
favorable response on those amendments. 

Senator O'Connel l :  Who appraise these? I would be more comfortable with two 
appraisals. 
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Mark Zimmerman I would think there would be someone deal ing with antiques and wi l l  
contact them. 

Senator Krebsbach The Frost Fire - the subcommittee received a whole book, Testimony 
attached # 2. Environmental Site Assessment Appra isal; any d iscussion on that park? 

Mark Zimmerman We don't have testimony but wi l l  answer any questions. 

Senator O'Connel l :  What kind of shape is the place in, what wi l l  it take to get it up  and 
run ning? I understand it is in  pretty poor shape. 

Mark Zimmerman I have been up there to the ski area. We don't have a lot of that 
information .  

Jesse Hanson, Plann ing Division Manager for Parks and Rec: Unfortunately the appraisal 
and things were put together without our agency being on as part of it ,  so we are not able 
to g ive an assessment of the faci l ities. It is just from the appraisal .  You can see there are 
older, they wi l l  have to be replaced or upgraded , and what those costs m ig ht be, we don't 
have the abi l ity to give an answer from our agencies perspective. 

Mark Zimmerman The appraisal and the budget passed over from the House does not 
have room for any funding,  for staffing, for major improvements. That's a concern of our 
department, of what our obl igation would be in  1 3-1 5 bienn ium. We could look at taking 
ownersh ip ,  looking at possible concession contracts, but we know those going to be up 
grading the ski area, the restaurant, the summer theater, plus to staff it. Of  course we don't 
have anything in  our budget at this time. 

Senator Krebsbach The property that area, the ski area and the theater, where they s it on ,  
who owns that now? 

Mark Zimmerman The Johnsons, Judith and Richard Johnsons, the owners of Frost F i re ,  
own the property a t  the ski area. 

Senator Krebsbach And the theater? Mark Zimmerman rep l ied that would be included . 

Senator Krebsbach Further d iscussion on items to be added . 

Senator O'Connel l :  How much as far as the marina is  concerned staffing,  etc, what is it 
going to cost us? 

Mark Zimmerman: Pit's Marina is at Lake Sakakawea state park on the south side of the 
lake close to P ick City. Our operation for seasonal employees, 5 to 6 ,  those wou ld be park 
revenues, costs covered by the revenue received at the marina as wel l  as our general park 
revenues. So we're not looking at and part of our budget in  the general fund for seasonal 
staff. But in anticipation of operating the marina ,  we figured that into our operated budget to 
h i re seasonal staff. Our fu l l  time staff, our park manager, our park ranger, has marina 
experience. The current owner, Kip Henninger has agreed if the purchase does go through ,  
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that Mr. Henninger and h is wife would be there for the 201 3 season to help in  a transition to 
learn how to operate the docks, get to know their customers, so we don't see a lot of major 
costs. Mr. Henninger has maintained those docks in excel lent shape. For the age of the 
docks we've had a couple of d ifferent companies up there looking at them, and they are 
amazed at 20 year old docks that there in  that shape. Kip has done a terrific job of 
mainta in ing them . Kip is a d iver and has friends who are divers, they have replaced those 
cables, what is there is a good purchase. Staffing it again ,  we are prepared to h i re seasonal 
staff, income from sl ip rentals, gasoline sales, concession sales of snacks; bait ,  we can 
cover those costs to operate. 

Senator Krebsbach Do you see it as a money producer in add ition to covering costs? 

Mark Zimmerman I think it can be in a couple of years. We realize that we are going to 
have to be replacing decking on the dock. Mr. Henninger chose, it was not a 7 day 
operation , we feel with seasonal staff and our park manager and park ranger l iving in  the 
park, we feel we can go to a d ifferent business plan and operation.  We feel we can real ize 
an income from it, perhaps not again beyond what a replacement cost would be for 
decking, for cables; that wil l  al l  have to be on a schedule. I don't see us coming back i n  
20 1 5  for operating costs, that was a concern of mine, but with visiting with our  analyst in  
OMB and in  the Governor's office we have to figure that out. I bel ieve we can make i t  work. 

Senator Gary Lee Was that $800,000 appra ised value for the property? Not the property 
but the assets that were there? 

Mark Zimmerman That was not the amount for the proposed value. We needed to put an 
amount in  the budget. They were working on an amount with an appraisal with M r. 
Henn inger. It's d ifficult Senator Lee to find someone to give us an appraisal of that type of a 
dock system .  We've had a couple of companies out from the Minneapolis area. When you 
go to a lake in Minnesota, they stay about the same level .  Not a lot of fluctuation .  The dock 
system at our marinas on the lake including kits, it's an extensive system to compensate for 
a 30-40 foot elevation in that lake. Just the anchor system, there is a couple of stiff arms 
their cal led to raise and lower that so we did not have an appraisal by the time we had to 
submit our budget. We worked on putting in a price in  the budget that if the purchase d id 
not go through ,  $800,000 would be about the cost to replace those docks with new docks. 
We felt if we were not successfu l in making a purchase with Mr. Henninger we wou ld at 
least the authority to spend up to $800 ,000 for new docks. We are working again with Kit, 
and Mr.  Henninger and we've got another company that is wi l l ing to look at the dock 
system . I bel ieve we would not be above $800,000 in an appraisa l .  I certain ly real ize we're 
not in a position yet, that we have $800 ,000 and we wi l l  write you a check for $800,000. 

Senator Gary Lee Was that sort of an asking price that he had? Mark Zimmerman repl ied 
no,  that was not the asking price of Mr. Henninger. We orig inally had visited with M r. 
Henn inger some months ago it was at $ 1 .2 Mi l l ion dol lars. We then visited at $900 some 
thousand.  So we're going to continue to work through that. Again I am not sounding coy 
here or evasive, but our effort was to assure us that we had funds to replace the docks if 
we need too. I hope that we don't come to that. I hope we wil l  be able to work Mr. 
Henninger and get to an appraised value, get to a price that is going to work. I th ink 
someth ing to be considered here is that if  we don't, we also real ize that we had the marina 
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and just s l ip rentals is a considerable amount of money, $ 1 00,000 plus a year. If we can't ,  
although I bel ieve we can ,  but if we cannot come into an agreement with Mr. Henninger, 
and there isn't a 20 1 3  season, where the sl ip renters aren't in the marina, we're going to 
lose a couple $ 1 00,000 in business because we're not in agreement. 

Senator Gary Lee Did the house offer their explanation for their  reduction of that amount? 

Mark Zimmerman I don't know that Rep . Streyle made the motion for the amendment to 
reduce it to $450,000 with no explanation. We d id have some figures from the North Dakota 
Smal l  Business Development Center that had that in there ,  of a purchase price of about 
$450 ,000. Again that was based more on their sales figures than an appraisal of the actual 
physical property. Again ,  we're a l ittle disjointed though and part of it is the t iming factor 
here .  By the time we had to submit for the budget, to get it i n ,  but I am confident that if we 
could have the amount returned to the Governor's Executive Budget and they felt 
comfortable, Joe Morrissette, our analyst felt it was a fai r  figure to put in the budget and 
defend to ask the Governor to support that. If we don't agree with the owner, we at least 
have the abi l ity to go to the owner to offer at least $800,000 to replace them.  Now if we 
need to verify that with an appraisal we wil l  certain ly do that. Our intention is to work with 
Kit to come to an equitable price . We need to try to get this accompl ished by the 201 3 
season. Th is is a viable part of the State Park, a big part on the south side of the lake to 
have that marina continue operation.  

Senator O'Connell Some think the rent is too high down there for the sl ips .  The rent has 
been negotiated up and then down , I think it's going to take a lot more convincing for me. 
I t's hard to deal then.  

Mark Zimmerman I would hope not, we need to make a d istinction between the marina. 
The state already owns on the north side at Fort Stevenson . Our sl ip rental prices at Fort 
Stevenson are h ig her than Mr. Henninger's on the south side of the lake. We had made 
that an effort that the state not be in competition with private business. Al l  of our s l ips are 
rented at Fort Stevenson State Park. Mr. Henn ingers' sl ips are rented- he has a rating l ist at 
Lake Sakakawea State Park. 

Senator Krebsbach Explain to me how the funding for the sl ips that you own , the State 
Park. Where does that money come from? 

Mark Zimmerman 4 years ago the Garrison community, worked with the North Dakota 
Congressional Delegation and the Corps of Engineers, funded the construction of the 
marina to the tune of about $ 1 1 Mi l l ion dollars. Then the docks were purchased and the last 
session the Legislature provided funding, general fund funding that we buy the docks and 
operate the marina. The State Park owns the docks, we operate the marina and the 
thought being the continued would be there of manag ing it and making sure that everything 
is up to par. 

Senator O'Connell :  At one time was our Fort Stevenson, a restaurant put in, which park is 
that put in and is that operating? 
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Mark Zimmerman At Fort Stevenson State Park, the construction by the Corp of 
Engineers ,  d id include a concession bui lding. The State Park operates a restaurant there 
now. We have a l imited food service, we've learned after a couple of years what is going to 
work and what is going to sel l .  We staff it open on weekend is a bigger business, and that 
again after a couple of years we are breaking about even.  We're learning more lessons of 
what to serve with hours to serve it, how much staff we need there ,  but we have that 
operating in  conjunction when we do fuel sales at Fort Stevenson. So our staff is dual  
purposed , there in the food service bui ld ing sel l ing snacks on site food and then also 
operate the gas. Now on the other side, at Lake Sakakewea at Kit's Marina ,  they also 
operated a cantina. It was a very successfu l business and we would look at perhaps some 
operation there .  They had a l iquor l icense. The Attorney General's office has advised us as 
a state entity that we cannot hold the l iquor l icense. So there is some consideration as to 
what we would do there, but Kit and h is wife had a very successfu l profitab le cantina for 
their s l ip renters and people in the park. 

Senator O'Connell  For the next meeting, could you provide a wish l ist what you wou ld l ike 
to have put in the budget? What kind of grooming equipment 1 -4 ,  and prioritize that? 

Mark Zimmerman We will provide that information.  

Senator Krebsbach Can you just name them so we can get them on record or you can 
g ive them to Becky for her to include them in a document for the committee? 

Senator Krebsbach closed the subcommittee hearing on HB 1 01 9. 
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C hairman Krebsbach called the subcommittee together at 2 :30 pm on Tuesday, Apri l 02, 
201 3 in  the Senate Conference Room . Let the record show al l  conferees are present: 
Senator Krebsbach , Senator Gary Lee and Senator O'Connel l .  

Becky J. Keller- Legislative Council 
Joe Morrissette - OMB 

Senator Krebsbach also provid ing money for the l PG.  List the items we wi l l  be deal ing 
with on th is b i l l .  List of proposed changes to House bi l l # 1 0 1 9. (  Testimony #1 ) 1 and 2 ,  
agreed upon . We' l l  be  sure to add that. Item 3, Marina a t  Fort Stevenson,  the House cut 
that back, to $450,000 and we need to put $350,000 back in  to meet the governor's 
recommendation.  (Testimony #2) 

Senator Armstrong: A l ittle h istory with this is the state park marina,  located at Pick City i n  
the state park,  since 1 993, I have a sl ip in this marina.  I sat on  the House Appropriation 
side of this, the appraisal was just an equ ipment appraisal and not a business appraisa l .  
Just the s l ip  rentals alone which would probably go up i f  the state park takes i t  over is in 
access of $ 1 50,000 a year. So when the appraisal amounts got moved back and forth ,  as 
this has moved over time, what has happened is the leases have gotten shorter. Several 
years ago there was private group interested in  buying it, and there's a lways been people 
who own their boats at the marina, that talk about buying it  but the problem , if you strap out 
a business plan,  it has a 7 1 /2 year rate of return which is a pretty good business with a 5 
year lease . I t's pretty tough to buy something if your  rate of return is past your  defin itive 
t ime of when you are guaranteed to get back on it. A couple of things, docks, this is the 
only marina that has been open every single day, completely surrounded by the state part, 
essentially what has come through ,  it becomes impossible for the private person to buy it 
because of the cond ition .  It's a cash flow business, there is money involved in it and I 
should say that it is run very wel l  right now. The dock system is top notch,  the guy who runs 
it does a real ly good job, if he leaves, he runs a great show. But the answer is through the 
mechan ics how that works, it essential ly is the only buyer left is the state of North Dakota 
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because of the leasing and things of that nature .  The appraisal in  the House was just a 
stra ig ht equ ipment appraisal and there is a gas station there ,  they sell gas to the motorists 
on the lake, there are the sl ip rentals and their leases are fu l l ,  these are large sai l  boats and 
cabin cru isers, they l ive on the lake. It's a really great facility, g iven the current 
circumstances depend ing on what the policy should be, this wil l  cash flow positive over the 
next 1 0  or 1 5  years ,  it wil l  actually make money. It is an integral part of the south side of 
the lake, on the eastern part and it's a great faci l ity. The cost to replacing th is stuff would be 
exceptional ly more than what is there now. 

Senator O'Connel l :  How many people run the place now? 

Senator Armstrong Husband and wife essential ly, some high school kids that help with 
the lawn mowing and weed ing in the summer. Senator O'Connell How many would that 
be? Senator Armstrong 3 total ,  2/1 /2 people run it during the summer right now. 

Senator Gary Lee In terms of the $800,000 we talked about that before ,  it isn't an 
appra ised value, it is just a value that was arrived at in  term of looking at the equipment and 
the condition and so on, what seemed to be a reasonable price without an appraisal? 

Mark Zimmerman , Director of the ND Parks & Rec: If we are looking at it $650 ,000 to 
$700,000 we would be in that range. I am trying to get an appraisal but as Senator 
Armstrong said , it's d ifficult in that the system that Kit Henninger has put in  place is u nique 
to al low for 30 foot fluctuations. A couple guys looked at it, that is based on a lake in  M N ,  
that maybe fluctuates a foot o r  two. This i s  a whole d ifferent system . If I m ig ht the other 
th ing ,  if  the purchase doesn't go through ,  we are looking too at a year of no sl ip rental 
i ncome here .  If we don't come to an agreement on the price we're going to lose a years' 
worth of business at the marina as wel l .  The state is obligated to buy at an appra ised value, 
of it, perhaps that has to include this business aspect of it ,  but if we can't come to an 
agreement with Kit and Fay Henniger on it we wil l  lose a whole years' worth of s l ip rentals 
and a whole years' worth of income. 

Senator Gary Lee : The bank notes, any liens on this, that cou ld cause the price to be less 
that it m ig ht appear? 

Mark Zimmerman: I am not aware of anything. I would echo aga in ,  what Senator 
Armstrong said . Kit and Faye run a top notch operation . I wi l l  say there are a few years of 
the lease yet, buy the contract, Kit and Fay pay the state 2% of their g ross to the state for a 
lease payment to run the operation . There are a few years there that are sti l l  unpaid , not a 
large amount of money, several thousand dollars. Kit and I have visited , if the purchase 
goes through ,  we would either deduct that from their final agreed price or we would pay the 
fu l l  agreed price and he would have to reimburse the state. That is based on 2% of his 
annual  receipts at the marina. 

Senator O'Connel l :  Can you furnish us with 5 years of income? 

Mark Zimmerman : I cannot. Kit refuses; we wil l have a general price. I have just what he 
provides us. I am not d isparag ing , Mr. Henninger, but we have asked him numerous times 
in writing ,  in  person to provide that. He wi l l  provide us with h is total revenue, here is your  
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2% and this is a l i i have. The sl ips are ful l .  Kit and Fay chose not to run a fu l l  week, with the 
two of them that is hard to run it seven days a week. Our business plan is run it 7 days a 
week. We' l l  have a l ittle d ifferent operation there ,  not that Kit's and Fays' was wrong , but I 
would echo again we can make this work. If we run it 7 days a week, a fu l l  operation,  but I 
can certain ly get those figures but it's going to be very general figures. 

Senator O'Connell :  Then what's the total income for the sl ips for a year? 

Mark Zimmerman repl ied were at $ 1 70,000 plus. I would think our rental rates would go 
up a l ittle bit .  Kit has offered some d iscounts if he pays for a longer lease. That is what I 
know for the sl ip rentals. 

Senator Krebsbach We can either make a decision . We wi l l  hold off on that one for a bit. 

Senator Krebsbach All subcommittee here and officials from the state park are here. 

Senator Krebsbach We d id discover that this is something that parks and recs d id not 
purchase because they cannot own artifacts of that nature .  #4 - Brady collection.  If we 
pursue this we have to run it through the State Historical budget, does that sound 
reasonable Joe? 

Joe Morrissette I haven't seen that section of law. I would think it would be possible in  the 
language that is d rafted here just to say, if your intent was to have them own it, you could 
say not withstanding that section of law, Park and Recs can make this purchase. That 
would certain ly be possible I th ink, but I have not seen that section of law. 

Senator Krebsbach I am comfortable with that type of word ing added if we sti l l decide to 
move forward with this. Senator Lee are you? Senator Lee rep l ied Yes. 
Senator Krebsbach There are two things we are sti l l looking at, an official appraisal on the 
the equipment and Senator Carlisi le do you have info on that? 

Senator Carl isle What I asked when I presented the amendment from Mr. Zimmerman , to 
get either one or two appraisals before you made any decisions. You need to have 
something in writing for the committee. 

Mark Zimmerman we do have one from Tracy Potter at the foundation .  We do have one. 

Jesse Hanson, Planning & Development Division Manager, Parks & Rec: Tracy Potter 
said he was going to send that to each one of the committee members. 

Senator Krebsbach We wi l l  hold on that unti l we get that appraisal .  It is important to look 
at that appraisal before we move on. #4 . # 5 -one time equipment purchases. The 
Executive Budget included $300,000, and evidently it was reduced down to $1 50,000. 

Becky J. Kel ler These items that are in the optionals, the $1 50,000 is what wasn't funded 
the $300,000 was,  they didn't reduce it, they didn't include al l  of it. 

Senator Krebsbach Do you have on hand what was not funded so we can look at that? 
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Becky J. Kel ler Everything that you see l isted here and the amounts that are in  those 
columns that is what wasn't funded . If I say that it was funded , that means if you added 
what wasn't funded you would have that big total .  

Senator Krebsbach There was the $300,000 that I have here on the green sheet, and they 
reduced it down . Wasn't it the optionals they didn't include? 

Becky J.  Keller: They didn't reduce it, but the governor did not include the $1 50,000 that I 
show. So if you add $1 50,000 they wi l l  have $450,000 for one time. 

Senator O'Connell So we have to add $1 50,000 to bring it up if we so desire .  

Becky J. Kel ler The Governor included $300 ,000 for one time equ ipment in h is budget. 
The Parks and Recs additional asked for $ 1 50,000 that was not included in the Governor's 
budget. This is just a l isting of all their OAR's that were not funded . But then it gives you 
some insight as to what was included in the Executive budget because we know what's in  
there .  

Joe Morrissette That was part of their in itial budget request to our office. They haven't 
gone to the House or your committee and said please g ive us this in  add ition to the 
Executive Budget, it is just that was part of their in itial request to our office. 

Senator Krebsbach Could Parks and rec justify what the additional $ 1 50,000 is for? 

Joe Morrissette It was $1 25,000 for picnic tables , and $25,000 for fire rings. We d id not 
fund those things. 

Senator Krebsbach:  How strong of a p itch do you want to make it for the picnic tables 
and the fire rings, explain fire rings to me? 

Brad Zarsky, Field Manager, Parks & Rec: Fire rings are where you start your camp fire . 
We don't al low them to just have fires al l  over. We restrict them to the fire ring . After so 
many years they just burn away. The same with picnic tables, we have hundreds of picnic 
and after a whi le we repair and the legs rust out, and we try and do a rotation of so many 
every bienn ium.  The cost for the legs was $1 50 ,000. 

Mark Zimmerman , Could they do the new camp ground loop in Grahams Island , new 
camp ground loop at Lewis Clark wi l l need tables as wel l ;  just to bring up the campsites. 

Jesse The project that is currently biennium is for Grahams Island Camp ground has picnic 
tables included in. We do have a budget item that is being considered for an add ition at our 
Lewis and Clark State Park for a camp site. They wasn't any picnic tables in  there .  This 
was just part of Brad's equipment and convert some of those. 30 campsites, not a new 
campground requests. 

Senator Krebsbach These are not included in the new campsite l ist in the Governors' 
budget. 
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Jesse, When we put that budget together, we only considered construction of the camp 
ground .  We d id not consider purchase of the picnic tables in that incidence. If they would 
be approved we would put them in, if not we would borrow from other p laces to up them in .  

Senator Krebsbach The salary in the Hay recommendation , that was covered in  the 
Governors budget, was i t  not? We don't need to take care of it, that is  okay. 

Senator Krebsbach The new admin istrative assistant position,  the Executive 
recommendation was included for one person.  #7 

Joe Morrissette Their request is for 3. The one that we included plus the two that they 
choose on here .  

Senator Lee The $174,000 is for the two that are included? Senator Krebsbach They are 
not included . Joe Morrissette The two that are not included . 

Senator O'Connell  Where are you going to put the additional two at? Senator basically 
said there was 2 .5  people running the sl ips and stuff, so, where are those two people 
included for that or not? 

Mark Zimmerman I can answer for the marina, we would h ire seasonal employees, that is 
not in th is n umber. Senator O'Connel l ,  they are not in there .  

Brad : The % position wi l l  move up to fu l l  t ime. The three positions wou ld be an 
admin istrative assistant at  the state parks and these people not only have to answer the 
phone but are on-l ine reservation system, take reservations, answer calls, deposit money, 
supervise the seasonal people that work. The three we're going to Fort Lincoln ,  Turtle River 
and Lake Metigoshe State Park. 

Senator Krebsbach Who is doing it now? 

Brad We have long term seasonal people that have been around for a number of years 
and keep coming back. They are a real essential part of our operation.  Lake metegoshee 
state park. 

Senator Krebsbach If only one were where would you put that one person? Brad replied 
Lake Metigoshe State Park. Senator Krebsbach is that because of Senator Carl isle being 
here? The other two entities can be covered other ways? 

Brad We wou ld continue to fund them with the long term people salary. The way we have 
been .  

Senator Krebsbach #8 - The I nformation Technology position .  That is  an FTE requ i red or 
requested also. 

Mark Zimmerman We requested that it was not included in the Executive budget. The 
demands on IT grows as wel l  for our department. All of our maintenance sched ules, al l  
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reservations, are on l ine .  We've requested that and would l ike to see it funded , but honestly 
to me our positions in the field are more important. 

Senator O'Connell  Now do you just contract with ITO? You don't have anybody on staff, 
you contract and then bi l l  you for your services. 

Mark Zimmerman We do have 1 fu l l  time on staff. 

Senator Krebsbach You are requesting one more then right? Mark Zimmerman repl ied 
correct. 

Joe Morrissette The one that they have now is the existing so we maintained the one that 
they currently have. 

Senator Krebsbach The commun ity grants, at was in the Governor's budget at $600,000 
and the House reduced it to $400,000. 

Becky J.  Kel ler Actually they asked for $ 1 M and the Executive budget gave them 
$400 ,000 . 

Joe Morrissette: Same appropriation as 09. $400,000 is the same level that was 
appropriated two sessions ago. There was no appropriation in the 201 1 session .  

Senator Krebsbach #1 0 Recreation Educator position, that was not funded e ither. 

Mark Zimmerman presently we have a person for OHB and snowmobile tra in ing.  We' l l  
continue that position at our present arrangement, i t  is not a seasonal i t  is a temporary 
position . It works wel l ,  it is not included in ex budget. 

Senator Krebsbach But your tel l ing me we can get by without it. Mark Zimmerman That is 
correct senator. We wi l l  scratch that one then . 

Senator Krebsbach The next one is increase #1 1 Game and Fish Cooperative Agreement 
funding.  

Joe Morrissette: In  the Executive budget we continued that $ 1 22,000 level that they have 
in the current biennium. That is what we told Game and Fish to budget and so we meshed 
those together. So that's the $1 22,000 that is in both budgets j ives. Game and Fish has it in 
their budget to pay the Parks; Parks has the authority to receive it and spend it in  their 
budget. So this $70,000 was the add itional amount that they had requested but was not 
i ncluded in Game and Fish and this budget. 

Senator Krebsbach Your reason for wanting $70,000 more was for what? 

Mark Zimmerman : On the boat ramps we've got increased usage of the boat ramps. 
They continue to need some work. Game and fish budget hasn't increased in a n umber of 
b ienn iums, to that amount and we have increased costs. We're going to have a couple of 
ramps this summer on the big lake, to be in there and doing some work as the low water 
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ramps now that we're low water is dropping in Lake Sakakawea. It's been a good 
cooperation between the Game and Fish and our dept. 

Senator Krebsbach How many years has it been at the $1 20,000? Mark Zimmerman 
repl ied , it was $80,000 at one time. It's been 2 or 3 bienniums at the $1 22,000. Senator 
Krebsbach Game and Fish is increasing their fees do you think they can they afford more 
money for Parks and Rec? 

Mark Zimmerman The Game and Fish fund is kind of on a decl ine right now. They are 
bumping up to their $ 1 5  Mi l l ion threshold that the Leg islature has set. So that is one reason 
why we didn't look to increase it at this time. 

Senator Krebsbach Perhaps we can review it in  two years. 

Senator O'Connell  leave it open for a while. 

Senator Krebsbach # 1 2 ,  New capital projects. It is short $300,000. They are l isting 
$620 ,000 right? The request in the Executive budget recommended $3,730,000 right? 
Parks wanted another $620 ,000. Can you tell me what that request was for? 

Joe Morrissette $1 70 ,000 for 7 camping cabin that was requested ; $ 1 25 ,000 for a 
concession bui ld ing at Lewis and Clark State Park. 

Senator Gary Lee Is this $3.7 that is included is that increased over currently? 

Mark Zimmerman: They are one time capital projects, Senator Lee. But in terms of what 
their current budget has for capital projects, I don't know off hand . 

Jesse: Our current capital project is at $3.9 M plus or minus a few thousand and the that's 
because the large appropriation for the match for the Graham Val ley road is $2.7 M, the 
new campground, Grahams Island State Park is in  there ,  and electrical and water upgrade 
another one of our campgrounds so this is with the add itions that we're considering out of 
the $600 ,000 were a couple hundred thousand under the current bienn ium;  or would be. 

Senator Krebsbach It is l isted in  section 5 of the bi l l  $3.730 of which $2 .9  of General  funds 
and $600, 000 is special funds. They didn't take that out d id they? 

Becky J. Kel ler They increased funding for the Frost Fire .  

Senator Krebsbach They d id not reduce that amount. Whether or not we want to increase 
for the camping cabins and the concession bui ld ing, and that jumps to $295 ,000 and we're 
looking at $620,000 so there is sti l l  some other items that you were hoping to obta in .  

Senator Gary Lee Is Frost Fire located in this cabin project? Senator Krebsbach I t  is 
included in the House version of the bi l l .  
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Joe Morrissette That $3.7 M for capital projects that does include the $800 ,000, that was 
in the executive budget for the dock purchase. Senator Krebsbach the House took out 
the $ 1 50 ,000, is that correct? 

Senator Gary Lee The reduction for kit's marina purchase is included in that $620 ,000? 

Joe Morrissette It is a reduction to the $3.7 M that is in  item 1 2 , where it says executive 
recommendation includes $3.7 M.  

Becky J .  Kel ler That is  the amount that wasn't funded in the Executive Budget. 

Senator Krebsbach If you look at the $3.7 M that's included in there .  So, basically you r  
capital projects then wou ld b e  short about $2,900,000 without the marina.  

Joe Morrissette Counting the House reduction at what they are now after the House 
version? Senator Krebsbach the executive recommended $3.73 and that d idn't change in 
the House d id it? 

Becky J. Kel ler We reduced it by $350,000 for the marina.  Senator Krebsbach That has 
been reduced then,  so if we add that back that would increase that figure .  Joe Morissette 
It would increase it back to the $3.7 that was in the Executive budget. 

Senator O'Connell  On that p iece of property you have, use for feed trai ls or cross country 
it was put in for 5 biennium's, wasn't it? How do you work with it, myself? 

Brad Our cross country ski groomer up at Lake Metigoshe, one at Turtle River State Park, 
we've got about 1 8  mi les of ski tra i l  at Metigoshe and about 1 2  at Turtle River. They are 
self-propel led enclosed with a drag. It is l ike a min i  version of snow mobi le. Senator 
O'Connel l  How much do they cost? Brad repl ied about $60,000 apiece. They would be paid 
by park revenue. 

Senator Krebsbach From item 3,  would go back into new capital projects. 

Senator Krebsbach It was removed . $450,000 would be included in the $3.730 M ,  that 
total amount there .  

Senator Krebsbach # 13  Peace Garden Capital Projects. They were looking for $4. 7 1 6  
M i l l ion wh ich included infrastructure of $4.4 16 .  This i s  from the testimony from Doug 
Hevenor,regarding the I nternational Peace Garden # 3 (Testimony #3) . 

Senator Krebsbach We do have or I visited with Mr. Zimmerman on that, and I am looking 
here to what the tower construction would be. I can't find a dollar on that. Oh yes, $500 ,000 
right? There was an add itional $200,000 added from the Governor's budget I believe for it. 

Mark Zimmerman Their operations grant that they received from the state was increased 
by $200,000. Senator Krebsbach That would al l  go for operations, am I correct on that? 
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Joe Morissette They would have flexibi l ity on how they used it, but that is the intent I 
th ink.  It is not earmarked for any particu lar project it is just to support their operation.  

Mark Zimmerman I d id cal l  Doug. Repair costs for the Peace Tower are extremely d ifficult 
to assess. That's why the Peace Garden was asking for funding to ascertain projected 
repair costs. He cited engineers tel l  h im that it cou ld cost $ 1 00,000 just to set up a crane on 
the site just to work on the Peace Tower. Developing Legislative funding would be very 
simi lar to what occurred last biennium Doug stated when the Leg islature approved 
$242 ,000 that was matched with $242,000 from the Manitoba Leg islature .  They d id some 
capital projects there on the conservatory. Doug said if they could have obtained some 
fund ing at least to provide a study on what to do with the Peace Tower. I cannot say what 
the Man itoba Legislature or private donators would do, we've been successful in matching 
funds by e ither N O  or Man itoba Legislators , this is a repair project they feel could be 
pushed ahead and one the general publ ic would support. Again ,  that is al l  I have from 
Doug. I know he has expressed h is concern in  testimony for the condition of the Peace 
Tower. He has no idea what it would cost to either repair it or take it down and rebui ld .  He 
mentioned at one time it would cost mi l l ions to rebui ld the Peace Tower. I n  our budget as it 
passed through item, I feel a l ittle nervous to say I don't much more about it than what 
Doug has provided me. I know he also had requested of the Legislature for some capital 
projects on the back of that sheet, $4.4 Mi l l ion and that is all I have. 

Senator Krebsbach We really had no fore warn ing on this. Was this in the Governor' 
requested budget? 

Joe Morrissette He asked for some money in add ition to what was included for their 
operations grant for cap ital projects, but I don't' think they mentioned the Peace tower at 
that t ime. 

Senator Krebsbach What about the infrastructure for the water and sewer? 

Mark Zimmerman If you would consider a grant to the Peace Garden to plan for work on 
the Peace Tower or even the big infrastructure projects, perhaps there could be some 
consideration that our department at least help, out in some of the plann ing . Again ,  I feel 
inadequate when I come to the committee, and I don't have any background information.  
Again I can turn to Jesse and Brad , and say what's the equ ipment, or what's the cap ital 
projects? Here with the Peace Garden I just don't feel comfortable to say I don't have that 
information .  I would hope that if the Senate would consider such authorization for funding 
then maybe there wou ld be some that I may suggest that they work with our department at 
least in  a plann ing way, so we can get you the information to help make a decision. We are 
stand ing on the outside here. 

Senator Gary Lee, Did you say something about a study in there? 

Mark Zimmerman yes,  that is Doug's request at a half of a mi l l ion dol lars was not to 
actual ly repai r  the tower as much as it was to get an Engineering firm l ike KLJ ( Kadrrmas, 
Lee and Jackson) or whoever in there ,  to give them an idea of what it might be for repair or 
replacement. 
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Senator Gary Lee Your suggesting $500,000 to do that. 

Mark Zimmerman repl ied he had nothing to base that on, he just used a figure .  

Senator Krebsbach He ind icates now $6,356 ,000. The Peace Tower is a land mark,  it 
isn't in safe condition .  I think they have it roped off so that people don't even move near it. 
So it isn't something that absolutely need to be dealt with , but until we have more figures in  
front of us,  and more facts in front of us ,  it's d ifficult. I guess the only thing I would say, that 
I would be wi l l ing to take a look at and that is to do something in an engineering study. 
Then they could come back and give us some type of solid information to go on. 

Joe Morrissette They did have $500,000 for preplann ing for the Peace Tower in the 
budget request and $4.2 Mi l l ion for other infrastructure which was orig inal ly was broken 
out. They had $4.4 on this l ist, and I am not sure what the d ifference is but just to correct 
the record they did have that in there ,  in  the budget requests. 

Senator Krebsbach Look at some of that infrastructure projects, broken down into a 
couple of d ifferent sessions so that they could get part of it hand led? 

Mark Zimmerman I would l ike to think we would be able to do that, we plan out ahead, if 
we could share some of our knowledge and staff to help them , and that is essential ly what 
our department does now. 

Senator Krebsbach If they have problems in the meantime, where do they go for the 
money then to fix it. Do they come back to the state? 

Joe Morrissette They could ,  but you know the extent of the state contingency 
appropriation is not a very deep pool .  So, I don't know. They are not real ly a state agency 
and I suspect they wou ld have to go and arrange some short term financing to get through 
the biennium until they cou ld approach the state. That is my thought. Senator Gary Lee 
Joe do they have access to a bank, the North Dakota State Bank? 

Mark Zimmerman I know in the past the Peace Garden and the Canadian Government, 
both the provincial and the federal have been cooperative when they've had a good project. 

Joe Morrissette I could visit with Joe Leopold in our office, the State Architect, I don't know 
if he's fami l iar at al l  with anyth ing at the Peace Garden, but he may be would have some 
input on a reasonable amount to provide for planning for some of those things I if you would 
l ike. I can arrange that. 

Senator Krebsbach we wi l l  have another meeting. Is there anything we have over looked? 
Mr. Goettle over above, we request your consideration on this referring to the testimony. 

Senator Anderson : The Lewis & Clark I nterruptive Center, $3M to help complete their  
construction project. Of course that is sign ificant for tourism. They have a project under way 
which they would l ike our help i n .  I am in District 8, and they asked me to come to this 
committee and champion that project. We've visited with Mark Zimmerman about the 
possibi l ities, and a budget that you would be amenable to that if you had the answers. The 
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state does own the property there that Lewis Clark I nterpretative Center is on and of course 
we have a rest area there which they maintain under the agreement with the state. 

Senator Krebsbach , Senator Carl isle has an amendment to give to us at this time. 
Senator Carl isle Senator Anderson is correct. Testimony attached # 4 .  Proposed 
amendment # 1 3.8 148.03002 . Overtures have been made in the House on numerous 
occasions, the DOT budget or the Commerce Budget. The time is now for the presentation 
on the amendment l isted above and what Senator Anderson is talking about. Director 
Christianson is here to speak to this committee. 

AI Christianson, Director of the Lewis and Clark Foundation . I am here to ask for help in 
our capital project. We work closely with Parks and Rec throughout the years. This project 
that we started , we have had some issues the Baaken has driven up the costs, labor, and 
materials. One other th ing happened , the flood delayed our schedule. We also had at the 
same the Heritage Center, got some of our funding . Again it is a state owed faci l ity, and 
over the years we have raised $2 1 M  , privately to the $2 .3-$2 .4 M the state has put in, we 
do operate the rest area 24/7 365 days at the expense of the foundation.  We're here to say 
that we would l ike you to look at this as an opportun ity for us to fin ish this expansion that 
we have going on .  We have 50,000 vis itors from all over the US. Mark sits on our Board of 
Directors, and we have when we d id this capital project, we d id get approval from Parks 
and Rec to move forward and had our money in place for what the project was at that time. 
The foundation is about 3 times the cost of what we thought. 

Senator Krebsbach we understand and thank you for coming in and being persistent on 
this project. 

Senator Krebsbach The frost fire issue we wil l  d iscuss in the next meeting.  

Mark Zimmerman consideration final passage to put the emergency clause back on. That 
would help us in the construction of some of these projects if that would be possible? 

Senator Krebsbach We've made progress. We wi l l  meet again on Thursday. 
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Senator Krebsbach opened the subcommittee hearing on HB 1 0 1 9 . Senator Lee and 
Senator O'Connell were also present and also Parks and Rec representatives. 

Senator Krebsbach handed out amendment 1 3. 8 1 48.03003 - see attached #1 . She went 
over the amendments and covered the changes. 

The appraisal of the Harold Brady col lection was done by Gary Satern - attached #2 . 

Mark Zimmerman, Director, N O  Parks & Recreation Department, expressed h is 
appreciation for the funding 

,Senator Krebsbach handed out the Lewis & Clark I nterpretive Center funding request -
see attached # 3. Also included is Lewis & Clark I nfo and Aud it Report - attached # 4 .  

Mark Zimmerman asked about emergency clause. 

Senator Krebsbach we added emergency for Marina but decided against the L&C Center. 

Senator Krebsbach asked about the infrastructure requirements for Peace Garden. They 
wanted $4,4 1 6,000 and another $500 ,000 for the Peace Tower. The subcommittee left in 
$2.5M for capital projects and g iving them the flexibi l ity to do something with the requests 
they have. They wou ld have to have a dol lar for dollar match from non-state resources 
which could be through private resources or going through the Canadian province of 
Manitoba , or the Canadian government. 

Discussion on the Harold Brady collection for Fort Lincoln - Becky J. Kel ler said she 
checked with the State H istorical Society about purchasing artifacts and there are no state 
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laws that apply, but there is federa l  law and she wants to check with legal staff before she 
includes it in  the final amendment. She wanted to make sure they weren't breaking any 
federal laws . 
Becky J.  Kel ler said if it's against the federal law for the state to purchase the artifacts, 
then they would have to donate them to the state. 

Senator O'Connell  had concerns about the marina purchase. It's been run by a single 
fami ly and he wasn't sure about the management and how much money it was bringing in .  

Mark Zimmerman: Handed out 201 1 Season Marina Sales/Lease Payment Due - attached 
# 5 and d iscussion followed . 

Peace Garden Towers -
Joel Leapaldt, State Architect, Faci l ities Management, OMB, said he thought $75,000 
would be sufficient for the towers at the Peace Garden . 

Senator Krebsbach said that if Mr. Zimmerman talks with the committee about how to 
proceed with the study on the towers, we ask that they should talk with Mr. Leapaldt about 
how to proceed . 

Mark Zimmerman asked if they have ample coverage for emergency clause? 

Becky J.  Kel ler said it is all emergency except for Lewis & Clark. 

Senator O'Connell  asked to vote separately on #3 which is the purchase of the marina. 

Senator Krebsbach moved voting on all of the amendment except #3. 
Senator Gary Lee seconded the motion. 
Voice vote carried. 

Senator Gary Lee moved Do Pass on the purchase of the marina (#3). 
Senator Krebsbach seconded the motion. 

Senator Krebsbach - Yes 
Senator Gary Lee - Yes 
Senator O'Connell - No 

Ful l  amendment carried. 

Senator Krebsbach said they will wait to hear from the lawyer about the purchase of the 
artifacts. 
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This is a vote on the Parks & Recreation budget. 

Minutes: Testimony attached # 1 

Chairman Holmberg opened the discussion on HB 1 0 1 9 . 

Senator Krebsbach handed out and explained amendments 1 3 .81 48.03004. The 
changes are :  on page 3 ,  restoring the salaries back and employee compensation back to 
the governor's budget. The third item is the funding for the purchase of a marina to be 
restored to the governor's executive budget recommendation . The House had removed 
$350 ,000 from that. This amendment wi l l  bring it back to $800,000. 
Written Attachment #1 

Senator Robinson : I struggle with the marina. I don't have a better option .  If we put 
$800,000 in here, we are advertising to the seller that we have that much money and there 
wi l l  be no negotiation . 

Senator Krebsbach:  I understand your concern .  Mr. Zimmerman is working on getting a 
better appraisal value on it. This is what we need in there to make the negotiation work. 

Chairman Holmberg :  It is simi lar to the $1 00,000 in  the State Historical budget to 
negotiate to buy the Lawrence Welk  Homestead . 

Senator O'Connell :  My concern was once you put out the figure ,  everyone knows exactly 
what you've got. Another concern is that there is a fami ly that is runn ing that now and next 
b iennium they wil l  be back asking for more.  Also at Fort Stevenson, they put in a 
restaurant and that isn't making money yet. I have real concerns about it. 

Senator Mathern : Clarification on the Welk comment: There was word ing in there to 
make sure some work gets done. The SHS has some negotiating language. 

Senator Krebsbach:  When you have a bui lding you have an estimate of what you are 
going to spend , however you get bids. What we're saying is they cannot go over $800,000. 
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The people that own it now are ready to get out of it. The Parks & Rec. feel they are going 
to make money on that. 

Senator Robinson:  What comes with the price? Do we have equipment that comes with 
it or do we have to start equipping it with lawn mowers and the works. 

Senator Krebsbach:  I am not sure I can answer that but as far as I understand,  they 
have simi lar l ikes right around the bend and they cou ld bring that equipment over to use. 
The sl ips and docks are in good shape and won't take much to keep up .  

Senator Carl isle: They are specialty docks that can withstand huge ice moves up and 
down . They are unique and very expensive . 

Senator O'Connel l :  Is there a restaurant? 

Senator Krebsbach:  There is  a canteen that they d id run and they paid a percentage to 
the park. 

Senator Carl isle: Doesn't bel ieve that it has been run for a whi le. 

Senator Robinson:  It's hard to vote on something sight unseen.  We're buying something 
that we haven't seen.  

Senator Krebsbach:  The Parks and Rec. people are comfortable taking i t  over. 

Senator O'Connel l :  We asked for a print out of the income for a year  and we got a print 
out of the gross receipts. I was concerned that we weren't getting a good deal .  I just d idn't 
th ink I had enough information . 

Senator Krebsbach:  They d id furnish us with income for the last five years .  So we had 
that in  hand when we made the decision.  

Senator Krebsbach:  The next part is the purchasing of a collection of artifacts priced at 
$42 ,000. There is nothing in law saying that they cou ld not be purchased . So purchasing 
the col lection is in  there .  Also went over the funding for picnic tables and fire rings. The 
House took al l  the funding out and this puts half of it back. She a lso explained the 
Community g rant program and the expansion of the Lewis & Clark interpretive center and 
the purchase of property in the Walhal la Gorge and Frost Fire area. Funding added for 
capital projects at the I nternational Peace Garden avai lable if they raise matching funds. 

Senator Krebsbach moved amendments 1 3.81 48.03004. 

Senator Gary Lee seconded . 

Voice vote: Motion passed . 

Senator Krebsbach moved Do Pass as Amended on H B  1 0 1 9. 
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Senator O'Connel l  seconded the motion .  

A rol l  call vote was taken. Yea: 1 3  Nay: 0 Absent: 0 

Senator Krebsbach wil l  carry the bil l  on the floor. 



1 3 . 8 1 48 .03004 
Title.04000 
Fiscal No. 2 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE B I LL NO. 1 0 1 9  

Page 1 ,  l ine 3 ,  remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, after "exemption" insert "; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 1 5  through 22 with: 

"Administration 
Natural resources 
Recreation 
Total a l l  funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general  fund 
Ful l-time equivalent positions 

Page 2 ,  replace l ines 3 and 4 with: 

"I nternational Peace Garden 
Total general fund 

Page 2, replace l ines 9 through 1 1  with: 

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total special funds 
Grand total al l funds 

Page 2, replace l ines 1 7  through 26 with:  

$2,484, 885 
1 2 ,768,203 

7,489,091  
$22 ,742 , 1 79 

1 1 ,641,532 
$1 1 , 1 00,647 

54.00 

$773,699 
$773,699 

$1 1 ,874,346 
1 1 ,641 ,532 

$23 ,51 5 ,878 

"Parks capita l  projects and deferred maintenance 
Parks equipment 
Lewis and Clark interpretive center grant 
Little Missouri state park tra i l  leases 
Parks SCORP plan 
Parks strategic plans 
Community grant program 
I nternational Peace Garden capital projects 
Total al l  funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general fund 

Page 3, l ine 1 5 , replace "$400, 000" with "$600,000" 

Page 3, remove l ines 25 through 31  

Page 4,  replace l ines 1 and  2 with :  

$235, 1 32 
9 ,738,206 

(1 ,279,250) 
$8,694,088  

1 50,422 
$8, 543, 666 

1 . 00  

$2.700,000 
$2,700,000  

$1 1 ,243,666 
1 50.422 

$1 1 , 394,088 

$5,269,2 1 0 
1 1 6 ,000 

0 
85 ,000 
40,000 

0 
0 

267,000 
$5,777 ,2 1 0  

1 ,028,000 
$4,749 ,2 1 0  

$2,720,01 7 
22, 506,409 

6,209,841 
$31 ,436,267 

1 1 ,791,954 
$ 1 9,644, 3 1 3 

55.00" 

$3,473,699 
$3,473,699" 

$23, 1 1 8,0 1 2 
1 1 ,791 ,954 

$34 ,909, 966" 

$3, 955, 300 
375,000 

3 , 1 50,000 
0 
0 

1 00,000 
600,000 

2,500,000 
$1 0,680,300 

1 .282,800 
$9,397,500" 

"SECTION 7. CONTINGENT FUNDING - I NTERNATIONAL PEAC E GARDEN 
CAPITAL PROJ ECTS. The sum of $2,500,000 from the general fun d  included in 
subdivision 2 of section 1 of this Act is for capital projects at the I nternational Peace 
Garden and is contingent upon the I nternational Peace Garden rais ing matching funds 
on a dol lar-for-dol lar basis from nonstate sources. 

Page No. 1 1 3 . 8 1 48. 03004 



S ECTION 8. E MERGENCY. The natural resources l ine item in  subdivision 1 of 
section 1 of this Act i ncludes $3,730,000, of which $2,930,000 is from the general fund 
and $600,000 is from special funds derived from federal funds and other income, for 
various capital projects , which is declared to be an emergency m easure . "  

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

House Bil l  No. 1 0 1 9 - Summary of Senate Action 

Executive House 
Budget Version 

Parks and Recreation 
Department 

Total all funds $27,962,785 $30,063,381 
Less estimated income 11,791,835 12,439,512 
General fund $16,170,950 $17,623,869 

I nternational Peace Garden 
Total all funds $973,699 $973,699 
Less estimated income 0 0 
General fund $973,699 $973,699 

Bill total 
Total all funds $28,936,484 $31 ,037,080 
Less estimated income 11 ,791 ,835 12,439,512 
General fund $17,144,649 $18,597,568 

Senate 
Changes 

$1 ,372,886 
(647 558) 

$2,020,444 

$2,500,000 
0 

$2,500,000 

$3,872,886 
(647,558) 

$4 520,444 

Senate 
Version 

$31 ,436,267 
11,791,954 

$19,644,313 

$3,473,699 
0 

$3,473,699 

$34,909,966 
11 791 ,954 

$23,1 18,012 

House Bill No. 1 0 1 9  - Parks and Recreation Department - Senate Action 

Executive 
Budget 

Administration $2,719,322 
Natural resources 19,234,022 
Recreation 6,009,441 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds $27,962,785 
Less estimated income 11 ,791 ,835 

General fund $16,1 70,950 

FTE 55.00 

House 
Version 

$2,652,000 
21 ,256,353 
5,973,451 

181 ,577 

$30,063,381 
12,439,512 

$17,623,869 

55.00 

Senate 
Changes 

$68,017 
1 ,250,056 

236,390 
(181 ,577) 

$1 ,372,886 
(647,558) 

$2,020,444 

0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$2,720,017 
22,506,409 
6,209,841 

$31 ,436,267 
11 ,791 954 

$19,644,313 

55.00 

Department No. 750 - Parks and Recreation Department - Detail  of Senate Changes 

Removes 
Restores Separate Line Adds Funding Adds Funding 
Executive Item for Restores for Military for Community 

Compensation Accrued Leave Marina Artifact Adds Funding Grants 
Package' Payments' Funding' Collection' for Equipment' Program' 

Administration $41 ,260 $26,757 
Natural resources 290,386 142,170 350,000 42,500 75,000 
Recreation 23,740 12,650 200,000 
Accrued leave payments (181 ,577) 

Total all funds $355,386 $0 $350,000 $42,500 $75,000 $200,000 
Less estimated income 7,442 0 175 000 0 0 0 

General fund $347,944 $0 $1 75,000 $42,500 $75,000 $200,000 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
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Adds Funding 
for Lewis and Removes 

Clark Funding for 
Interpretive Walhalla Gorge Total Senate 

Center Grant' Property' Changes 

Administration $68,017 
Natural resources 3,150,000 (2,800,000) 1 ,250,056 
Recreation 236,390 
Accrued leave payments (181 577) 

Total all funds $3,150,000 ($2,800,000) $1 ,372,886 
Less estimated income 0 (830,000) (647,558) 

General fund $3,1 50,000 ($1 ,970,000) $2,020,444 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding reductions made by the House to the state employee compensation and benefits package are 
restored to the Governor's recommended level. 

2 The accrued leave payments line item added by the House is removed, and the associated funding 
returned to l ine items with salaries and wages funding.  

3 Funding removed by the House for purchase of a marina is restored to the executive budget 
recommendation level. 

4 Funding is added for purchase of a mil itary artifact collection currently on d isplay at Fort Abraham 
Lincoln State Park. 

5 Funding is added for one-time equipment purchases of picnic tables ($50,000) a n d  fi re rings ($25, 000). 

6 Funding is added to increase the community grant program from $400,000 included in the executive 
budget recommendation to $600,000. 

7 Funding is added for a one-time grant for expansion of the Lewis and Clark interpretive center. 

a Funding added by the House for the purchase and operation of property i n  the Walhal la Gorge and 
Frost Fire area is removed. 

A section is added to provide for an emergency clause for various capital projects. 

H ouse Bil l  No. 1 01 9  - International Peace Garden - Senate Action 

Executive 
Budget 

International Peace Garden $973,699 

Total all funds $973,699 
Less estimated income 0 

General fund $973,699 

FTE 0.00 

House 
Version 

$973,699 

$973,699 
0 

$973,699 

0.00 

Senate 
Changes 

$2,500,000 

$2,500,000 
0 

$2,500,000 

0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$3,473,699 

$3,473,699 
0 

$3,473,699 

0.00 

Department No. 751 - International Peace Garden - Detail of Senate Changes 

International Peace Garden 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

Adds Funding 
for Peace 

Garden Capital Total Senate 
Projects' Changes 

$2,500,000 $2,500,000 

$2,500,000 $2,500,000 
0 0 

$2,50o,ooo l---
$=-=2--=,5=oo'"""'.oe7"oo""'
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General fund II 
FTE 0.00 � 

1 Funding is added for capital projects at the International Peace Garden. 

A section is added requiring funds for capital projects of the I nternational Peace Garden. 
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Date: if�q �/3 
Roll Cal l  Vote # _ __,/'-----

201 3 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

81 LLIRESOLUTION NO. _,_/"""'6--'---1 ---'9'------
Senate Appropriations 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Counci l  Amendment Number 

Action Taken ID'dopt Amendment 
D Do Pass as Amended 

D Do Pass 
D Do Not Pass 

Comm ittee 

Seconded By �d.� 
Senators Yes No Senator Yes No 

Chariman Ray Holmberg Senator Tim Mathern 
Co-Vice Chairman Bi l l  Bowman Senator David O'Connel l  
Co-Vice Chair Tony Grindberg Senator Larry Robinson 
Senator Ralph Ki lzer Senator John Warner 
Senator Karen Krebsbach 
Senator Robert Erbele 
Senator Terry Wanzek 
Senator Ron Carl isle 
Senator Gary Lee 

Total (Yes) No 
-------------------------------------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly ind icate i ntent: 

/ 



Date: 

Rol l Call Vote # 

201 3 S ENATE STA N D I N G  COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BI LL/RESOLUTION No. f/.8. (0 I 9 
Senate Appropriations 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Counci l  Amendment Number 

Action Taken D Ptdopt Amendment 
[k3'Do Pass as Amended 

D Do Pass 
D Do Not Pass 

Committee 

Motion Made By .� Seconded By 0 1 {].d)1,!)(,!,t}__; 
Senators Yes No Senator Yes N o  

Chariman Ray Holmberg v Senator Tim Mathern L---1-
Co-Vice Chairman Bi l l  Bowman v - Senator David O'Connel l  !...--
Co-Vice Chair Tony Grindberg v Senator Larry Robinson t..---

Senator Ralph Ki lzer � Senator John Warner � 
Senator Karen Krebsbach � 
Senator Robert Erbele V,. 
Senator Terry Wanzek v 
Senator Ron Carlisle z...--
Senator Gary Lee � 

Total (Yes) !3 No 
------�-�=---------------------------------------

Absent 0 
Floor Assignment f_:: .. b.bdJ 
If the vote is on an amendment, bn fly 1nd1cate 1ntent: 

/ 



Com Standing Committee Report 
April 1 0, 201 3 1 0:57am 

Module ID:  s_stcomrep_64_003 
Carrier: Krebsbach 

Insert LC: 1 3.8148.03004 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1 01 9, as reengrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends 
DO PASS ( 1 3 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTI NG). 
Reengrossed HB 1 0 1 9  was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, after "exemption" insert "; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 1 5  through 22 with : 

"Administration $2 ,484,885 
Natural  resources 1 2,768,203 
Recreation 7,489,091 
Total al l  funds $22,7  42, 1 79 
Less estimated income 1 1,64 1,532 
Total general fund $ 1 1 , 1 00,647 
Ful l-time equ ivalent positions 54 .00 

Page 2 ,  replace l ines 3 and 4 with : 

" I nternational Peace Garden �773,699 
Total general fund $773,699 

Page 2,  replace l ines 9 through 1 1  with: 

"Grand total general fund $ 1 1 ,874,346 
Grand total special funds 1 1,641,532 
Grand total all funds $23, 51 5 ,878 

Page 2,  replace l ines 1 7  through 26 with: 

"Parks capital projects and deferred maintenance 
Parks equ ipment 
Lewis and Clark interpretive center g rant 
Little Missouri state park trai l  leases 
Parks SCORP plan 
Parks strateg ic plans 
Commun ity grant program 
I nternational Peace Garden capital projects 
Total al l  funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general fund 

Page 3, line 1 5, replace "$400,000" with "$600,000" 

Page 3, remove l ines 25 through 31  

Page 4, replace l ines 1 and  2 with: 

$235 , 1 32 
9,738,206 

(1,279,250) 
$8,694,088 

1 50,422 
$8 ,543,666 

1 .00 

�2,700,000 
$2 ,700,000 

$ 1 1 ,243,666 
1 50,422 

$ 1 1 ,394,088 

$5,269,2 1 0  
1 1 6 ,000 

0 
85,000 
40,000 

0 
0 

267,000 
$5,777,2 1 0  

1,028,000 
$4,749,2 1 0  

$2 ,720,0 1 7  
22,506,409 

6,209,84 1 
$31 ,436,267 

1 1,791 ,954 
$ 1 9,644, 31 3 

55.00" 

�3,473,699 
$3,473,699" 

$23 , 1 1 8,0 1 2  
1 1,791,954 

$34,909,966" 

$3,955,300 
375,000 

3 , 1 50 ,000 
0 
0 

1 00 ,000 
600,000 

2,500,000 
$10 ,680, 300 

1,282,800 
$9, 397,500" 

"SECTION 7.  CONTINGENT FUNDING - INTERNATIONAL PEACE 
GARDEN CAPITAL PROJECTS. The sum of $2 ,500,000 from the general fund 
included in  subd ivision 2 of section 1 of this Act is for capital projects at the 
I nternational Peace Garden and is contingent upon the I nternational Peace Garden 
raising matching funds on a dollar-for-dollar basis from nonstate sources. 

SECTION 8. EMERGENCY. The natural resources line item in subdivision 1 
of section 1 of this Act includes $3,730,000, of which $2,930 ,000 is from the general 
fund and $600,000 is from special funds derived from federal funds and other 
income, for various capital projects, which is declared to be an emergency measure." 

( 1 )  DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_64_003 



Com Standing Committee Report 
Apri1 1 0, 201 3  1 0:57am 

Renumber according ly 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_64_003 
Carrier: Krebsbach 

Insert LC: 1 3.8148.03004 Title: 04000 

STATEMENT OF P URPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

House Bill No. 1 0 1 9 - Summary of Senate Action 

Executive House Senate 
Budget Version Changes 

Parks and Recreation 
Department 

Total all funds $27,962,785 $30,063,381 $1,372,886 
Less estimated income 1 1,791 ,835 1 2,439,512 (647,558) 
General fund $16,170,950 $17,623,869 $2,020,444 

International Peace Garden 
Total all funds $973,699 $973,699 $2,500,000 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 
General fund $973,699 $973,699 $2,500,000 

Bill total 
Total all funds $28,936,484 $31 ,037,080 $3,872,886 
Less estimated income 11}91,835 12,439,512  (647 558) 
General fund $17,144,649 $18,597,568 $4 520 444 

Senate 
Version 

$31 ,436,267 
11,791,954 

$19,644,313 

$3,473,699 
0 

$3,473,699 

$34,909,966 
11}91,954 

$23, 1 1 8,012 

House Bill  No. 1 0 1 9  - Parks and Recreation Department - Senate Action 

Executive 
Budget 

Administration $2,719,322 
Natural resources 19,234,022 
Recreation 6,009,441 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds $27,962,785 
Less estimated income 11,791,835 

General fund $16,170,950 

FTE 55.00 

House 
Version 

$2,652,000 
21 ,256,353 
5,973,451 

181 ,577 

$30,063,381 
12,439,512  

$17,623,869 

55.00 

Senate 
Changes 

$68,017 
1 ,250,056 

236,390 
(181 577) 

$1 ,372,886 
(647 558) 

$2,020,444 

0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$2,720,017 
22,506,409 
6,209,841 

$31 ,436,267 
11 .791,954 

$19,644,313 

55.00 

Department No. 750 - Parks and Recreation Department - Detail of Senate Changes 

Administration 
Natural resources 
Recreation 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Administration 
Natural resources 
Recreation 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 

( 1 )  DESK (3) COMMITTEE 

Restores 
Executive 

Compensation 
Package' 

$41 ,260 
290,386 
23,740 

$355,386 
7 442 

$347,944 

0.00 

Adds Funding 
for Lewis and 

Clark 
Interpretive 

Center Granf 

3,150,000 

$3,150,000 

Removes 
Separate Line 

Item for 
Accrued Leave 

Payments' 

$26,757 
142,170 
1 2,650 

(181,577} 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

Removes 
Funding for 

Walhalla Gorge 
Property& 

(2,800,000) 

($2,800,000) 

Page 2 

Restores 
Marina 

Funding' 

350,000 

$350,000 
175 000 

$175,000 

0.00 

Total Senate 
Changes 

$68,017 
1 ,250,056 

236,390 
(181 577) 

$1 ,372,886 

Adds Funding 
for Military 

Artifact 
Collection' 

42,500 

$42,500 
0 

$42,500 

0.00 

Adds Funding 
for Community 

Adds Funding Grants 
for Equipment' Program' 

75,000 
200,000 

$75,000 $200,000 
0 0 

$75,000 $200,000 

0.00 0.00 

s_stcomrep_64_003 
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Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

0 

$3,1 50,000 

0.00 

(830,000) 

($1 ,970,000) 

0.00 

Module ID:  s_stcomrep_64_003 
Carrier: Krebsbach 

Insert LC: 1 3.8148.03004 Title: 04000 

(647 558) 

$2,020,444 

0.00 

1 Funding reductions made by the House to the state employee compensation and benefits 
package are restored to the Governor's recommended level .  

2 The accrued leave payments l ine item added by the House is removed, and the associated 
funding returned to l ine items with salaries and wages funding.  

3 Funding removed by the House for purchase of a marina is restored to the executive 
budget recommendation level. 

4 Funding is added for purchase of a mi l itary artifact col lection currently on d isplay at Fort 
Abraham Lincoln State Park. 

5 Funding is added for one-time equipment purchases of picnic tables ($50,000) and fire 
rings ($25 ,000). 

6 Funding is added to increase the community grant program from $400,000 included in the 
executive budget recommendation to $600,000. 

7 Funding is added for a one-time grant for expansion of the Lewis and C lark interpretive 
center. 

8 Fund ing added by the House for the purchase and operation of property in  the Walhalla 
Gorge and Frost Fire area is removed. 

A section is added to provide for an emergency clause for various capital projects. 

House Bil l  No. 1 0 1 9  - International Peace Garden - Senate Action 

Executive 
Budget 

International Peace Garden �973,699 

Total all funds $973,699 
Less estimated income 0 

General fund $973,699 

FTE 0.00 

( 1 )  DESK (3) COMMITIEE 

House 
Version 

$973,699 

$973,699 
0 

$973,699 

0.00 

Page 3 

Senate 
Changes 

$2 500 000 

$2,500,000 
0 

$2,500,000 

0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$3,473,699 

$3,473,699 
0 

$3,473,699 

0.00 

s_stcomrep_64_003 
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Module ID: s_stcomrep_64_00J 
Carrier: Krebsbach 

Insert LC: 1 3.8148.03004 Title: 04000 

Department No. 751 - International Peace Garden - Detail of Senate Changes 

Adds Funding 
for Peace 

Garden Capital 
Projects' 

International Peace Garden $2,500,000 

Total all funds $2,500,000 
Less estimated income 0 

General fund $2,500,000 

FTE 0.00 

Total Senate 
Changes 

$2 500 000 

$2,500,000 
0 

$2,500,000 

0.00 

1 Funding is added for capital projects at the I nternational Peace Garden. 

A section is added requiring funds for capital projects of the I nternational Peace Garden. 

(1 ) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 4 s_stcomrep_64_003 
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201 3 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

House Appropriations Education and Environment Division 
Roughrider Room , State Capitol 

HB  1 01 9  
April 1 9 , 201 3 

Job 21 350 

x Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution : 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the parks and 
recreation department. 

Minutes: Attachment 1 and 2.  

Chairman Dosch cal led the committee to order. A quorum was present. 

Senator Krebsbach:  There were several questions to the Lewis and Clark bui ld ing. 

Chairman Dosch: Could we jump to the Peace Gardens. Explain th is a l ittle more. 

2 :46 Sen.  Krebsbach: I don't know if we need to do a lot of studying . There may be some 
engineering costs but I prefer to see money go towards reconstruction than studying.  

Representative Monson: How much was for the fixing of the tower? 

Senator Krebsbach:  We don't know what the cost of that wou ld be. 

Representative Monson: $500,000 just to do the study for the tower? This doesn't do 
anyth ing to fix the tower. 

Senator Krebsbach:  I 'm not saying that correctly. It's on that particular document. 

8 :00 Representative Monson : That sounds l ike a huge amount of money to do a pre­
appropriation.  How do we appropriate any money? 

Senator Krebsbach:  The structure was constructed from 1 980-1 983. The tower was 
considerably more. 

9 :26 Senator O'Connel l :  I believe they had that in there for a study. The only way the 
money could be used is if it's matched . 

Representative Monson:  This was not in the governor's budget at a l l .  Why wasn't it in 
there? 



House Appropriations Education and Environment Division 
HB 1 0 1 9  
April 1 9 , 201 3 
Page 2 

Joe Morrissette, OMB: It was in the agency's request, but we didn't know at the time the 
extent of the deterioration of the tower. 

1 1 :41 Senator Krebsbach:  Joe will continue with that. Mr. Leopold was gracious to offer 
advice to the Peace Gardens correct? 

Morrissette: He d id offer that because of h is experience in the assessment in the 
recond itioning of the tower. 

1 2 : 1 6  Representative Boe: Was that the tower itself or was that the reflecting pools at the 
time? 

Senator Krebsbach:  No, noth ing was mentioned . Testimony ind icates the cost of 
reconstructing it. 

1 3 :57 Representative Boe: So, it was your hope that it would fix the existing tower? 

Senator Krebsbach:  The intent was to put it into repairs not studying. 

1 4:54 Representative Monson : We can't do everyth ing . If we have a tower that's fal l ing 
down, then that is a priority. 

1 6 :55 Representative Boe: You have been up and saw the tower? Which side is in worse 
shape? 

Representative Monson : Not since it's gone down . I th ink it was the south side. 

1 7 :30 Chairman Dosch : There is a lot of nuance in  this budget. I think we can't pass out a 
47% increase. We are going to make a decision on what is the most important thing. 

1 9 :34 Senator Krebsbach: I f  we don't do something now it m ight cost the state more 
later. 

Chairman Dosch : We saw the budget figures; we've more than spent our surplus wh ich 
the taxpayers won't be too happy with us. We're sti l l  over budget. We have to make 
decisions and they aren't going to be easy ones. 

Chairman Dosch adjourned the meeting. 



201 3  HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

House Appropriations Education and Environment Division 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

HB  1 01 9  
April 20, 20 1 3  

Job 21 364 

k8J Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution : 

A B ILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the parks and 
recreation department. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Dosch called the committee to order with a quorum present. 

Sen.  Krebsbach: We feel strongly about the projects that we brought forward . If there is 
anything e lse that you want to d iscuss we are wi l l ing to l isten .  

Chairman Dosch : As we look over the projects. I believe that we wi l l  sti l l  have to prioritize 
the projects. I know the House's project, the Walhalla Gorge, was taken out by Senate. I 
th ink we need to do something at the I nternational Peace Gardens. Asked what wou ld be 
appropriate for the Peace Gardens. 3 :45 

Sen. Krebsbach: I intend to over the weekend to get the cost of the tower, because I think 
that is a priority. 4 :35 

Chairman Dosch: If you could get a final from them on the tower and a priority on some of 
the other infrastructure. They have to realize that they may not get a l l  they want, because 
this was put in late. 

Rep. Boe: Tomorrow I ' l l  go up there and take some pictures of the tower, so we have 
someth ing to look at when we meet again .  

Rep. Monson: I would l ike to find out about the water and sewer situation. You don't want 
more water in pipes that are too small or worn out. You have to do them together. This 
needs to be thought out and planned more.  The tower needs to be fixed . 7 : 1 9  

Sen. Krebsbach: I n  regard to what their other needs are ;  they d id say that they had 
completed a water and waste water assessment. 8:20 

Chairman Dosch: They have a l isting there .  Is  the water system more of a priority than 
the sewer or than roads and ditches? If they had to pick one which one would it be? 



House Appropriations Education and Environment Division 
HB 1 01 9  
April 20, 201 3 
Page 2 

Sen.  Krebsbach:  Maybe it is something that needs to be done in conjunction with one 
another. 

Rep. Monson: Read from the last sentence in the letter from Doug . It doesn't sound l ike it 
is an immediate concern . We can't do al l  these projects. 1 0:45 Just to talk about the Frost 
Fire issue. Described what the Pembina Gorge has to offer and what Parks and Rec's 
have responsibi l ities include. 1 3:45 

Chairman Dosch : Speaking of the Lewis and Clark Center, there is not a lot of support for 
that. A lot of people th ink that that expansion should never have gone through without the 
money in hand and now the state is being asked to pick up the cost. Asked the senators to 
take a look into that. 

Sen.  Krebsbach: I hear what you are saying . The Lewis and Clark faci l ity is state owned ; 
Frost Fire is not. 

Chairman Dosch: Did that state authorize that add ition or do you know who did? 

Sen. Krebsbach: I do not. 

Rep. Monson: We do not own Frost Fire .  The state would have to purchase it. The state 
owns a lot of land and trai ls. Game and Fish and Parks and Rec own most of the land the 
around it. This is for sale and it fits into the piece of that area in the Pembina Gorge. 1 7 :30 

Sen. Krebsbach: I think the concerns are they would have to run and manage the ski area 
and the theater. 

Rep. Monson:  That would not be the intention at a l l .  The whole operation of that would 
have to be leased out. 1 8:45 

Chairman Dosch adjourned the committee. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution: 

A B ILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the parks and 
recreation department and for provid ing a grant to the I nternational Peace Garden; to 
provide for matching funds; to provide an exemption ; and to declare an emergency. 

Minutes: Attachment 1 .  

Chairman Dosch cal led the committee to order with a quorum present. 

Chairman Dosch: Let's see if we can come to some agreement on some of these items. 
The first one is the restoring of the funding for the marina. We would be wi l l ing to increase 
that to $700,000 subject to an appra isal of the property. 

Sen. Krebsbach :  That is the amount of money that they need . I th ink the $800,000 is the 
agreed upon price. 2 :20 

Chairman Dosch: Agreed upon by whom? 

Sen. Krebsbach: That was in the governor's budget and I bel ieve that there was an 
agreement between them and the party that is sel l ing the property. 

Sen. Lee: If we are looking for some middle g round . . .  I 'm thinking that there was a d ifferent 
number that was probably a part of that assessment in terms of cost as wel l .  I 'm thinking 
$700,000 may be a reasonable number to consider. 

Chairman Dosch:  The next item adds fund ing to mi l itary artifacts. We are opposed to that. 
1 .  It wasn't in the governor's budget. 2. We don't want Parks and Rec. to start deal ing with 
artifacts. That's not with in their scope. 

Rep. Monson:  Not only that the state already owns artifacts that are found on state land . 
5 : 1 5  

Sen. Krebsbach:  I won't argue that point. I do recal l  read ing through that he bui lt the 
cases that house the artifacts and he perhaps might be entitled remuneration to that. I 'd 
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l ike an opinion on that whether they are found on state property that they are state 
property. 6:00 

Chairman Dosch:  Moving on to the additional funding for the equipment. That's not in the 
governor's budget and we think that should come out of the parks normal operating budget. 

Sen. Krebsbach: I do want to agree some of th is ,  but it's such a smal l  amount of money 
that I think it's l ike p inching pennies so to speak when they could fix fire pits , buy additional 
tables. I guess it isn't a major point, but I sti l l  find it l ittle bit penny pinching.  

Sen. O'Connell :  Talked about some of the poor conditions of the parks. 7 :55 

Chairman Dosch : And I understand that, but part of their operating budget is for 
equ ipment replacement etc. Moving on to the funding for the commun ity grants program .  
At this point we'd l ike to keep it at the governor's budget. 

Sen.  Krebsbach: I n  the spirit of compromise, I would l ike the House to consider add ing 
$ 1 00,000. 

Chairman Dosch:  We'l l g ive it some thought. 9:30 

Chairman Dosch: The next item is the Lewis and Clark funding. My question is the total 
project cost. Could you explain that? 

David Borlaug-President of 
·
the Lewis and Clark Fort Mandan Foundation:  I was 

focusing solely on the pure construction component of the overal l  project. Explained the 
expenses of the project. This wil l  reimburse us for a l l  of that and pay off the loan .  1 3 :22 

Chairman Dosch: I understand that, but when I was looking at the orig inal leg islation when 
this was granted . And now we find out that it is something other than that. 

Borlaug:  Before the session ended the cost had already gone from $3 mil l ion to 3 .5  
mil l ion .  The bidding came within a week before the Minot and Bismarck flood and the 
Bakken continued to have an affect. 1 4:35 

Rep. Monson:  I can understand that you d idn't get the bids that you anticipated , but why 
wouldn 't you finish bui ld ing your bui ld ing before you spend your match money on things to 
put into a bu i lding that isn't completed yet? It's l ike bu i lding a house and furnishing it 
without putting a roof on it. 

Borlaug :  It's all part of the stag ing of the project. We d id a major remodel ing, which 
included the accommodating these new exhibits . We did the interior work first in  the winter. 
So, that's why we started with that process and then moved outside. We ran into 
groundwater issues. 1 5 : 50 

Rep. Monson:  The procedure for this is you come to budget section and explain th is, 
instead of waiting unti l crossover to tel l  us about th is. 1 6:50 
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Borlaug :  I apologize for that. I think at the risk of getting into internal affairs of this body; 
you know that I d id come to present this committee. I 'm trying to be del icate about it, but 
you know that I did have problems with one House member who chose not to become 
engaged at that time, who has since said that he is supportive, and that is why it d id not go 
through a formal process in the House committee. I feel bad ly about that, because I 
wanted to get a ful l  vetting . I wanted it on the public record . But through actions outside of 
my control ,  that d idn't happen.  So, we went to the Senate side where it d id get 
accompl ished . 1 8 :26 

Rep. Boe: Who was the loan with? 

Borlaug:  US Bank. 

Rep. Boe: And what are the terms? 

Borlaug:  I think it's a small percentage over prime and it was a fixed rate. It's a five year  
loan .  We had to advise them that we were working this process through the legislature and 
first loan payment is due August 1 st of this year. 

Rep. Monson: You run the rest area for DOT, but actually DOT doesn't pay anything.  
Parks and Rec. contract with you .  Do they pay anything? 

Borlaug :  No. That was the orig inal agreement forged in 1 997. 20:30 

Rep. Monson: Your foundation has a lease with the state of North Dakota with Parks and 
Rec. and agreement is you wil l run this for n inety n ine years and you' l l  take care of a l l  
maintenance and operating costs? 

Borlaug :  Correct. 

Rep. Monson: How much does it cost to run this annual ly? 

Borlaug:  Stated what h is annual budget is. 22:00 

Rep. Monson: I talked about the how much it cost to run a rest area. 

Chairman Dosch: If you could furnish that information .  I 'd l ike to talk about the Peace 
Gardens for a l ittle bit. We were looking at perhaps putting in a $1 mi l l ion with a match with 
the Canadian government. 24:05 

Sen.  Krebsbach: I know we have to do someth ing up there .  We can d iscuss that. 

Chairman Dosch: Maybe Representative Monson would you talk about the Walhal la 
issue? 

Rep. Monson:  Explained the way i t  was set up.  Thought we need a presence up there .  
27 :50 
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Sen.  Krebsbach:  I am referring a message here from the Johnsons. They state the food 
and the skiing and the theater would be leased to entrepreneurs .  Would that mean that 
they would continue to hold those assets and the state would just be buying the ground? 

Rep. Monson:  They would not have a presence except maybe to train people that would 
be runn ing it . They wou ld maybe help with it , but it would be owned by the state and Parks 
and Rec. would lease it out. 

Chairman Dosch adjourned the committee. 
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Chairman Dosch: Opened the conference committee on HB1 0 1 9 . 

Chairman Dosch :  We've had several meetings on the House side to come up with 
someth ing.  

1 :00 Chairman Dosch: Went through proposed changes. 

Senator Krebsbach: At the same time if they're going to have to do an appraisal that 
money wou ld be coming from this fund . 

2 :29 Chairman Dosch : The $750,000.00 is where we're at on that one at th is time. 

Chairman Dosch continued with the changes. 

4:09 Senator Krebsbach:  The question came up the other day if items were found on 
state property; there was the question if this type of requirement was in effect at that time 
and I wonder if either Council or the OMB had a chance to look at that. 

Brittany Reims: I d id receive an email and Becky d id d iscuss this with legal staff. 

5 : 1 5  Chairman Dosch : That's where we're coming up with the $ 1 0 ,000.00 to justify it. 

Chairman Dosch continued with changes. 

Senator Krebsbach:  We will take it under consideration . 

7 : 1 6  Senator Krebsbach:  The two are unrelated why would you want to intersperse 
them? 

Chairman Dosch: The money would be g rant money going to Lewis and Clark and we 
have to look at the whole p icture .  If we're going to expand grant money that wasn't 
previously al located we have to make some choices. 
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8 :05 Senator Krebsbach:  I n  the spirit of compromise, I would hope you would add 
$ 1 00 ,000 . 00 more. 

Chairman Dosch continued with the proposed changes. We are wi l l ing to propose that we 
wi l l ,  number one, there's no interest in assuming the current $2 mi l l ion dol lar loan that the 
foundation has we feel they took out the loan,  they made the terms and they are going to 
be responsible for the servicing of that debt. Number 2, the state would consider would 
al locate another $1 . 1  mi l l ion dol lars which wou ld be the funds that would almost complete 
the construction. The state would g rant those add itional dollars to the foundation. 

1 1 :56 Senator Krebsbach:  This perhaps needs more scrutiny and more work. If they fai l  
to meet that loan the property cou ld be reverted back to the foundation and eventually back 
to the state. 

Chairman Dosch :  I t  i s  ou r  understand ing that that loan is a loan held by US Bank. 
There's a five year note on that that would g ive them time in their fund raising efforts to 
eventually cover that particular loan .  

1 3 :01  Chairman Dosch continued with the changes. 

1 3 :57 Representative Monson:  I had visited with Becky Kel ler and she hasn't gotten back 
to me with language. There may be funds avai lable to rent someth ing out in the gorge to 
better mon itor what's going on with the trai ls .  

Chairman Dosch continued with the changes. 

1 8 :48 Senator Krebsbach:  I bel ieve you're right in ded icating some money to the tower. 
want to add that I th ink we're getting much closer. 

Chairman Dosch :  Closed the conference committee. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution: 

A B ILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the parks and 
recreation department. 

Minutes: ttachment 1 .  

Chairman Dosch cal led the committee to order with a quorum present. 

Chairman Dosch: Yesterday I d id most of the talk ing , so I think we' l l  yield to you .  

Sen. Krebsbach :  I would l ike to know what the d ifference is  in  the salary package on this 
b i l l .  You are requ iring that there be an appraisal of the Sakakawea project. I think it would 
behoove us to bring that up to $800,000, because that appraisal could cost from $ 1 0 ,000 to 
$40 ,000. 1 :50 

Chairman Dosch : You can get a house appraisal for $700-800 these days. I can't imagine 
that wi l l  cost more than a few thousand dol lars .  

Sen. Krebsbach:  If I recal l  I th ink i t  was more than just a normal appraisa l ;  i t  had more 
added to it. 

Chairman Dosch :  It would be just a normal appraisal by a certified appraiser and 
someone that does marine type appraisals. 

Sen. Krebsbach:  Maybe we can have the wording that has the money p lus the appraisal 
cost included in it. You had offered $ 1 0 ,000 for the cabinets for the artifacts. I believe 
there was going to be some discussion between the party that owns them with Parks and 
Rec. 

Mark Zimmerman-Director of NO Parks and Recreation: We attempted to contact the 
daughter yesterday afternoon and we were unsuccessfu l .  I regret to say that I don't have 
any more information than what I had yesterday. 

Chairman Dosch: Are you going to continue to try to contact them? 
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Zimmerman : We wil l .  I know that the fami ly has expressed that was the appraised price. 
But I ' l l  certain ly ask them to reconsider. 4:20 

Sen.  Krebsbach: Listed the picnic tab les and the rings, the commun ity g rants program, 
the Lewis and C lark I nterpretive Center, Walhal la Gorge and Frost Fire ;  gave the House 
and Senate d ifferences; and suggested what she wou ld l ike the House to change. 7 :00 

Chairman Dosch :  The biggest d ifference is on the Lewis and Clark one. I would ask the 
Senate to take a look at that. It's not the obligation of the state. It d id its part. It's a bad 
precedence to take taxpayer dollars to pay off the debt of foundations. I 'm not even sure 
that legal ly we can do that. 8:20 

Sen. Krebsbach:  Under a normal foundation; I would say that you are right. This does, 
however, exist on land owned by the state as does the bu i ld ing also. 

Rep. Monson: I just got the word ing from Becky Keller that we had d iscussed . See 
attachment 1 .  That is what I had in mind. Foundations are supposed to privately raise 
money; they are not funded by the state. 1 1  :35 

Sen. Krebsbach:  I can't answer for al l  that has happened in the past. Al l  I know is that we 
have a situation that needs to be remedied from this point forward . 

Chairman Dosch: As we look at a l l  of these budgets, as this budget came to us from the 
Senate, this was a 39% increase in the General  Fund. We need to do something with that. 

Chairman Dosch asked if there was anyth ing else the committee wished to address. 
Seeing none he adjourned the committee. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bil l/resolution:  

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the parks and 
recreation department and for provid ing a grant to the International Peace Garden; to 
provide for match ing funds; to provide an exemption; and to declare an emergency. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Dosch :  Reconvene HB  1 01 9. Rep. Grande is sitting i n  for Rep. Monson.  All 
p resent. 

Sen. Krebsbach:  Called on Mr. Zimmerman to give an update on the artifacts. 

Mark Zimmerman, Director of ND Parks and Recreation : (1 :20) Gave update on the 
col lection of artifacts . When I mentioned the amount being considered under conference 
committee, she said that would not be acceptable to the fami ly. I asked her if she wou ld 
consider that we withdraw that amendment from the bi l l  and not consider any payment 
either for the col lection or case work as earlier d iscussed , she felt that was fine. They want 
to sel l pieces individual ly. If the committee wou ld be in agreement to d rop that amendment 
completely that would be my recommendation. 

Sen. Krebsbach:  I n  view of that I wou ld move that we drop item number 4 from the bi l l .  

Chairman Dosch :  Do you want that as a separate motion or part of the much bigger one? 
Separate one, ok. 

Chairman Dosch: We have a motion by Sen .  Krebsach to delete item number 4 as far as 
the request for the mi l itary artifacts col lection in the amount of $42 ,500. Second by Sen .  
Lee .  

Voice vote, that item is  out. 

Sen. Krebsbach:  Can we start from the top, the marina, I th ink we can agree the 750 
figure if we can add in the cost of the appraisal .  

Chairman Dosch:  When you say the cost of the appraisal to be paid by who or what? 
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Sen. Krebsbach:  These funds. 

Chairman Dosch: The cost of the appraisal would be taken from the 750,000 dol lars .  

Sen. Krebsbach:  I n  add ition to the 750 . Personal ly I would l ike to just move i t  up to 800 
and that wou ld include the appraisa l .  That would be the simplest. 

Chairman Dosch :  The only problem is we don't know the cost of the appraisals so it's kind 
of hard to appropriate if we don't know the cost. I would be wi l l ing to do is add 5000 and go 
up  to 755,000 on the marina and cal l  i t  good . We would want the parks and rec. to obta in 
that appraisal though and i t  would be done by certified appraisers to be fai r  to both parties 
i nvolved . 

Sen. Krebsbach: They probably wil l  have to go out of state to get an appraisal for this type 
of equ ipment. It is not a normal dock and I don't know of anyone in state that sells that type 
of equ ipment. 

Rep. Boe: They do in Dickinson. 

Chairman Dosch: Are we agreeable to 755,000, which include cost of the appraisal? 

Sen. Krebsbach :  I real ly don't have any idea what that appraisal would cost. Does anyone 
in the audience know? 

Mark Zimmerman: (6:30) $5000 would not be sufficient. Just to have someone come from 
M N  wou ld cost $5000 to come and look at it. I went onl ine and looked at other states for 
appra isers and we could be looking at 1 0,000- 1 5,000 to get someone here to do an 
appraisa l .  But for a business appra isal i t  would run perhaps a $ 1 000. 

Sen. Krebsbach: I know we're looking at the ful l  8 and you look at 750, would you be 
wi l l ing to compromise to 775, we each go 25 and get this resolved . 

Chairman Dosch: I n  the spirit of compromise we would be wi l l ing to do that. Again it needs 
to be reflected that the Parks and Rec. would be responsible for obtain ing that appraisal 
and the 775,000 dol lars ,  subject to the appraisal wi l l  be the maximum price .  The appraisal 
has to at least appra ise out at that dol lar amount. Is that to everyone's understanding? 

Rep. Boe: It has to appra ise out at what value? 

Chairman Dosch : It cannot be purchased more than 775,000 less the cost of the 
appra isal .  If the appraisal is 1 0,000 it would have to come in at least 765,000 dol lars .  

Sen. O'Connel l :  I f  the appra iser comes in at 900,000 what do we do? 

Chairman Dosch: We won't be buying it then. 

Sen. Krebsbach:  I have a feel ing it  wil l  come in for more than 8. 
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Chairman Dosch : The code does require state to get appra isals on any property it 
acqu i res, we have to do it . 

Sen. Krebsbach: I 'm wondering if he should hold out for 800 thousand,  would it be 
possible to have word ing to al low them to go up to 800 thousand if there were other funds 
avai lable? 

Chairman Dosch: This was the amount it was felt it could be worked at. 

Sen. Krebsbach:  That wou ld be the amount taken from genera l  fund but cou ld they have 
authorities to go greater than that? 

Rep. Boe: This is a l l  specia l  funds already, or is this genera l  fund? 

Chairman Dosch: General  funds, over and above the parks operating budget. 

Joe Morrissette, LC: In relation to the last item, it was in itially spl it 50/50 between special 
and genera l  funds. That would be a point of clarification for Becky in the amendment what 
the source of funding would be of the 775. In response to Sen .  Krebsbach question , un less 
you put some language in that would l imit them, they could go to the emergency 
commission and get authority to spend beyond the appropriation and real locate from 
somewhere else within their budget. Unless you put some language in that says they 
absolutely cannot go above the 775, I th ink they could go to the emergency commission .  

Chairman Dosch : That would be a n  avenue to pursue if it would come above that. I f  that's 
how it was in the orig inal funding model half and half I bel ieve we should stick with that. 
Do you want to make a motion on that Senator? 

Sen. Krebsbach:  If you want to otherwise if we agree that the 775, which wou ld include 
the appraisa l ,  because I bel ieve the owner has agreed to al low the appraisal to be included 
in the price. However I think he was sti l l  looking at the 800 figure so that's why I wou ld l ike 
to see it not restricted from the state that that's al l  that is paid for it, let them have al lowance 
on the extra 25 ,000. 

Rep. Grande: I th ink going to 775 should be ample and if they do come in with this h igher 
appraisal they do have the avenue of the emergency commission so let's just go that route. 

Sen. Krebsbach :  You are right on where I want to be. 

Chairman Dosch :  Is that a motion? 

Sen. O'Connel l :  Will this language in here ,  if they went to the emergency commission 
there wou ld be no more than 800 thousand regard less, that's where we're at. 

Chairman Dosch : Joe, do we need that language in there or not? 

Joe Morrissette: If the intent was to restrict them to in circumstance to pay more than 800 
thousand you probably would need that language. Otherwise if the appraisal came in at 



H ouse Appropriations Education and Environment Division 
HB 1 0 1 9  
April 26, 201 3 
Page 4 

825 and they could find flexib i l ity in their budget they could go to the emergency 
commission and ask for authority at that time to use the 775 minus the appraisal plus some 
other mon ies. That would be possible unless it's your intent to restrict them then you would 
need language to do that. 

Chairman Dosch :  Our intent that they cou ld not go above 800,000. I don't want to box in 
Parks and Rec. If i t  goes beyond that I th ink the state would have no interest in i t  and he 
could sel l i t  to whomever as he can now. 

Chairman Dosch :  That would be the intent that it must appra ise out and if it exceeds 775, 
000 then it must go to the emergency commission,  however the maximum would be 
800,000 dol lars.  We have that motion moved by Sen .  Krebsbach, second by Sen. Lee. 

Voice vote, motion pass. 

Chairman Dosch: Moving onto the add itional equipment fund ing, Senate was at 75,000, 
the house agreed at 50,000 and if everyone is ok with that, I would entertain a motion. We 
would be reducing that 75,000 to the 50. 

Sen. O'Connel l :  Made motion, second by Rep. Boe 

Voice vote, motion passes 

Sen. Krebsbach:  The word ing wi l l  be left for picnic tables and fire rings, correct? 

Chairman Dosch: Yes, and they have the option. 

Chairman Dosch :  Community grant program, talked amounts decided to come back to 
that one. 

Chairman Dosch : ( 17 :54) Pembina gorge, Rep. Monson had someth ing he asked us to 
consider, the house . . . . . .  we wou ld l ike the 300,000 dollars put in as per the amendment 
from Rep. Monson. 

Sen. Krebsbach: I support the 300 ,000 but we would l ike a word ing change on that, in  the 
area where it's rental space, if we could strike that and put Pembina Gorge Area Project, 
just add project after area. That would be the only change we would ask on that. 

Chairman Dosch :  What were you striking out? 

Sen. Krebsbach: The first three words, rental space in the title. 

Chairman Dosch: I have no problem with that. 

Rep. Grande: I move the Monson amendment. Sen .  Krebsbach seconds it with the change 
we recommended . 
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Sen. Lee: (20 : 17) I 'm not going to support this amendment. . . . . . .  I don't th ink it's a good idea 
for the state to purchase or lease this space.  

Chairman Dosch :  We dropped the purchase idea. 

Sen. Lee: I don't know that they are interested in going up there and renting a space, they 
haven't expressed that to my knowledge. I'm not going to support th is. 

Chairman Dosch :  There's noth ing that requires it , it makes those funds avai lable to parks 
and rec. They may use it or choose not to. I ntent if not use for Pembina Gorge area that the 
money wou ld be returned to the general fund . 

Roll vote on Monson amendment, 4-2-0 Motion fails. 

Chairman Dosch :  Lewis and Clark I nterpretive Center, Senate added 3 . 1 mil l ion,  the 
House is at 1 . 1 up from 0.  Any comments from the Senate? 

Sen. Krebsbach :  Is there any room for movement on the house side on this? 

Chairman Dosch: (23 :20) That was our best offer. We are firm at 1 . 1 mi l l ion to complete 
the construction .  

Rep. Grande: I move 1 . 1 on that l ine .  Second Rep. Boe. 

Take rol l  vote on Lewis and Clark Interpretive center 3-3-0 Motion fails 

Chairman Dosch :  (27:05) I nternational Peace Gardens, Senate was at 2 .5 ,  the house was 
wi l l ing to go up to 1 mil l ion dollars.  This item was not in the Governor's budget. We 
understand there are some needs, any comments from Senate? 

Sen. Krebsbach:  I would l ike to see 1 .5 mi ll ion , that would give them three mi l l ion with 
their matching funds to start doing some of the work that needs to be done. 

Chairman Dosch : Is  that a motion? 

Sen. Krebsbach :  Yes, I would move that we move that to 1 .5 .  Second by Sen. O'Connel l .  

Rol l  vote, International Peace Gardens, 4-2-0 Motion fails. 

Chairman Dosch :  That is about it ; fortunately we can't wrap this up. Next proposal I wou ld 
say there wi l l  be no funding for Lewis and Clark I nterpretive Center unfortunately. The 
house has been more than reasonable. 

Chairman Dosch: Recessed 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bil l/resolution : 

A B ILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the parks and 
recreation department and for providing a grant to the International Peace Garden ; to 
provide for match ing funds; to provide an exemption ; and to declare an emergency. 

Minutes : Attachment 1 

Representative Dosch: Cal led the conference committee to order and al l  members were 
present. Anyone have anything new to add? 

Senator Krebsbach :  Perhaps we should look at what we have left to do. 

Representative Dosch :  My records ind icate we've taken care of the marina issue and 
artifacts; we've agreed on taking out the equipment add itional fund ing; we've not agreed on 
the commun ity grants, the Walhal la Gorge, we have to vote on that amendment, and 
there's the I nternational Peace Gardens. As of our last meeting , I took the offer of Lewis & 
Clark off the table. That's where we are at. 

2 :08 Senator Krebsbach:  On the commun ity grants, I had asked you to consider 
$ 1 00,000. Has there been given any thought to that? 

Representative Monson: I was doing some quick math ; when we started here ,  we were 
$9M d ifferent. So far, the House real ly hasn't gotten anyth ing back, and we've moved up 
$2-3M.  

Representative Dosch: My thought is  that un less we can resolve some of these other 
issues , then we can come back to the grants l ine, because I think that wi l l  play on how 
some of these other issues pan out. 

4:03 Senator Krebsbach :  We've got about 3-4 issues here. I'm not going to let item 6, the 
grant, hold us up forever. But if you want to take care of the other things first that's fine. 
When I look at the whole thing , the House has real ly made some considerable changes 
from the governor's budget. The executive budget was at $ 1 7M ,  our version came up to 
$23M and you were at $ 1 8M at that point. I th ink the biggest dol lars of d ifference there was 
the Lewis & Clark fund ing. I think that is someth ing that should be considered . With the 
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frost fire , we are wil l ing to look at the funding there. I n  add ition looking at add ing a few 
more dol lars than your $ 1 M that you are coming up on the Peace Gardens. 

Representative Monson: The $2 .5M in Peace Gardens was a pretty big d ifference,  too. 
What are you proposing here? 

6 :23 Senator Krebsbach : Move to $1 .25M on Peace Gardens if the house would consider 
that. 

Representative Dosch: I would say we have to look at this as a package deal at this point. 
What is the next item? 

Senator Krebsbach :  I guess before we go any further, I would l ike to know if the House is 
going to reconsider doing anyth ing in the Lewis & Clark program? 

8:02 Representative Monson: We've talked with a lot of our col leagues, and we are pretty 
much at the l imit there .  That fin ishes the construction; the state wi l l  be kicking in $2 .6M.  I 'm 
not saying two years from now, if they are sti l l  struggl ing that we wouldn't consider where 
they're at and their loan payments/fund raising. That $1 . 1  M wi l l  get the bui lding completed , 
g ive them a l ittle breathing room, and we can look at it again in two years. That's my 
opin ion, and what I 've been hearing . 

Representative Dosch : Friday that's the point I was at, too. If we want to put that back on 
the table, we' l l  look at it as the entire package, but it would have to be the $1 . 1  M .  

Representative Monson:  $1 .25M on  the Peace Gardens i s  half of it, you wou ld put i n  
$2 .5M,  I th ink we need to keep that kind of language in there .  Something might get started 
next fa l l .  

1 0 :36 Senator Krebsbach : My wish i s  that they cou ld get some stud ies done as  to what 
they're looking at for the repair of the tower. I hope that can be done as soon as we 
adjourn .  If we have the emergency clause or keep that on there as it is right now. 

Representative Monson : I would move we do $1 .25M at the Peace Gardens with our 
language that says they have to get the match, we g ive them 1 0% or something, and along 
with that the frost fire wou ld be part of the package. 
Withd raw motion. 

1 2 :23 Senator Krebsbach :  I n  the amendments I have proposed before, there is in section 
7 contingent funding for the I nternational Peace Garden project at the $2 .5M figure .  

Representative Dosch : I have language see attachment 1 .  

1 4:35 Senator Krebsbach:  I can agree with that, but in the next sentence you're asking for 
an add itional 5% coming from other sources.  Would that mean that they'd have to have that 
before this engineering could be done? 
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Representative Dosch : I wou ldn't have a problem saying that there would be no match ing 
on the engineering part and up to 1 0% can be accessed right away. 

Senator Krebsbach :  Alright, that seems very reasonable. I would l ike to see the amount 
change to $1 . 1 25M. The other thing is money coming from the Province of Manitoba . 
Perhaps that should be added . 

Representative Dosch : Shal l  we just say the Canadian government, not specific to just 
Manitoba? 

1 6 :00 Senator O'Connel l :  They also have a lot of commun ity donors too. 

Representative Dosch : Or private funds. 

Representative Boe: Doesn't non-state sources cover it? 

Senator Krebsbach :  I think you're absolutely right. 

1 6 :31 Representative Dosch: So dollar-for-dollar matches to be obtained from other non­
state sources, I think that is general enough .  So the understand ing is that these particu lar 
funds as wel l  as the match ing funds wi l l  be held at the Parks & Rec, who wi l l  be assisting 
with the bidding, construction over site repair work, etc. Those funds would be d ispersed 
through them. We want to keep better control over these, and Parks & Rec has ind icated 
their wi l l ingness to do th is. 

1 8 :02 Senator Krebsbach:  If there is add itional dollars left over, can they util ize it in  other 
necessary areas? 

Representative Dosch : That would be the intent. I hope they don't use all this money on 
the towers , they' l l  be able to get that done considerably less and then the Parks & Rec 
would work with them to see what their next priority is. 

Representative Monson : That's exactly what I was going to say. This is going to Parks & 
Rec, who wil l help them devise a plan and if there's left over money, they cou ld start on 
another part that is needed . 

1 9 : 1 1 Joe Morrissette, OMB: Since you wou ld be referencing $1 . 1 25M in this language 
you may want to change that language. You might want to add after gardens and other 
infrastructure improvements so it is clear that the $1 . 1 25M is not earmarked solely for the 
peace tower. 

Representative Dosch :  That's a good suggestion, with the understanding that the peace 
tower is our first priority. That is the main safety issue there .  Just so that is understood by 
what our leg islative intent is by doing this. 

Senator Krebsbach :  I think that has been annotated in the documentation from the 
d i rector there that it is their main intent. I don't think Representative Monson realizes we 
pu lled out #4 completely on Friday. 
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Representative Monson: Yes, I was informed of that. I 'm okay with that. 

21 :40 Senator Krebsbach: There has been a suggestion that the frost fire fund ing be at 
$200,000 rather than $300,000, but the other day we had a motion and I supported the 
$300 ,000 . I think we're down to about 3 items here. 

22:38 Representative Dosch: Am I assuming then that if we put the $1 . 1  M for Lewis & 
Clark on the table that would be acceptable for part of this package? 

Senator Krebsbach:  I would real ly l ike to give this a l ittle bit more time. I think there are 
other workings going on at this particular time on an agreed figure on a number of these 
things. 

Representative Dosch : You're referring to which of the items? 

Senator Krebsbach: The Lewis & Clark I nterpretive center, and the Frost F ire Walhal la 
Gorge project. 

Representative Dosch: Wel l ,  you know where we are at. I ' l l  put $1 . 1  M back out there on 
Lewis & Clark, $1 .25M on the Peace Gardens; we need to talk about Pembina Gorge; we'd 
l ike to stay at $300, 000 on that. I sti l l  have an issue on the $1 00,000 grants , especia l ly if 
we're going up on the Peace Garden. But if we agree on everything else, we could 
compromise on that too. 

So, is the feel ing to meet once more on Monday? We'l l  reconvene on Monday. 
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1Z1 Conference Committee 

A B I LL for an Act to provide an ap opriation for defraying the expenses of the parks and 
recreation department and for providing a grant to the International Peace Garden ;  to provide 
for matching funds; to provide an exemption; and to declare an emergency. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Dosch : Opened the conference committee on HB1 0 1 9. All members were 
present. 

Senator Krebsbach:  We had put one item to bed but something has come up. New 
information has come forth on item number four, for funding mi l itary artifacts for the Fort 
Abraham Lincoln Park. Mr. Zimmerman, the park d irector, has received some information 
that I wou ld l ike him to share with the committee. 

Mark Zimmerman ,  Director, NO Parks and Recreation:  I 've come to the conference 
committee to report on my conversation with Pat Hager, the daughter of Mr. Harold Brady, 
who had collected these artifacts from Fort Abraham Lincoln .  Mrs .  Brady said that she and 
her brother had visited with her father, and he would not l ike to see the col lection put out on 
a social med ia sale. He would l ike to accept the $1 0 ,000 offer g iven by the conference 
committee. He feels strongly that the collection should stay together. He asked that we 
reconsider. I told them that the item had been removed , but that I would visit with the 
committee and ask for reconsideration .  

Senator Krebsbach:  In view that new information has been brought forward. I would 
make a motion to add $1 0,000.00 for the cabinetry that has been provided by the 
Brady family. 

Senator O'Connell  seconded the motion. 

Chairman Dosch: I was looking at taking this as an entire package. 

Senator Krebsbach :  Withd rew her motion . 

Senator O'Connel l :  Withdrew his second. 
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Chairman Dosch: As far as the package, last time we sti l l  had a d ifference of $ 1 00,000 on 
the commun ity grants program.  I indicated that we would bring back and reconsider $ 1 . 1  
mil l ion for the Lewis and Clark. For the Peace Gardens we looked at $ 1 ,250,000 as a 
package. We also discussed Frost Fire at $300,000. If we could agree on a l l  of that, we 
could end this. 

Senator Krebsbach :  I hear there is some d iscussion to move the Lewis and Clark up from 
the $ 1 . 1 5  mil l ion , and I am wondering if there is any interest in doing so. 

Chairman Dosch :  I would be  amenable to moving the $ 1 00,000 d ifference in the 
community grants to Lewis and Clark to make that $1 .2 mil l ion . If you wou ld want to move 
any portion ($50,000 or whatever) from the I nternational Peace Gardens over to Lewis and 
Clark, we could look at doing that as wel l .  

Senator Krebsbach:  I bel ieve that the Senate has come down quite a bit on the Peace 
Gardens. We were at $2 .5 ,  and we have come down qu ite a bit. The need is defin itely 
there for that at the $2 .5  value. I am not wi l l ing to concede any more on that. 

Chairman Dosch :  None of that was in the governor's budget, nor was it presented on the 
House side. I look at it that we've come up $1 .25 mil l ion . 

Senator Krebsbach:  You're correct. But when the information came to us, we felt very 
strong ly that that should be attended to at this time. 

Chairman Dosch: I agree. By a l lowing for the match, that's going to get them over $2 
mi l l ion to do th ings up there .  I f  you (the Senate) don't want to move anything out of the 
Peace Gardens, keeping it at $1 ,250,000, I am fine with that. If you want to move 
$ 1 00,000 from the grant l ine to Lewis and Clark, I'm fine with that. It is up to the Senate. 

Senator Krebsbach :  At this time I 'm not wi l l ing to g ive that $1 00,000.00 away. We've put 
in $200,000, and I 've agreed to come down to $1 00 ,000.00 on that addition . I th ink we 
need to explore th ings further before we do anything. 

Chairman Dosch: I want to remind you that none of this was in the governor's budget. 

Representative Monson : The commun ity grants, what exactly are they used for, who gets 
them , and what is the purpose? 

Senator Krebsbach :  Those grants are given out to local park districts across the state. I 
th ink the majority of them are given to the smaller park districts that don't have the funding 
sources. The needs might be to maintain a swimming pool ,  new playground equipment, 
etc. 

Representative Monson:  I wou ld rather spend $1 00,000.00 in  that spot instead of Lewis 
and Clark. 
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Senator O'Connel l :  It's up to us to balance the budget out at the end . We have d ifferent 
bi l ls on the table right now, and they are waiting to see what we have to come up with . Isn't 
that what is happening? 

Chairman Dosch:  I wou ld agree. 

Representative Monson: Where are our d ifferences? We are at a standsti l l .  

Senator Krebsbach :  I think it's time for a l ittle honesty. We hear that there is supposed to 
be more money put into the Lewis and Clark, and at this time the committee isn't agreeing 
or the word isn't getting to the proper people. 

Representative Monson: What is the number you're thinking? 

Senator Krebsbach:  It's not my number; i t  is more or less what has been agreed upon by 
certain  parties. 

Representative Monson : What's the number? 

Senator Krebsbach:  The latest I 've heard is $1 .6 mil l ion. Earl ier today I heard $1 .8 
mil l ion. I th ink the House should go and figure out where we are at on this project. 

Chairman Dosch:  That's why the compromise would be to put the extra grant money into 
Lewis and Clark and bring that up to at least $1 .2 mil l ion. But the Senate isn't interested in 
increasing Lewis and Clark. 

Senator Krebsbach:  I suppose we could take from a lot of d ifferent places if that's what 
we're looking at. I don't see that as a solution when we are dealing with issues that need to 
be dealt with . I th ink we have to responsibly act to all of them. 

Chairman Dosch adjourned the conference committee. 
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D Conference Committee 

"attached testimony." 

Rep . Dosch: We wil l open the conference meeting on HB 1 01 9. 

Senator Krebsbach : I move that the senate recede from its amendment and that we further amend 
HB 1 0 1 9  to reflect the following: add back in the $1 0 ,000 for the cabinets for the artifacts at Fort 
Abraham Lincoln and on item number 5 for the one time equipment purchases we would reduce 
that to $50,000. 

Rep. Dosch : The $ 1 0 ,000 for the cabinets; is that with the understand ing that the artifacts wou ld 
be donated to the Parks and Rec? 

Senator Krebsbach : They would remain at the fort. In item number 6 the Senate was looking for 
$600 ,000 we would settle there for $500,000 for the grants program for the parks. 

Rep. Dosch: Would that be changing the $200,000 increase to $1 000,000? 

Senator Krebsbach : That is correct. It would go from the executive recommendation of $400,000 
to $500 ,000. In the true spirit of compromise we would do the one t ime grant for expansion at the 
Lewis and Clark I nterpretive Center to 1 .35 mi l l ion dol lars .  

Rep . Dosch : Are those funds held and d isbursed by the Parks and Rec. for completion for the 
center? 

Senator Krebsbach : I am not sure about the wording in that, I think they would be held in the 
Parks and Rec budget for d isbursement to the fort upon the receipts of the dol lars to be spent. 
If we are ready to move on we would move the adoption of the $300 ,000 for the Pembina Gorge 
area.  The other day they approved the change of word ing from your amendments rather than 
rental space to the Pembina Gorge Area Project. 
Then we added a section to provide an emergency clause for various capital projects 
especia l ly for the International Peace Gardens which we would recommend or move that we 
adopt a 1 .25 mi l l ion dollar budget for that. 
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Rep. Dosch : We d id have some verbiage on that. 

Senator Krebsbach : It is pred icated on matching funds also. 

Rep . Dosch : The verbiage that we had includes the $1 ,250.000 for the engineering study and 
repair of the Peace Towers at the I nternational Peace Gardens contingent on the dol lar for dol lar 
match to be obtained from other non-state sources. 

Senator Krebsbach : We want this money to be a high priority. If there should be an emergency 
that needs attention immediately and they aren't uti l izing it for the Peace Tower could we have 
some flexibi l ity for them to take care of those minor things? 

Rep. Dosch:  That depends on the defin ition of "minor" We also said that 1 0% if those funds could 
be used and d isbursed immediately for the engineering study before any of the other funds are 
matched so that they can get on that project. 

Senator Krebsbach : That would g ive them a l ittle more flexibi l ity for them to util ize it. 

Rep. Dosch : 1 0% would g ive them $1 25,000; normally emergencies are hand led out of the normal  
operating budget. Would that money be shifted there? The primary purpose of this was presented 
to us was for the purpose of the Peace Towers. 

Senator Krebsbach : If had put in five mi l l ion dol lars to be matched and then we were looking at 
both the tower and the other repairs that were needed . 

The Peace Tower was bu i lt in  1 980 and it was bui lt at a cost of 1 .35 mil l ion and if it were to be 
replaced today it would be 6 mil l ion three hundred and fifty six thousand dol lars .  
If you want a l l  of th is money to go towards the Peace Tower there would be a match ing part of this 
that perhaps some of that could be used . 

Rep. Dosch:  We are talking about the 1 0% of the cost so that they could immediately get the 
engineering study done. The primary purpose being that of the Peace Gardens with anyth ing left 
over that is not needed to repair that Peace Towers can be used based on the Parks and Rec 
analysis so that money is available to do that work. 

Senator Krebsbach : That is very agreeable. That concludes the changes that are being 
recommended at this time . I move adoption of such and the salaries that need to be taken care of. 
The three areas that we need to take care of and we are going to put in the agree to compensation 
package and then we will make sure that the separate l ine item for accrued leave is included in 
there .  

Rep. Dosch : we have also adopted and dealt with the marina. 

Senator Krebsbach : I am showing that we are going to al low seven hundred seventy five thousand 
dol lars for the marina. We are a lso going to include language that they can go to the emergency 
commission for additional fund ing up to eight hundred thi rty thousand dollars and funding is for a 
certified appraisal .  
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Rep. Dosch : I thought it was eight hundred thousand. 

Senator Krebsbach : I t  was eight hundred thousand includ ing the appraisal for the authority. 

Rep. Dosch: Does the marina have to be part of this motion? 

Senator Krebsbach : We know what the amendments are supposed to say. 

Rep. Dosch : We have a motion and a second by Senator O'Connel l .  

Yes 5 No 0 Absent 0 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1 0 1 9  

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1 454- 1 457 of the House 
Journal and pages 1 257- 1 260 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bi l l  
No .  1 0 1 9  be amended as fo l lows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, after "exemption" insert " ;  and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 1 5  through 22 with : 

"Admin istration 
Accrued leave payments 
Natura l  resources 
Recreation 
Total a l l  funds 
Less est imated income 
Total general fund 
Ful l-time equiva lent positions 

Page 2, replace l ines 3 and 4 with:  

" I nternational Peace Garden 
Total general fund 

Page 2 ,  replace l ines 9 through 1 1  with:  

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total special funds 
Grand total all funds 

Page 2,  replace l ines 17 through 26 with : 

$2,484 ,885 
0 

1 2 ,768,203 
7,489,091 

$22, 742 , 1 79 
1 1 ,641 ,532 

$1 1 '  1 00,647 
54 .00 

$773,699 
$773,699 

$1 1 ,874,346 
1 1 ,641 ,532 

$23 ,51 5 ,878 

"Parks capital projects and deferred maintenance 
Parks equipment 
Lewis and Clark interpretive center grant 
Little M issouri state park trai l  leases 
Parks SCORP plan 
Parks strategic plans 
Community grant program 
I nternational Peace Garden capital projects 
Total a l l  funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general fund 

Page 3 ,  l ine 1 5 , replace "$400, 000" with "$500,000" 

Page 3, remove l ines 25 through 31 

Page 4, replace l ines 1 and 2 with: 

$1 88,708 
1 8 1 ,577 

8 , 325, 1 22 
(1 ,403,2 1 6) 
$7,292, 1 9 1  

359, 1 99 
$6,932,992 

1 .00 

$1 ,450,000 
$1 ,450,000 

$8,382 ,992 
359, 199 

$8,742, 1 9 1  

$5,269 ,2 1 0  
1 1 6 , 000 

0 
85, 000 
40, 000 

0 
0 

267,000 
$5,777 ,2 1 0  

1 ,028,000 
$4 ,749 ,2 1 0  

$2,673, 593 
1 8 1 , 577 

2 1 ,093, 325 
6,085,875 

$30 ,034 ,370 
1 2,000,73 1  

$1 8 ,033,639 
55 .00" 

$2,223,699 
$2,223, 699" 

$20, 257, 338 
1 2,000,731  

$32,258, 069" 

$3,897, 800 
350,000 

1 , 350, 000 
0 
0 

1 00, 000 
500, 000 

1 ,250,000 
$7,447, 800 

1 ,270,300 
$6, 1 77, 500" 
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"SECTION 7 .  MARI NA PURCHASE - APPRAISAL - EME RG E NCY 
C O M M ISSION APPROVAL. The natural resources l ine item in subdivision 1 of 
section 1 of this Act i ncludes $387,500 from the general fund and $387, 500 from other 
funds for the purchase of a marina. The parks and recreation department must obtain 
an appraisal from a certified appraiser prior to the purchase of the marina.  If the 
appraisal value exceeds $775, 000, the department may request emergency 
commission approval to spend an additional $25, 000 of other funds for the marina .  

SECTION 8 .  P E M B I N A  G ORGE AREA PROJ ECT. The natural resources l i ne 
item in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act includes $300,000 from the general fund 
which the parks and recreation department may use to rent property in the Pembina 
gorge area for the purpose of providing office space for employees or individuals 
responsible for monitori ng or patrol l ing the trai l  systems in the area, developing a p lan 
for continued monitoring and patrol l ing of the trai l  systems,  and to determine the 
feasib i l ity of establ ishing an interpretive center. 

SECTION 9. CONTI NGENT F U N DI N G - I NTERNATIO NAL PEACE GARDEN 
CAPITAL PROJ ECTS . The sum of $1 ,250,000 from the general fund included in  
subdivision 2 of section 1 of this Act is for an engineering study and repair of  the peace 
tower at the International Peace Garden and to the extent funds remain , other 
infrastructure improvements . The funding is contingent upon the I nternational Peace 
Garden raising matching funds on a dol lar-for-dollar basis from nonstate sources. Up to 
ten percent of the funds provided from the general fund are for the eng ineering study 
and emergency repairs and are not subject to the match requirement. The parks and 
recreation department shal l  accept and review eng ineering proposals and 
recommendations of the study before committing addit ional funds to the project and 
shal l  assist with bidding and construction oversight of any repair work. 

SECTION 1 0. E M ERGENCY. The natural resources line item in subdivision 1 of 
section 1 of this Act includes $3,730 ,000, of which $2,930,000 is from the general  fund 
and $800 ,000 is from special funds derived from federal funds and other income for 
various capital projects, and subdivision 2 of section 1 of this Act includes $1 25, 000 
from the general fund for an engineering study of the peace tower and emergency 
repairs at the International Peace Garden, which are declared to be an emerge ncy 
measure . "  

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMEN DMENT: 

House B i l l  No. 1 0 1 9 - Summary of Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Executive House Committee Committee Senate Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate 

Parks and Recreation 
Department 

Total all funds $27,962,785 $30,063,381 ($479,01 1 )  $29,584,370 $31 ,436,267 ($1 ,851 ,897) 
Less estimated income 1 1 , 791 ,835 12 ,439,512 (663,781) 1 1 ,775,731 11 ,791 ,954 (1 6,223) 
General fund $16,1 70,950 $17,623,869 $184,770 $ 1 7,808,639 $19,644,313 ($1 ,835,674) 

International Peace Garden 
Total all funds $973,699 $973,699 $1 ,250,000 $2,223,699 $3,473,699 ($1 ,250,000) 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 0 0 0 
General fund $973,699 $973,699 $1 ,250,000 $2,223,699 $3,473,699 ($1 ,250,000) 

Bill total 
Total all funds $28,936,484 $31 ,037,080 $770,989 $31 ,808,069 $34,909,966 ($3, 101 ,897) 
Less estimated income 1 1 , 791 ,835 12 ,439,51 2 (663,781) 1 1 , 775,731 11 ,791 ,954 (1 6,223) 
General fund $17 , 144,649 $18,597,568 $1 ,434,770 $20,032,338 $23 , 1 18,012 ($3,085,674) 

Page No. 2 1 3 . 8 1 48. 03005 



House Bi l l  No. 1 0 1 9  - Parks and Recreation Department - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Executive House Committee Committee Senate Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Vers ion to Senate 

Administration $2,71 9,322 $2,652,000 $21 ,593 $2,673,593 $2,720,0 17  ($46,424) 
Natural resources 19,234,022 21 ,256,353 (613,028) 20,643,325 22,506,409 (1 ,863,084) 
Recreation 6,009,441 5,973,451 1 1 2,424 6,085,875 6,209,841 (1 23,966) 
Accrued leave payments 18 1 ,577 181 ,577 181 ,577 

Total all funds $27,962,785 $30,063,381 ($479,01 1 )  $29,584,370 $31 ,436,267 ($1 ,851 ,897) 
Less estimated income 1 1 .791 ,835 12 ,439,512 (663,781) 1 1 ,775,731 1 1 . 791 ,954 (16,223) 

General fund $16, 1 70,950 $17,623,869 $1 84,770 $ 1 7,808,639 $19,644,313 ($1 ,835,674) 

FTE 55.00 55.00 0.00 55.00 55.00 0.00 

Department No. 750 - Parks and Recreation Department - Detail of Conference Comm ittee 
Changes 

Removes Adjusts State 
House Changes Employee Adds Funding 

to Executive Compensation Restores for Military Adds Funding 
Compensation and Benefits Marina Artifact Adds Funding for Community 

Package' Package' Funding' Collection' for Equipment' Grant Program' 

Administration 
Natural resources 
Recreation 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Administration 
Natural resources 
Recreation 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

$41 ,260 
290,386 
23,740 

$355,386 
7,442 

$347,944 

0.00 

Adds Funding 
for Lewis and 

Clark 
Interpretive 

Center Grant' 

1 ,350,000 

$1 ,350,000 
0 

$1 ,350,000 

0.00 

($19,667) 
( 138.414) 

( 1 1 ,316) 

($1 69,397) 
(3,723) 

($1 65,674) 

0.00 

Removes 
Funding for 

Walhalla Gorge 
Property' 

(2,800,000) 

($2,800,000) 
(830,000) 

($1 ,970,000) 

0.00 

325,000 

$325,000 
162,500 

$162,500 

0.00 

Adds Funding 
for Pembina 
Gorge Area 

Project' 

300,000 

$300,000 
0 

$300,000 

0.00 

10 ,000 

$1 0,000 
0 

$1 0,000 

0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 

Changes 

$21 ,593 
(61 3,028) 

1 12,424 

($479,01 1 )  
(663 781) 

$184,770 

0.00 

1 Changes made by the House to the executive compensation package are removed .  

50,000 

$50,000 
0 

$50,000 

0.00 

2 This amendment adjusts the state employee compensation and benefits package as follows: 

100,000 

$100,000 
0 

$100,000 

0.00 

Reduces the performance component from 3 to 5 percent per year to 3 to 5 percent for the first 
year of the biennium and 2 to 4 percent for the second year of the bienn ium.  
Reduces the market component from 2 to 4 percent per year to 1 to 2 percent per  year for 
employees below the midpoint of their salary range. 
Reduces funding for retirement contribution increases to provide for a 1 percent state and 
1 percent employee i ncrease beginn ing in Jan uary 2014 and no increase i n  January 20 1 5 . 
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3 Fu nding removed by the House for purchase of a marina is partial ly restored .  The executive budget 
and the Senate version included $800, 000 for the purchase of the marina.  

4 Funding is added to purchase cabinetry to house a mi l itary artifact col lection on display at Fort Abraham 
Lincoln State Park. The artifact col lection wil l  be donated to the Parks and Recreation Department The 
Senate version included $42 ,500 for purchase of the cabinetry and collection.  

5 Fund ing is added for one-time equ ipment purchases of picnic tables and fire rings. The Senate version 
added $75,000 for this purpose. 

6 Fu nding is added to increase the community grant program from $400 ,000 included in the executive 
budget recommendation to $500 , 000 .  The Senate version included an increase of $200 ,000 .  

7 Funding is  added for a one-time grant for expansion of  the Lewis and Clark I nterpretive Center. The 
Senate version included $3 , 1 50 ,000 for this purpose. 

8 Funding added by the House for the purchase and operation of property in the Walhal la Gorge and 
F rost F i re area is removed, the same as the Senate version . 

9 Funding is added to rent property in the Pembina Gorge area for office space. 

Sections are added to provide gu idel i nes for the Pembina Gorge area project and an  emergency clause 
for various capital projects. 

House B i l l  No. 1 01 9  - International Peace Garden - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Executive House Committee Committee Senate Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate 

International Peace Garden $973,699 $973,699 $1 ,250,000 $2,223,699 $3,473,699 ($1 ,250,000) 

Total all funds $973,699 $973,699 $1 ,250,000 $2,223,699 $3,473,699 ($1 ,250,000) 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 0 0 0 

General fund $973,699 $973,699 $1 ,250,000 $2,223,699 $3,473,699 ($1 ,250,000) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department No. 751 - International Peace Garden - Deta i l  of Conference Committee Changes 

Adds Funding 
for Peace 

Garden Capital 
Projects' 

International Peace Garden $1 ,250,000 

Total all funds $1 ,250,000 
Less estimated income 0 

General fund $1 ,250,000 

FTE 0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 

Changes 

$1 ,250,000 

$1 ,250,000 
0 

$1 ,250,000 

0.00 

1 Funding is added for capital projects at the I nternational Peace Garden.  The Senate version included 
$2.5 mil l ion for this purpose. 

A section is added requ iring matching funds for capital projects of the I nternational Peace Garden.  
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201 3 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 

Committee: Appropriations Education and Environment 

B i l l/Resolution No. HB 1 0 1 9  as (re) engrossed -----------------
Date: � � J4 p'Y 1 J 
Roll Cal l  Vote #: 

Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments 

((Re) Engrossed) 

D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments D SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows 

House/Senate Amendments on HJ/SJ page(s) 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a 
new committee be appointed 

was placed on the Seventh order 

of business on the calendar 

Motion Made by: 3 � . kv e- t y La. vL. Seconded by: )� - (__e, e 

Vote Count 

House Carrier 

LC N umber 

LC N umber 

Yes: No: Absent: --------- ---- ---------
Senate Carrier ------------------- --------------------

of amendment ------------------
__________________ of engrossment 

Emergency clause added or deleted � J r (\ / / V /J 1 G e . V Ole_ 
Statement of purpfse of amendment 1 __lj t � '1r .fu &.-.e l de. 1 -I-t 1'>1 n c;:- "' er  Lf J T JltL /e G r:z-t?' 

the ME / i /<Vry rXY}r futo/r r!.-rJ fltc/7� l tr.  t-k 
a VVz o WJ,�f- o f  f ¥ 7.. 7 :)r:JO - p Jt l J +VVV'-_L �.-�J () 1A.__l. 



201 3 HOUSE CONFE RENCE COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 

Committee: Appropriations Education and Environment 

Bi l l/Resolution No. HB 1 01 9  as (re) engrossed ------------------
Date: 

Roll Cal l  Vote #: 

Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments 
D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments D SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as fol lows 

((Re) Engrossed) 

House/Senate Amendments on HJ/SJ page(s) 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a 
new committee be appointed 

was placed on the Seventh order 

of business on the calendar 

Motion Made by: S"e.-ta _ };;y�2::.s b�e-4 Seconded by: y-C/1;1 . L e.__. e_ 
Representatives Yes No Yes No 

Vote Count Yes: No: Absent: ------ ------ -----
House Carrier Senate Carrier ------------------- ------------
LC N umber of amendment -------------------
LC N umber of engrossment -------------------
Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 
1 

_ q A'l --1 1 5; 0 () D � 1¥1 C{/)r1 11 q, jV , {  "- V \�t �pl'.vf )OI . .t 
fa rJeJ . 



2013 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ROLL CAL L  VOTES 

Committee : Appropriations Education and Environment 

Bi l l/Resolution No. ____ H_B_1_0_1_9 ___ as (re) engrossed 

Date: 

Roll Cal l  Vote #: 

Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments 
D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments D SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as fol lows 

House/Senate Amendments on HJ/SJ page(s) 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a 
new committee be appointed 

( (Re) Engrossed) was placed on the Seventh order 

of business on the calendar 

Motion Made by: .J � - 0 7 to '1/1- h & // Seconded by: 

Representatives Yes No Yes No 

Vote Count Yes:  No:  Absent: ----- ----- -----
House Carrier Senate Carrier ---------- -----------
LC N umber of amendment ----------
LC N umber __________ of engrossment 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment • � � d? ·� ( ed 1/--L.(> 
A l 1 � -01f">l ,J_ 1&8 ru P fl'1 / ) 

:X- '1 s: 0 & � J_� -M -r JlJ? tltf'f!J -' \} e F c e  111&k wwf1 � f d  .rr-e _ _J_ 



201 3 HOUSE CONFE RENCE COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 

Committee : Appropriations Education and Environment 

Bi l l/Resolution No. ___ ___;H-=-8_1___;0___:1..:..9 ___ as (re) engrossed 

Date: ;;? (, 
Roll Cal l  Vote #: 

Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments 

( (Re) Engrossed) 

D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as fol lows 

House/Senate Amendments on HJ/SJ page(s) 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a 
new committee be appointed 

was p laced on the Seventh order 

of business on the calendar 

Motion Made by: !2¥ GY� J ec Seconded by: 

Vote Count No: -----
House Carrier Senate Carrier ----------- -----------
LC N umber ----------
LC N umber -----------
Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

rVlo � :r � �� �+-­( r t/VVJ 1o/ ... "' GIP' 1)-e.-) 

of amendment 

of engrossment 



2013 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 

Committee:  Appropriations Education and Environment 

B i l l/Resolution No. HB 1 01 9  as (re) engrossed ------------------
Date: 2 {_p 
Rol l  Cal l  Vote #: 

ll-pv l J 
2 

Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments 
D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as fol lows 

House/Senate Amendments on HJ/SJ page(s) 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a 
new committee be appointed 

((Re) Engrossed) was placed on the Seventh order 

of business on  the calendar 

M otion Made by: {2, er · (;y IV" J <2 Seconded by: JZ ef- ft? t: 

Yes No 

Vote Count Yes: J No: Absent: 0 
__ __:::_ __ _ --------- ---------

House Carrier Senate Carrier -------------------- -----------
LC Number -------------------
LC Number -------------------
Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment k �"V L e wf.J �.J c o/r" �  � rv -t_ 

L .  \ •vv'd t � \tl�_ (" c./; � -ttvl . 

of amendment 

of engrossment 



2013 HOUSE CONFE RENCE COMMITTE E  ROLL CALL VOTE S  

Comm ittee: Appropriations Ed ucation and Environment 

Bi l l/Resolution No. ___ H_8_1_0_1 9  ___ as (re) engrossed 

Date: ::2 U 
Roll Call  Vote #: 

Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments 
D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments D SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as fol lows 

House/Senate Amendments on HJ/SJ page(s) 

D U nable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a 
new committee be appointed 

((Re) Engrossed) was placed on the Seventh order 

of business on the calendar 

Motion Made by: J vn . };·y t 'bs- brA; <:/� Seconded by: J'vt, - D ,, t D !1"'-<. J 1 
Yes N o  

Vote Count Yes: ---��--- No: ----- Absent: -----

House Carrier Senate Carrier ---------- -----------

LC N um ber of amendment ----------

LC N um ber ---------- of engrossment 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

J h --hw-1'7 cvMr � J_ 
move l+ )tJ ;_ t; rv;; //i� 



201 3 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 

Committee : Appropriations Education and Environment 

Bi l l/Resolution No. H B  1 0 1 9  as (re) engrossed 
------------------

Date: 

Roll Call Vote #: 

Action Taken 0 HOUSE accede to Senate amendments 

( (Re) Engrossed) 

0 HOUSE accede to Senate amendments and further amend 
0 SENATE recede from Senate amendments 
0 SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as fol lows 

House/Senate Amendments on HJ/SJ page(s) 

0 Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a 
new committee be appointed 

was p laced on the Seventh order 

of business on the calendar 

Motion Made by: 

Vote Count 

House Carrier 

LC N umber 

LC N umber 

___________________ Seconded by: 

Yes No 

Yes : No: Absent: 
--------- ------- ------

Senate Carrier 
------------------- ---------------------

of amendment 
-------------------

-------------------
of engrossment 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 



201 3 HOUSE CONFERE NCE COM MITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 

Committee: Appropriations Education and Environment 

B i l l/Resolution No. ___ H�B_1_;_0_1 9..:._.__ __ as ( re) engrossed 

Date: q'-Q> 9-- #.3 
Roll Call Vote #: 

Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments 

( (Re) Engrossed) 

D HOUSE accede to Senate amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments � SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows 

House/�Amendments on�J page(s) / Y5 Ll -- } Y .5 1  
D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a 

new committee be appointed 

was p laced on the Seventh order 

of business on the calendar 

Motion Made by��Seconded by: 

Vote Count Yes: p 5 
House Carrier �-:z.t;..t � 
LC N umber 

No: Q Absent: ��---
Senate Carrie� � 
_ _:b::...0:::...o_D-=5::;.__ _____ of amendment 

LC Number of engrossment 

Emergency cla,use cadded or deleted ��� � � 
tt;T yt/.d$� } ...L . ; � -?"/ ../ ' i? 
�tatement of pu rpose of amendment t)d.d 9/tj()OO J 'pZ.;� tf � ;r...r �. 
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1 01 9, as reengrossed : Your conference committee (Sens. Krebsbach, G. Lee, 

O'Connell and Reps. Dosch, Monson , Boe) recommends that the SENATE 
RECEDE from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1 454-1 457, adopt 
amendments as fol lows, and place HB 1 0 1 9  on the Seventh order: 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1454-1 457 of the House 
Journal and pages 1 257-1 260 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bi l l  
No. 1 01 9  be amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3,  after "exemption" insert "; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 1 5  through 22 with : 

"Admin istration $2 .484,885 
Accrued leave payments 0 
Natural resources 12 ,768,203 
Recreation 7.489,091 
Total a l l  funds $22.742 , 1 79 
Less estimated income 1 1,641,532 
Total general  fund $1 1 , 1 00,647 
Ful l-time equ ivalent positions 54.00 

Page 2 ,  replace l ines 3 and 4 with : 

" I nternational Peace Garden �773,699 
Total general fund $773,699 

Page 2 ,  replace l ines 9 through 1 1  with : 

"Grand total general fund $ 1 1 ,874,346 
Grand total special funds 1 1,641,532 
Grand total al l  funds $23,5 1 5,878 

Page 2 ,  replace l ines 1 7  through 26 with : 

"Parks capital projects and deferred maintenance 
Parks equipment 
Lewis and C lark interpretive center grant 
Little Missouri state park trai l  leases 
Parks SCORP plan 
Parks strategic plans 
Community grant program 
I nternational Peace Garden capital projects 
Total al l  funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general  fund 

Page 3,  l ine 1 5, replace "$400,000" with "$500,000" 

Page 3,  remove lines 25 through 31  

Page 4 ,  replace l ines 1 and 2 with : 

$1 88,708 
1 8 1 ,577 

8 ,325, 1 22 
(1.403,2 1 6) 
$7,292, 1 91 

359,1 99 
$6, 932,992 

1 .00 

�1.450,000 
$1 .450,000 

$8,382,992 
359,1 99 

$8.742, 1 91 

$5,269,2 1 0  
1 1 6,000 

0 
85,000 
40,000 

0 
0 

267,000 
$5,777,2 1 0  

1,028,000 
$4,749,2 1 0  

$2 ,673,593 
1 81 ,577 

21 ,093,325 
6,085,875 

$30,034,370 
1 2,000,731 

$ 1 8, 033,639 
55.00" 

�2.223,699 
$2,223,699" 

$20,257 ,338 
1 2,000,731 

$32,258,069" 

$3,897, 800 
350,000 

1 ,350,000 
0 
0 

1 00 ,000 
500,000 

1,250,000 
$7,447,800 

1,270,300 
$6, 1 77 ,500" 

"SECTION 7. MARINA PURCHASE - APPRAISAL - EMERGENCY 
COMMISSION APPROVAL. The natural resources l ine item in subd ivision 1 of 
section 1 of this Act includes $387,500 from the general fund and $387,500 from 
other funds for the purchase of a marina. The parks and recreation department must 
obtain an appraisal from a certified appraiser prior to the purchase of the marina. If 
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the appraisal value exceeds $775,000, the department may request emergency 
commission approval to spend an additional $25 ,000 of other funds for the marina. 

SECTION 8. PEMBINA GORGE AREA PROJECT. The natural resources 
l ine item in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act includes $300,000 from the general 
fund which the parks and recreation department may use to rent property in the 
Pembina gorge area for the purpose of providing office space for employees or 
individuals responsible for monitoring or patroll ing the tra i l  systems in the area, 
developing a plan for continued monitoring and patrol l ing of the trail systems, and to 
determine the feasibility of establishing an interpretive center. 

SECTION 9. CONTINGENT FUNDING - INTERNATIONAL PEACE 
GARDEN CAPITAL PROJECTS. The sum of $1 ,250,000 from the general fund 
included in subdivision 2 of section 1 of this Act is for an engineering study and 
repair of the peace tower at the I nternational Peace Garden and to the extent funds 
remain ,  other infrastructure improvements. The funding is contingent upon the 
I nternational Peace Garden raising matching funds on a dollar-for-dollar basis from 
nonstate sources. Up to ten percent of the funds provided from the general fund are 
for the engineering study and emergency repairs and are not subject to the match 
requirement. The parks and recreation department shall accept and review 
engineering proposals and recommendations of the study before committing 
additional funds to the project and shal l assist with bidding and construction 
oversight of any repair work. 

SECTION 1 0. EMERGENCY. The natural resources l ine item in  
subd ivision 1 of  section 1 of  this Act includes $3,730,000, of which $2,930,000 is  
from the general fund and $800,000 is from special funds derived from federal funds 
and other income for various capital projects, and subdivision 2 of section 1 of this 
Act includes $1 25,000 from the general fund for an engineering study of the peace 
tower and emergency repairs at the I nternational Peace Garden ,  which are declared 
to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

House Bill  No. 1 0 1 9 - Summary of Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Executive House Committee Committee Senate Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate 

Parks and Recreation 
Department 

Total all funds $27,962,785 $30,063,381 ($479,011) . 
(663 781i 

$29,584,370 $31 ,436,267 ($1 ,851 ,897) 
Less estimated income 1 1  791 835 12,439,512 1 1  775 731 1 1,791,954 (16,223) 
General fund $16,170,950 $17,623,869 $184,770 $17,808,639 $19,644,313 ($1 ,835,67 4) 

International Peace Garden 
Total all funds $973,699 $973,699 $1,250,000 $2,223,699 $3,473,699 ($1 ,250,000) 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 0 0 0 
General fund $973,699 $973,699 $1,250,000 $2,223,699 $3,473,699 ($1 ,250,000) 

Bill total 
Total all funds $28,936,484 $31,037,080 $770,989 $31,808,069 $34,909,966 ($3, 101 ,897) 
Less estimated income 1 1,791,835 1 2,439,512 (663 781) 1 1  775 731 1 1 791 954 (16,223) 
General fund $17,144,649 $18,597,568 $1 434 770 $20,032,338 $23, 1 18,012 ($3,085,67 4) 

House Bil l  No. 1 01 9 - Parks and Recreation Department - Conference Committee 
Action 

Administration 
Natural resources 

( 1 )  DESK (2) COMMITTEE 

Executive 
Budget 

$2,719,322 
1 9,234,022 

House 
Version 

$2,652,000 
21 ,256,353 

Page 2 

Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

$21 ,593 
(613,028) 

Conference 
Committee 

Version 

$2,673,593 
20,643,325 

Senate 
Version 

$2,720,017 
22,506,409 

Comparison 
to Senate 

($46,424) 
(1 ,863,084) 

h_cfcomrep_78_004 
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Recreation 6,009,441 5,973,451 
Accrued leave payments 181 577 

Total all funds $27,962,785 $30,063,381 
Less estimated income 11,791,835 12,439,512 

General fund $16,170,950 $17,623,869 

FTE 55.00 55.00 
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Insert LC: 1 3.81 48.03005 

1 12,424 6,085,875 6,209,841 (123,966) 
181 577 181 577 

($479,011) $29,584,370 $31 ,436,267 ($1,851,897) . 
(663 781i 11 775 731 11 791 954 {16,223) 

$184,770 $17,808,639 $19,644,313 ($1 ,835,67 4) 

0.00 55.00 55.00 0.00 

Department No. 750 - Parks and Recreation Department - Detail of Conference 
Committee Changes 

Removes Adjusts State 
House Changes Employee Adds Funding 

to Executive Compensation Restores for Military Adds Funding 
Compensation and Benefits Marina Artifact Adds Funding for Community 

Package' Package' Funding' Collection' for Equipment' Grant Program' 

Administration $41 ,260 ($19,667) 
Natural resources 290,386 (138,414) 325,000 10,000 50,000 
Recreation 23,740 (11 ,316) 100,000 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds $355,386 ($169,397) $325,000 $10,000 $50,000 $100,000 
Less estimated income 7 442 {3,723) 162 500 0 0 0 

General fund $347,944 ($165,674) $1 62,500 $10,000 $50,000 $100,000 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Adds Funding 
for Lewis and Removes Adds Funding Total 

Clark Funding for for Pembina Conference 
Interpretive Walhalla Gorge Gorge Area Committee 

Center Grant' Property' Project' Changes 

Administration $21 ,593 
Natural resources 1,350,000 (2,800,000) 300,000 (613,028) 
Recreation 112,424 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds $1 ,350,000 ($2,800,000) $300,000 
Less estimated income 0 {830,000) 0 

($479,011) . 
(663 781i 

General fund $1 ,350,000 ($1 ,970,000) $300,000 $1 84,770 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Changes made by the House to the executive compensation package are removed. 

2 This amendment adjusts the state employee compensation and benefits package as 
follows: 

0.00 

Reduces the performance component from 3 to 5 percent per year to 3 to 5 percent 
for the first year of the biennium and 2 to 4 percent for the second year of the 
biennium. 
Reduces the market component from 2 to 4 percent per year to 1 to 2 percent per 
year for employees below the midpoint of their salary range. 
Reduces funding for retirement contribution increases to provide for a 1 percent 
state and 1 percent employee increase beginning in January 201 4  and no increase 
in January 201 5. 

3 Funding removed by the House for purchase of a marina is partially restored. The 
executive budget and the Senate version included $800,000 for the purchase of the marina. 

4 Funding is added to purchase cabinetry to house a mi l itary artifact collection on display at 
Fort Abraham Lincoln State Park. The artifact collection wil l be donated to the Parks and 
Recreation Department. The Senate version included $42,500 for purchase of the cabinetry 
and col lection. 
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5 Funding is added for one-time equipment purchases of picnic tables and fire rings. The 
Senate version added $75,000 for this purpose. 

6 Funding is added to increase the community grant program from $400,000 included in the 
executive budget recommendation to $500,000. The Senate version included an increase of 
$200,000. 

7 Funding is added for a one-time grant for expansion of the Lewis and Clark Interpretive 
Center. The Senate version included $3, 1 50,000 for this purpose. 

8 Funding added by the House for the purchase and operation of property in the Walhalla 
Gorge and Frost Fire area is removed, the same as the Senate version. 

9 Funding is added to rent property in the Pembina Gorge area for office space. 

Sections are added to provide guidel ines for the Pembina Gorge area project and an 
emergency clause for various capital projects. 

House Bill  No. 1019 - International Peace Garden - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Executive House Committee Committee Senate Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate 

International Peace Garden $973,699 $973,699 $1 250 000 $2,223,699 $3,473,699 ($1,250,000) 

Total all funds $973,699 $973,699 $1,250,000 $2,223,699 $3,473,699 ($1 ,250,000) 
Less estimated income 0 0 0 0 0 0 

General fund $973,699 $973,699 $1,250,000 $2,223,699 $3,473,699 ($1 ,250,000) 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department No. 751 - International Peace Garden - Detail of Conference Committee 
Changes 

Adds Funding 
for Peace 

Garden Capital 
Projects' 

International Peace Garden $1,250,000 

Total all funds $1,250,000 
Less estimated income 0 

General fund $1 ,250,000 

FTE 0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

$1 250 000 

$1 ,250,000 
0 

$1 ,250,000 

0.00 

1 Funding is added for capital projects at the I nternational Peace Garden. The Senate 
version included $2.5 mil l ion for this purpose. 

A section is added requ iring matching funds for capital projects of the International Peace 
Garden. 

Reengrossed HB 1 01 9  was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 

0.00 
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2013 TESTIMONY 
HB 1019 



HB 1 0 1 9 :  NORTH DAKOTA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
APPROPRIATION BILL 

House Appropriations, ..Education and Environment Division 
Sakakawea Room 
Tuesday, January 1 5, 20 1 3  

Chairman Skarphol and members of  the Committee, i t  i s  my honor as Director ofNorth Dakota 
Parks and Recreation Department to present testimony on the agency's  appropriation bill . I will 
take a few minutes to provide a general overview of the state parks. 

North Dakota State Parks are among the special places enjoyed by citizens and visitors to our 
state. For almost 50 years the North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department has managed the · 
natural, historic, cultural and recreational resources of the park areas for the enjoyment and 
benefit of all our visitors. Whether the visitors to the parks and recreation come for camping, 
fishing, hiking, biking, horseback riding, historical or interpretive programs, snowmobiling or 
A TYing, the staff of our Department works to provide the best experience possible. These 
natural treasures and activities provided by the Department would not be possible without the 
strong commitment of the Legislative Assembly. I can speak on behalf of many of our long time 
campers and visitors, as well as our staff, in thanking the Legislative Assembly for that ongoing 
support. 

20 1 1 and 20 1 2  provided opportunities and challenges for the parks. 

The floods and rising waters of 201 1 had dramatic impacts on almost every park. The continued 
high water levels at Devils Lake as well as flooding of the Missouri, Little Missouri and 
Sheyenne Rivers reduced visitation and camping nights throughout the 20 1 1 season. I am 
pleased to state that although several parks were closed to camping in the 201 1 season, every 
park was up and running at full capacity by early summer. Then the summer of20 1 2  brought 
drier than normal conditions to several parks, but all parks remained open with limited fire 
restrictions. 

Even with these challenges the parks experienced over a million visitors and set an �ll-time 
camper nights record in 20 1 2. Outdoor enthusiasts continue to demonstrate their sl\pport for the 
parks and recreation areas by their visits. It was a busy two years for the Departmeq�. The 
Division managers will provide more details on these topics. 

The Department' s  business manager is unable to be here today to present revenue �nformation 
for 20 1 1 -20 1 3 .  I will present the general information and will be happy to provide any 
additional information as requested at the conclusion of the department testimony. 

From 2009-20 1 1 biennium revenue of $3 ,942, 1 00 to anticipated revenues of over $4 million in 
the 20 1 1 -20 1 3  biennium these figures are a great indication of the continued support and 
growing support of the parks. The Department is projecting revenues in the 201 3-20 1 5  biennium 
to continue in an upward trend of $4,545,000. 



The 20 1 1 -20 1 3  budgets included an appropriation of $9,000 for promotional efforts. The 
Department plans to continue this effort. A number of printed promotional and informational 
pieces are produced by the Department. The Department also participates in 4-5 in-state sport 
shows depending on the show schedules. In 20 1 2  North Dakota Parks and Recreation hosted a 
booth at the North Dakota State Fair with encouraging visitation and interest. Plans are to 
continue that effort in 20 1 3 .  

I wish to address the audit findings from the Department' s  audit conducted i n  201 1 .  

State Park Revenue Control Weakness (Finding 1 1 - 1 )  
Recommendation: " We recommend the Parks & Recreation Department incorporate policies 
and procedures to conduct periodic on-site or desk reviews of supporting documentation for 
revenue collected at state parks to ensure controls at the state parks are in place and operating 
effectively. " 

Parks and Recreation Department Response: 
The Department agrees with the finding and a schedule is being developed to conduct visits at 
several parks in the 20 1 3  season to conduct in park revenue reviews. Consideration needs to be 
given to staff time and budget to conduct these reviews. 

State Park Revenue Control Weakness (Finding 1 1 -2) 
Recommendation: " We recommend the Parks and Recreation Department comply with State 
Procurement guidelines " 

Parks and Recreation Department Response: 
The Department agrees with the finding and has already assigned State Procurement training to 
all staff for the various levels of procurement authority. 

Noncompliance with State Park Fund Revenues (Finding 1 1-3) 
Recommendation: " We recommend the Parks and Recreation Department deposit all revenues 
from rentals into the state park fund in accordance with North Dakota Century Code section 55-
08-0 7"  

Parks and Recreation Department Response: 
The Department agrees with the finding and wil l  begin coding all rental revenue into the state 
park operating fund beginning January 20 1 3 .  For the 201 1 -20 1 3  biennium rental revenue amount 
was $ 1 7,279. 1 9, as of December 3 1 5\ 20 12. 

The Department continues to work with Legislative Council and HRMS in developing plans for 
the equity and compression pay issues presented with the adoption of the Hay Group plan. 
$672,790 of which $659,333  will come from general fund. 

Mr. Chairman, I now ask each of our 3 division managers to provide a status report of their 
20 1 1 -20 1 3  budgets as well as a review of the 20 1 3-20 1 5  budget recommendations. I would like 



to introduce Brad Pozarnsky, Department's Field Manager, to cover the Park Operations 
Division. 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Appropriations Committee, my name is Brad Pozarnsky, 
Field Manager for the ND Parks and Recreation Department. I would like to review the Park 
Operations Division progress for the current Biennium and address budget requests for the 20 1 3-
20 1 5  Biennium: 

In review, I am proud to report we achieved record visitation and camper nights for the 20 1 2  
season. Visitation exceeded one million visitors; with camper nights exceeding 67,000 and cabin 
nights over 3 ,200. Reservations for campsites, cabins, meeting facilities and shelters were also at 
an all-time high for 20 12 .  

State Park special events are a major attraction for visitors. We host over 1 00 special events 
annual ly drawing approximately 250,000 participants. 

Six State Parks were affected by 20 1 1  floods. Fort Abraham Lincoln, Sully Creek and Little 
Missouri State Parks were most severely impacted with closures that required extensive 
repairs. All parks recovered and were in full operation by June of 20 1 2. 

We purchased 2 Skid Steers as one-time equipment purchases; one through general funds and the 
other through park revenues. 

Our seasonal salary starting wage averages between $9 and 1 0  dollars per hour. We did receive 
assistance for seasonal salaries in the last session, however, we continue to fall behind other 
agencies and it's impacting our ability to hire seasonal staff. In addition, the energy boom has 
severely impacted our pool of potential employees in western North Dakota. 

We secured trail leases at Little Missouri State Park for the next 5 years through a general fund 
appropriation. The department owns approximately 1 ,500 acres of land and leases 4,000 plus 
acres. These land leases allow us to provide an extensive trail system at the park. 

We currently operate two state park marinas on Lake Sakakawea. High water levels increased 
public demand for these facilities in 20 1 1 and 20 1 2. We operate 40 slip rentals at Lewis & Clark 
and 1 05 slips at Fort Stevenson State Park. 

Transitioning to the 2013-201 5  Park Operations Budget Request: 

State Parks must replace equipment on a regular schedule to reduce the O&M dollars spent on 
aging repairs. Cyclic equipment replacement also increases trade-in values to further reduce 
expenses. One-time purchases for the 20 1 3 -20 1 5  Biennium includes a wood chipper, industrial 
tractor replacements, cross-country ski trail groomers and a crack seal machine. 

These purchases will allow us to save on rental rates, reduce repairs and the ability to rotate 
equipment between parks for more timely repairs. 



• The wood chipper serves as both a cost savings and efficiency measure. Multiple state parks pay 
rental fees for this equipment on an annual basis. A one-time purchase allows us to establish a 
shared equipment rotation across the park system. 

• Two tractors have reached their 20-year old life expectancy. Following the standard replacement 
schedule will drastically reduce future repair expenses. 

• Groomed cross-country ski trails are a popular winter activity in 7 of our state parks. Two 
groomers have been stretched to a 30 year-old use period and are well  overdue in the 
replacement cycle. 

• And finally, a crack seal machine will allow our staff to complete smaller crack seal maintenance 
requirements. We are finding it difficult to secure bids on the smaller cyclic repairs and this 
purchase will allow us to rotate equipment between the parks for more timely repairs. 

Our budget recommends we continue the long standing Game & Fish Department maintenance 
grant in the amount of $ 1 22,000. 

We have several long-term temporary Administrative Assistants working throughout the state 
park system and are requesting approval to convert one of them to a FTE. The increase in visitor 
use has impacted all areas of park operations and it is becoming difficult for our field staff to 
perform their duties without full-time administrative support staff. Approval of this FTE will 
assist us to maintain regular office hours and improve overall customer service for our park 
visitors. 

Approximately 1 50 summer seasonal positions comprise the park operation's salary budget. 
Seasonal hourly wages and bonuses offered by similar agencies across the state put our 
department at a disadvantage. Approval of a $ 1  per hour increase per year request will allow us 
to compete with other N.D. job markets. 

This concludes my remarks for the Park Operations Division. I will introduce Jesse Hanson of 
the Planning & Natural Resource division to provide his presentation. 

Mr. Chairman and committee members; my name is Jesse Hanson. I manage the Planning and 
Natural Resources Division of the ND Parks and Recreation Department. A public investment in 
facilities and infrastructure of over $80 million in 1 6  state parks is managed by the Department. 
State park roads, utility services, buildings, trails, campgrounds and marinas are maintained at a 
high standard through continual assessment of conditions and prioritization of renovation and 
repair proj ects. Appropriations from the legislative body and other funding sources are critical to 
maintaining this high quality facility and infrastructure investment 

In this testimony, I will provide a brief overview of the current 201 1 - 1 3  biennium capital and 
extraordinary repair work completed along with flood recovery and a very successful energy 
conservation grant received by NDPRD, followed by a presentation of the 20 1 3-20 1 5  capital and 
extraordinary budget request. 



Flood fighting and facility/infrastructure recovery dominated the 201 1 - 20 1 2  summers. 
Working with FEMA and state park staff, the Planning Division identified approximately 
$600,000 in total damage and flood fighting costs across 6 state parks. After FEMA 
reimbursements, the agency will be responsible for $250,000 for our share of recovery costs. 
These final costs will come out of the Department revenues. 

ND Parks and Recreation's 1 1 - 1 3  biennium capital budget is $4.3 million. $2.5 million general 
fund dollars were appropriated through the agency capital budget for the majority of the local 
cost share to raise the access road to Graham's Island and Graham's  Island State Park on Devils 
Lake. Additional local match of $400,000 was contributed by the ND Game and Fish Dept. and 
$50,000 each from Benson County and the City of Devils Lake's  tourism fund. As a prelude to 
this project an economic impact study completed by the Upper Great Plains Transportation 
Institute at NDSU economic model calculated a net positive impact of $85 million over a 20 year 
period would be realized in the Devils Lake region if the access road to Graham's  island was 
maintained. 

20 1 1 - 1 3  capital projects also include the addition of a 45 site, full service campground at 
Graham's  Island scheduled for opening in 20 1 3 ,  renovation of the campground electrical service 
and road renovations at Lewis Clark, purchase of the 60 slip dock, ramp and gangway system 
and installation of the electrical service at the Garrison Bay marina in Fort Stevenson State Park 
and the construction of the public shower house at Little Missouri State Park. All of these 
projects were completed and opened to the public in 20 1 2. Additionally, appropriations for cost 
share for multi - use trail development in 3 state parks along with fiber optic communication line 
installation at Fort Lincoln, Turtle River and Lake Metigoshe State Parks. 

The Department received a $30,000 energy conservation grant from the ND Commerce 
Department to install 1 6  "tankless" water heaters in 8 campground comfort stations. In the first 
season of operation, propane costs in these buildings were reduced from 35% to over 40% for the 
first season of operation. Total cost savings in propane use in these 8 buildings was over $7,000 
in one year of operation. 

The Department' s  extraordinary repair budget allocation in 20 1 1 - 1 3  of $753,4 1 6  is providing 
funding for park repairs in 28 projects. The majority of the repairs are structural maintenance and 
renovations to facilities. 

Additionally, the Department received revenue from 900 acres of mineral ownership in 
McKenzie and Mountrail counties in mid-20 1 1 .  The mineral lease funds have been assigned to 
legislatively approved projects, cyclic maintenance and emergency flood repair projects in the 
current biennium and the 20 1 3 -20 1 5  budget. 

The division's natural resources program is responsible for management of 1 5,000 acres of 
Department owned land, noxious weed control, native grass restoration, tree risk management 
and restoration. In the current biennium the natural resource program oversaw the restoration of 
nearly 1 00 acres of native and non - native grasses in flood damaged park lands along with over 
1 00 acres of native grass and forb seeding in several state parks. Noxious weed inventory and 
control is a major obligation of the natural resource program. Each summer, noxious weed 



infestations are identified and sprayed or biologically controlled on all lands owned or managed 
by the Department. Since 2005 the intensive weed control efforts has resulted in a decline of 
430 acres of land with noxious weed infestation. An ongoing tree risk assessment, removal and 
replanting is the responsibil ity of the natural resource program, assuring safe recreational 
experiences for the public. Over 4,000 tree and shrubs were planted across the park system in 
20 1 2. 

Last, I will provide a summary of the 201 3-20 1 5  capital and extra ordinary repair budget. The 
capital budget request for the upcoming biennium is $3.7 million of which $2.93 million is 
general funds, $200,000 is federal grant funds, $550,000 will be from the Department revenue 
budget and $50,000 is committed by the North East North Dakota Heritage Association. Projects 
include $928,000 budgeted for the major repair and chip seal of 3 .2 miles of interior roads and 
parking lots at Lake Metigoshe State Park. The roads and parking areas were paved in the late 
1 960's and are in need of significant renovation work. Two building projects; a comfort station 
at Lake Sakakawea State Park and a visitor contact and administrative office building at Fort 
Stevenson State Park are requested. Construction of a 30 site campground addition at Lewis and 
Clark State Park is needed to accommodate the swelling population in western North Dakota. 
The Department' s  request includes purchase of marina slip docks, gangway ramps and provide 
electrical/water service in the marina at Lake Sakakawea State Park. One half of the dock 
purchase request is general fund and the other half will be park revenues. Finally, a request to 
use park revenues to add to the NE North Dakota Heritage Association's fund raising 
commitment for design, development and installation of a natural heritage exhibit in the 
Icelandic State Park Heritage Center. 

The Extraordinary Repair base budget for the Department is $876,000 for 20 1 3- 1 5 .  An 
additional $ 1 82,800 authority has been added to the extraordinary repair budget from the park 
revenue fund for one time repair projects 

The agency budget request also includes $ 1 00,000 for master planning efforts in 2 park areas 
along with funding for planning the Department' s  50th year anniversary in 20 1 5 . 

This concludes my testimony for the capital and extraordinary repairs and flood information 
updates. I will introduce Arik Spencer of the Recreation Division to provide his presentation. 

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, my name is Arik Spencer, Recreation Division 
Manager for the North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department (NDPRD). The Recreation 
Division is the unit ofNDPRD that primarily manages Department efforts outside of the state 
park system. These efforts include administration of the Snowmobile Program, Off-Highway 
Vehicle (OHV) Program and Scenic Byway Program. In addition, the Recreation Division 
manages several outdoor recreation grant programs which aid communities in developing new 
parks, playgrounds and trai ls. 

As a review of the 201 1 -20 1 3  biennium, there are several key areas I would like to highlight. 



State Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 

The first is the completion of the 20 1 3-20 1 7  State Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan or 
SCORP. The purpose of the SCORP is to measure outdoor recreation supply and demand and set 
regional grant funding priorities for the next five years. Completion of the SCORP also 
maintains North Dakota's eligibility for federal outdoor recreation grant funding from the 
National Park Service and Federal Highway Administration. Key findings of the study include: 

• More than one out of every two North Dakota households (55 percent) feel outdoor 
recreation is very important and 93 percent feel it is important. 

• Overall, 57 percent of outdoor recreation providers report demand for facilities and 
activities exceeds supply for their users. 

• Unmet funding needs reported by ND outdoor recreation providers are in excess of 
$ 1 04,000,000 over the next five years. 

Based upon the surveys of North Dakota households and outdoor recreation providers, statewide 
primary priorities included non-motorized trails, campgrounds and playgrounds/picnic areas. 
Secondary priorities include pools and beaches along with sports courts and fields. Tertiary 
priorities were winter sports facilities and motorized trails. 

Funding for the SCORP came from a general fund appropriation last session, which matched 
funding provided by the National Park Service. The SCORP will be made available this month 
at the North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department website. 

Grant Programs 

NDPRD offers two main outdoor recreation grants, both of which are federally funded. The 
Land and Water Conservation Fund reimburses half the cost of facility development, such as 
pools and campgrounds, while the Recreational Trail Program specifically funds 80% of 
motorized and non-motorized recreational trails projects. These two programs resulted in nearly 
$3 million, funding 29 projects in communities across the state. Federal grant funding is 
essentially the same as the previous biennium and is anticipated at the same rate for the 20 1 3 -
20 1 5  biennium. 

Trail Programs 

As part of the Department' s  Off-Highway Vehicle Program (OHV), The Pembina Gorge State 
Recreation Area celebrated its grand opening this past June. The goal of this project has been to 
develop an OHV trail in the Pembina Gorge, approximately 1 2  miles north east of Walhalla. The 
recreation area features more than 20 miles of trail with more miles planned for 20 1 3  and 20 1 4. 
Initial public reception to the trail has been strong with average visitation of nearly 1 ,000 OHV s 
per month. Primary trail users are from North Dakota, Canada and Minnesota. Funding for this 
project has been primarily through the OHV Trail Fund and federal outdoor recreation grants as 
well as a general fund appropriation several sessions ago. 



The Snowmobile Trail Program saw a turbulent 20 1 1 -20 1 3  biennium with an outstanding 20 1 1  
trail season with all 2,800 miles of trail open to the public, followed by a unusually mild 20 1 2  
season i n  which only a few o f  our trails were able to open, and only for a few weeks. This 
resulted in a $75,000 loss in registration revenue. Looking to this season, weather conditions 
have been good and registration numbers are rebounding with many trail systems opening. 

The Department offers youth safety certification courses and outreach for both OHVs and 
Snowmobiles. Course numbers have held even this biennium with approximately 1 ,000 children, 
1 2  and up becoming certified operators with safety outreach efforts reaching approximately 
4,500 more riders. 

20 1 3-20 1 5  Budget Requests: 

Recreation Division related budget requests for the 201 3-20 1 5  biennium include $400,000 for 
the Community Outdoor Recreation Grant Program. This program was first funded by the 2009 
Legislative Assembly, to offer matching grants to local outdoor recreation providers. The 
Community Grant Program funds outdoor recreation facility construction, improvement and 
renovation in addition to recreation leadership grants for communities with a population of 
1 3 ,000 or less. A 20 1 2  NDPRD survey of outdoor recreation providers supports this request as 
over $ 1 04,000,000 in unmet needs is anticipated over the next five years. We are also requesting 
an amendment related to this request which will allow carry over authority to the 20 1 5-20 1 7  
biennium. The need for this amendment is because it is a reimbursement based grant program 
and project sponsors must complete a project before funds can be reimbursed. 

In addition, we are requesting funding of $62,500 to establish a Seasonal Trail Crew. The 
seasonal trail crew is needed due to the 60 miles of new trail NDPRD developed over the past 1 0  
years. This crew will be responsible for trail building and repair throughout the state park system 
and in select state forests through a 20 1 0  trail management agreement with the State Forester. 
The seasonal trail crew funding request includes three, six month crew members in each year of 
the 20 1 3-20 1 5 , in addition to travel and equipment expenses. 

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my remarks and I would be happy to answer any questions the 
committee may have. 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1019 

Page 2, after l ine 30, insert: 

"SECTION 5. EXEMPTION. Up to $400,000 of the recreation l ine item contained in 
subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act is not subject to the provisions of section 54-44.1-11. Any 
unexpended funds from this appropriation may be expended during the biennium beginning Ju ly 1, 
2015, and ending June 30, 2017, for the purposes provided in section 55-08-14.1." 
Renumber accordingly 





















Adininistrative Division 

2011-2013 Review 
Revenue REVE N U E  COM PARISON 

NDPRD is at 8g% of 
our goal with 75% of 

the biennium 
completed. 

$5,000,000 
$4,500,000 
$4,000,000 
$3,500,000 
$3,000,000 
$2,500,000 
$2,000,000 
$1,500,000 
$1,000,000 

$500,000 
$-

09-11 Revenue 

$3,942,100 

201 1-13 Projected 
Revenue 

$4,048,000 

2011-13 C urrent 
Revenue 

(6 Months 
Remaining) 

$3,602,858 

2013-15 Projected 
Revenue 

$4,545,000 





Adininistrative Division 
2011-2013 Review 
Marl<eting 

Bismarck Tribune Sports Show 

North Dakota State Fair 



Ad�ninistrative Division 
2011-2013 Review 
Audit Recommendations 

State Park Revenue Control Weakness (Finding 11-1) 
Recommendation: "We recommend the Parks & Recreation Department incorporate policies and 

procedures to conduct periodic on-site or desk reviews of supporting documentation for revenue 

collected at state parks to ensure controls at the state parks are in place and operating effectively." 

State Park Revenue Control Weakness (Finding 11-2) 
Recommendation: "We recommend the Parks and Recreation Department comply with State 

Procurement guidelines" 

Noncompliance With State Park Fund Revenues (Finding 11-3) 
Recommendation : "We recommend the Parks and Recreation Department deposit all revenues from 

rentals into the state park fund in accordance with North Dakota Century Code section 55-08-07" 



Adininistrative Division 
NDPRD Quartile Distribution 
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Pari< Operations Division 

2011-2013 Review 
Visitation 

1,020,000 

1,000,000 

980,000 

960,000 
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900,000 

880,000 

860,000 

STATE PARKS VISITATION 

COMPARISON 

Visitation 2011 Visitation 2012 

67,500 66,000 64,500 63,000 
g&5� 5�500 5 1.000 55:500 54,000 52,500 5 1,000 49,500 4�000 4o,500 45,000 43,500 42,000 40,500 39,000 37,500 36,000 34,500 33,000 31,500 30,000 28,500 27,000 25,500 24,000 22;500 2 1,000 19,500 18,000 16,500 15,000 13,500 12,000 10,500 9,000 7,500 6,000 4,500 3 000 (500 0 

TYPE OF CAMPING VISITATION 

• camper Nights 201 1  • camper Nights 2012 Cabin Nights 2011 • cabin Nights 2012 



Pari< Operations Division 
2011-2013 Review 
Events 

Icelandic State Park 

1oo+ Annual Special Events 
25o,ooo participants 

Fort Ransom State Park 

Cross Ranch State Park 



Pari< Operations Division 
2011-2013 Review 
2011 Flood Impacts 

Ft. Abraham 
Lincoln State Park 
Campground g/n 

);> SIX STATE PARKS IMPACTED 
);> Fort Abraham Lincoln, Sully Creek, Little Missouri state parks 

most severely impacted. 
);> All parks were recovered and in full operation by June 2012 



Pari< Operations Division 
2011-2013 Review 
One-time equipment purchase 

Purchased 2 Skid Steers. 
One purchased with 

general fund dollars and 
the other with park 

revenues. 
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Pari< Operations Division 

2011-2013 Review 
Marinas at Lewis & Clarl< and 
Fort Stevenson State Parl<s 

Fort Stevenson State Park 

Lewis & Clark State Park 
.-------- �-�--�____.., 



Pari< Operations Division 

2013-2015 Budget Request 
One-time Equipment Purchase 
$300,000 - Department Revenues 

);o- Wood chipper 

);o- Tractors ( 2) 

);o- Cross Country Ski Groomers (2) 

);o- Crack Seal Machine 



Pari< Operations Division 

2013-2015 Budget Request 
Boat Ramp Maintenance 

Continuation 
of $122,ooo 
Game & Fish 
Department 
grant. 



Pari< Operations Division 
2013-2015 Budget Request 
Administrative Assistant FTE 
Seasonal Salaries 



Planning and Natural Resources Division 
2011-2013 Review 

Over $8o million in facilities and infrastructure investment in 
North Dakota state parks. 



Planning and Natural Resources Division 

2011-2013 Review 
Flood Recovery 2011-2012 

Disaster 

Disaster 

Recovery 
Recovery 



Planning and Natural Resources Division 
2011-2013 Review 

G ISP Island Road completed 

FSSP docks electrical 

CAPITAL BUDGET 

PROJECTS (9 projects) 
• Budget $4,299,2 1 0.00 
• Projects and budget 90 percent 

completed 

Garrison Bay Dock Purchase 
MAJOR ACCOMPLISHMENTS: 

• GRAHAMS ISLAND ROAD RAISE 

• LEWIS AND CLARK ROAD REP AlRS 

• LEWIS AND CLARK CAMPGROUND E LECTRICAL UPGRADE 
GARRISON BAY DOCK PURCHASE AND E LECTRIC SERVICE 

• LITTLE MISSOURI SHOWER HOUSE 

• GRAHAM'S ISLAND CAMPGROUND DEVELOPMENT MULTI-USE 
TRAIL DEVELOPMENT. 

• TELECOMMUNICATIONS - LMSP, TRSP, FALSP 



Planning and Natural Resources Division 

Energy Efficiency Grant from 
Dept. of Commerce $3o,ooo 

Installed 16 
tankless water 
heaters in 8 
shower houses 

35-40% decrease 
1n propane use 

Savings $7000 
in the first 
year of 
operations 



Planning and Natural Resources Division 

2011-2013 Review 

201 1- 1 3  EXTRAORDINARY REPAIRS: 

• $753 ,4 1 6  budget I 28 projects approved 
• 1 8  Projects completed with 50% of 

overall budget allocated at this time. 
• Expect to complete nearly all projects by 

7/1 120 1 3 .  



Planning and Natural Resources Division 

2011-2013 Review 
Native and Non-native 
Grass Seeding 

\ 

Prairie Restoration-seeding, 
Maintenance 8 Monitoring 

over 100 acres 

%011-201%: 

Gl"ass Restol"ation aftel" the iloods oi 
%011 • almost 100 acl"es 

Fort Abl"aham Uncoln, Sully Cl"eek 
and Cl"oss Ranch State Pal"ks 



Planning and Natural Resources Division 

2011-2013 Review 
Noxious Weed Control 

Jnvenuey 8 Mapplng 
&;tfeOftiUI of OVet" 4:j0 



Planning and Natural Resources Division 

2011-2013 Review 
Tree Risl< Assessment 
and Tree Planting 

Over 4,ooo Trees 8 Shrubs 
Planted, System-wide 



Planning and Natural Resources Division 

2013-2015 Budget Request 

CAPITAL BUDGET: 

);;> 6 projects in the request $3 .7  million 

);;> $2.93 mill ion in general fund 

);;> $550,000 park funds 

);;> $200,000 federal funds 

);;> $50,000 "other" funds 

);;> $2.93 mill ion of budget designated 

as "One Time" 

EXTRAORDINARY REPAIRS: 

);;> $875,094 General Fund base budget 

);;> $ 1 82,800 additional park fund allocation for 

"One Time" repairs 

);;> 48 total projects included in this budget l ine 

STRATEGIC MASTER PLANS FOR DEPARTMENT 

);;> $ 1 00,000 budget request 

);;> Complete master plan for Fort Lincoln, 

Fort Ransom, Pembina Gorge, 

);;> NDPRD 50 year anniversary. 

._.., 
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Recreation Division 
2011-2013 Review 
Statewide Comprehensive 
Outdoor Recreation Plan 

);;> More than half of ND households (5 5 percent) 

feel outdoor recreation is very important and 93 
percent feel it is important. 

);;> Overall ,  5 7  percent of outdoor recreation 

providers report demand for facilities and 

activities exceeds supply for their users . 

);;> U nmet funding needs reported by ND Outdoor 

recreation providers are in excess of 

$ 1 04,000,000 over the next five years. 



Recreation Division 
2011-2013 Review 
Statewide Comprehensive 
Outdoor Recreation Plan 

PRIMARY NEEDS 
• Non-Motorized Trails 

• Campgrounds 

• Playgrounds/Picnic Areas/Open Space Parks 

SECONDARY NEEDS TERTIARY NEEDS 
• Pools!Beaches!W'ater Access • Winter Sports Facilities 

• Sports Courts/Fields • Motorized Trails 



Pari< Operations Division 
2011-2013 Review 
Community Assistance 

);;> During the 11-13 Biennium, NDPRD's community assistance efforts 
will have resulted in nearly 3 million dollars funding 29 trail and 
outdoor recreation projects across the state. 

);;> Since 1965 NDPRD has funded over 1500 trail and outdoor recreation 
projects, totaling over $45,ooo,ooo. 



Recreation Division 

2011-2013 Review 
Off-Highway Vehicle Program 

Pembina Gorge 
Grand opening of the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area. 







Recreation Division 
2013-2015 Budget Request 
Community Recreation Grant 

�--
I "'"': 

"' 
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Executive budget recommendation $4oo,ooo 



Recreation Division 
2013-2015 Budget Request 
Seasonal Trail Crew 

Executive budget recommendation $62,500 
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Play in our backyard 

The North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department invites you to 
discover the unique beauty and history of North Dakota by visiting its 
state parks, recreation areas and trails. These areas play an important role 
in preserving the state's history and the unique natural features defining 

North Dakota's landscape and heritage. 
The history of the state 

is largely that of the people 
who inhabited it, and how 
their natural environment 
shaped them. Glimpses into 
the lives of those people-the 
Native Americans, the trap­
pers, traders and explorers, 
and the homesteaders and 
ranchers--can be found in 
many of North Dakota's state 
parks. This guide tells you 
about state parks that preserve 
priceless Native American 
sites, areas visited by the Lewis 
and Clark Expedition, military 
forts, and ethnic settlements. 

Other parks allow you to 
experience North Dakota's 
landscape and wildlife. Here 
you will find exciting recre­
ational opportunities along 

our lakes and rivers, and unex­
pected wooded valleys, prairie vistas and rugged Badlands. 

Whether you are a returning visitor or new to the state . . .  take the time to explore 
North Dakota's state parks. The parks are open all year round for your enjoyment! 

North Dakota State Parks Guide 
North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department 

1 600 East Century Avenue, Suite 3, Bismarck, ND 58503, ph. 701 -328-5357 
E-mail-parkrec@nd.gov Web Site-www.parkrec.nd.gov 

The North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department's facilities, programs and em­

ployment opportunities are open to all, regardless of age, sex, race, color, disability, 
religion, national origin or political affiliation. Contact us if you need an accommo­
dation for a disability, or for an alternate format of this publication, at 701 -328-5357 

or Relay North Dakota TIY Service 800-366-6888. 
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General I nformation 
Entrance and camping fees 

All North Dakota state parks that are 
developed and maintained charge entrance 
and user fees year-round, based on the 
level of services available. In addition, 
user fees may be charged for other special 
services, facilities or activities. 

Fees must be paid upon entering the 
park either to a park ranger or by using the 
park self-registration system. 

Reservations 
Online campsite and cabins reserva­

tions at North Dakota's state parks can 
now be made online or through the call 
center, toll free, at 800-807-4723. Check 
the North Dakota Parks and Recreation 
website at, www.parkrec.nd.gov, for 
more information. 

Interpretive programs 
and special events 

On weekends throughout the sum­
mer, most state parks host interpretive 
programs that are fun for the whole family. 
These programs highlight historic, natural 
or recreational features within the parks. 
In addition, state parks host a variety of 
special events that include kite festivals, 
fishing tournaments as well as the ever 
popular Christmas and Halloween themed 
weekends. For a complete schedule of 
events, contact the state park or check the 
North Dakota Parks and Recreation De­
partment website at www.parkrec.nd.gov. 

Cabins/yurts & group facil ities 
Ten state parks have cabins available 

for rent Camping cabins (no interior bath­
rooms or cooking facilities) can be found 
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at Beaver Lake, Fort Abraham Lincoln, 
Fort Stevenson, Grahams Island, Icelan­
dic, Lake Sakakawea and Lewis and Clark. 
Primitive log cabins are available year­
round at Cross Ranch, while Lake Meti­
goshe has family-style cabins with kitch­
enettes and bathrooms. Turtle River has 
12 duplex sleeping cabin units equipped 
with bathrooms and bunk beds that can 
be rented individually or by groups, along 
with a kitchen and dining hall. Group 
facilities at Lake Metigoshe include two 
dorms that sleep a total of 1 20, kitchen 
and dining hall. 

General rules 
+ Campsite and cabin occupancy limited to no 
more than 14 days in a 30-day period. 
+ Must be 18 years of age or older to rent park 
campsites and facilities. 
+ Fires must be contained in designated fire 
rings and attended by an adult at all times. 
+ Campfires may be prohibited based on 
rangeland fire dangers. 
+No pets allowed inside cabins or indoor 
facilities. 
+ Pets must be kept on a leash and attended at 
all times. 
+ Pet waste must be bagged and disposed of in 
an appropriate manner. 
+ o smoking in park facilities. 
+No game or fish cleaning in or around cabins 
or group facilities. 
+ Contact park for restrictions on alcohol use 
and insurance requirements for rental of group 
facilities or shelters. 
+ Use of fireworks prohibited. 
+ Metal detecting on state property is not al­
lowed. 
+ Firearms must be unloaded and stored in a 
gun case. Discharge of any weapon or projec­
tile within a state park is not permitted. 
+Additional info about facility use policies is 
available either online or at the park. 



Beaver Lake State Park 

Located on the west shore o f  Beaver Lake in south central North 
Dakota, Beaver Lake State Park provides a relaxing get-away for those 
wanting to get back to nature. 

The gendy rolling prairie 
provides scenic views for 
leisurely walks. In the sum­
mer, the lake attracts visitors 
for boating, canoeing, water 
skiing and fishing. 

Park guests find plenty 
to occupy their time, wheth­
er it's studying the area's 
fascinating history; discov­
ering the plentiful natural 
resource; taking advantage 
of refreshing water sports; 
hiking; mountain biking; 
fishing; or just relaxing in 
the shade of an American 
elm. 

Nearby Attractions: Slade and Long Lake National Wildlife Refuges • 
Whitestone Battlefield State 
Historic Site • Golfing. 

Facilities: 270 acres • 
Camping • Electrical Hook­
ups • Campsite Reservations 
• Showers and Flush Toilets 
• Sewage Dump Station • 
Picnic Shelters • Boat Ramp 
• S"vim Beach • Camping 
Cabins • Mountain Biking. 

Location: Seventeen 
miles southeast of Napo­
leon-3850 70th Street SE, 
Wishek ND 58495, ph. 
701 -452-2752, email blsp@ 
nd.gov. 



Cross Ranch State Park 

Cross Ranch State Park i s  located along some o f  the last free-flowing and 
undeveloped stretches of the Missouri River. 

A boat ramp and canoe and kayak rentals are available for those wish­
ing to explore this scenic segment of the river, while anglers will find walleye, 
trout, catfish, salmon, pike and bass in its waters. 

An extensive trail system can 
be explored either on foot or on 
cross-country skis during the winter 
months. The trails allow access to 
a 5,000-acre nature preserve with 
mixed grass prairie, river bottom 
forests and woody draws. Campers 
can use either the park's primitive 
campground or hike to their camp­
ing spot in a back country area. 

The park is a favorite of area musicians and hosts the annual Missouri River 
Bluegrass Festival, a musical extravaganza drawing Bluegrass musicians from 
around the country. 

While Cross Ranch State Park provides only primitive camp sites, the nearby 
Sanger campground has electrical sites and provides boat access to the Missouri. 

Nearby Attractions: Cross Ranch Nature Preserve • Fort Mandan and 
Lewis and Clark Interpretive 
Center • Knife River Indian 
Villages National Historic Site 
• Coal Mine and Power Plant 
Tours • Fort Clark State His­
toric Site. 

Facilities: 589 acres • 
Camping • Electrical Hookups 
(Sanger only) • Campsite Res­
ervations • Showers • Sewage 
Dump Station • Hiking and 

Cross Country Ski Trails • Cross Country Ski/Snowshoe Rentals • Boat Ramp • 
Canoe/Kayak Access and Rentals • Fishing • Year-round Cabins/Yurts • Natu­
ralist and Year-round Outdoor Learning Center Programming • Visitor Center. 

Location: 1 2  miles southeast of Hensler-1 403 River Road, Center, ND 
58530, ph. 701 -794-3731 ,  e-mail crsp@nd.gov 
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Fort Abraham Lincoln State Park 

Fort Abraham Lincoln State Park is rich in both early Native American and 
military history. 

The visitor center and historic buildings feature exhibits and pro­
grams on the early occupation of the area. On-A-Slant Mandan Indian Village 
with its reconstructed earthlodges depicts the lifestyle of the Mandan, who lived 

here from 1 575-
1 78 1 .  In 1 804, the 

Lewis and Clark 
Expedition camped 
nearby and noted 
their abandoned 
village in their 
journals. From 
1 872 until 1 89 1 ,  the 
military occupied 
this site, first under 
the command of 

Lt. Col. George Armstrong Custer. The park features a modern campground 
and picnicking facilities, hiking and biking trails, as well as shoreline access for 
fishing in the Heart and Missouri rivers. 

Facilities: 1 ,006 acres • Camping • 
Electrical Hookups • Campsite Reserva­
tions • Showers and Flush Toilets • Sewage 
Dump Station • Hiking, Mountain Biking, 
Horseback and Paved Interpretive Trails 
• Historian • Living History • Camping 
Cabins • Visitor Center and Historic Build­
ings • Missouri River Natural Area. 

Nearby Attractions: Boat Ramps • 
Golf and Tennis Areas • State Capitol • 
North Dakota Heritage Center • Riverboat 
• Trolley • Zoo • Roughrider State OHV 
Trail 

Location: Seven miles south of Man­
dan on Highway 1 806-4480 Fort Lincoln 
Road, Mandan, ND 58554, ph. 701 -667-
6340, e-mail falsp@nd.gov. 
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Fort Ransom State Park 

Taking its name from an 1 860s military fort, Fort Ransom State Park 
is located in the midst of the scenic and heavily wooded Sheyenne 
River Valley. 

The river provides abundant op­
portunities for canoeing, fishing and 
bird watching, while within the park 
can be found a short segment of the 
North Country National Scenic Trail. 
During the summer, picnicking and 
camping are favorite activities, while 
cross-country skiing is a popular win­
ter sport. A farmstead within the park 
is the setting for the annual Sodbuster 
Days celebration, with demonstra­
tions and exhibits of homesteading 
life. 

Nearby Attractions: Bears Den 
Mountain Downhill Ski Area • Fort 
Ransom State Historic Site • Ransom 
County Historical Museum • Shey­
enne Valley State Snowmobile Trail 
• Sheyenne National Grassland • Sheyenne State Forest • Sheyenne River Val­

ley National Scenic Byway. 
Facilities: 947 acres • 

Camping • Electrical Hook­
ups • Campsite Reservations 
• Showers and Flush Toilets 
• Sewage Dump Station • 
Picnic Shelters • Hiking, 
Horseback, Mountain Bik­
ing and Cross-Country Ski 
Trails • Canoe/Kayak Rent­
als • Visitor Center • Corral 
and Primitive Camp Sites. 

Location: Two miles 
north of the community of Fort Ransom-5981 Walt Hjelle Parkway, Fort 
Ransom ND 58033, ph. 701 -973-43 3 1 ,  e-mail frsp@nd.gov. 
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Fort Stevenson State Park 0 n the north shore of Lake Sakakawea, this park was named for a late 

1 800s fort that served as a supply depot for other military posts in the 
Dakota Territory. 

Fort Stevenson State Park 
is known as the "Walleye Capi­
tal'' of North Dakota. It's a 
favorite spot for sportsmen to 
experience the great fishing on 
the lake and is home to the an­
nual Governor's Cup Walleye 
Fishing Derby. 

Boaters will find excellent 
facilities, including two marinas 
- Garrison Bay and de Tro­

briand - with boat ramp access, fishing boat rental and boat and camper storage. 
A variety of events are held at the park each year including the Sky Dance 

Sakakawea Kite Festival; CANDISC Bike Tour; and Beach Party. There is a sea­
sonal naturalist providing education programs 

Nearby Attractions: Golf • Tennis • North Dakota Fishing Hall of Fame • 
Power Plant Tours • Broste Rock Museum • ND Firefighter Museum • Wally the 

Walleye, 
ND's largest 
walleye. 

Fa­

cilities: 

549 acres • 
Camping • 
Campsites 
with Sewer 
and Electrical Hookups • Campsite Reservations • Family Cabins • Camping Cab­
ins • Showers and Flush Toilets • Sewage Dump Station • Picnic Shelters • Two 
Marinas • Slip Rentals • Gas Dock • Fish Cleaning Station • Boat Ramp • Boat 
Rentals • Canoe/Kayak Rentals • Hiking Trails • Arboretum • Prairie Dog Town • 
Hiking Trails • Swim Beach • Park Concession • Cross Country Ski Trails 

Location: Three miles south of Garrison, ND - 1 252A 41st Avenue Nw, 
Garrison, ND 58540, ph. 701 -337-5576, e-mail fssp@nd.gov. 
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Grahams Island State Park 

D evils Lake, North Dakota's largest natural lake, is home to Grahams 
Island State Park, named after the first known white settler in the 
area, Captain Duncan Graham.The park offers camping and picnick-

ing facilities. There is a boat 
ramp, with access to the lake 
for fishing and other water 
sports, as well as a bait shop 
and gas facility. The park 
hosts numerous national and 
regional fishing tournaments 
during the year, and offers 
some of the best fishing in 
the midwest. 

The Sivert Thompson 
Activities Center is available for rent and is an excellent facility for large group ac­
tivities. It has seating for up to 1 80 people and is equipped with a wood-burning 
fireplace, indoor restroom, catering area and a large patio. 

Nearby Attractions: Fort Totten State Historic Site • Sullys Hill National 
Game Preserve • Camp Grafton • Golf • Native American Crafts • Lake Region 
Snowmobile Trail • Historic Downtown • Lake Region Heritage Center 

Facilities: 

1 ,1 22 acres • 

Camping • Elec­
trical Hookups 
• Campsite 
Reservations • 

Showers and 
Flush Toilets • 

Sewage Dump 
Station • Picnic 
Shelters • Sivert 
Thompson 
Activities Center 
• Boat Ramp • 

Bait Shop • Hiking Trails • Playground • Camping Cabins • Fish Cleaning Station 
Location: Sixteen miles southwest of the city of Devils Lake - 1 52 S. Dun­

can Road, Devils Lake ND 58301,  ph. 701 -766-40 1 5, e-mail dlsp@nd.gov 
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I celandic State Park 

Situated on the north shore of Lake Renwick, camping, boating, swimming 
and fishing for northern pike and other game fish are popular activities at 
Icelandic State Park. 

Within the park are 
the Pioneer Heritage 
Center and restored 
historic buildings, which 
provide a glimpse of 
North Dakota's home­
steading heritage. An 
early homestead pre­
serves the state's pioneer 
spirit. 

The park includes 
the Gunlogson Nature 
Preserve, the state's first 
dedicated nature pre­

serve. This is a 200-acre natural wooded area along the Tongue River, providing a 
sanctuary for plants, birds and wildlife. 

Nearby Attractions: Golf Course • Pembina Gorge • Pembina County His­
torical Museum • Pembina 
State Museum • Northeast 
Snowmobile Trail • Frostfire 
Mountain Ski Resort and 
Summer Musical • State 
Scenic Byway 

Facilities: 9 1 2  acres • 

Camping • Electrical Hook­
ups • Campsite Reservations 
• Showers and Flush Toilets 
• Sewage Dump Station • 

Picnic Shelter • Swim Beach 
• Boat Ramp and Courtesy Dock • Fishing Dock • Sledding Hill • Hiking 
Trails • Paved Bike Path • Groomed Cross-Country Ski Trails • Seasonal Natu­
ralist • Playground • Camping Cabins • Interpretive Center and Historic Buildings 

Location: Five miles west of Cavalier on Highway 5 - 1 3571 Hwy. 5, Cava­
lier ND 58220, ph. 701-265-4561,  e-mail isp@nd.gov. 
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Lake Metigoshe State Park 

Nesded in the scenic Turde Mountains along the U.S./Canadian border, 
Lake Metigoshe is one of the most popular year-round vacation spots 
in North Dakota. 

The small lakes within the park 
provide opportunities for fishing, 
canoeing, boating and swimming. 
A multitude of trails attract hikers 
and mountain bikers. Winter brings 
snowmobilers, cross-country skiers, 
sledders and ice fishing enthusiasts. 
Three year-round cabins with kitch­
ens, gas fireplaces and bathrooms 
along with a yurt can be rented by 
the night or week, and group dorms 
(cap. 1 20), kitchen and meeting facilities are also available. 

Nearby Attractions: International Peace Garden & Music Camp • Camp 
Metigoshe • Downhill and Cross-Country Ski Areas • Peace Garden State Snow­
mobile Trail • Golf Courses • Turde Mountains • J. Clark Salyer and Lords Lake 
National Wildlife Refuges • Rendezvous Region Scenic Byway. 

Facilities: 1 ,551 acres • Camping • Electrical Hookups • Campsite Reser­
vations • Showers and Flush Toilets • Sewage Dump Station • Picnic Shelters • 

Dorms, Kitchen and Meeting Facilities 

Swim Beach • Boat Ramp and 
Fishing Dock • Hiking, Moun­
tain Biking, Snowmobile and 
Groomed Cross-Country Ski 
Trails • Sledding Hill • Warm­
ing House • Canoe, Kayak, 
Snowshoe and Cross-Country 
Ski Rental • Naturalist and 
Year-round Outdoor Learning 
Center Programming • Play­
grounds • Year-Round Cabins 
and Yurt Facilities • Group 

Location: Sixteen miles northeast of Bottineau-#2 Lake Metigoshe State 
Park, Bottineau ND 5831 8, ph. 701 -263-4651,  e-mail lmsp@nd.gov. 
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lake Sakakawea State Park 0 n the south shore of Lake Sakakawea adjacent to Garrison Dam, 
Lake Sakakawea State Park offers a wide range of water-based rec­
reational activities and facilities. 

The park has a full-service marina, including convenience store, fishing 
guide services, and 
boat and camper 
storage. Boat 
ramps in the park 
offer deep water 
access to some of 
the best fishing on 
Lake Sakakawea. 
The park also 
features modern 
camping and pic­
nicking facilities. 
Hikers enjoy a seg­
ment of the North 
Country National 

Scenic Trail. Sleeping cabins are available for rent during the camping season. 
Nearby Attractions: Garrison Dam and Fish Hatchery • Audubon Na­

tional Wildlife Refuge • Knife River Indian Villages National Historic Site • 

Coal Mine and Power Plant 
Tours • Golfing 

Facilities: 1 ,293 acres • 

Camping • Electrical Hook­
ups • Campsite Reservations 
• Showers and Flush Toilets 
• Sewage Dump Station 
• Picnic Shelters • Swim 
Beach (contact park for sta­
tus) • Marina • Fish Cleaning 
Station • Boat Ramps • Hik­
ing Trail • Camping Cabins • 

Visitor Center 
Location: A mile north of Pick City - Box 732, Riverdale, ND 58565, 

ph. 701 -487-331 5,  e-mail lssp@nd.gov. 
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'""·' lewis and Clark State Park 

"""' ' "�'\ ,, >( 11e towering buttes and rolling hills to Lake Sakakawea provide a rugged 
ackdrop to this park, situated on one of the upper bays of Lake Saka­
awea. 

Modem boating facilities, including marina with slip rentals and a boat ramp, 
are major attractions. 
Anglers will find excel­
lent fishing for walleye, 
sauger and northern 
pike. Visitors can be­
come acquainted with 
the natural communities 
associated with the park 
by hiking a self-guided 
nature trail. Camping 
cabins with air condi-
tioning, a microwave 
oven and coffee pot are 
available during the summer months. 

There is a swimming area for campers near the cabins and a day-use beach at 
the south end of the park. 

Nearby Attractions: Buffalo Trails Museum • Fort Union Trading Post Na­
tional Historic Site 
• Fort Buford State 
Historic Site • Golf 
Areas 

Facilities: 490 
acres • Camping • 

Electrical Hookups 
• Campsite Reserva­
tions • Showers and 
Flush Toilets • Sew­
age Dump Station 
• Picnic Shelters 

• Marina • Fishing • Cleaning Station and Boat Ramp • Nature Trail • Camping 
Cabins. 

Location: Nineteen miles southeast of Williston on Highway 1 804-4904 
1 1 9th Road Nw, Epping, ND 58843, ph. 701 -859-3071 ,  e-mail lcsp@nd.gov. 
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Little M issouri State Park IJ. ttle Missouri State Park contains some of the most rugged, picturesque 
Badlands terrain in the state. 

Most of the park is accessible only by horseback or hiking. Numerous 
wildlife spe­
cies frequent 
the park, 
including mule 
deer, coyote, 
fox, bobcat 
and golden 
eagle. Horse 
rentals and a 
guide service 
are located 
adjacent to 
the park In 
addition, cor­
rals and well water are available for those bringing in their own horses to ride the 50 
miles of trails. Use of certified weed-free feed is required. 

Nearby Attrac­

tions: Theodore Roo­
sevelt National Park 
(North Unit) • Lake 
Sakakawea • Killdeer 
Mountains • Killdeer 
Mountains Round-up 
Rodeo • Little Missouri 
State Scenic River (no 
access from park) • 

Killdeer Mountain Four 
Bears Scenic Byway. 

Facilities: 4,592 
acres • Camping • Electrical Hookups • Campsite/Corral Reservations • Vault Toi­
lets • Picnic Shelters • Hiking and Horseback Trails • Corrals • Shower House. 

Location: 1 7  miles north of Killdeer - c/o Cross Ranch State Park, 1 403 River 
Road, Center, ND 58540, ph. 701 -794-3731 or 701 -764-5256 email crsp@nd.gov. 
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Su l ly Creek State Park 

Ucated in the heart of the North Dakota Badlands, Sully Creek State 
ark is just minutes away from the historic town of Medora and 
heodore Roosevelt National Park. 

In the early spring, canoeing/kayaking the Little Missouri River is a popu­
lar activity. 

Corrals are provided 
for those bringing in their 
own horses. Horseback 
riders, mountain bikers 

and hikers have access to 
the 1 20-rnile long Maah 
Daah Hey Trail, which 
traverses the Litde Mis­
souri National Grassland. 
Use of certified weed­
free feed is required by 
horseback riders using the 
trail. For additional trail 
restrictions, contact the Dakota Prairie Grasslands, North Dakota Parks & 
Recreation Department or the National Park Service. 

Nearby Attractions: Theodore 
Roosevelt National Park (South Unit) 
• Litde Missouri National Grassland • 
Burning Coal Vein • Medora • Cha­
teau de Mores State Historic Site • 

Litde Missouri State Scenic River. 
Facilities: 80 acres • Camping 

• Horse Corrals • Campsite/Corral 
Reservations • Canoe Access • Maah 
Daah Hey Trail Access • Shower 
House • RV Dump. 

Location: Two and a half miles 
south of Medora-c/o Fort Abraham 
Lincoln State Park, 4480 Fort Lincoln 
Road, Mandan, ND 58554, ph.701 -
667-6340 or 701 -623-2024 email: 
falsp@nd.gov. 



Turtle River State Park 

Constructed in  the 1 930s by the Civilian Conservation Corps, this park is 
located in a beautiful, wooded valley along the meandering Turde River. 
The park features year-round recreational activities, including camping, 

picnicking, hiking, mountain biking, cross-country skiing and sledding. Anglers 
can also practice their fly fishing techniques in the trout-stocked river. 

Perfect for weddings, 
family reunions and other 
group activities is the spa­
cious Woodland Lodge, with 
its kitchen and dining hall. 
Sleeping cabins, equipped with 
bathrooms and bunkbeds (no 
cooking inside), can also be 
rented by groups or individu­
als during the summer. The 

Wiiliiillillllillliiliiiliiiilllil81i•Millllillil•• ... upstairs of the Chalet/Warm-
ing House is also available to 

rent for just about any type of group function. The CCC Memorial Shelter offers 
a picturesque setting and is popular for wedding and large group picnics. 

Nearby Attractions: 

Golf Course • Larimore Dam 
and Recreation Area • Univer­
sity of North Dakota • Grand 
Forks Air Force Base • Kelly's 
Slough National Wildlife Re­
serve • Prairie Chicken Manag­
ment Area • Oakville Prairie. 

Facilities: 784 acres • 
Camping • Electrical Hook­
ups • Campsite Reservations 
• Showers and Flush Toilets • 
Sewage Dump Station • Hiking, Mountain Biking and Groomed Cross-Country 
Ski Trails • Paved Nature Trail • Outdoor Learning Center • Naturalist and Year­
round Outdoor Learning Center Programming • Sledding Area • Playground • 
Warming House • Sleeping Cabins • Kitchen and Dining Hall • Visitor Center. 

Location: Twenty miles west of Grand Forks on Highway #2 - 3084 Park 
Ave., Arvilla ND 58214, ph. 701 -594-4445, e-mail trsp@nd.gov. 
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Pembina Gorge Recreation Area T:e Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area is  being developed in a way 
ew to the state of North Dakota. The North Dakota Parks and Recrea­

on Department is implementing a multiuse trail system to accommodate 
the three classes of Off-Highway 
Vehicles (OHVs): dirt bikes, four 
wheelers, and side by sides. 

The most recent development 
is a 1 2  mile looped trail completed 
in the fall of 201 1 .  It accommo­
dates OHV s up to 60 inches wide. 
An additional 1 0  to 1 2  mile loop is 
planned for construction in 201 2. 

More traditional, non-mo­
torized trail opportunities are in 
the works as well. The Tetrault 
Woods State Forest, located south of Walhalla, is undergoing some trail enhance­
ments which includes a floating bridge across a beaver pond and trail repairs to 
provide an unforgettable walk through the woods. 

Other recreational opportunities in the Pembina Gorge area include hiking, 
mountain biking, horseback riding, bird watching, primitive camping, wildlife 
viewing and canoeing/kayaking. 

Location: OHV Trail is five miles west, a mile north, a mile west of Wal­
halla; Tetrault Woods is two miles south of Walhalla - 1 0 1  5th St. Walhalla, ND, 
58282 Phone: 701 -549-2444, email pgsra@nd.gov. 

Indian H i l ls Recreation Area 

I nclian Hills State Recreation Area and Resort is  operated by a private leasee. 

Amenities include camping, modern and primitive cabins, boat ramp, camp 

store, fishing guide service and hiking, mountain biking and birding trails. 

Nearby Attraction: Broste Rock Museum • North Dakota Fishing Hall of 
Fame • Three A ffiliated Tribes Museum • Casino • Golf and Swimming Areas. 

Facilities: 80 acres • Camping • Electrical and Water Hookups • Showers • 

Sewage Dump Station • Fish Cleaning Station • Boat Ramp • Hiking and Biking 
Trails • Cabins • Picnic Shelter • Gas Dock • Overnight Docking. 

Location: Thirty-one miles west of Garrison - 7276 1 4th Street SE, Garrison, 
ND 58540, ph. 701-7 43-41 22, e-mail ksorge@btinet.net. 
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Parks locations and amen ities 
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Beaver Lake 33 v' v' v' v'  v' ,/ v' v' v' v' v'  v' v'  

Cross Ranch 70 v' v' v' v'  v' v' v' v' v' v' v'  v' v' v' ,/ 

Fort Abraham Lincoln 96 v' v' v' v' v' v' v'  v' v' v' v' ,/ v'  v' ,/ 

Fort Ransom 36 v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v'  v' v'  

Fort Stevenson 1 54  v' v' v'  v' v'  v' v' v'  v' v' v' v' v'  v' v' v' v' v'  v' v' 

Grahams Island 1 07 v' v' v' v' ,/ v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' 

Icelandic 1 6 1  v' ./ v' v' ./ v' v'  v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' 

Lake Metiqoshe 1 30 v' v' v' v'  v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' v' 

Lake Sakakawea 1 92 v' v'  v' v' v' v' v' v' v' ./  v' ./ v' v' 

Lewis and Clark 83 v' v'  v' v'  v' v' v' v' v' v'  v' v' v' v' v' v' 

Little Missouri 30 v' v' v'  v' v' v' ,/ 

Sullv Creek 38 v' v' v' v' v' ./ 

Turtle River 1 00 v' ./  v' v'  v' v' v' v'  v' v' v' ./ v' v' v' v' 
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Winter Activities 

Most of North Dakota's state parks are open all year and provide 
an assortment of winter activities, including cross-country skiing, 
snowshoeing, sledding, ice-skating and ice fishing. Many of the 

parks have cross-country ski trails designed to challenge novice and advanced 
skiers. Snowshoers, while not allowed on groomed cross-country ski trails 
within the state parks, can blaze their own trails through undisturbed snow 
during the winter months. 

The state also has 1 4  snowmobile trails, which cover over 3,400 miles of 
groomed and ungroomed trails. The snowmobile season runs from Decem­
ber 1 through April 1 ,  providing the trails have a minimum base of four 
inches of packed snow. 

Conditions for both snowmobile and cross-country ski trails are posted 
on the North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department website, www. 
parkrec.nd.gov, or are available by calling the North Dakota Tourism Division 
at 1 -800-HELLO ND. 
Cross Country Skiing Trail Miles Sled Ice Notes 

Hill Fish 

Beaver Lake • 5 • 
Cross Ranch 701 -794-3731 MG 1 0  Skilsnowhoe rentals 
Ft. Lincoln 701 -667-6340 • 6.75 

Ft. Ransom 701-973-4331 MG 6.5 Warming house 
Ft. Stevenson 701 -337-5576 MG 3 • 
Grahams Island 701-766-401 5  MG 3 • 
Icelandic 701 -265-4561 MG 5 • • Interpretive center open 
Lake Metigoshe 701 -263-4651 MG 8.5 • • Ski/snowshoe rentals, warming house 
Lake Sakakawea 701 -487-3315 • 3 • • 
Lewis and Clark 701 -859-3071 MG 4 • 
Turtle River 701-594-4445 MG 7.5 • Chalet/warming house Marked 

State Snowmobile Trails Trail Miles Location (Info: 701 -328-5357/www.parkrec.nd.gov) 

Northeast (Pembina Gorge) MG 41 7.5 Langdon, Walhalla, Cavalier, Edinburgh 
Groomed 

Peace Garden MG 1 90 Bottineau, Rolla 
East Central Valley MG 202 Casselton, Fargo 
Sheyenne Valley MG 286 Jamestown, LaMoure, Ft. Ransom, Valley City, Oakes 
Red River North MG 1 5 1 .5 Minto, Grafton 
Red River South MG 1 93 Grand Forks, Manvel, Fordville 
Lake Region MG 2 1 6  Devils Lake 
Mayville-Portland MG 74 Hatton, Portland, Mayville, Hillsboro 
Missouri Valley MG 2 1 3  Mandan, Bismarck, Linton 
Sno-Trails MG 351 Minot. Velva, Towner 
North Central MG 1 80 Rugby, Cando 
Southern Valley MG 1 36 Wahpeton, Mooreton 
Cattrail MG 1 03 Hope 
Sargent County MG 90 Gwinner 
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. . : ·. ·  .. · .· . North D::ikOta St$.te :Pal'ks . · · · ·  · 

. . ' 1he ccmtfrlued �ise of Devils tak� : · · · · · · 
•. : . IeftGta.h�m,s Islanct n�W �accessF . . . 
. . >_ ble aftiriies dtiritig 2011 f6rdrig th€ · ·. 
· · : state tQ:raisethe lsland- Roact ·.af� cost : · 

of $i5 milliori. Work-,w�s co�pleted in 
. . 

. _ .. _· .. , August of 2012 assuring access to · : . ··: . · Graha!Us Isl<Uldforyears to come: · · 
, • . . · . . · :The ·mtiridation ofth� ·.rc;,ad .ai:lct • • -. · : :  ·. · 

· . . ev.ertnt.al road w{)'rk .tc? .
. raise it did: : . 

impact visi.tation and camping at . . . . . . . 
. 

GISP. After seeing visitation fall to •. . • : ·· •  ·
_· . . ·: •:,le�s thari 11alf of n�rirlat i{ did recov.�� • :_ . . 

" 
to about 751000 vi'sitors .ill '2oii,. ab�u·t . .. �5 percent'�£-a: riormafse.�son. Ope•ra � >� . · t:wns J:l.ave retur�ed tc?. aboub1ormal, · . · 
the park�s foui':sleeping2abins' s�rw . • . : · · f\lll 9ccll:p<il)cy� this.past yea�: . : . .: . · . . 

. . ,_· , G��striJ.ction (s :ljn<fer\v.�Y"on .an:.- . · · · · 

. · . ·.: :  . · : : ·  . . . . . . 

: :- :actct�ti·?!l.al 48:-:UJ1it mo?ern car:nr-:-·· · . . . 
. ·ground.i!-� GISP and shci.uld· -be · · : · · . · · · 

.· > �bmpl�te·:b:fthe surtimer of:io:i�( ·. : · . • . .  :6th�r $t�t�s: . . . 
. 

. : • . . . . 

Other p-
rojects c�mplet.�d in:�·lud�d · · . . · • .· JSf.h�s $ti:ong ti�s t� th�lo��r c•o�ti.� 

. . asp halting' of the hoat ramp area; . . . : riitie� and vo}uriteeis f�om thds� .:.: . : · . . : . 
. . · . . . · . . . . . .  . . ·_ ·, severa).·v'atilftoilets.'were'J:·eside(fati . ·• •. . c()�uroties acco�t 'f�r n��ly 4,000 : 

F. ·o· · · T · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·. ·· · · · · · •iflterpreter!i; ·.Qff!ce b.UiH, two f.EMA· ··. ·. · · hours of work every year. The North . ·. 
· 

· : . · : .R . • :·STEVEN-SON . · :: ····• · · . . ·par!<: homes ·� ere �eclited f��•seasO:n�( · : . . · Eastern North Oakota Heritage Associa-
·.· ·. J?oi:(Stev:�rison•$�ate P�rk: hbids th� • . · ·i)oiisi?.g� $b)able$: t�nstru�t� :fol:'th� ·. · .

. • . : tion is a strong supporter of the park. In 
: clisr¥?-ori, .of 'beifig :th� �tate p�rk : ,· _: . . . . . . ne� q.rripgroimd; ·and. a :io�acre• .. _ : .  · _: < .  : · .2012the NENDI'l finishe�Uhe: fmal.· . . 
·�Y���� s_:Il).Ost 'p�p�_a:r;vEH1.Ue ·J¢�dirig. :· . . p�aitie restoration: Final :plans ar.e,- : . . . . COI\sti't!CJi()n 'ort lhe i:�sea.rch_ libr�ry at' � :  

· � VISl�a�Ion;·, ca:rnping·!Jights ,�d . : · · · · · being prepa:redJo p.J.�t-·13,000 tree·s: . · : .tJ;e.pClt.k's. J?ioneer. H�fitage .Center�and : 
. . ·Th¢··additiqn· oftne• .new·. · · :and. sl1:fubs_.at:the.park; ·.a ffii�gailori . _-. ·. . . : · h.av� _?esignated ?v�r-$4Q,cioo fodti·i:Ure· . 
. . . . : . _ . . . . . B�y:Marma ·is : . pr_oject thto�gh the ]3ribri�fge Energy · :-> . exlub1ts> . · . -: . 

·. �ri;n�g neW. doticits.m�<nHe:op.�r�, · corporation · · ' · · · · · · · · · · · · · • · • · 
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: :'l'l.Dp�I)}6��iride�t�·:m..ake . . i¢Pi�v�> HlUl • 

_ ·ments,.to hotli '�arfu.as:.-:-: Garrjson B.aJ·:: . .. . · . . . -:acidt.ti<:>h_al sleeping cabins, an· .. • . . , .- • · · . take _Metigoshe State Park ·telebrate�i 
. ·_c:leTrol>ri�d-Bq:y �·arid: added · . : _ :enhanced fiail system.' and various . .. . . . . < _ ifs ?Stl:i ·anniversary:m z(n:ia;ci'it··�ils · • 

-��e¢�k�t s��i�e 'to ·��e oa:rtts9!l_'Bay ·_ : .: : • • . 
·(:ydkrepairs. · . · · · . .- . · · · · .. . • .· . . 0rie af the.m:ost s'il.Cc�ssful.year� iii the . . 

�t.nil rn .2012: The park held 24 . . ·. ,: . . · · · : : · · , . .  . . · · . . . . ·_ . . :Pi;tlk' � fti5tOiY- The: park. exi:eede.d . : : . 
spe.ci�l eiv�nts '<iurmg'_the:Ja�tl:iielirii�rri .

. : . . _ •. ,.·
E 

::' :' · . ·: • . . · : . :. < <· :: . :: ·._ : : . . . . . . . : • · . visifation U1.llflper� forov�r the. pas} 20 . 
:W:h.icli.:fu.r�e.r jilci-�as�S. �s.sr. $ popu� :- ·: "'- . LA·NDIC . . . > •· . ·. · . . . • · . : y��i;S with_ nearlY 140;.000 .visitors . . . . . 

·lanty Cyc·iing' Aro· ; ;"'d. No·r· th 'D · k· · ·ta· . . .. · _·.· . • ,:: .:(: _ _ o_: ris_ . _ t:r_· u. 'd. 1._on· .·_c·_·o··_n•· t
. I_n. ' i_ ,· ·es· . . _··o•·n· :_R .. e . . n._w· · _\c· k' '. • _·.-_. ·._• •· · expeded by: yea:r�s end ' · · · · · . .  · : _ _ . . · 

. ui �'We� c;;,;;ry (CANi:i&) . ·. :O•rri ;..t>d; pai:k #of!k ::.m be d.li><iiea • .  ·. . . • qons.,Cuc\ion Qri <hi �,;patided ir.,l ii 
_t�l�briJ.�¢d its.20tl> .ailltiv¢I'$aiy· iri 2oi2 . . • JhroughcmtH1'e tipc.Ofiurig· yeat .. ' B�t. :  .· :.. ·. : •. .· sys.temw;;t5_ complet¢d and LMSP riow • 

. ap4·_the Governor'$ CU.p Fis_hlr{g.• : : • . . . · cam.p_iilg i'tight_s ·ar\d Park•re:V.ertl:ies : · . • : . . ha� just over �8 miles �fmU:lti-activity .  

::rouri1.arneriHui:n:�d; 3&_yeais aid> . . . . : : _. r�rr:a� :c:onsistent:�esp1te::the pro}�ct . : trails. The tra1ls connect cabins, other 
· . I)dje:cts iri 2013. will h:ldude:· tree. · ·  < : • · · : d1v1d1i1g the park in half · · · · · . · · ·traiL '<lr�as a,n<J have op�ned new areas . 
.. :P.lantmgs;· p�rinting oGhe- G�tf H6�s� • : ,·_.£if:·:_Tt_.hh_er··_•e2c·_
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Vi�Hor·ce:n;ter and m$taiiation of a: ii�w . : . . . •  num�� .of user$ thioughOut the year'. . . • 

.. . :_vvater:ie_setV.orr:s.ys�eni. : • : • • : • . · . . •·� · 2012 seas.on.is'jusf 1 p¢rcent b�hind. : . • · • . . : · ·· !.he par I<�· top challenges contii'i.u.e:fo ·. 
· · Thep<l.tk ri)amtahis dose ties to the . - . • . . . . th(lt P�ce:T�e pa_sf tWo ·y�ars are • . . . · _- be rD.(l.ii).tainifig irifrastr�dure and . • 

• 

. �<)��ti ?fC;aiJ:ls6n. �ith _each enrify ;: -showing· an ovei-all-16 pe'icent . . . . . ·. : . .• · rri(iffitzlining a 9ep�ndabi� and ino�v�t� 
yrov.I{]).I1g support Whkh benefits-each: : · .. � � .: inct�(ii;� :in :c.arnping. ;rlul11b��s>�early •. ·_: · • · . • . ed :stij:(f bei!lg able t6.·niaint�rit the.:i1igh� : 
.·FssP i� betonjffig a rti:a}pr atce�s pomt.b.f . • 

· . · . . _ : .60 pertent pftJ:te paj:k�s •.visito·rs are : : � ·. • . •.
. .  l�vel of service·_v_i);;i tors to theparJ.<s�hav{ 

. �e �ak�W.ea·an9· Gatrison}s veiy < . · . •CMadiai:ls with :35 per2ent:North . · · < come tp expect: . . . . . · · . . . 

: actiye ·� pr()m6ting' the Jak¢ and ser'V1c:: . . . '()akotati� arid the: remaindedto� < : . . 
. • . . .  
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· · . .  : . . . . . . . . · · . . : :  . . 
· . • . .  . . · . .  . . . . •

··:·�p�•a..:r�lJ.�!lg·
·

_.·
·
·•( . . . · . . . : : . 

· . . 

. : . · · . . . . . . . 
· .  

. · . . · . . · . :  . . · . . . : .. . "· . . . . . . · . . .  . . . · . . ·. . . . ·. 

·ptcuJr,�J"s .•·•l'l')()Oage· ··t<> . fl"lix i(:)ll i.• CirJd.•. i\JJ<:I�er··· 
. . The_Pl�ing_I>i�i�i()rfCb_ntinue� to• �otk in: 00il �ountr:y�' ori : :  ·_: •. . ·.· : : �d. nim:ui�y b�ra��!i at F6rf Atmiha.m Un�oln Stat�:r�rk. . : . : 
· i�su¢s ;w-�th oil cte'veto:pment .at£edmg s_hi.te·parks. :' 'Litt1� · ·  . · ·. · . · - • . . srgnlficant ma1nte:riance repah·s ¢oritmue. -to plague these 
·-·l\1issouti artd Le\\fis and .cfark.stat� parks are· the fl\ostiriip.aci-·. · · . • buildings. The•FALSP. Cavalry. squar� gianary .was < .  : ·.· . ed>ft(;r:(i v1s�alf noiie• mtpads, .  ·Incr�asecl" visifati<m �d. facili�y" : co.rilpietel y fep�i:rlt�d_· bY.:-contra:�t this p�sf 5-urnn.:ier: . : :  ·: :· . :-: � use �t other w�steiril p�rks,_ \.VIVIe g6oP: for b:Usif\e!is> takes. i( : ;_ ·: · · Numerous_ siding and triin b6atds·mieded· r_ep(ateineilt : · . · • · . · ioll'O.n parkfadlities and l.nii-asttucttire. Div1si6n.staif ·• .: ·_·. : : ·_.· ·. :

. 
•prior •to painting, ApproxUni:ttely $25,qoo was spebto.fi. this :·_ : 

._: provi(j�: s.uppo1f ·£or pa.rk�ta.ff iU:.i4e ar,ea·of re.paits cin<i l'tave · . · p�oject . . . . . . . . . . . . . • .  . . . . . . . . . . 
· . : !�hl:fte"c:f.· large proj�ct "pt:iol-ities:-to: these·.parks most'he�vilf • · . The Plaimb:igDhi:is�ori has c;ompl�ted Tofthe: 9 bieiutium •· . : · :" irri:patted , · ·· . . . . . . · · · . . . · . · · ·: · . · • • . . . . · . · ·: •. . . · : . · · .· . . · . · "hi-ge (;a pi tar : ·. · , · . . ·. 

· . Exten5i�e_work :Wits �-· · . · project· budgets:-at . · 
· · .done with FEMA and·the :  th# tl.rrt.�: Close · . : . 
, _. ·statE(�: oivi.sion 6f Eiri�r; _ • • · _·. <:nit. mvoke5. are : . . - · 
· gency:Services in. : ... · ·. : . . : ·. · ... ·�n�tha·t ��m�fu. ·: · : · : 
: c'oin:pleting -20il 41s�stei· . : -_ · -The: blenci(ini : • : .  - : ·:- . : . ·.re�overfptoj�ds,· There.·· • . 

· . · capita1•budget· ·: · _.· '. · .: 
· . \v�re i:najor :recovery.·_. · . . · · :Was.$4�2 iillllion.·.:: 

w6i:kprojects �tthe rqrt · .  t-l1ethvisim1.,-i·s : - · . _: · .  
· -.Abrahairi Linc6lil. State .:". .· s�:ti:Sfied_.;._,ith:ti:i"e· : -
:B��k c;ampgiotin�; �¢ : ·. . ·pr�e5s.ornh:ese . . · 
: LittleMfssoud Stl:i.te:P.?rk : · · proj�cts · ·. · ·. · · · · · . · 
-:-.t:f�1!" -systei:TI:: · t.her�. was: . • .. :,

·
· •pi�imiri� : : . : ·:. · _:;::;_ · : 

les� ·.damag� at· For(" .• : . ·. . . . Di�isfoh s.la!f s�t · .Ran$.om State park ·e1long. : . · _proJect pr:io:dty 
•wi.th debi-is· i-em6val froiri . · . iists� _hu<fget : : _: .· : · £1�6d.. pre;€ntion �o;�:c,it·.< ·an<>:Wan.ces :for the : 
:Fort:5tev��oil s(a.:te--P.;.U:i<.:." ::r:VI�)6ritn:prov€�:- :: ·:- · . . 
· .. At the Fort Lincoln state · · rilent,·ana Capitai: ·. ·p��kc�i?:&"bl:l.rict�:·- · - :  ·: · . ·_: _.

··: _· :- rinpro.V·em:enr :- : 
planning devei9p.ed.�· . · · . . .btJ.dget .P.�ei:> £or 

·���tf[g�ifriii��tie:JtE�:g o•.��z:�z;ti::Wi[:tonJli1�•·• 
. £iood issu�s with· tl}ese. �-� ¢evelopments -�liOUld:b� sigrufi�. • · · : :  in\restrn.�nt alre�dyiri plcice and i,rhprovln.gJacilities for:citli : · · . 

. tartUy n;!duted.:A ct�v�loptnent· mast�r plan is· �Ui.g .cipd�ted . . · . vi$itors.: · . : ·. . · . . · . .  · . :  · . . . . ·: . . · . . . · . . . 
·at •Foi:t Ab:ra,ham Lrn¢olri.$ta_i:t:d�ark.- _The_ .existi.Jig u:la�ter"plan: · : :· ' Several ''FEMATrailer�t were pliJ:cha�d :by the -agency: to :. · .· 

· . :\Vas.cieveiopect iil 1978. c;ind is ·out�te(i: . . The· up4�ted_ pl�n··. · .·
. · . .  _· . . . : replace old."fEMA ll'c;iil�rs: . . Pia.hning Oivision statt:hav� ·Been_": : · _ � 

: will :mcor1
i
o�a.te c�n�p�rar.Y>il$'es, "d�m()�a,phji:ch;illges; · . • : : : · : . : . : :es���and ��ung �p�ed:electJ:�i:, \Vatet�d se�e� : >· 

· · qiJ�s�� {tj�1�:�om7-p��i1��y cisses�rtients.q£-_u;s: · ·: : :- · ·•• 0�tp����=�a.I-Trciils Pro�an\r�ai1 prbjec·t� \Ne�e - :": : . . •. 

·
: •. . . · .Army Corp o£::Efiis.in�er. properties •on Lake_Sak�k�we� and_. : · . . , _ . ·.· • ·. completed �t tw-tle River'--�ti M�tigoshe iuld:the Pembin:a. : :  ·: ()ah¢. : Th.is· )s ·do.tle Ui.respo�e>t6 a·CQE reqi.test that. NT)PRI) . > . . · . •· Gorge; bivisl:on staff_c()rtipl�ted: the prei#ary seopmi,: · . . · : · : 

· · _consi<ier managing :ee·�t�litrecrea�ion sites on these reservoirs·. : : . :· . . layout/ design. Privc,ite coirtractors b.Lliltthe ti:ails. :Tt<tiJ. kiosk : _: 
· · t>ue iQ Iackot :bud.g�t-fundirig lb.� c:o:e feelslt no:lon�{cari .·. · . . · :: and Intersection $igmng are.•recidyJor iipririg lnsbill�on� : . · . continue · to :efteetiveiy. o;perat� the: recreatiort.sltes,· . • .  · . . · · ·· · · · -. .  • .  ·._ JasonJuru1Ston contiilues to.refille· fu.e agency. 'fMA· data· .: ·· · :· •. -· · . · · A.:rt act(iitional pr(?jed ritiifl�ger w�s. prov"lcied Plari,njrig _by : · • bci$e prO:gram. Jbe program is a·yaliJ.abl� tooUor U1e ctera!t� · . 

)he !lgency n1bylng a .liTE :position. fto·JTI <U;.other- divis{qn _·. • .· . . . . . • ·. tnent physi¢al ·asse�, hisuia11ce; emergency ·eqwpm:eilt �tc. · . . 
. .within the Pepai:tmenL v aughrt �odes W.as hire_d "to fill the . . . . . . . S.Ome"hesl.tation f�maills �ith.fieid staifin operation: of th.e .·· .· . 
. . po�i�iprt ·� fe�-���Y:.qf �01.�� ·. Y �:Ug�)s. a·.f)JP :r�g�st�¢:d. : · . ·. · · . : · .: :: : . ·sy�tem. .. ·��- .i!iP�·t.q� Qat�:· ·. J��C?n :·��9 .tbJ!tPI:e·� :a:·�·-.: :. . . 

• �rchi�ct� We look forward to-ht!i'prof�ssional expertis.� . . • • . · · .  stream bailk stabU�tiori proj:e{:(at TRSP: << . · • : < . . •  < .  
::assisting with• projeCts iit the dhdsion> .· .· 

. 
·. . . . . . . . . : . . · Preliinfuary d�s1gn pians ill-e 1Jemg set l.rt motion for -2Gi3-J5 

. . · C:arpe11terJerry. q.rasl r�b�ilt 32 W.{hdo�s for ·th.e t�Constiuct- . 
· ·· · •.. bi�nrutunprbje(;ts: • . . : . 

. . . · . . . . ·. · . · ·· · .• . · •. 
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Testimony of Ron Merritt 

North Dakota Recreation & Park Association 

To House Appropriations Committee 

Education & Environment D ivision 

In Support o f H B  1019 
Parks and Recreation D e partment Appropriation 

Tuesday, January 15, 2013 

) ' ' ' I J ; , I I 

Chairman Skarphol and M embers of the Committee, my name is Ron Merritt, and I am a 

board member of the North Dakota Recreation & Park Association (NDRPA) and director of  the 

Minot Park District. NDRPA represents more than 500 members across the state and works to 

advance parks and recreation for an enhanced quality of l ife in North Dakota. I am here on behalf of  

NDRPA in  support of House Bil l 1 0 19. 

North Dakota's system o f  public parks and recreation programs is an essential community 

service, encouraging healthy, active l ifestyles for our citizens; playing a s ignificant role in advancing 

tourism; and supporting economic growth through increased property values and lower health 

costs. 

NDRPA is currently working with the Department of Agribusiness and Applied Economics at 

North Dakota State University on an economic contribution study for the state's 12 largest park 

districts and the North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department. Although the study is not yet 

complete, the preliminary number for the total annual economic contribution of these agencies i s  

estimated at $ 677 million. This includes direct impacts of $254 million, which encompasses 

participant, spectator, and visitor spending for agency-administered programs, along with 

operational expenditures. Secondary impacts of $423 million are based on the North Dakota Input­

Output Model, which calculates the total business activity resulting from the direct impacts of 

public parks and recreation agencies. This economic contribution is based on more than 1 million 

visitors to state parks and m ore than 1 5 0,000 participants in park district programs. Further, the 

$677 million impact does not even take into account all of the partner p rograms and users who 

would not be able to offer the ir  programs without local parks and recreation facilities, such as Babe 

Ruth baseball and youth soccer. 

NDRPA supports the D epartment's appropriation for operating expenses and capital 

projects as outlined in HB 1 0 19.  We also ask for the Committee's support for the community grant 

program and consideration in increasing the amount of funding. This is the only state funding now 
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available for community parks and recreation facilities, including playgrounds, pools, multi- ,-----

purpose fields, and trails. This 50/50 matching grant program provides the state with a high return 

on investment, as local communities often invest more funds than required and the economic 

contribution of these facilities is significant to the local economy. Further, the need for this 

program is demonstrated in the 2013-201 7 North Dakota State Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation 

Plan, which states that 93 percent of North Dakota households feel outdoor recreation is important, 

while 57 p ercent of  outdoor recreation providers report demand for facilities and activities exceeds 

supply. Finally, the estimated unmet capital need by N orth Dakota's outdoor recreation providers 

over the next five years is more than $102 million. 

With the state's strong economy and growing population, the North Dakota Parks and 

Recreation Department and local park districts need sufficient resources to protect our public 

parks. Providing safe, affordable, and accessible outdoor recreation opportunities for our citizens 

and visitors is essential to maintaining North Dakota's commitment to a high quality of life. 

We urge a do pass recommendation on HB 1 0 19 with funding for the community recreation 

matching grant program of at least $400,000. Thank you. 
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INTERNATIONAL"(( 

PEACE 
GARDEN 

January 1 5, 20 1 3  9:00 AM Roughrider Room North Dakota Legisl ature 

Good Morni ng Chai rman Skarphol , Vice Chairman Monson, and Com mittee mem bers, 

The 62nd Legisl ative Assem bly of the State of North Dakota appropriated $ 1 , 000,699.00 for 201 1 -20 1 3  
fundi ng.  The all ocation incl uded $733,699.00 for operations plus and two capital requests including 
$25,000.00 for the 9 1 1 Memorial and $242,000.00 for the Conservatory expansi on.  

The Basic and the first section of the Operational Adj ustm ent porti ons of this budget request wi l l  deal with 
the ongoing operational needs of the lPG. The current North Dakota all ocati on is $733, 699.00 as 
established d uri ng the 201 1 -20 1 3  session.  

Optional Adjustment Request 

We have m ade a request for an increase of $1 00 ,000 annual ly  to the annual all ocati on from North Dakota 
to the lPG for $200,000 per bienni um . The Governor's budget suggests this request. 

This  optional adj ustment request i ncl udes two areas of concern. The funds $200 ,000 for the Biennium wi l l  
target two core areas: 

1 .  Wages for acqui sition and retention of em ployees. We are now feel ing the effect of the Bakken 
Shale Oil expansion as it moves nearer to Botti neau and Rolette Counties and it is becom ing harder and 
harder to retai n and locate young l ow wage workers to either m ake a career with us at the l PG or com e 
and work seasonally here at the Peace Garden. 

2 .  E nhanced adverti sing and promotion with our new facil ities and the spectacular Succulent 
Col l ection we need to i ncrease our advertising and prom otion for the Peace Garden .  

Capital Requests 

The I nternational Peace Garden is a lso m a king two Capital project requests. The first is for a pre­
appropriation request to i nvestigate the best plan of acti on to deal with the degradation to the col umns and 
cross m em ber beam s of the Peace Tower and a second request for Water & Wastewater I nfrastructure 
U pgrades. 

Plann ing Pre-Appropriation Peace Tower $500 ,000 

I n  1 980 the North Dakota Historical Society, The National Parks Service and the I nternati onal Peace 
Garden worked joi ntly to provide funding for the desi gn & construction of the Peace Tower. 

Our Plan is to work with Kadrm as, Lee Jackson (KL&J ) from Bismarck North Dakota . KL&J provides a 
wid e  range of structural engi neering servi ces. Their  engi neers are experi enced i n  aviati on,  energy, 
i ndustri a l ,  land m anagem ent, transportation and water resource managem ent structures. Their versatile 
team desi gns with a v ariety of bui lding m ateri als i ncluding a luminum,  concrete, and m a sonry,  steel and 
wood. They also specialize in Foundation Design,  Structural Load Rati ng of Existing System s, and 
Structural Assessm ents. 

I n  the past, the NO Legisl ature has provided funding for pre-appropriations. We are aski ng for such a pre­
appropriation to study of the best plan of action to deal with this problem with the Peace Tower. We 
bel ieve that that the Province of Manitoba wil l  assist in  funding the actual repair of the towers so we 
antici pate these construction costs could be shared between Province and State. Because of the high 
degree of appreciation of this structure, we also bel ieve that we could be successful in acquiri n g  som e  
private funds toward s the future repair. 

The Peace Tower was constructed from 1 980 to 1 983. In 1 984, the base pool s began leaking and had to 
be drained and fi l led with rock. In the early 1 990's the concrete floors and base started cracking and 



heaving .  Concrete resurfaci ng has been ongoi ng to the sidewalks and floor basal area.  I n  201 1 ,  we spent 
$25,000 resurfacing sidewalks and l andi ngs at or near the Peace Tower base . 

D uri ng the winter of 20 1 1 ,  rust spots from the i ron-rebar, rei nforci ng,  rods started to becom e visi bl e  on the 
Peace Towers outer servi ce. At the sam e  tim e ,  white calcium deposits have shown up leaking down the 
side of the Peace Tower.  I n  the spri ng of 20 1 2  sm all pieces of cem ent have started fal l ing and the towers 
cross m em bers have visible scaring and abrasion on the horizontal connecti ng cross m em bers. We are 
a lso starti ng to see m ajor cracking and fracturi ng i n  the on ground basal structures. As the Peace Tower 
conti nues to degrade, the lPG wi ll have to restrict entry to the base area of the tower and m ake plans to 
deal with the future removal of the towers. 

No professi onal engineeri ng study h as been undertaken to date. We h ave had two independent 
contractors offer opi ni ons concerning the towers. They both suggested that the towers would conti nue to 
degrade and eventually become unsafe for pedestria n  traffic u nderneath them on the floor base. 

We have determi ned that the origi nal construction tender was for $ 1 , 350,000 i n  1 980. If the Peace Tower 
were constructed now in 20 1 3, the associated cost would be $6, 356,054 USD ( if  designed & tendered 
sum m er 20 1 3) 

It has now been 30-years since constructi on was com pleted.  We want to fi nd out through an engineeri ng 
study how we can m a ke this tower l ast for many, m any m ore years or consi der the costs of removing it 
com pi etel y. 

Moreover, over hundreds of thousands of visitors hav e come to the I nternati onal Peace Garden to see this 
" Iconic Peace Tower" looking across the State of North Dakota from its Northern Border. 

Infrastructure Requirements 
Water system 
Sewer System 
Roads,  Ditches & Throughways 
Desi gn 
General Contractor 
Soft Costs 
Total Costs 

$ 1 , 500,000 
$ 1 ,075,000 
$ 875,000 
$ 245,000 
$ 245,000 
$ 276,000 
$ 4,41 6,000 

The sewer waste and water systems, were insta l led and renovated from the 1 930's and 1 950's, with the 
current syste ms being developed in the late 1 970,s and early, 1 980's. 

These are our pri m a ry and only sources to supply our needs. At this time, there i s  no County source for 
water supply or sewage evacuation available to the I nternational Peace Garden { lPG) 

We recently com pleted a W ater & Wastewater Assessment hiri ng the firm AECO M/Earth Tech working 
from two of thei r offi ce sites i n  Minneapolis-St Paul , Minnesota and Winnipeg, M anitoba. We completed 
p ipe evaluation i nspected several m ai n  water unions, com pleted geotechnical tests and usage calculations 
to determi ne our needs. Two reports were com pi led supporti ng the i dentified costs: 

( i )  Waste water System Assessment for t h e  lPG 

( i i )  Water Assessment for t h e  l P G  

We bel ieve adequate planning h a s  been com pl eted for this project b y  consulting i ndustry experts. We do 
not feel that we need to i ncur m ore, expl oratory costs. We bel i eve that there i s  an opportunity to h ave 
these costs shared with Ma nitoba. 

These system s are privately operated by the lPG and we have no other sources for water or treatm ent of 
wastewater av ailable to us from Rolette County. Without these systems i n  operation , the Peace Garden 
would not be a ble to conti nue to operate. 

Respectful ly, 
Doug H evenor, CEO 

10939 Hwy 281 

Dunseith, ND 58329-9445 

(701) 263-4390 

Toll Free (888) 432-6733 

FAX (701) 263-3169 

P.O. Box 419 

Boissevain, MB ROK OEO 
(204) 534-2510 



F R I E N D S O F  

LAKE SAKAKAWEA 
P.O. Box 309 Garrison,  North Dakota ' 58540 friend s @ lakesakakawea.com www.lakesakakawea.com 

February, 20 1 3  

O n  January 1 5 , 20 1 3  the ND Parks and Recreation Department's appropriations bill (HB 1 0 1 9) was heard 

by the House Appropriations Committee's  Education and Environment Division, the chair of which is 

Rep. Bob Skarpol and vice chair is Rep. Dave Monson. Late in the presentation by Parks senior staff, the 

questions turned to their intended purchase of Captain Kit's Marina at Lake Sakakawea State Park. 

Said purchase is very much up in the air at this point, they said. What I leamed from the Parks 

presentation and from conversations thereafter is that the Parks appropriation bill shows up to $800,000 

coming from "other funds" or, more specifically, the Parks' oil royalty fund. That fund cunently has 

about $ 1 .2 million in it and the funds to purchase Captain Kit's docks, if there is an agreement to do so 

and if that portion of the Parks appropriation bill passes into law as written, would come from there. 

For clarification, this oil royalty fund, derived from the Department's mineral revenues, has been used to 

pay for the following legislatively approved or emergency projects in the past: 

Augment and complete electrical service on the Garrison Bay marin.a docks 
Make emergency repairs on the Ganison Bay floating breakwater

. cables and anchors 
Renovate the HV AC system in the Ganison Bay concession building - original COE design was 
not functioning properly. 
Repair/replace damaged anchor cables on DeTrobriand bay docks 
Complete major road renovations, chip and seal asphalt roads at Lewis and Clark State Park 
Renovate potable water delivery system at Ft. Stevenson State Park 

The intent of the Parks appropriation bill is to insure that no taxpayer money is used to purchase the 

docks. The budget submitted by the Governor calls for $400,000 to come out of that oil royalty fund and 

$400,000 from the general fund; the source of monies in the latter fund being taxpayers. The Parks 

appropriation bill and the Govemor's budget have yet to be reconciled. 

The current Lake Sakakawea State Park marina owners, Kit and Faye Hennegar, were initially asking 

$ 1 .2 million for the operation. No private buyers came forward at that price and so negotiations with the 

state have followed. 

Parks is repmiedly having a very difficult time getting an appraisal and, at this point, no decision has been 

made as to how to proceed. There was some suggestion that the value was $350,000 but a Parks official 

said that was not based upon an actual appraisal and might well be low. They are working to find a 

competent appraiser and come up with a number that is acceptable to both pariies. House 

Committee leadership is also considering amending the Parks appropriations bill to limit payment for 

dock system to no more than the appraised value. Realistically, of course, 

contracts currently in place must be taken into consideration as well. 



Parks testified that they intend to own and operate the marina at Sakakawea State Park, once they acquire 

it, just as they operate the marinas at Foti Stevenson and Lewis and Clark State Parks on the lake. They 

were asked if they would consider a private concessionaire to operate the marina and they said they would 

but were not optimistic about that prospect. 

Private contractors who have operated marinas at state parks in North Dakota have always had a hard 

time making a profit, which is what private contracting is all about. The new Fmi Stevenson marina 

constructed by the federal government in 20 1 0  was operated by a private concessionaire for one year and 

then last year the state took over operations. 

The Garrison Area Improvement Association (GAIA) leased the docks in the DeTroibriand Bay marina at 

Ft. Stevenson for one year in 20 1 1  and then the dock owners sold those docks to Parks. The purchase 

price was based upon an appraisal that all parties agreed to that was conducted by Dock Realty, P OB 8,  

Lake Ozark MO, telephone 573-374-8848, and web site www.dockrealty.com. 

Parks initially set slip rates for both Ft. Stevenson State Park marinas that increased annual slip rental fees 

by 1 50%: 

26 ' - $ 1 ,950 3 0 ' - $2,250 36 '$2,700 40' - $3,000 42' - $3, 1 50 46' - $3,450 

Plus shore power @ $400 and winter storage @ $ 1 5  0 

GAIA would not agree to these prices and a three year pricing deal was negotiated with Parks as follows: 

26' - $ 1 ,43 0 3 0 ' - $ 1 ,650 36 ' - $ 1 ,980 40' - $2,200 42' - 23 1 0  46' - $2,53 0  

Including shore power and winter storage 

The slips at both marinas at Ft. Stevenson State Park were full last year at the above rates. 

For purposes of comparison, Hennegar, at the Sakakawea State Park marina, has required a minimum of a 

three year contract for slip rentals .  One three year contract for a 26'  sailboat at Kit's Marina just ended. 

The annual slip rental fee during the term of this contract was $950 and included trailer and winter 

storage, but not shore power. 

A Parks staffer stated at the legislative hearing that if and when Parks takes over the Sakakawea State 

Park marina the slip fees will be consistent with those at their other state operated marinas on the lake. If 

the state does purchase the docks in the end, it is hoped that the indoor toilet facilities there will be 

opened to the public just as are the outhouses currently provided. 

A related issue that needs to be addressed with Parks has to do with the gin poles located at state parks 

and which are used to raise and lower sailboat masts. A very unfortunate accident occuned a couple of 

years ago when a mast came crashing down during use because no one had been maintaining the gin pole 

at Sakakawea State Park and a sailor was seriously injured. Raising a mast without a gin pole involves 

bringing in a crane, the use of which normally costs around $ 1  000 or so. Use of a crane is unnecessary if 

a properly maintained gin pole is available. 

Prepared by Bill Butcher, bill.wtba@midconetwork.com, 224- 1 54 1  or cell 3 9 1 -8267 
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What Is Here Today Is 
A World Class Marina 



F . . .. D 
l/9/2013 

Capatin Kit's Marina 
Attn: Kit Henegar 
P.O. Box 61 6  
Riverdale, ND 58565 

Re: Captain Kit's Marina 

Dear Mr. Henegar: 

FLOATING DocKs MFG. Co . 

Please find listed below budgetary estimates for the marina as requested. 

Budgetary Estimates 

Docks SF $ per S.F Total 

North Shore 5300 40 $212,000.00 
Power Pedestals NS $32,500.00 

Marina Access Walkways 2624 38 $99,71 2.00 

Floating Store/Gas Dock 4250 44 $ 1 87,000.00 
Power Pedestals FS/GD $5,000.00 

**CAD Docks** 4000 30 $ 120,000.00 
**No Utilities** 

Bay Front 8567 42 $359,8 14.00 
Power Pedestals $40,000.00 

24741 $1 ,056,026.00 
*Total Esttmate does not include utilities, fresh water pipe hne, gas pumps, 

sewage pump out facilities, and dry stack building.* 

Sincerely, 

c�. 0 � Christopher Gaughan 

3 0 1 0  W. Morris Street Indianapolis, IN 46241 · Phone: 3 1 7-803-2443 , 800-969-DOCK(3625) · Fax: 3 1 7-803-2444 
\VWW.floatingdocks.com 



Atlantic Meeco 
T H E M A R I N A  C O M P A N Y  

In the interest of servicing our client's needs, we offer the following opinions of probable cost to assist you in 
preparing the figures that you require. Please keep in mind that dock values vary with the design characteristics, 
manufacturer, anchoring system, accessories and more. These opinions are not to be used for legal purposes. 

Atl8lltie-Meeco Standard Docks 

10' X 20' 
1 1' :x. 24' 
12' x 28' 
12' x 30' 
14' x 32' 
14' x 36 
16' x 40' 
1 6' x 44' 
18' X SO' 
20' x 60' 
20' x 70' 
22' x 80' 
24' x 90' 
24' x 1 00' 

Double Sided 
Covered Slips 

$6,247 
$6,873 
$8,277 
$8,91 1 
$9,544 

$10,472 
$13,421 
$15,039 
$18,522 
$23,108 
$26,537 
$39,779 
$45,3 19 
$49,243 

Standard dock prices include 8% sales tax and 500 miles for shipping 
Winch and Cable anchorage 
Concrete Decking 

Accessories 
Gangways 
Mainwalks (Open) 
Ship Store Platforms 
Wave Attenuator 

Electrical Sel'\1ce On Docks 
20' Slip - Min. elec. and lighting 
25' Slip - 1 1 0  each slip and lighting 
30' Slip with 30 AMP service 
40' Slip with 30/50 AMP service 
50' Slip with 50/50 AMP service 

Potable Water System 

Telephone and Cable TV 
Sewage Pump-Out System 

Fnei Doek 
Fuel lines, tanks, pumps, and controls 

$40 per square foot 
$30 per square foot 
$48 per square foot 
$800 per lineal foot 

$1,250/Slip 
$ 1,875/Slip 
$2,650/Slip 
$3,225/Slip 
$4,450/Slip 

$300/Slip 

$300/Slip . 
$22,500 per system 

Small Operations 
Large Operations 

Double�Sided 
Open Slips 

$4,610 
$5,024 
$5,623 
$5,751 
$6,057 
$6,566 
$7,017 
$8,429 
$9,809 

$12,1 1 8  
$13,232 
$20,582 
$22,839 
$24,676 

$175,000 
$250.000 

1501 Eostf/edricAV6111JB • Ma11ester, Oldahoma fJSA 14501 • Phone 918.423.6833 • SolesFox 918.423.3215 



Bay Front System 
This is a ocean front quality system consisting of36 slips ranging in size from 12' x 25 ' 
to 25' x 70'. It is constructed of 12" truss frame galvanized steel with fully encased 
flotation. It is held in place by 1 8  5 ton winches with 9000 feet of 5/8" galvanized cable 
which is attached to 1 8  8'  x 4' 10,000 pound concrete anchors. 

Each fmger is stabilized by an underwater truss system which runs 7 feet deep along the 
entire perimeter of the system connecting each finger to the next one. This consists of 
712 running feet of triangular truss with 80 separate legs connecting it to each fmger. 

There are 16  Marina Power pedestals serving the slips on the system with both 30 AMP 
and 50 AMP power available to the slips. Each slip has fresh water. All electrical wiring 
and metering of the slips is inclusive. 

The system includes the following. 

1 .  7 each 3 5 '  x 3'  fingers 
2. 5 each 30' x 3'  fingers 
3. 8 each 25' x 3 '  fingers 
4. 2 each 40' x 3' fingers 
5. 9 each 45' x 4' fingers 
6. 2 each 50' x 4' fingers 
7. 1 each 70' x 4' finger 
8.  2 each 72' x 4' finger 
9. 1 each 123 '  x 6' Head Pier 
10. 1 each 356' x 8'  Main Walk Way 
1 1 . 1 8  5 ton winches 
12. 9000 feet of 5/8" galvanized cable 
13 .  1 8  1 0,000# concrete anchors with connecting hardware 
14. 712' of underwater triangular trussing 
1 5 .  80 7' connecting legs for truss system 
1 6. 16  Marina Power Pedestals with 30 and 50 amp power 
1 7. All necessary electrical line and water lines for complete system. 
1 8. 8500 square feet of treated decking material 



Floating Store Marina Gas Dock System 

This system is unique to the upper Midwest area. It consists of a custom built deck with 
special flotation and load bearing capabilities to handle a building fully loaded with 
merchandise. It includes sewage disposal system consisting of a pump, holding tank and 
all necessary piping. When holding tank is full, the tank pump turns on and pumps 
sewage into Park lift station eliminating any secondary handling of boat sewage. It also 
includes gas facilities and all piping needed to deliver on water gas to boaters. It is a 
State Approved and Corps approved system. There is a 1 0,000 underground tank owned 
by the State Parks which delivers gas to the on water store. There have been pressure 
relief lines installed to eliminate excessive gas nozzle pressure at the dock. 

There is a 16'  x 50' custom building which sits on top of the floating platform to serve on 
water customers. It is complete with bait shop, food serving equipment, inside bathroom, 
shelving for merchandising, cash registers, refrigerator, wall air conditioners, office desk, 
microwave, 2 line phone system and many other amenities. 

The dock also incorporates 3 overnight slips with two power pedestals providing 3 0  and 
50 AMP power and fresh drinkable water to overnight boaters. 

The system is held in place by six 5 ton winches loaded with 5/8" galvanized cable which 
are connected to six 1 0,000# concrete anchors. 

All gas lines, phone lines, water lines and electrical lines are included with system. 

The system included the following. 

1 .  1 each 25' x 41 ' floating patio deck 
2.  1 each 65' x 41'  specially engineered platform for building 
3.  1 each 5 1 '  x 6' slip walkway 
4. 3 each 25' x 3 '  slip fingers 
5 .  6 each 5 ton winches loaded with 5/8' galvanized cable 
6. 6 each 1 0,000# concrete anchors 
7. Gas Pump (2) 
8. 1 each 1 6' x'SO' custom operations building and all inside equipment 
9. 2 each Power Pedestals with 30 and 50 AMP power 
10.  Sewage Pump Out Facilities 
1 1 . 4250 square feet of treated decking 



North Shore System Aluminum 
This is a World Class III Aluminum System. Very low maintenance and no rust. It 
consists of 25 slips ranging in size from 12' x 25' to 16'  x 70' .  This system is designed 
to follow the water up or down the North Shoreline of the Marina. It is held in place by 4 
40 foot long triangular stiff arms which can be raised and lowered by a tower system. 
The towers are connected to pental hitches on land based anchors which are heavy steel I 
beam material. The I beams have adjustable positioning for the stiff arms at different 
water levels making for a very secure system. This particular system is longer than a 
football field measuring in at 407 feet long from East To West. It is all aluminum with 
fully encased flotation. Utilities are provided by Midwest Marine pedestals having 30 
and 50 AMP power. Each slip has fresh drinkable water provided by a separate water 
line running along the leading edge of the dock. All fingers are stabilized by an 
underwater truss system which runs along the entire length of the system connecting each 
dock to the next one providing a very stiff system. All water lines electrical lines and 
anchoring equipment are included with this system. 

This system includes the following. 

1 .  1 3  each 25' x 3 '  fingers 
2. 3 each 30' x 3' fmgers 
3. 2 each 35'  x 3'  fingers 
4. 3 each 40' x 3' fingers 
5.  3 each 40' x 3 '  fingers 
6. 2 each 70' x 4' fingers 
7. 1 each 407' x 6' Main Walkway 
8. 4 each 40 Foot Triangular Heavy Aluminum stiff arms 
9. 4 each lifting towers for stiff arms 
1 0. 5 I beam land anchors with adjustable hookups 
1 1 . 407 feet of aluminum triangular underwater truss 
12. 52 each aluminum truss connector legs 
13 .  1 3  Midwest Marine power pedestals with 30 and 50 AMP power 
1 4. 5300 square feet of treated decking 
1 5. 407 feet of fresh water pipe line with faucets 



CAD Docks 
This particular system is an injection molded system. It is very strong and versatile. You 
can quickly change configurations on this system with just a 9/1 6' socket. These are 
entry level docks with no electrical or water to them. They can quickly be moved to any 
area of the Marina and are used to connect the North Shore and Bay Front System 
together providing an integrated Marina atmosphere at any water level. These are 0 
Maintenance docks which provide great protection to boaters who never need to put out a 
boat fender to protect their boats. Since these are molded docks, there is nothing which 
can hurt a customer's boat. When Captain Kit's Marina purchased this system we went 
ahead and had a custom aluminum truss system built to stabilize the system. Since the 
company did not offer the truss system we had an aluminum specialty company build it 
for us. The truss stabilizes the system making for a very unitized dock. 

This system includes the following components. 

1 .  1 22 4'  x 8' dock sections (4000 square feet) 
2. 3 7 5 dock connectors 
3.  245 feet of custom aluminum underwater trussing 
4. 32 aluminum truss connecting legs custom built 
5. 1 0  pole adapters 
6. 1 custom aluminum comer to angle system into comer 



. . ' 
� 

Marina Access Walkways 
Over the years Captain Kit's Marina has proven it can operate at any Lake Level. We 
have operated this facility from 1 854.9 which is spillway level, all the way down to 
1 805.0 Because of this we have purchased many ramps to accommodate all those 
different levels. With the exception of 2 on land concrete ramps, all of the ramps we use 
here are floating ramps. And, all of the walkways are railed and have attached to them 
utility hangers for running gas lines, water lines, electrical lines and phone lines. These 
ramps are designed to handle heavy loads such as golf carts which makes hauling 
equipment and people with disabilities up and down the ramp system posssible at any 
water level. Our system has proved to be very effective over the years. They have 
provided safe and clean access to our Marina facility. 

Ramps which are included. 

1 .  2 each 25' x 8 '  steel ramps with railing and flotation 
2. 2 each 30' x 6' steel ramps with railing and flotation 
3.  3 each 24' x 8'  steel ramps with railing and flotation 
4. 1 each 50' x 6' custom aluminum ramp with railing and flotation 
5.  1 each 40' x 4' custom aluminum ramp with railing and flotation 
6 .  1 each 40' x 6 '  custom aluminum ramp with railing and flotation 
7. 1 each 1 0' x 4' aluminum ramp 
8.  1 each 20' x 4' aluminum ramp 
9. 1 each 38'  x 6' custom concrete entry land ramp 
1 0. 1 each 40' x 6' custom concrete entry land ramp 
1 1 . 1 33 6  square feet of treated decking 
12. 820 square feet of aluminum decking 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE B I LL NO. 1019 

Page 2, after l ine 30, insert: 

"SECTION 3. EXEMPTION. Up to $400,000 of the recreation l i ne item conta ined in  
subdivision 1 of section 1 of th is  Act is not subject to the provisions of section 54-44.1-11. Any 
u nexpended funds from th is appropriation may be expended during the biennium beginn ing Ju ly 1, 
2015, a nd ending June 30, 2017, for the purposes provided in section 55-08-14.1." 
Renumber accordi ngly 
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North Da kota Com m u nity Gra nt Program 2009-2011 (?;) �;c-

• N o rth D a kota 's  Com m u n ity G ra nts p rovide  fi nanci a l  assistance to po l it ica l subd ivis ions  of the  State of 

• 

• 

• 

N o rth D a kota i n  two d isti nct a reas :  
o Recre at ion Lead ers h i p :  

• 

.. 
I! 

Deve lop new recreat ion progra ms fo r com m u n ities with a popu lat ion of 13 ,000 or  l ess 
Assist sma l l  co m m u n it ies without fu l l  time  recreation staff to h i re staff a n d  develop 
p rofessio n a l  recreat ion programs 
Th e 6 15t Legis l ative Assembly appropriated up to $ 100,000 to this p rogram ,  to be 
d istri b uted over the th ree year assistance per iod .  

o Outdoor Recreation Faci l it ies :  
ll I m prove, ren ovate, or  construct outdoor recre ation faci l i t i es 

• P l aygro u nds, pools, sports fie l ds, cou rts, p icn ic  she lters, cam pgrou n ds, etc. 
"' The 6 15t Legis l at ive Assembly approp riated u p  to $280,000 to th is  p rogram,  to be 

d i str i b uted over the 2009-2011 bien n ium i n  a 2009 fu n d i n g  cyc le an.d 2010 fu nd ing  cycle 
• The leg is lat ion a l l owed for the Recreation Lea d e rs h i p fu nds  to b e  used for 

outdoor  recreation faci l ities if there wasn't a dem a n d  for the  fu l l  $ 100,000 i n  
l eadersh ip  

The N D  Com m u n ity G ra nt i s  a 50/50 match i ng gra nt progra m .  The  loca l  p roject sponsor  h a s  to fu n d  at 
least 50% of the  p roject cost 
I n  ord er  for a p rogra m or p roject to be  selected for fu n d i n g, it must show a need i n  t h e  State-wide 
Co mpre h e ns ive Outdoor Recreation P l an  (SCORP)  for the l egis l ative p l a n n i ng regio n  i n  wh ich the 
p roject or  p rogram wi l l  be d eve loped 
Outdoor Recreation Fac i l it i es G rants projects are scored a n d  sel ected b a s ed on the  p roject region's  
recreation pr io rit ies accord i n g  to the SCORP, us ing the Open P roject Sel e ct ion P rocess 
Recreat ion  Lead e rsh ip  Gra nts a re scored by a com m ittee comprised of r e p resentatives from North 
D a kota Pa rks a n d  Recreat ion Department ( N D PRD)  a n d  the  North Dakota Recreatio n  & Park 

r. 
Associat ion ( N DRP&- -- � 
The match ing  grant p rogram received 50 app l ications  for the  2009-2011 b i e n n i u m  I 

I I I 
• 

o Tota l  Grant F u n d i n g  Req u est:  $ 1,702,852 
Tota l P roject Costs:  $3 ,545,673 

State fu n d i ng of $400,000 fu nded  up to 50% of the project costs for 11  p rojects 
o 2009-1 1  Bie n n i u m  G rant Awa rds :  

• 

• 

"' 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Carson Park Board : Ca rson P icnic Area, $5 ,000 
J a me stown Pa rks & Rec:  Leapa ldt Pa rk, $23,500 
M i n ot Park D i str ict :  Magic Smi les, $75,000 
Park River Schoo l  District :  School P l aygro u n d, $50,000 
Tower City Pa rk Boa rd : Alexander  P a rk, $ 18,966 
Wash b u rn Pa rks & Rec: Renner Pa rk, $20,000 
West Fargo P a rk Distr ict :  Wests ide Pa rk, $ 15,000 
B ismarck Pa rks & Rec :  J aycee Centenn ia l  P a rk, $49,966 
Edge ley Park Board :  Swimm ing Pool ,  $50,000 
G rafton Pa rk Board :  Bark Pa rk, $30,000 
H azen Pa rks & Rec:  R ivers ide Pa rk, $42,568 

• Tota l  Grant Funds  Awa rd e d :  $380,000 
• Tota l  P roject Cost: $2,012, 185 
• Tota l  Local  Match : $1,632, 185 



North Da kota Commu nity Grant Program 2009-2011 

' 

• N o rth D a kota ' s  Com m u nity G ra nts p rovid e  fi nanc ia l  ass ist a n ce to pol it ica l subd iv is ions of t h e  State of 
N o rth D a kota in two d isti nct a reas :  

o Recreat ion Lea d e rsh i p :  
• Deve lop  new recreat ion p rograms for co m m u n it ies with a popu lat ion of 13 ,000 or l ess 
• Assist s m a l l  co m m u n it ies without fu l l  t ime  recreation staff to h i re staff a n d  d eve lop  

p rofessiona l  recreat ion p rograms 
"' The 6 15t Legis l ative Assemb lv  appropr iated u p  to $ 100,000 to th is program ,  to be  

d istr ibuted over the th ree year  assistan ce perio d .  
o Outd oor  Recreation Fac i l i t ies :  

" I m prove, renovate, or  construct outdoor recreation faci l i t ies  
• P l aygro un ds, pools ,  sports fie l ds, cou rts, p icn ic  she lters, campgrou n d s, etc. 

• The 615t Legis l ative Assemb lv  a ppropri ated up to $280,000 to th is program ,  to be  
d istr ibuted over  the 2009-2011 bien n i u m  i n  a 2009 fund i n g  cycle and 2010 fu n d i ng cycle 

• The l egis lat ion a l l owed for the Recreat ion Leaders h i p  fu nds  to be  used for 
outdoor recreat ion faci l it ies if there wasn't a dem a n d  for the fu l l  $ 100,000 i n 
l eadersh ip  

• The N D  Com m u n ity G rant is a 50/50 match ing  grant progra m .  The loca l  p roject sponsor h a s  to fu n d  at 
l ea st 50% of t h e  proje ct cost 

e I n  ord er  for a p rogra m or p roject to be  se lected for fun d i n g, it m ust show a n eed in  t h e  State-wi de  
Com p rehens ive Outd oor Recreation · P l an  (SCORP)  for the  leg is lative p l a n n ing  region i n  wh i ch  the  
p roject or  program wi l l  b e  d eveloped 

• 

Outdoor Recreat ion F ac i l it ies Grants p rojects a re scored a n d  se lected based on  the p roject region ' s  
recreation p ri o rit ies a ccord ing  to  the SCORP, us ing  the Open P roject Se l e ct ion P rocess 
Recreat ion Leadersh ip  G ra nts a re scored by a committee  com p rised of representatives fro m N o rth  
Da kota Pa rks and  Recreation Departm e nt ( N DPRD)  a n d  t h e  N o rth Dakota Recreation & Park 
Associat ion ( N DRPA 

' • The match ing  grant p rogram rece ived 50 app l icat ions fo r the  2009-2011 b i e n n i u m  

1/ o Tota l  G ra nt F u nd ing Req uest :  $ 1,702,852 
'------....Q Tota l  P roject Costs : $3,545,673 

• State fu n d i n g  of $400,000 fu nded u p  to 50% of the p roje ct costs for 11 p rojects 
o 2009-1 1  B ien n i u m  Gra nt Awa rds :  

• Ca rson Park Board : Ca rson P icn ic  Area, $5 ,000 
• J a m estown Pa rks & Rec :  Lea pa ldt Pa rk, $23,500 
• M i not Park D i strict:  M agic Sm i l es, $75,000 
• P a rk R iver School Distr ict :  School  P l aygro u n d, $50,000 
• Tower City Park Board : Alexa nder  Pa rk, $ 18,966 
• Wash b u rn Pa rks & Rec :  Renner  Pa rk, $20,000 
• West F a rgo Park D istr ict :  Wests ide Pa rk, $ 15,000 
• Bisma rck Pa rks & Rec :  J aycee Centen n i a l  P a rk, $49,966 
• Edge l ey Park Board : Swim ming  Pool ,  $50,000 
• G rafton Park Board :  B a rk Pa rk, $30,000 
• H azen Pa rks & Rec:  R ivers ide  Pa rk, $42,568  

• Tota l  G rant F u n d s  Awa rd e d :  $380,000 
• Tota l  Project Cost : $2,012,185 
• Tota l  Loca l M atch : $ 1,632, 185 



2013-15 Pa rks Recom mendations r;}Pvv�UJ 
General Federal Parks Other ?dtt �  . 

Description FTE Fund Funds Fund Funds Total Explanation 

1. Seasonal temp salaries 264,000 264,000 Increases seasonal tem p  salaries by $ 1  per year to keep agency on par with 

seasonal staff salaries paid by H i storical Society 

2. Strategic master plans for individual  parks 100,000 100,000 Funding to update master plans for FLSP, FRSP, and one other park 

3. Boat ramp maintenance (80,000) 122,000 42,000 Game and Fish budget assumed continuation of $1 22,000 grant, P a rks 

budgeted at only $80,000 

4. Community grant program 400,000 400,000 Continuation of comm u nity grant program at sam e  level authorized in 

2009. Requested amount was $ 1  m i ll ion. 

5. Seasonal trai l  crew 65,200 65,200 Additional seasonal staff a nd related operation to run a trail maintenance 

crew to rotate between Pembina, Turtle Mtns, and Little Missouri 

6. Administrative assistant temp to FTE 1.00 87,172 87, 172 Long-term temporary staff converted to FTE. H a s  b e e n  requested f o r  past 

two bienniums. Agency requested conversion of 3 ad min a sst's. 

7. One-time extraordinary repairs 

Relocate concession bui lding @ TRSP 40,000 40,000 Includes demolition of old pool support buildings 

Concrete for dump station @ LSSP 35,000 35,000 Eliminate problem of gravel washing into drains 

Marina sta i rs @ FSSP 10,000 10,000 

Vault toilets and fish cleaning stations 7,800 7,800 

Boat ram p  repairs @ LCSP 90,000 90,000 

Total one-time XO repairs 182,800 182,800 

8. One-time equipment 

Wood chipper 30,000 30,000 Avoid rental - rotate a mong parks - added efficiency 

Tractor replacements ,.. 120,000 120,000 Replacement of 20 year old tractors - Reduce repair exp 

Cross country ski trail groomers - p.1 -:.'tu"" Th vt....'- )  120,000 120,000 Replacement of two 30 year old machines 

Crack seal machines 30,000 30,000 Difficult to get bids on small jobs - Rotate among parks 

Total one-time equipment 300,000 300,000 

9. Capital projects 

Road repairs @ LMSP 960.000 960,000 Repair and replacement of 40 year old roadways 

Kit's Marina dock purchase 400,000 400,000 800,000 Parks needs to control operation and remove vendor 

Visitor center @ FSSP 750,000 750,000 N o  visitor center now - Operates out of maintenance shop 

Interpretive exhibits @ ISP 150,000 50,000 200,000 Exhibit space added in 2009-11, but no funding for exhibits 

Campground expansion @ LCSP 520,000 520,000 Campground operating at 100% capacity 

Comfort station replacement @ LSSP 300,000 200,000 500,000 Poor qua lity 40-year old building would need extensive repairs 

Total one-time capital projects 2 .930,000 200,000 550,000 50,000 3,730,000 

10. Federal authority error (5,525,000) (5,525,000) Grant authority was overstated in base request 

1 1 .  Peace Garden operating grant increase 200,000 200,000 Difficultly recruiting staff has led to deterioration of gardens 

Grand Total 

... 1cr.� 
1.00 4,046,372 (5,405,000) 1,032,800 172,000 (153,828) 

����t One-time 3,430,000 
Ongoing 616,372 

\_ 



M BI N A  
ORGE In 2005 Governor 1-loeven, through the support of DDOT, continued to support the Rendezvous Region 

with the Master Plan for Trail Development in the Turtle Mountain and Pembina Gorge Areas. Because of 
this Master Plan, the State ofND, through the NO Parks and Recreation Department, has hired an onsite 
manager to oversee the development and management of the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area. The 
headquarters for the operation is located in Walhalla at the ND Forest Service Field Office. The trail head for 
the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area is located 7 miles west of Walhalla. 

The Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area is being developed in a way new to the state of North Dakota. The 
North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department has developed a mu ltiuse trail system to accommodate the 
three classes of Off-Highway Vehicles (OHVs): dirt bikes, four wheelers, and side by sides. While designed 
for the use of OHVs it is also open to hikers, mountain bikers, horseback riders and birders. It accommodates 
OHVs up to 60 inches wide. The trail currently consists of a 24 mile looped network of trai ls. More 
traditional, non-motorized trail opportunities are in the works for 20 1 3. Also included in the Pembina Gorge 
State Recreation Area is the Tetrault Woods State Forest, located south and west of Walhalla. The NDPRD 
has assumed management of the recreational aspect of the forest due to the trail aspects and on-site 
management. Thus far, the NDPRD has completed trail enhancements which included a floating bridge 
across a beaver pond and trail repairs to provide an unforgettable walk through the woods 

The City of Walhalla recently completed some beautiful scenic overlooks along the Rendezvous Region 
Backway showcasing the Pembina River Gorge. In addition to the ecotourism development in the area, there 
is also plenty of orth Dakota history on display at the Gingras Trading Post, the Kittson Trading Post, 
Icelandic State Park, Pioneer Heritage Center, Gunlogson Homestead and Nature Preserve, and the Pembina 
State Museum. 

As we look to the continued development of the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area an adequate and 
appropriate management regime needs to be developed and closely monitored. The ND Parks and Recreation 
Department is already ensuring that the natural areas used for ecotourism remain in a conserved natural state 
for future generations to enjoy. But, they need the infrastructure and tools to continue to grow and develop in 
an environment visible to the general public to provide a year round family adventure. 

To date the State ofNorth Dakota has invested $430,000.00 in appropriated funds and an additional 
$4 1 0,000.00 has been" received from the Recreational Trails Program through the Federal Highway 
Department in the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area for development in the area.· 

It is imperative that development continues in ways that foster support fo r 
the protection and sensitive use of the Pembina River Gorge, a North Dakota 
treasured resource. Frost Fire Mountain is located in the heart of the 
Pembina River Gorge and has been an anchor and key draw to the 
Rendezvous Region. The entire region has taken advantage :Of the traffic 
Frost Fire provides by developing and expanding attraction� throughout the 
area. Frost Fire would provide the facilities for a great inte�pretive center of 
the Pembina River Gorge and the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area, 
providing ND Park and Recreation Department a home to expand in NE 
North Dakota where tourism is a legendary journey steeped in hi tory, with 
natural resources, scenic beauty, cultural, and recreation, enhanced through 
nature-based ecotourism. 

The Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area needs a home and the Pembina 
Gorge needs an interpretive center that will provide visitors with a RICH 
� Y P � "R T� Nr �  ""' t h "" t .. "' ""' "' "  .. n "'' t h <>  n .. <> <> t  " t <> f<> nf N fl "R TJ.J n A K{)T A 



Tetrault Wood Scenic Overlook 

Frost F i re Mounta i n  

What is Nature Base Ecotourism? 

/ 
/ , 

Tourism has been identified as one 
of the Jar� st and f: stest growing 
industrjes in1the -worlrl. In 
partitul ar ,�nature.-based ecotouri sm ! 
has been singled Ot!t a� an important 
component of the; tourism h1dustry 
and has expetienced. sj gp.ificant 
growth. Ecotourism is. naturt:(:based 
tourism that involves education and 
interpretation of the natural 
environment and is managed to be 
ecologically sustainable. 
Nature-based ecotourism-attractions . . - " 
provide substantial ec nomic gains, 
retail, and service related businesses 
in and around host c mmun'ities. To 
sustain the growth of toUfism and 
maintain its associated benefits, it is 
important to ensure that :r;esid�nts 
and visitors are satis!ied ·with the 
experiences provided. J, attJ.t-e-based 
and ecotourism compri�s a number . 
of outdoor activities undert&<en by 
tourists in the natural envin;J!unent. 
It ranges from high impact� 
adventure activities such _as skiing, 
snowboarding, and Sn<)\Yl.nobiling, 
four ( 4) wheel ing, r ss-country 
skiing, adventure racing nd biking, 
to more relaxing acti ities such as 
hiking, bir 1 '  aj:ching wildl ifi 
vie ing photography; stargazing, 
camping,, hiJ.<:ing,. hunting, sping, 

. horseback ridin; scenic tours. 
..,..-/ along with cultural, and his�ori al 

experience , and state parks. 
Canoeing and kayaking offers a 
more p rsonal way to c01mect with 
natur . The quiet of being out on the 
water al lows paddlers to experience 
a c loser view of wildlife and 
scenery. 
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DIG AN D  Dl . COVER THE PEMBINA GORGE 

Augu�t 1 9  through Aught 25, 2013 . 
. ld fossils have recently been found m the 

5-� 1lllon-year-o . 
. · At 1 ast for Mosasours, along with sharks, fish 

embma Gorge. e . · J hn fi h 1es were discovered and Identified by Dr. o 
ertebrae and IS sea . 
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· f 
. . s waY during the Cretaceous Age. ExcavatiOn o 

Western mtenor ea . 
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he find will begm m · 

, h Dakota Parks and Recreation Department, and the 
,urvey, Nort h A 25 . W lh l l  are hosting a dig August 1 9  throug ugust , 
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� . · · t ·  ,.. Torth Dakota Geological Survey Paleontology 
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Rendezvous Region Heart of  the Pembina River Gorge 
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PE M B I N A  GORGE 

The Pembina Gorge extends from the 
Canadian border west of Walhal la and 
encompasses one of the largest 
unintem1pted blocks of woodlands in 
North Dakota of approximately 1 2,500 
acres and the longest segment of 
unaltered river valley in the state. 
Surging waters carved the Pembina 
Gorge out of soft marine shale's ,  
creating one of the ddepest and steepest 
river valleys in North Dakota. In this 
rugged and sheltered setting, an 
enormous swath of forest is nestled in 
transition zone where three different 
biogeographical provinces come 
together :.. boreal forest, eastern 
deciduous forest and central grassland. 
The Pembina Gorge is home to the most 
extensive oak woodland in the state. It 
also contains extensive wetland thicket 
with notable fauna density, the greatest 
development of birch woodlands, the 
least locally disturbed river system, the 
largest collective area and greatest 
association number of upland shrub 
lands. At least 65 different natural 
d iversity features have been documented 
to be in the Pembina Gorge, including 
30 plant species and 2 1  animal species, 
which are categorized as "rare" in the 
state. Recreation in the Pembina Gorge 
consists of canoeing, hiking, biking 
horseback riding, downhill  ski and 
snowboard area, cross country skiing, 
snowmobiling, hunting, wildlife 
viewing, golfing and birding 
guaranteeing year round family 
entertaimnent. 



P E i\1 B l 1  ':\ RIY E l{ TRAI L 
The Pembina River, located in the northeast comer of North Dakota , 
has the only white water found in the State. Upstream of Walhal la, 

paddlers may find Class I Rapids, despite the easy rating, the fast water an 
rivers bend of the Pembina River in the spring can be chal lenging compan 

• ._ to the water and bends of other North Dakota rivers. The Pembina River 
originates North of La Riviere, Manitoba, flows southeast and enters the 
United States northeast of Langdon, ND. 
From the international border, i t  flows southeast to Walhalla and east to 

Neche and pembina, finally emptying into the Red River of the North. The river valley winding through the hi l l s  is 
known as the Pembi na Gorge. The Pembina Hills fom1 a unique ecoregion, the Pembina Escarpment, within No1th 
D akota and etJcompass one of the largest woodland blocks in the State of North Dakota. 
The Pembina River meanders through the thickly wooded slopes, broad uplands, and isolated tranqui lity, which 
symbol izes N orth Dakota' s  

_
Pem�ina 

,
River valley. It flows. with � beauty and gr�ce distinct!� different

_
than any other 

river in the state. The Pembma River s rocky bed offers mild whtte water expenences. The timbered hi l ls  of the river 
conidor not 0:nly provide a stately scenic backdrop for canoeists, but also host many unique flora and fauna, wi ldlife 
viewing, and' bird watching. The area is  rich in natural history and human histbry. The Pembina River val ley is a wel l­
kept secret, even from many North Dakotans. The valley is dotted with public 1lands and historic sites. Several museums 
herald the ricb history. While canoeing might take only a day of an adventurer' s ti e, there are many trails  to hike, travel 
the Rendezvous Regions Scenic Backway and explore the other recreational opportUnities in the area. 
The City of Walhalla through ND Parks and Recreation Department matched a Recreation Trail Grant and 
installed th ree (3) floating docks along the Pembina River for canoe and kayak! enthusia tic. 

RENDEZVOUS REGION BACKW A Y 

The Rendezvous Region ofN01iheast North Dakota is a special 

place steeped in history, with natural resources, recreation, and 

scenic beauty and cultural.  The cities of Pembina, Walhalla, 

Langdon and Cavalier are the anchor communities of the 

Rendezvous Region. Pembina and Cavalier County comprise the 

boundaries of the Rendezvous Region. Counties and communities 

have joined forces to bring a new focus on their comer of the state 

in order to promote one of the most unique areas in North Dakota. 

The Rendezvous Region has a l l  the 
components to provide ecological and 
recreational experiences unl ike any other 
in North Dakota. It is unique to North 
Dakota as residents and visitors immerse 
themselves in an undisturbed natural area 
with a range of diversity that requires 
continued protection and management. 
The State of North Dakota continues to 
support tourism, the 3 rd largest indu t 
North Dakota, and to maintain its 
associated benefits. It is impo :an 
ensure that residents and visit rs 
satisfied with the "Legendary 
Experiences" North Dakota provides . 
Since 1 996 the State of Nmih Da ota; 
through NDDOT has suppmied e 
Scenic Byway and Backway Pror 
With that support the Rendezvous 
B ackway has continued to expand 
because of these efforts, deve· oping 
scenic overlooks, signage, trai. s�s: m 
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P ROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE B ILL NO. 1 0 1 9  

Page 1 I replace l ine 1 6  with : 

"Natural resources 1 2 17681203 

Page 1 I replace l ine 1 8  with :  

"Total a l l  funds $221742 1 1 79 

Page 1 I replace l ine 20 with: 

"Total general fund $ 1 1  I 1 001647 

Page 21 replace l ines 9 through 1 1  with: 

"Grand total general fund $ 1 1 18741346 
Grand total specia l  funds 1 1 1641 ,532 
Grand total a l l  funds $23 ,51 5 1878 

Page 21 after l ine 1 8 1 insert: 

"Land and bui ld ing purchase 

Page 21 replace l ines 24 through 26 with : 

"Total a l l  funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general fund 

Renu m ber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMEN DMENT: 

House Bi l l  No. 1 01 9 - S u mmary of House Action 

Parks and Recreation 
Department 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

International Peace Garden 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Bill total 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Executive 
Budget 

$27,962,785 
11 ,791 ,835 

$16,1 70,950 

$973,699 
0 

$973,699 

$28,936,484 
1 1  791 ,835 

$17 , 144,649 

House 
Changes 

$2,800,000 
0 

$2,800,000 

$0 
0 

$0 

$2,800,000 
0 

$2,800,000 

House 
Version 

$30,762,785 
11 ,791 ,835 

$18,970,950 

$973,699 
0 

$973,699 

$31 ,736,484 
11 ,791 ,835 

$19,944,649 

9 1265 1 8 1 9 

$810201606 

$7 18701 303 

$81 0701303 
1 50,303 

$812201606 

0 

$51777 12 1 0 
1,028,000 

$41749 12 1 0 

House Bi l l  No. 1 0 1 9  - Parks and Recreation Department - House Action 

Executive House House 

Page No. 1 

2210341022" 

$3017621 785" 

$1 819701950" 

$ 1 9 19441649 
1 1 ,791,835 

$31 ,736,484" 

2 18001000" 

$715 1 2 1800 
1,282,800 

$6,2301000" 



Budget 
Administration $2,719,322 
Natural resources 19,234,022 
Recreation 6,009,441 

Total all funds $27,962,785 
Less estimated income 11 ,791 ,835 

General fund $16,170,950 

FTE 55.00 

Changes 

2,800,000 

$2,800,000 
0 

$2,800,000 

0.00 

Version 
$2,719,322 
22,034,022 
6,009,441 

$30,762,785 
11 ,791,835 

$18,970,950 

55.00 

Department No. 750 � Parks and Recreation Department � Detail  of House Changes 

Administration 
Natural resources 
Recreation 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Land and 
building 

purchase1 

2,800,000 

$2,800,000 
0 

$2,800,000 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

2,800,000 

$2,800,000 
0 

$2,800,000 

0.00 

1 This a mendment provides funding for the purchase, renovation and development of land and bui ldings 
that may be available i n  the Pembina Gorge area for the purpose of an interpretive center and office 
space for Parks and Recreation Department and other state agency employees. 
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-f voM- Lf . 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1 01 8  

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 ,  remove "; and to provide an exemption" 

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 1 1  through 1 3  with: 

"Salaries and wages 
Accrued leave payments 
Operating expenses 
Capital assets 

Page 1 ,  replace l ine 1 5  with: 

"Cultura l  heritage grants 

$9,477,860 
0 

2 ,387,0 1 6  
1 ,620, 736 

504, 500 

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 1 7  through 20 with: 

"Total all funds 
Less est imated income 
Total general fund 
Ful l-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, remove l ines 7 and 8 

Page 2 ,  replace l ine 9 with: 

"Historic s ites exhibits 

$1 4,994,604 
2,900.41 3 

$1 2 ,094, 1 91 
63 .00 

Page 2 ,  replace l ines 1 3  through 1 6  with: 

"State's 1 25th celebration planning 
Total a l l  funds 
Less est imated income 
Total general fund 

Page 2 ,  remove l ines 30 and 3 1  

Page 3 ,  remove l ines 1 throug h  4 

Renu m ber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

House B i l l  No. 1 0 1 8  - State Historical Society - House Action 

Executive House House 
Budget Changes Version 

Salaries and wages $12,208,141 ($913,089) $11 ,295,052 
Operating expenses 2,816,016 (50,000) 2,766,016 
Capital assets 2,01 4,725 (265,000) 1 ,749,725 
Grants 1 ,000,000 1 ,000,000 
Cultural heritage grants 504,500 150,000 654,500 
Yellowstone-Missouri-Fort Union 4,492 4,492 

Comm 
Accrued leave payments 211 332 211 ,332 

$18,547,874 ($866,757) $17,681 , 1 17  

Page No. 1 

$1 ,8 1 7 , 1 92 
2 1 1 , 332 
379 ,000 
1 28,989 

1 50 , 000 

$2,686 ,51 3 
297,058 

$2, 389,455 
5 .00 

0 

50,000 
$1 ,590,700 

650,000 
$940,700 

$ 1 1 ,295,052 
2 1 1 ,332 

2 ,766,0 1 6  
1 , 749,725" 

654,500" 

$ 1 7  I 681 , 1 1 7  
3,1 97,471 

$ 1 4 ,483,646 
68.00" 

50,000" 

1 00,000 
$300,000 

Q 
$300,000" 



Total all funds 
Less estimated income 3,246,503 (49 032) 3,197,471 

General fund $15,301,371 ($817,725) $14,483,646 

FTE 69.00 (1 .00) 68.00 

Department No. 701 - State Historical Society - Detail  of House Changes 

Corrects 
Executive 

Compensation 
Package1 

$6,657 

Adjusts State 
Employee 

Compensation 
and Benefrts 

Package2 

Provides 
Separate Line 

Item for 
Accrued Leave 

Payments3 
($211,332) 

Adds Funding 
to the Cultural 
Heritage Grants 

Line' 

Removes 
Funding for Oil· 

Impacted 
Areas5 

($50,000) 

Removes 
Funding for 
Traveling 
Exhibits' 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Capital assets 
Grants 
Cultural heritage grants 
Yellowstone-Missouri-Fort Union 

Comm 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Capital assets 
Grants 
Cultural heritage grants 
Yellowstone-Missouri-Fort Union 

Comm 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

$6,657 
732 

$5,925 

0.00 

Reduces 
Funding for 
Historic Site 

Exhibits7 

(15,000) 

($15,000) 
0 

($15,000) 

0.00 

($459,386) 

($459,386) 
(49,764) 

($409,622) 

0.00 

Removes 
Technology 
Coordinator 

Position8 
($199,028) 

($199,028) 
0 

($199,028) 

(1 .00) 

211,332 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

Reduces 
Funding for 

State 
Celebration• 

(50,000) 

($50,000) 
0 

($50,000) 

0.00 

150,000 

$150,000 
0 

$150,000 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($913,089) 
(50,000) 

(265,000) 

1 50,000 

211 ,332 

($866,757) 
(49,032i 

($817,725) 

(1 .00) 

1Funding is added due to a calculation error in the executive compensation package .  

($50,000) 
0 

($50,000) 

0.00 

2This amendment adjusts the state employee compensation and benefits package as follows: 

(250,000) 

($250,000) 
0 

($250,000) 

0.00 

Reduces the performance com ponent from 3 to 5 percent per year to 2 to 4 percent year. 
Reduces the market component from 2 to 4 percent per year for employees below the midpoint 
of their salary range to up to 2 percent for employees in  the first q uartile of their salary range for 
the first year of the bienn ium only. 
Removes funding for additional retirement contribution increases. 

3A portion of salaries and wages funding from the general fund ($1 85,972) and from other  funds 
($25,360) for permanent employees compensation and benefits is reallocated to an accrued leave 
payments l ine item for paying annual leave and sick leave for el igible employees. 

4Funding is added to the cultural heritage grants l ine to provide a total of $654,500. The executive 
budget recommendation included $504,500 for cultural heritage g rants. 

Page No . 2 



5Funding included in the executive budget for compensation or housing allowances for employees i n  oil­
impacted areas is removed. 

6Funding i ncluded in the executive budget for traveling exhibits is removed. 

7This amendment reduces funding included in the executive budget for historic site exhibits from $65,000 
to $50,000. 

8This amendment removes the technology coordinator position included in the executive budget. 

9This amendment reduces funding included in the executive budget for the state's 1 25th celebration from 
$1 50,000 to $ 1 00,000. 

This amendment removes Section 5 of the bill which provides for deposit in  the department's revolving 
fund any unspent funds provided for traveling exhibits to be used in the 201 5-1 7 biennium. 

Page No. 3 
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2013-15 

State Employee Compensation Growth Scenarios 

2015-17 2017-19 2019-21 2021-23 

�Growth estimated at 12.1% per biennium �Growth estimated at 7% per biennium 
�Growth estimated at 14.8% per biennium �Growth estimated at 11.3% per biennium 

Salaries and wages amounts in LC memo No. 13.9574.01000 

2023-25 

Growth estimated at 14.8% per biennium \3 $1,579,027,957 
rowth estimated at 11.3% per _!)i(!nnium \4 $1.531.161.766 

$1,812,724,095 
1,704L183,046 

$2,081,007,261 
1.896.755.730 

$2,388,996,335 
2.111.089.127 

$2,742,567,793 
2.349.642.199 

\1 This scenario uses the executive recommendation for 2013-15 for total state employee compensation, excluding new positions and 

retirement contribution increases, and inflates that amount by 12.1% in future bienniums. This scenario assumes total state employee 

compensation, including health insurance, other benefits and temporary salaries, continues to grow at the rate of 12.1% in each future 

biennium. 

\2 This scenario uses the executive recommendation for 2013-15 for total state employee compensation, excluding new positions and 

retirement contribution increases, and inflates that amount by 7% per biennium. State employee salary increases have averaged 3.5% per 

year, or 7% per biennium, during the ten year period from 2003 to 2012. This scenario applies a 7% biennial  growth rate to total state 

employee compensation, including health insurance, other benefits, and temporary salaries. 

\3 This version, based on the executive budget for 2013-15 including new positions and retirement contribution increases, is  inflated at 14.8% 
per biennium. 

\4 This scenario, based on the House compensation plan, takes the House proposal for 2013-15 and inflates it by 11.3% per biennium. 

cu 
1 lJ 

\) 
1 t; 

-it: 
� 



fit IJ..(' I< Z, 'm m� r tfii.AA dt / 
H 8  tot q 
3 - 1�-1.3 

H B  1 0 1 9 :  NORTH DAKOTA PARKS AND REC REATION 
DEPARTMENT APPROPRIATION BILL 
Senate Appropriations Committee 
H a rvest Room 
Thursday, Jan uary 1 4, 2013  

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Committee 

It is my honor as Director of North Dakota Parks and Recreation Depa1iment to present 
testimony on the agency' s appropriation bill . I will take a few minutes to provide a general 
overview of the state parks and then ask division managers to provide a status report of their 
20 1 1 -20 1 3  budgets as well as a review of the 20 1 3-20 1 5  budget recommendations. 

North Dakota State Parks are among the special places enjoyed by our citizens and visitors to our 
state. For almost 50 years the North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department has managed the 
natural, historic, cultural and recreational resources of the parks and recreation areas for the 
enjoyment and benefit of all our visitors. Whether the visitors to the parks and trails come for 
camping, fishing, hiking, biking, horseback riding, historical and interpretive programs, 
snowmobiling, A TYing, the staff of our Department works to provide the best experience 
possible. These natural treasures and activities provided by the Department would not be 
possible without the strong commitment of the Legislative Assembly. I can speak on behalf of 
many of our long time campers and visitors, as well as our staff, in thanking the Legislative 
Assembly for that ongoing support. 

20 1 1 and 20 1 2  provided opportunities and challenges for the parks. 

The floods and rising water levels of 20 1 1 had dramatic impacts on almost every park. The 
continued high water levels at Devils Lake as wel l as flooding of the Missouri, Little Missouri 
and Sheyenne Rivers reduced visitation and camping nights throughout the 20 1 1 season. I am 
pleased to state that although several parks were closed to camping in the 20 1 1 season, every 
park was up and running at full capacity by early summer. Then the summer of 20 1 2  brought 
drier than normal conditions to several parks, but all parks remained open with limited fire 
restrictions. 

Even with these challenges the parks experienced over a million visitors and set an all-time 
camper nights record in 20 1 2 . Outdoor enthusiasts continue to demonstrate their support for the 
parks and recreation areas by their visits. It was a busy two years for the Department. The 
Division managers will provide more details on these topics. 

I will present the general revenue infonnation and will be happy to provide any additional 
infonnation as requested at the conclusion of this testimony. 

A great indication of the continued support and utilization of the parks is the revenue picture for 
the Department. 



The Department continues a l imited promotional effort. A number of printed promotional and 
infom1ational pieces are produced by the Department. The Department also participates in 4-5 in 
state sport shows depending on the show schedules. In 20 1 2  North Dakota Parks and Recreation 
hosted a booth at the state fair with encouraging visitation and interest. Plans are to continue that 
effort in 20 1 3 . 

Several amendments have been added to the Department' s executive budget recommendation by 
the House Appropriations committee. They wil l  be highlighted by Division Managers in their 
respective areas. North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department supports the executive budget 
recommendations and asks for the Senate' s  consideration in reaffirming those provisions. At the 
conclusion of the Department's testimony I would be happy to answer questions on that original 
budget and subsequent changes or amendments .  

Mr. Chairman, I would like to introduce Brad Pozamsky, Department' s  Field Manager, to  cover 
the Park Operations Division. 

Mr. Chainnan and members of the Appropriations Committee, my name is Brad Pozamsky, 
Field Manager for the ND Parks and Recreation Department. I would l ike to review the Park 
Operations Division progress for the current Biennium and address budget requests for the 20 1 3-
20 1 5  Biennium: 

In review, I am proud to report we achieved record visitation and camper nights for the 20 1 2  
season. Visitation exceeded one mil l ion visitors; with camper nights exceeding 67,000 and cabin 
nights over 3 ,200. Reservations for campsites, cabins, meeting facil ities and shelters were also at 
an al l-time high for 20 1 2 .  

State Park special events are a major attraction for visitors. W e  host over 1 00 special events 
annually drawing approximately 250,000 participants. 

Six State Parks were affected by 20 1 1 floods. Fort Abraham Lincoln, Sul ly Creek and Little 
Missouri State Parks were most severely impacted with closures that required extensive 
repairs. All parks recovered and were in full operation by June of 20 1 2 . 

We purchased 2 Skid Steers as one-time equipment purchases; one through general funds and the 
other through park revenues. 

Our seasonal salary starting wage averages between $9 and 1 0  dollars per hour. We did receive 
assistance for seasonal salaries in the last session, however, we continue to fal l  behind other 
agencies and i t ' s  impacting our ability to hire seasonal staff. In addition, the energy boom has 
severely impacted our pool of potential employees in western North Dakota. 

We secured trail leases at Little Missouri State Park for the next 5 years through a general fund 
appropriation. The department owns approximately 1 ,500 acres of land and l eases 4,000 plus 
acres. These land leases allow us to provide an extensive trail system at the park. 



We currently operate two state park marinas on Lake Sakakawea. High water levels increased 
public demand for these faci l ities in 20 1 1 and 20 1 2 . We operate 40 slip rentals at Lewis & Clark 
and 1 05 slips at Fort Stevenson State Park. 

Transitioning to the 20 1 3-20 1 5  Park Operations Budget Request: 

State Parks must replace equipment on a regular schedule to reduce the O&M dollars spent on 
aging repairs. Cycl ic equipment replacement also increases trade-in values to further reduce 
expenses. One-time purchases for the 20 1 3-20 1 5  Biennium includes a wood chipper, industrial 
tractor replacements, cross-country ski trail groomers and a crack seal machine. 

These purchases will allow us to save on rental rates, reduce repairs and the abi l ity to rotate 
equipment between parks for more timely repairs. 

• The wood chipper serves as both a cost savings and efficiency measure. Multiple state parks pay 
rental fees for this equipment on an annual basis .  A one-time purchase al lows us to establ ish a 
shared equipment rotation across the park system. 

• Two tractors have reached their 20-year old l ife expectancy. Following the standard replacement 
schedule wil l  drastical ly reduce future repair expenses. 

• Groomed cross-country ski trail s  are a popular winter activity in 7 of our state parks. Two 
groomers have been stretched to a 30 year-old use period and are wel l overdue in the 
replacement cycle. 

• And final ly, a crack seal machine wil l  allow our staff to complete smaller crack seal maintenance 
requirements. We are finding it difficult to secure bids on the smal ler cyclic repairs and this 
purchase wil l  allow us to rotate equipment between the parks for more timely repairs. 

Our budget recommends we continue the long standing Game & Fish Department maintenance 
grant in the amount of $ 1 22,000. 

We have several long-tenn temporary Administrative Assistants working throughout the state 
park system and are requesting approval to convert one of them to a FTE. The increase in visitor 
use has impacted all  areas of park operations and it is becoming difficult for our field staff to 
perform their duties without full-time administrative support staff. Approval of this FTE wil l  
assist us to maintain regular office hours and improve overall customer service for our park 
visitors. 

Approximately 1 50 summer seasonal positions comprise the park operation ' s  salary budget. 
Seasonal hourly wages and bonuses offered by similar agencies across the state put our 
department at a disadvantage. Approval of a $ 1  per hour increase per year request wil l  al low us 
to compete with other N .D .  job markets. 

This concludes my remarks for the Park Operations Division. 

Mr. Chairman and committee members; my name is Jesse Hanson. I manage the P lanning and 
Natural Resources Division of the ND Parks and Recreation Department. A public investment in 
facil ities and infrastructure of over $80 million in 1 6  state parks is managed by the Department. 



State park roads, util ity services, bui ldings, trails, campgrounds and marinas are maintained at a 
high standard through continual assessment of conditions and primitization of renovation and 
repair projects. Appropriations from the legislative body and other funding sources are critical to 
maintaining this high quality facility and infrastructure investment 

In this testimony, I wil l  provide a brief overview of the current 20 1 1 - 1 3  biennium capital and 
extraordinary repair work completed along with flood recovery and a very successful energy 
conservation grant received by NDPRD, fol lowed by a presentation of the 20 1 3-20 1 5  capital and 
extraordinary budget request. 

F lood fighting and faci l ity/infrastructure recovery dominated the 20 1 1  - 20 1 2  summers. 
Working with FEMA and state park staff, the Planning Division identified approximately 
$600,000 in total damage and flood fighting costs across 6 state parks. After FEMA 
reimbursements, the agency wil l  be responsible for $250,000 for our share of recovery costs. 
These final costs wil l  come out of the Department revenues. 

ND Parks and Recreation's  1 1 - 1 3  biennium capital budget is $4.3 mil lion. $2 .5  mil lion general 
fund dollars were appropriated through the agency capital budget for the majority of the local 
cost share to raise the access road to Graham's Island and Graham's  Island State Park on Devi ls 
Lake. Additional local match of $400,000 was contributed by the ND Game and Fish Dept. and 
$50,000 each from Benson County and the City of Devils Lake's tourism fund. As a prelude to 
this project an economic impact study completed by the Upper Great P lains Transportation 
Institute at NDSU economic model calculated a net positive impact of $85 mi llion over a 20 year 
period would be realized in the Devils Lake region if the access road to Graham' s  island was 
maintained. 

20 1 1 - 1 3  capital projects also include the addition of a 45 site, full service campground at 
Graham' s  Island scheduled for opening in 20 1 3, renovation of the campground electrical service 
and road renovations at Lewis Clark, purchase of the 60 slip dock, ramp and gangway system 
and installation of the electrical service at the Garrison Bay marina in Fort Stevenson State Park 
and the construction of the public shower house at Little Missouri State Park. Al l  of these 
projects were completed and opened to the public in 20 1 2 . Additionally, appropriations for cost 
share for multi - use trail development in 3 state parks along with fiber optic communication line 
instal lation at Fort Lincoln, Turtle River and Lake Metigoshe State Parks. 

The Department received a $30,000 energy conservation grant from the ND Commerce 
Department to install 1 6  "tankless" water heaters in 8 campground comfort stations. In the first 
season of operation, propane costs in these bui ldings were reduced from 35% to over 40% for the 
first season of operation. Total cost savings in propane use in these 8 buildings was over $7,000 
in one year of operation. 

The Department' s  extraordinary repair budget al location in 20 1 1 - 1 3  of $753,4 1 6  is  providing 
funding for park repairs in 28 projects. The majority of the repairs are structural maintenance and 
renovations to facilities. 



Additional ly, the Department received revenue from 900 acres of mineral ownership in 
McKenzie and Mountrail counties in mid-20 1 1 .  The mineral lease funds have been assigned to 
legislatively approved projects, cyclic maintenance and emergency flood repair projects in the 
current biennium and the 20 1 3-20 1 5  budget. 

The division' s  natural resources program is responsible for management of 1 5 ,000 acres of 
Depa1iment owned land, noxious weed control, native grass restoration, tree risk management 
and restoration. In the current biennium the natural resource program oversaw the restoration of 
nearly 1 00 acres of native and non - native grasses in flood damaged park lands along with over 
1 00 acres of native grass and forb seeding in several state parks. Noxious weed inventory and 
control is a major obligation of the natural resource program. Each summer, noxious weed 
infestations are identified and sprayed or biological ly  control led on al l  lands owned or managed 
by the Department. Since 2005 the intensive weed control efforts has resulted in a decline of 
430 acres of land with noxious weed infestation. An ongoing tree risk assessment, removal and 
replanting i s  the responsibi l ity of the natural resource program, assuring safe recreational 
experiences for the public. Over 4,000 tree and shrubs were planted across the park system in 
20 1 2 . 

Last, I wil l  provide a summary of the 20 1 3-20 1 5 capital and extra ordinary repair budget. The 
capital budget request for the upcoming biennium is $3 .7  mil l ion of which $2.93 mil l ion is  
general funds, $200,000 is federal grant funds, $550,000 wi l l  be from the Department revenue 
budget and $50,000 is committed by the North East North Dakota Heritage Association. Projects 
include $928,000 budgeted for the major repair and chip seal of 3 .2 miles of interior roads and 
parking lots at Lake Metigoshe State Park. The roads and parking areas were paved in the late 
1 960's and are in need of significant renovation work. Two building projects; a comfort station 
at Lake Sakakawea State Park and a visitor contact and administrative office building at Fort 
Stevenson State Park are requested. Construction of a 30 site campground addition at Lewis and 
Clark State Park is needed to accommodate the swell ing population in  western North Dakota. 
The Department' s  request includes purchase of marina sl ip docks, gangway ramps and provide 
electrical/water service in the marina at Lake Sakakawea State Park. One half of the dock 
purchase request is general fund and the other half wil l  be park revenues. The Governor' s budget 
recommendation for the purchase of marina docks at Lake Sakakawea State Park was $800,000. 
The budget was reduced to $450,000 in the House Appropriations. The Department requests of 
the Senate Appropriation Committee to restore this budget to the Governor' s recommendation of 
$800,000. 

A budget request is  included which would authorize use of Department revenues to add to the 
NE North Dakota Heritage Association's  fund raising commitment for design, development and 
installation of a natural heritage exhibit in the Icelandic State Park Heritage Center. 

The Department capital budget request included "emergency measures" attached to several 
projects al lowing for project start up upon approval of the agency budget versus 7/ 1 /20 1 3 .  The 
"emergency measures" did not pass when the full House voted on the Department' s  budget. We 
ask the Senate re-instate this measure to enable the Department to start work on critical capital 
projects as soon as possible. 



The Extraordinary Repair base budget for the Department is $876,000 for 20 1 3 - 1 5 . An 
additional $ 1 82,800 authority has been added to the extraordinary repair budget from the park 
revenue fund for one time repair projects 

The agency budget request also includes $ 1 00,000 for master planning efforts in 2 park areas 
along with funding for planning the Department 's  50111 year anniversary in 20 1 5 . 

This concludes my testimony for the capital and extraordinary repairs and flood information 
updates. I wi l l  introduce Arik Spencer of the Recreation Division to provide his presentation. 

Mr. Chainnan, members of the committee, my name is Arik Spencer, Recreation Division 
... Manager for the North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department (NDPRD). The Recreation 
Division is the unit of NDPRD that primarily manages Department efforts outside of the state 
park system. These efforts include administration of the Snowmobile Program, Off-Highway 
Vehicle (OHV) Program and Scenic Byway Program. In addition, the Recreation Division 
manages several outdoor recreation grant program which aid communities in developing new 
parks, playgrounds and trai ls .  

As a review of the 20 1 1 -20 1 3  biennium, there are several key areas I would like to highlight. 

State Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 

The first is the completion of the 20 1 3-20 1 7  State Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan or 
SCORP. The purpose of the SCORP is to measure outdoor recreation supply and demand and set 
regional grant funding priorities for the next five years. Completion of the SCORP also 
maintains North Dakota' s eligibility for federal outdoor recreation grant funding from the 
National Park Service and Federal Highway Administration. Key findings of the study include: 

• More than one out of every two North Dakota households (55 percent) feel outdoor 
recreation is very important and 93 percent feel it is important. 

• Overal l ,  57 percent of outdoor recreation providers report demand for facil it ies and 
activities exceeds supply for their users. 

• Unmet funding needs reported by ND outdoor recreation providers are in excess of 
$ 1 02,000,000 over the next five years. 

Based upon the surveys of North Dakota households and outdoor recreation providers, statewide 
primary priorities included non-motorized trails, campgrounds and playgrounds/picnic areas. 
Secondary priorities include pools and beaches along with sports courts and fields. Tertiary 
priorities were winter sports faci lities and motorized trails .  

Funding for the SCORP came from a general fund appropriation last session, which matched 
funding provided by the National Park Service. The SCORP is avai lable on the North Dakota 
Parks and Recreation Department website. 



Grant Programs 

NDPRD offers two main outdoor recreation grants, both of which are federal ly  funded. The 
Land and Water Conservation Fund reimburses half the cost of facility development, such as 
pools and campgrounds, whi le  the Recreational Trail Program specifical ly  funds 80% of 
motorized and non-motorized recreational trails  projects. These two programs resulted in nearly 
3 mil l ion dol lars, funding 29 projects in communities across the state. Federal grant funding is 
essentially the same as the previous biennium and is anticipated at the same rate for the 20 1 3 -
20 1 5  biennium. 

Trai l Programs 

As part of the Department's Off-Highway Vehicle Program (OHV), The Pembina Gorge State 
Recreation Area celebrated its grand opening this past June. The goal of this project has been to 
develop an OHV trail in the Pembina Gorge, approximately 1 2  miles north east of Walhal la .  The 
recreation area features more than 20 miles of trail with more miles planned for 20 1 3  and 20 1 4. 
Initial public reception to the trail has been strong with average visitation of nearly 1 000 OHVs 
per month. Primary trail users are from North Dakota, Canada and Minnesota. Funding for this 
project has been primari ly through the OHV Trail Fund and federal outdoor recreation grants as 
well as a general fund appropriation several sessions ago. 

The Snowmobile Trail Program saw a turbulent 20 1 1 -20 1 3  biennium with an outstanding 20 1 1 
trail season with al l 2800 miles of trail open to the public, fol lowed by a unusual ly  mild 20 1 2  
season in which only a few of our trai ls  were able  to open, and only for a few weeks. This 
resulted in a $75,000 loss in registration revenue. Looking at this season, weather conditions 
have been s lightly  better with many trail systems opening. 

The Department offers youth safety certification courses and outreach for both OHV's and 
Snowmobiles. Course numbers have held even this biennium with approximately 1 000 chi ldren, 
1 2  and up becoming certified operators with safety outreach efforts reaching approximately 4500 
more riders. 

20 1 3 -20 1 5  Budget Requests: 

Recreation Division related budget requests for the 201 3-20 1 5  biennium include $400,000 for 
the Community Outdoor Recreation Grant Program. This program was first funded by the 2009 
Legislative Assembly, to offer matching grants to local outdoor recreation providers. The 
Community Grant Program funds outdoor recreation facil ity construction, improvement and 
renovation in addition to recreation leadership grants for communities with a population of 
1 3 ,000 or less. Grants typical ly go to small projects that have few other funding options. A 20 1 2  
NDPRD survey of outdoor recreation providers supports this request as over $ 1  02,000,000 in 
unmet needs is anticipated over the next five years. 

In addition, we are requesting funding of $62,500 to establish a Seasonal Trail Crew. The 
seasonal trail crew is needed due to the 60 miles of new trail NDPRD developed over the past 1 0  
years. This crew wil l  be responsible trail building and repair throughout the state park system 



and in select state forests through a 20 1 0  trail management agreement with the State Forester. 
The seasonal trail crew request includes annual funding for three, six month crew members, in 
addition to travel and equipment expenses. 

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my remarks and I would be happy to answer any questions the 
committee may have. 
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The North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department invites you to 
discover the unique beauty and history of North Dakota by visiting its 
state parks, recreation areas and trails. These areas play an important role 
in preserving the state's history and the unique natural features defining 

North Dakota's landscape and heritage. 
The history of the state 

· is largely that of the people 
who inhabited it, and how 
their natural environment 
shaped them. Glimpses into 

lives of those people-the 
Native Americans, the trap­

traders and explorers, 
the homesteaders and 

rar:tcners·-<:an be found in 
many of North Dakota's state 
parks. This guide tells you 
about state parks that preserve 
priceless Native Amet1can 
sites, areas visited by the Lewis 
and Clark Expedition, military 
forts, and ethnic settlements. 

Otl1er parks allow you to 
experience North Dakota's 
landscape and wildlife. Here 
you will find exciting recre­
ational opportunities along 
our lakes and rivers, and unex-

pected wooded valleys, prairie vistas and rugged Badlands. 
Whether you are a returning visitor or new to the state . . .  take the time to explore 

Nortl1 Dakota's state parks. The parks are open all year round for your enjoyment! 

North Dakota State Parks Guide 
North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department 

1 600 East Century Avenue, Suite 3, Bismarck, ND 58503, ph. 701-328-5357 

E-mail-parkxec@nd.gov Web Site-www.parkxec.nd.gov 
The Nortl1 Dakota Parks and Recreation Department's facilities, programs and em­
ployment opportunities are open to all, regardless of age, sex, race, color, disability, 
religion, national origin or political affiliation. Contact us if you need an accommo­
dation for a disability, or for an alternate format of this publication, at 701-328-5357 

or Relay North Dakota TTY Service 800-366-6888. 
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General I nformation 
Entrance and camping fees 

All North Dakota state parks that are 

developed and maintained charge entrance 

and user fees year-round, based on the 

level of services available. In addition, 
user fees may be charged for other special 

services, facilities or activities. 
Fees must be paid upon entering the 

park either to a park ranger or by using the 

park self-registration system. 

Reservations 
Campsite, cabin, yurt and tipi reserva­

tions at North Dakota's state parks can be 

made online or through the call center, at 

800-807-4723. Check the North Dakota 

Parks and Recreation website at, www. 

parkrec.nd.gov, for more information. 

Interpretive programs 
and special events 

On weekends throughout the swn­

mer, most state parks host interpretive 

programs that are fun for the whole family. 
These programs highlight historic, natural 

or recreational features within the parks. 
In addition, state parks host a variety of 

special events that include kite festivals, 

fishing tournaments as well as the ever 

popular Christmas and Halloween themed 

weekends. For a complete schedule of 
events, contact the state park or check the 

North Dakota Parks and Recreation De­
partment website at ww\.v.parkrec.nd.gov. 

Cabins/yurts & group facil ities 
Ten state parks have cabins available 

for rent. Camping cabins (no interior bath­
rooms or cooking facilities) can be found 
at Beaver Lake, Fort Abraham Lincoln, 
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Fort Stevenson, Grahams Island, Icelan­

dic, Lake Sakakawea and Lewis and Clark 

Primitive log cabins are available year­

round at Cross Ranch, while L'lke Meti­

goshe has family-s tyle cabins with kitch­

enettes and bathrooms. Turtle River has 
12 duplex sleeping cabin units equipped 

with batltrooms and bunk beds that can 
be rented individually or by groups, along 

witl1 a kitchen and dining hall. Group 

facilities at Lake Metigoshe include two 

dorms tl1at sleep a total of 1 20, kitchen 

and dining hall. 

General rules 
+ Campsite and cabin occupancy limited to no 
more than 14 days in a 30-day period. 
+ Must be 18 years of age or older to rent pa.rk 
campsites and facilities. 
+ Fires must be contained in designated fire 
rings and attended by an adult at all times. 
+ Can1pfires may be prohibited based on 
rangeland fire dangers. 
+ No pets allowed inside cabins or indoor 
facilities. 
+ Pets must be kept on a leash and attended at 
all times. 
+ Pet waste must be bagged and disposed of in 
an appropriate manner. 
+No smoking in park facilities. 
+ No game or fish cleaning in or around cabins 
or group facilities. 
+ Contact park for restrictions on alcohol use 
and insurance requirements for rental of group 
facilities or shelters. 
+ Use of fireworks prohibited. 
+Metal detecting on state property is not al­
lowed. 
+ Firearms must be unloaded and stored in a 
gun case. Discharge of any weapon or projec­
tile within a state park is not permitted. 
+ . .c\dditional info about facility use policies is 
available either online or at the pa.rk. 



Beaver Lake State Park 

Located on the west shore of Beaver Lake in south central North 
Dakota, Beaver Lake State Park provides a relaxing get-away for those 
wanting to get back to nature. 

The gently rolling prairie 
provides scenic views for 
leisurely walks. In the sum­
mer, the lake attracts visitors 
for boating, canoeing, water 
skiing and fishing. 

Park guests find plenty 
to occupy their time, wheth­
er it's studying the area's 
fascinating history; discov­
ering the plentiful natural 
resource; taking advantage 
of refreshing water sports; 
hiking; mountain biking; 
fishing; or just relaxing in 
the shade of an American 
elm. 

Nearby Attractions: Slade and Long Lake National Wildlife Refuges • 
Whitestone Battlefield State 
Historic Site • Golfing. 

Facilities: 270 acres • 
Camping • Electrical Hook­
ups • Campsite Reservations 
• Showers and Flush Toilets 
• Sewage Dump Station • 
Picnic Shelters • Boat Ramp 
• s,vim Beach • Camping 
Cabins • Mountain Biking. 

Location: Seventeen 
miles southeast of Napo­
leon-3850 70th Street SE, 
Wishek ND 58495, ph. 
701 -452-2752, email blsp@ 
nd.gov. 



Cross Ranch State Park 

Cross Ranch State Park i s  located along some o f  the last free-flowing and 
nndeveloped stretches of the Missouri River. 

A boat ramp and canoe and kayak rentals are available for those wish­
ing to explore this scenic segment of the river, while anglers will find walleye, 
trout, catfish, salmon, pike and bass in its waters. 

An extensive trail system can 
be explored either on foot or on 
cross-conntry skis during the winter 
months. The trails allow access to 
a 5,000-acre nature preserve with 
mixed grass prairie, river bottom 
forests and woody draws. Campers 
can use either the park's primitive 
campgronnd or hike to their camp­
ing spot in a back conntry area. 

The park is a favorite of area musicians and hosts the annual Missouri River 
Bluegrass Festival, a musical extravaganza drawing Bluegrass musicians from 
arow.1d the conntry. 

While Cross Ranch State Park provides only primitive camp sites, the nearby 
Sanger campgronnd has electrical sites and provides boat access to the Missouri. 

Nearby Attractions: Cross Ranch Nature Preserve • Fort Mandan and Lew­
is and Clark Interpretive Center • Knife River Indian Villages National Historic 

Site • Coal Mine and Power 
Plant Tours • Fort Clark State 
Historic Site. 

Facilities: 589 acres • 

Camping • Electrical Hook­
ups (Sanger only) • Campsite 
Reservations • Showers • 

Sewage Dump Station • Hik­
ing and Cross Conntry Ski 
Trails • Cross Conntry Ski/ 

Snowshoe Rentals • Boat Ramp • Canoe/Kayak Access and Rentals • Fishing • 

Year-ronnd Cabins/Yurts • Naturalist and Year-row.1d Outdoor Learning Center 
Programming • Visitor Center. 

Location: 1 2  miles southeast of Hensler-1403 River Road, Center, ND 
58530, ph. 701 -794-373 1 ,  e-mail crsp@nd.gov 
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Fort Abraham lincoln State Park 

Fort Abraham Lincoln State Park is rich in both early Native American and 
military history. 

The visitor center and historic buildings feature exhibits and pro­
grams on the early occupation of the area. On-A-Slant Mandan Indian Village 
with its reconstructed earthlodges depicts the lifestyle of the Mandan, who lived 

here from 1 575-
1 78 1 . In 1 804, the 
Lewis and Clark 
Expedition camped 
nearby and noted 
their abandoned 
village in their 
journals. From 
1 872 until 1 89 1 ,  the 
military occupied 
this site, first under 
the command of 

Lt. Col. George Armstrong Custer. The park features a modern campground 
and picnicking facilities, hiking and biking trails, as well as shoreline access for 
fishing in the Heart and Missouri rivers. 

Facilities: 1 ,006 acres • Camping • 
Electrical Hookups • Campsite Reserva­
tions • Showers and Flush Toilets • Sewage 
Dump Station • Hiking, Mountain Biking, 
Horseback and Paved Interpretive Trails 
• Historian • Living History • Camping 
Cabins • Visitor Center and Historic Build­
ings • Missouri River Natural Area. 

Nearby Attractions: Boat Ramps • 
Golf and Tennis Areas • State Capitol • 
North Dakota Heritage Center • Riverboat 
• Trolley • Zoo • Roughrider State OHV 
Trail 

Location: Seven miles south of Man­
dan on Highway 1 806-4480 Fort Lincoln 
Road, Mandan, ND 58554, ph. 701 -667-
6340, e-mail falsp@nd.gov. 
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Fort Ransom State Park 

Taking its name from a n  1 860s military fort, Fort Ransom State Park 
is located in the midst of the scenic and heavily wooded Sheyenne 
River Valley. 

The river provides abundant op­
portunities for canoeing, fishing and 
bird watching, while within the park 
can be found a short segment of the 
North Country National Scenic Trail. 
During the summer, picnicking and 
camping are favorite activities, while 
cross-country skiing is a popular ·win­
ter sport. A farmstead within the park 
is the setting for the annual Sodbuster 
Days celebration, with demonstra­
tions and exhibits of homesteading 
life. 

Nearby Attractions: Bears Den 
Mountain Downhill Ski Area • Fort 
Ransom State Historic Site • Ransom 
County Historical Museum • Shey­
enne Valley State Snowmobile Trail 
• Sheyenne National Grassland • Sheyenne State Forest • Sheyenne River Val­

ley National Scenic Byway. 
Facilities: 94 7 acres • 

Camping • Electrical Hook­
ups • Campsite Reservations 
• Showers and Flush Toilets 
• Sewage Dump Station • 

Picnic Shelters • Hiking, 
Horseback, Mountain Bik­
ing and Cross-Country Ski 
Trails • Canoe/Kayak Rent­
als • Visitor Center • Corral 
and Primitive Camp Sites. 

Location: Two miles 
north of the community of Fort Ransom-5981  Walt Hjelle Parkway, Fort 
Ransom ND 58033, ph. 701 -973-433 1 ,  e-mail frsp@nd.gov. 
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Fort Stevenson State Park 0 n the north shore of  Lake Sakakawea, this park was named for a late 
1 800s fort that served as a supply depot for other military posts in the 
Dakota Territory. 

Fort Stevenson State Park 
is known as the ''Walleye Capi­
tal" of North Dakota. It's a 
favorite spot for sport..<>men to 
experience the great fishing on 
the lake and is home to the an­
nual Governor's Cup Walleye 
Fishing Derby. 

Boaters will find excellent 
facilities, including two marinas 
- Garrison Bay and de Tro­

briand - "vith boat ramp access, fishing boat rental and boat and camper storage. 
A variety of events are held at the park each year including the Sky Dance 

Sakakawea Kite Festival; CANDISC Bike Tour; and Beach Party. There is a sea­
sonal naturalist providing education programs 

Nearby Attractions: Golf • Tennis • North Dakota Fishing Hall of Fame • 
Power Plant Tours • Broste Rock Museum • ND Firefighter Museum • Wally the 
Walleye, 
ND's largest 
walleye. 

Fa­

cilities: 

549 acres • 
Camping • 
Campsites 
with Sewer 
and Electrical Hookups • Campsite Reservations • Family Cabins • Camping Cab­
ins • Showers and Flush Toilets • Sewage Dump Station • Picnic Shelters • Two 
Marinas • Slip Rentals • Gas Dock • Fish Cleaning Station • Boat Ramp • Boat 
Rentals • Canoe/Kayak Rentals • Hiking Trails • Arboretum • Prairie Dog Town • 
Hiking Trails • Swim Beach • Park Concession • Cross Country Ski Trails 

Location: Three miles south of Cnurison, ND - 1 252A 41st Avenue Nw, 
Garrison, ND 58540, ph. 701 -337-5576, e-mail fssp@nd.gov. 
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Grahams Island State Park 

D evils Lake, North Dakota's largest natural lake, is home to Grahams 
Is1md State Park, named after the first known white settler in the 
area, Captain Duncan Graham. The park offers camping and picnick-

ing facilities. There is a boat 
ramp, with access to the lake 
for fishing and other water 
sports, as well as a bait shop 
and gas facility. The park 
hosts numerous national and 
regional fishing tournaments 
during the year, and offers 
some of the best fishing in 
the midwest. 

The Sivert Thompson 
Activities Center is available for rent and is an excellent facility for large group ac­
tivities. It has seating for up to 1 80 people and is equipped with a wood-burning 
fireplace, indoor restroom, catering area and a large patio. 

Nearby Attractions: Fort Totten State Historic Site • Sullys Hill National 
Game Preserve • Camp Grafton • Golf • Native American Crafts • Lake Region 
Snowmobile Trail • Historic Downtown • Lake Region Heritage Center 

Facilities: 

1 , 1 22 acres • 

Camping • Elec­
trical Hookups 
• Campsite 
Reservations • 

Showers and 
Flush Toilets • 

Sewage Dump 
Station • Picnic 
Shelters • Sivert 
Thompson 
Activities Center 
• Boat Ramp • 

Bait Shop • Hiking Trails • Playground • Camping Cabins • Fish Cleaning Station 
Location: Sixteen miles southwest of the city of Devils Lake - 1 52 S. Dun­

can Road, Devils Lake ND 58301 , ph. 701 -766-40 1 5, e-mail dlsp@nd.gov 
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Icelandic State Park 

S ituated on the north shore o f  Lake Renwick, camping, boating, swimming 
and fishing for nord1ern pike and other game fish are popular activities at 
Icelandic State Park. 

Within the park are 
d1e Pioneer Heritage 
Center and restored 
historic buildings, which 
provide a glimpse of 
North Dakota's home­
steading heritage. An 
early homestead pre­
serves the state's pioneer 
spirit. 

The park includes 
the Gunlogson Nature 
Preserve, the state's first 
dedicated nature pre­

serve. This is a 200-acre natural wooded area along the Tongue River, providing a 
sanctuary for plants, birds and wildlife. 

Nearby Attractions: Golf Course • Pembina Gorge • Pembina County His­
torical Museum • Pembina 
State Museun1 • Northeast 
Snowmobile Trail • Frostfire 
Mountain Ski Resort and 
Summer Musical • State 
Scenic Byway 

Facilities: 9 1 2  acres • 

Camping • Electrical Hook­
ups • Campsite Reservations 
• Showers and Flush Toilets 
• Sewage Dump Station • 

Picnic Shelter • Swin1 Beach 
• Boat Ramp and Courtesy Dock • Fishing Dock • Sledding Hill • Hiking 
Trails • Paved Bike Path • Groomed Cross-Country Ski Trails • Seasonal Natu­
ralist • Playground • Camping Cabins • Interpretive Center and Historic Buildings 

Location: Five miles west of Cavalier on Highway 5 - 1 3571 Hwy. 5, Cava­
lier ND 58220, ph. 701 -265-4561 ,  e-mail isp@nd.gov. 
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Lake Metigoshe State Park 

Nestled in the scenic Turtle Mountains along the U.S./Canadian border, 
Lake Metigoshe is one of the most popular year-round vacation spots 
in North Dakota. 

The small lakes within the park 
provide opportunities for fishing, 
canoeing, boating and swimming. 
A multitude of trails attract hikers 
and mountain bikers. Winter brings 
snowmobilers, cross-country skiers, 
sledders and ice fishing enthusiast.:;. 
Three year-round cabins \.vith kitch­
ens, gas fireplaces and bathrooms 
along with a yurt can be rented by 
the night or week, and group dorms 
(cap. 1 20), kitchen and meeting facilities are also available. 

Nearby Attractions: International Peace Garden & Music Camp • Camp 
Metigoshe • Downhill and Cross-Country Ski Areas • Peace Garden State Snow­
mobile Trail • Golf Courses • Turde Mountains • ]. Clark Salyer and Lords Lake 
National Wildlife Refuges • Rendezvous Region Scenic Byway. 

Facilities: 1 ,551 acres • Camping • Electrical Hookups • Campsite Reser­
vations • Showers and Flush Toilet.:; • Sewage Dump Station • Picnic Shelters • 

Dorms, Kitchen and Meeting Facilities 

Swim Beach • Boat Ramp and 
Fishing Dock • Hiking, Moun­
tain Biking, Snowmobile and 
Groomed Cross-Country Ski 
Trails • Sledding Hill • Warm­
ing House • Canoe, Kayak, 
Snowshoe and Cross-Country 
Ski Rental • Naturalist and 
Year-round Outdoor Learning 
Center Programming • Play­
grounds • Year-Round Cabins 
and Yurt Facilities • Group 

Location: Sixteen miles northeast of Bottineau-#2 Lake Metigoshe State 
Park, Bottineau ND 5831 8, ph. 701 -263-4651 ,  e-mail lmsp@nd.gov. 
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Lake Sakakawea State Park 0 n the south shore o f  Lake Sakakawea adjacent to Garrison Dam, 
Lake Sakakawea State Park offers a wide range of water-based rec­
reational activities and facilities. 

The park has a full-service marina, including convenience store, fishing 
guide services, and 
boat and camper 
storage. Boat 
ramps in the park 
offer deep water 
access to some of 
the best fishing on 
Lake Sakakawea. 
The park also 
features modern 
camping and pic­
nicking facilities. 
Hikers enjoy a seg­
ment of the North 
Country National 

Scenic Trail. Sleeping cabins are available for rent during the camping season. 
Nearby Attractions: Garrison Dam and Fish Hatchery • Audubon Na­

tional Wildlife Refuge • Knife River Indian Villages National Historic Site • 

Coal Mine and Power Plant 
Tours • Golfing 

Facilities: 1 ,293 acres • 

Camping • Electrical Hook­
ups • Campsite Reservations 
• Showers and Flush Toilets 
• Sewage Dump Station 
• Picnic Shelters • Swim 
Beach (contact park for sta­
tus) • Marina • Fish Cleaning 
Station • Boat Ramps • Hik­
ing Trail • Camping Cabins • 

Visitor Center 
Location: A mile north of Pick City - Box 732, Riverdale, ND 58565, 

ph. 701 -487-33 1 5, e-mail lssp@nd.gov. 
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Lewis and Clark State Park 
e towering buttes and rolling hills to Lake Sakakawea provide a rugged 
ackdrop to thi'> park, situated on one of the upper bays of Lake Saka­

kawea. 
Modern boating facilities, including marina with slip rentals and a boat ramp, 

are major attractions. 
Anglers will find excel­
lent fishing for walleye, 
sauger and northern 
pike. Visitors can be­
come acquainted with 
the natural communities 
associated with the park 
by hiking a self-guided 
nature trail. Camping 
cabins with air condi­
tioning, a microwave 
oven and coffee pot are 
available during d1e summer months. 

There is a swimming area for campers near the cabins and a day-use beach at 
the south end of the park 

Nearby Attractions: Buffalo Trails Museum • Fort Union Trading Post Na-
tional Historic Site 
• Fort Buford State 
Historic Site • Golf 
Areas 

Facilities: 490 
acres • Camping • 

Electrical Hookups 
• Campsite Reserva­
tions • Showers and 
Flush Toilets • Sew­
age Dump Station 
• Picnic Shelters 

• Marina • Fishing • Cleaning Station and Boat Ramp • Nature Trail • Camping 
Cabins. 

Location: Nineteen miles southeast of Williston on Highway 1 804-4904 
1 1 9th Road Nw, Epping, ND 58843, ph. 701 -859-3071 ,  e-mail lcsp@nd.gov. 
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Little M issouri State Park 

Litde Missouri State Park contains some of the most rugged, picturesque 
Badlands terrain in the state. 

Most of the park is accessible only by horseback or hiking. Numerous 
wildlife spe­
cies frequent 
the park, 
including mule 
deer, coyote, 
fox, bobcat 
and golden 
eagle. Horse 
rentals and a 
guide service 
are located 
adjacent to 
the park. In 
addition, cor­
rals and well water are available for those bringing in their own horses to ride the 50 
miles of trails. Use of certified weed-free feed is required. 

Nearby Attrac­

tions: Theodore Roo­
sevelt National Park 
(North Unit) • Lake 
Sakakawea • Killdeer 
Mountains • Killdeer 
Mountains Round-up 
Rodeo • Litde Missouri 
State Scenic River (no 
access from park) • 

Killdeer Mountain Four 
Bears Scenic Byway. 

Facilities: 4,592 
acres • Camping • Electrical Hookups • Campsite/Corral Reservations • Vault Toi­
lets • Picnic Shelters • Hiking and Horseback Trails • Corrals • Shower House. 

Location: 1 7  miles north of Killdeer - c/o Cross Ranch State Park, 1403 River 
Road, Center, D 58540, ph. 701 -794-3731 or 701-764-5256 email crsp@nd.gov. 
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Su l ly Creek State Park 

Located in the heart of the North Dakota Badlands, Sully Creek State 
Park is just minutes away from the historic town of Medora and 
Theodore Roosevelt National Park. 

In the early spring, canoeing/kayaking the Little Missouri River is a popu­
lar activity. 

Corrals are provided 
for those bringing in their 
own horses. Horseback 

riders, mountain bikers 
and hikers have access to 
the 1 20-mile long Maah 
Daah Hey Trail, which 
traverses the Little Mis­
souri National Grassland. 
Use of certified weed­
free feed is required by 
horseback riders using the 
trail. For additional trail 
restrictions, contact the Dakota Prairie Grasslands, North Dakota Parks & 
Recreation Department or the National Park Service. 

Nearby Attractions: Theodore 
Roosevelt National Park (South Unit) 
• Little Missouri National Grassland • 

Burning Coal Vein • Medora • Cha­
teau de Mores State Historic Site • 

Little Missouri State Scenic River. 
Facilities: 80 acres • Camping 

• Horse Corrals • Campsite/ Corral 
Reservations • Canoe Access • Maah 
Daah Hey Trail Access • Shower 
House • RV Dump. 

Location: Two and a half miles 
south of Medora-c/o Fort Abraham 
Lincoln State Park, 4480 Fort Lincoln 
Road, Mandan, ND 58554, ph.70 1 -
667-6340 or 701 -623-2024 email: 
falsp@nd.gov. 



Turtle River State Park 

Constructed in the 1 930s by d1e Civilian Conservation Corps, this park is 
located in a beautiful, wooded valley along the meandering Turde River. 
The park features year-round recreational activities, including camping, 

picnicking, hiking, mountain biking, cross-country skiing and sledding. Anglers 
can also practice their fly fishing techniques in the trout-stocked river. 

Perfect for weddings, 
fanilly reunions and other 
group activities is the spa­
cious Woodland Lodge, with 
its kitchen and dining hall. 
Sleeping cabins, equipped with 
bathrooms and bunkbeds (no 
cooking inside), can also be 
rented by groups or individu­
als during the sU111ffier. The 
upstairs of the Chalet/Warm­
ing House is also available to 

rent for just about any type of group function. The CCC Memorial Shelter offers 
a picturesque setting and is popular for wedding and large group picnics. 

Nearby Attractions: 

Golf Course • Larimore Dam 
and Recreation Area • Univer­
sity of North Dakota • Grand 
Forks Air Force Base • Kelly's 
Slough National Wildlife Re­
serve • Prairie Chicken Manag­
ment Area • Oakville Prairie. 

Facilities: 784 acres • 

Camping • Electrical Hook­
ups • Campsite Reservations 
• Showers and Flush Toilets • 

Sewage Dump Station • Hiking, Mountain Biking and Groomed Cross-Country 
Ski Trails • Paved Nature Trail • Outdoor Learning Center • Naturalist and Year­
round Outdoor Learning Center Programming • Sledding Area • Playground • 

Warming House • Sleeping Cabins • Kitchen and Dining Hall • Visitor Center. 
Location: Twenty miles west of Grand Forks on Highway #2 - 3084 Park 

Ave., Arvilla ND 58214, ph. 701 -594-4445, e-mail trsp@nd.gov. 
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Pembina Gorge Recreation Area T:le Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area is being developed in a way 
new to the state of North Dakota. The North Dakota Parks and Recrea­

ton Department is implementing a multiuse trail system to acconunodate 
the three classes of Off-Highway 
Vehicles (OHVs): dirt bikes, four 
wheelers, and side by sides. 

The most recent develop­
ment is a 24- mile looped trail 
completed in the spring of 201 3. 
It accommodates OHVs up to 60 
inches wide. 

More traditional, non-mo­
torized trail opportunities are in 
the works as well. The Tetrault 
Woods State Forest, located south 
of Walhalla, is undergoing some trail enhancements which includes a floating 
bridge across a beaver pond and trail repairs to provide an unforgettable walk 
through the woods. 

Other recreational opportunities in the Pembina Gorge area include hiking, 
mountain biking, horseback riding, bird watching, primitive camping, wildlife 

viewing and canoeing/kayaking. 
Location: OHV Trail is five miles west, a mile north, a mile west of Wal­

halla; Tetrault Woods is two miles south of Walhalla - 1 0 1  5th St Walhalla, ND, 
58282 Phone: 701 -549-2444, email pgsra@nd.gov. 

Indian H i l ls Recreation Area 

Indian Hills State Recreation Area and Resort is operated by a private leasee. 

Amenities include camping, modern and primitive cabins, boat ramp, camp 
store, fishing guide service and hiking, mountain biking and birding trails. 

Nearby Attraction: Broste Rock Museum • North Dakota Fishing Hall of 
Fame • Three Affiliated Tribes Museum • Casino • Golf and Swimming Areas. 

Facilities: 80 acres • Camping • Electrical and Water Hookups • Showers • 
Sewage Dump Station • Fish Cleaning Station • Boat Ramp • Hiking and Biking 
Trails • Cabins • Picnic Shelter • Gas Dock • Overnight Docking. 

Location: Thirty-one miles west of Garrison - 7276 1 4th S treet SE, Garrison, 

ND 58540, ph. 701 -743-41 22, e-mail ksorge@btinet.net. 
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,: ,, : Winter Activities 

Most of North Dakota's state parks are open all year and provide 
an assortment of winter activities, including cross-country skiing, 
snowshoeing, sledding, ice-skating and ice fishing. Many of the 

parks have cross-country ski trails designed to challenge novice and advanced 
skiers. Snowshoers, while not allowed on groomed cross-country ski trails 
within the state parks, can blaze their own trails through undisturbed snow 
during the winter months. 

The state also has 1 4  snowmobile trails, which cover over 3,400 miles of 
groomed and ungroomed trails. The snowmobile season runs from Decem­
ber 1 through April 1 ,  providing the trails have a minimum base of four 
inches of packed snow. 

Conditions for both snowmobile and cross-country ski trails are posted 
on the North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department website, www. 
parkrec.nd.gov, or are available by calling the North Dakota Tourism Division 
at 1 -800-HELLO ND. 

Cross Country Skiing Trail Miles Sled Ice Notes 

Hill  Fish 

Beaver Lake • 5 • 
Cross Ranch 701 -794-3731 MG 1 0  Ski/snowhoe rentals 
Ft. Lincoln 701-667-6340 • 6.75 

Ft. Ransom 701-973-4331 MG 6.5 Warming house 
Ft. Stevenson 701 -337-5576 MG 3 • 

Grahams Island 701 -766-401 5  MG 3 • 
Icelandic 701 -265-4561 MG 5 • • Interpretive center open 
Lake Metigoshe 701 -263-4651 MG 8.5 • • Ski/snowshoe rentals, warming house 
Lake Sakakawea 701 -487-331 5  • 3 • • 
Lewis and Clark 701 -859-3071 MG 4 • 
Turtle River 701-594-4445 MG 7.5 • Chalet/warming house Marked 

State Snowmobile Trails Trai l Miles Location {Info: 701-328-5357/www.parkrec.nd.gov) 

Northeast (Pembina Gorge) MG 41 7.5 Langdon, Walhalla, Cavalier, Edinburgh 
Groomed 

Peace Garden MG 1 90 Bottineau, Rolla 
East Central Valley MG 202 Casselton, Fargo 
Sheyenne Valley MG 286 Jamestown, LaMoure, Ft. Ransom, Valley City, Oakes 
Red River North MG 1 51 .5 Minto, Grafton 
Red River South MG 1 93 Grand Forks, Manvel, Fordville 
Lake Region MG 2 1 6  Devils Lake 
Mayville-Portland MG 74 Hatton, Portland, Mayville, Hillsboro 
Missouri Valley MG 2 1 3  Mandan, Bismarck, Linton 
Sno-Trails MG 351 Minot, Velva, Towner 
North Central MG 1 80 Rugby, Cando 
Southern Valley MG 1 36 Wahpeton, Mooreton 
Cattrail  MG 1 03 Hope 
Sargent County MG 90 Gwinner 
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INTERNATIONAL"(( 

PEACE 
GARDEN 

M a rch 14, 2013 10:00 AM H a rvest Room N o rth Da kota Legislature 

Good M o rning Cha i rman Holmberg and Committee members, 

Do� 1/e.ve_nor 
f{fj !DI Cf 
3 - J l/ - fJ  

I would  l i ke to tha n k  you and North Da kota Parks & Recreation D i rector Mark Zi mmerman for the opportunity to come and 
testify today in support of  H B  1019. My rema rks wi l l  address the State G rant for  the International  Peace G a rden 

D u ring the 62nd Legislative Assembly of the State of N o rth Da kota appropriated $ 1,000,699.00 fo r 2011-2013 fu nding. The 

a l location i ncluded $267,000.00 in  Capital Funding for the Conse rvatory expa nsion and the 911 Stro l l  & Contemplative Gard e n .  

The Basic and t h e  first section o f  t h e  Operational Adjustment portions o f  this budget req u est w i l l  d e a l  with the ongoing 

operational  needs of the l PG .  The cu rrent N o rth Da kota al location is $733,699.00 as established d u ring the 201 1-2013 session.  

Optional Adjustment Request 

We have made a request for an increase of $100,000 annually to the annual  a l location from North Da kota to the l PG for 

$200,000 per b iennium. The Governor's budget suggests this req uest. 

This optional  adjustment request i ncludes two a reas of concern. The funds $200,000 for the B iennium wi l l  target two core a reas:  

1 .  Wages for acquisition and retention of employees. We a re now feel ing the effect of the Ba kken Shale Oil expansion 

as it moves neare r  to Bottineau and Rolette Cou nties and it is becoming harder and h a rder  to retain and locate youn g  l ow wage 

workers to either make a career with us at the l PG or come and work seasonal ly here at the Peace Garden. 

2 .  Enhanced advertising and promotion with our new faci l ities and the spectacular Succulent Collection we need to 
i ncrease our advertis ing and p ro motion for the Peace Garden.  

I n  the Governor's Budget the State provided for this operationa l  i ncrease of $200,000 and we would enco u rage you to approve 
and pass this increase as presently ind icated in HB 1019. 

Capital Requests 

The International Peace G a rden is also made two Capital p roject requests. The fi rst is fo r a p re-appropriation request to 

investigate the best plan of action to deal with the degradation to the col u mns and cross member bea ms of the Peace Tower 
and a second request for Water & Wastewater Infrastructure U pgrades. 

Neither of these req uests were incl uded in  the Governor's Budget. We ask that you consider them and approve them as Senate 
Legislative changes to Capital Appropriations for H B  1019. 

Planning Pre-Appropriation Peace Tower $500,000 

In 1980 the North Da kota H istorical Society, The National Parks Service and the I nternational Peace Ga rden worked jointly to 

p rovide funding for the design & construction of the Peace Tower. 

Our Plan is to work with Kadrmas, Lee Jackson ( KL&J) from Bisma rck North Dakota. KL&J provides a wide range o f  structural 

engineeri n g  services. Their engin eers a re experienced in aviation,  energy, industrial, l a n d  management, transportation and 
water-resou rce management structures. Their  versati le team d esigns with a variety of b ui lding materials incl ud ing a l u m i n u m, 

concrete, and mason ry, steel and wood. They also specia lize in Foundation Design, Structural Load Rating of Existing Systems, 
and Structural Assessments. 

In the past, the NO Legislature has p rovided funding for pre-ap p ropriations. We a re asking for such a pre-appropriation to study 

of the best plan of a ction to deal with this problem with the Peace Tower. We believe that that the P rovince of M a n itoba wi l l  
ass ist in  funding the actual repai r  of the towers so we anticipate these construction costs cou ld be  shared between P rovince a n d  

State. Because o f  t h e  high degree o f  appreciation o f  this structure, we also believe that w e  coul d  b e  successfu l in acq u i ring s o me 
p rivate fun ds towards the future repair. 

The Peace Tower was constructed from 1980 to 1983. In 1984, the base pools began leaking and had to be d ra ined and fi l led 

with rock. I n  the ear ly  1990's the co ncrete floors a nd base started cracking and heaving. Concrete resu rfacing has been ongoing  

to  the sidewalks and floor  basal a rea. In 2011, we spent $25,000 resu rfacing sidewal ks a n d  landings at  o r  nea r the Peace Tower. 



D u ri n g  the winte r of 2011, rust spots from the i ron-rebar, reinforcing, rods started to become visible on the Peace Towers outer 
serv i ce ___ At the same ti me, white ca lci u m  deposits have shown u p  lea king down the side of the Peace Tower. I n  the s p ri n g  of 
2012 small p ieces of cement have started fal l i n g  and the towers cross members have vis ib le scaring and abrasion o n  the 
h o rizonta l connecting cross members. We a re a lso starting to see major  cracking a n d  fracturing i n  the on ground basal 
structures. As the Peace Tower continues to d egrade, the l PG wi l l  have to restrict entry to the base a rea of the tower and make 

plans to dea l with the future removal of the towers. 

N o  p rofess ional  engineering study has been u n dertaken to date. We have had two i ndependent contractors offer opin ions 
concern ing  the towers. They both suggested that the towers would continue to degrade and eventual ly become u nsafe for 
pedestrian traffic underneath them on the floo r base. 

We have determined that the original  construction tender was for $1,350,000 i n  1980. I f  the Peace Tower were constructed now 
i n  2013, the associated cost wou ld be $6,356,054 USD (if designed & tendered summer 2013) 

It has now been 30-yea rs s in ce construction was completed. We want to find out through an engineering study how we ca n 

make this tower last for ma ny, many more years o r  consider the costs of removing it completely. 

Mo reover, over hund reds of thousands of visitors have come to the International  Peace Ga rden to see this " Iconic Peace Tower" 
looking across the State of N o rth Da kota from its N o rthern Border. 

Infrastructure Requirements 

Water system 
Sewer System 
Roads, Ditches & Throughways 

Design 

G eneral Contractor 

Soft Costs 
Total Costs 

$ 1,500,000 
$ 1,075,000 

$ 875,000 

$ 245,000 

$ 245,000 

$ 276,000 
$ 4,416,000 

The sewe r waste and water systems, were i nsta l led a nd renovated from the 1930's and 1950's, with the current systems being 
d eveloped i n  the late 1970,s and ea rly, 1980's. 

These a re o u r  pr imary a n d  on ly  sou rces to supply  o u r  needs. At this time, there is no County source for water supply or sewage 
evacuation ava ila b le to the I nternational  Peace Ga rden ( l PG) 

We recently completed a Wate r & Wastewater Assessment h i ring the firm AECOM/Ea rth Tech working from two of their  office 

sites in M innea pol is-St Paul, Min nesota and W i nn ipeg, Man itoba. We completed p ipe evaluation i ns pected several main water 

u nions, completed geotechnica l  tests and usage ca lculations to dete rmine o u r  needs. Two reports were compi led su pport ing the 

i dentified costs: 

( i )  Waste wate r System Assessment fo r t h e  l P G  

( i i )  Water Assess ment fo r the l PG 

We bel ieve adequate pla nn ing has been comp l eted for this p roject by consult ing ind ustry experts. We do not feel that we need 
to incur  more, exploratory costs. We bel ieve that there is an opportunity to have these costs shared with Ma nitoba. 

These systems are privately operated by the l PG and we have no other sou rces for water or treatment of wastewater ava i l a ble 
to us from Rolette County. Without these systems i n  operation, the Peace G a rden would eventual ly  not be able to continue to 
o p e rate them and continue to meet the State H e a lth code. 

Respectfully, 

Doug H evenor, CEO 

10939 Hwy 281 

D u nseith, NO 58329-9445 

( 701) 263-4390 

Toll Free (888) 432-6733 

FAX (701) 263-3169 

P . O .  Box 419 

Boissevain, MB ROK OEO 
(204) 534-2510 



.�orth Dakota Recreati on & Park A ssociat · lon . ddvan . CJng P Testimony of Ron Merritt arks and 
North Dakota Recreation & Park Association 

recreatiot1 c . t Ot qu I " . 
To Senate Appropriations Committee a tty of l1fe in North Da kota 
In Support o f HB 1019 
Parks a n d  Recreation Department Appropriation 

Thursday, March 14, 2 0 1 3  

Chairman Holmberg and Members of the Committee, my name i s  Ron Merritt, and I am a 

board member of the North Dakota Recreation & Park Association (NDRPA) and director of the 

Minot Park District. NDRPA represents more than 500 members across the state and works to 

advance parks and recreation for an enhanced quality of life in North Dakota. I am here on behalf of  

NDRPA in  support of House Bill 10 19. 

North Dakota's system of publ ic parks and recreation programs is an essential community 

service, encouraging healthy, active lifestyles for our citizens; playing a significant role in advancing 

tourism; and supporting economic growth through increased property values and lower health 

costs. 

ND RPA is currently working with the Department of Agribusiness and Applied Economics at 

North Dakota State University on an economic contribution study for the state's 12 largest park 

districts and the North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department. Although the study is not yet 

complete, the preliminary number for the total annual economic contribution of these agencies is 

estimated at $677 million. This includes direct impacts of $254 million, which encompasses 

participant, spectator, and visitor spending for agency-administered programs, along with 

operational expenditures. Secondary impacts of $423 million are based on the North Dakota I nput­

Output Model, which calculates the total business activity resulting from the direct impacts of 

public parks and recreation agencies. This economic contribution is based on more than 1 million 

visitors to state parks and more than 150,000 participants in park district programs. Further, the 

$677 million impact does not even take into account all of the partner  programs and users who 

would not be able to offer their p rograms without local parks and recreation facilities, such as Babe 

Ruth baseball and youth soccer. 

NDRPA supports the Department's original appropriation for operating expenses and 

capital projects as outlined in HB 10 19. We also ask for the Committee's support for the community 

) grant program and consideration in increasing the amount of funding. This is the only state funding 

1 
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now available for community parks and recreation facilities, including playgrounds, pools, multi­

purpose fields, and trails. This 5 0/50 matching grant program provides the state with a high return 

on investment, as local communities often invest more funds than required and the economic 

contribution of these facilities is significant to the local economy. Further, the need for this 

program is demonstrated in the 2013-201 7 North Dakota State Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation 

Plan, which states that 93 percent of North Dakota households feel outdoor recreation is important, 

while 57 percent of outdoor recreation providers report demand for facil ities and activities exceeds 

supply. Finally, the estimated unmet capital need by North Dakota's outdoor recreation providers 

over the next five years is more than $102 million. 

With the state's strong economy and growing population, the North Dakota Parks and 

Recreation Department and l ocal park districts need sufficient resources to protect our public 

parks. Providing safe, affo rdable, and accessible outdoor recreation opportunities for our citizens 

and visitors is essential to maintaining North Dakota's commitment to a high quality of life. 

We urge a do pass recommendation on the original HB 1019 with funding for the 

community recreation matching grant program of at least $400,000. Thank you. 

2 



i Kathy Stremick, Directo1 �. I City of Walhalla Economic Developmen 
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Heart of the Pembina River Gorg1 
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Walhalla, NO 5828� 

In 2005 Governor Hoeven, through the support ofNDDOT, continued to support the Rendezvous Region 
with the Master Plan for Trail Development in the Turtle Mountain and Pembina Gorge Areas. Because of 
this Master Plan, the State ofND, through the ND Parks and Recreation Department, has hired an onsite 
manager to oversee the development and management of the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area. The 
headquarters for the operation is located in Walhalla at the ND Forest Service Field Office. The trailhead for 
the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area is located 7 miles west of Walhalla. 

The Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area is being developed in a way new to the state of North Dakota. The 
North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department has developed a m u ltiuse trail system to accommodate the 
three classes of Off-Highway Vehicles (OHVs): dirt bikes, four wheelers, and side by sides. While designed 
for the use of OHVs it is also open to hikers, mountain bikers, horseback riders and birders. It accommodates 
OHVs up to 60 inches wide. The trail currently consists of a 24 mile looped network of trails. More 
traditional, non-motorized trail opportunities are in the works for 2013 .  Also included in the Pembina Gorge 
State Recreation Area is the Tetrault Woods State Forest, located south and west of Walhalla. The NDPRD 
has assumed management of the recreational aspect of the forest due to the trail aspects and on-site 
management Thus far, the NDPRD has completed trail enhancements which included a floating bridge 
across a beaver pond and trail repairs to provide an unforgettable walk through the woods 

The City of Walhalla recently completed some beautiful scenic overlooks along the Rendezvous Region 
Backway showcasing the Pembina River Gorge. In addition to the ecotourism development in the area, there 
is also plenty of North Dakota history on display at the Gingras Trading Post, the Kittson Trading Post, 
Icelandic State Park, Pioneer Heritage Center, Gunlogson Homestead and Nature Preserve, and the Pembina 
State Museum. 

As we look to the continued development of the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area an adequate and 
appropriate management regime needs to be developed and closely monitored. The ND Parks and Recreation 
Department is already ensuring that the natural areas used for ecotourism remain in a conserved natural state 
for future generations to enjoy. But, they need the infrastructure and tools to continue to grow and develop in 
an environment visible to the general public to provide a year round family adventure. 

To date the State ofNorth Dakota has invested $430,000.00 in appropriated funds and an additional 
$4 10,000.00 has been received from the Recreational Trails Program through the Federal H ighway 
Department in the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area for development in the area. 

It is imperative that development continues in ways that foster support for 
the protection and sensitive use of the Pembina River Gorge, a North Dakota 
treasured resource. Frost Fire Mountain is located in the heart of the 
Pembina River Gorge and has been an anchor and key draw to the 
Rendezvous Region.  The entire region has taken advantage of the traffic 
Frost Fire provides by developing and expanding attractions throughout the 
area. Frost Fire would provide the facilities for a great interpretive center of 
the Pembina River Gorge and the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area, 
providing ND Park and Recreation Department a home to expand in NE 
North Dakota where tourism is a legendary journey steeped in h istory, with 
natural resources, scenic beauty, cultural, and recreation, enhanced through 
nature-based """''"'""'� 

Recreation Area needs a home and the Pembina 
a.q,,_m1t,&Fpr1et1,ve center that will provide visitors with a RICH rc--.:.i�ifjp���f!Pl��� across the great state of NORTH DAKOTA. 



Tetrau lt Wood Scenic Overlook 

Frost F ire Mountai n  

What is Nature B ase Ecotourism? 
Tourism has been identified as one 
of the largest and fastest growing 
industries in. the worid. In 
particular, 'nature-bas�_<!;ecotourism 
has been singl�d!;out as' cin important 
component ofihe.Jqy�if3m industry . 
and has experiei1�e"c.Esffiniftcant � -'�, 
growth. Ecotour�s'rn-tis:nature:based> 
tourism that invdlves educat(Qn.ano 
interpretation of�he natural 
environment and is managed to be 
ecologically sustainable. . . � 

Nature-based ecotouri�:rp. ·ai6;ac:tions 
provide substantial ecd,i{0fific�g£in�\ 
retail, and service' t�Jhiieil�Businesses · ... . . 

in and around host c��Q±u.t�es. To .. · . 
sustain the growth of toU!j:sm and ·,if. 
maintain its associated bJnefits�' it' is '� 
important to ensure that t�sidenfs: ' 
and visitors are satiMieu �Hfi�ith�·�· ........ -.�"--

experiences providecf:ii:M�!P'r.��baied · · 
and ecotourism compris;�$.f,�;5bm_ber 
of outdoor activities untf�rt�i{en by 
tourists in the natural e�virdiuneni : . 
It ranges from high impacrjm�;: · ;:/:;-"'· 
adventure activities !SUCh as'skiing, 
snowboarding, and . sll.9�fmq�iling, 
four (4) wheeling,"c�9_$��·c9®tcy 
skiing, adventure racil}g\1ri:&�iking, 
to mqre relaxing acti;ities s11th as 
hiking, bii�d��vafe:hing wU:cilife·· ·-'! ·· · · · 
viev.4fi�, Ji��16gf�Bhx.;.ist�gazing, . ,y,�_,0�,·������E campirig; hi�g, JJ.uiiting, ·fisi:Jing, _, 

,.,,.,.., .. ,.N • .., horseb�bJ[ntlJng�·-scenic.:tqtir� - · · . .-. 

along wfltJ, -ctdtural, and lli-sthiical 
experienc�( and state parks'.'' 
Canoeind'and kayaking offers a 
more personal way to connect with 
nature: The quiet of being out on the 
watei� allows paddlers to experience 
a closer view of wildlife and 
scenery. 
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·W�lballa, Nortb_: .Dakota' 
· fo 12· Winnmg:�impkiu. weigh�a�· · · �·" �,. ·h0"63:Pounas ;t · ' 

rown b}<Butch Bourbanis, Wallialla,:ND. 
celebration of ''fu111' with. pumpkin deserts 

1d savory goodiiess . .  H¢licppter rides 
cperiencing ,the fall Joliage,of the Pembina 
orge. Trolley rides to and·> from the scenic 
rerlooks. Biking, hiking and riding the trails 
the Pembina Gorge Recreation State Park. 

1mpkin Hunt in the Tetrault Woods State 
)rest. 

"Save the Date" September 28, 20 13 
'he largest pumpkins grown i n  North. Dakota/ 

I 
r 

DIG AND DISCOVER THE PEMBINA G ORGE 
August 19 through Aught 2 5, 2013 

15-80 million-year-old fossils have recently been found in the 
>ernbina Gorge. At least for Mosasours, along with sharks, fish 
rertebrae and fish scales were discovered and identified by Dr. John 
Ioganason, Paleontologist with the ND Geographical Survey. 
v1osasours were the most fearsome predators, which dominated the 
Western interior Seaway during the Cretaceous Age. Excavation of 
he find will begin in researched. The North Dakota Geological 
)urvey, North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department, and the 
:ity of Walhalla are hosting a dig August 1 9  through August 25, 
:0 1 3 .  Details visit : North Dakota Geologica] Survey Paleontology 
vww.drnr.nd.gov/ndfossil/digs/digs.asp or City of Walhalla 
vww. walhalland.org. 

I 

/iihe.Pembina·Gmge . , . 
. 'Qamidian;border,we�t of WalhaJla and ' �: 

· e]].cornpasses· one of:the la�gest 
.· uriinterrupted blockS of woodhmds in 
N orth D3kota of.�pproxirnately 1 2,5 00 
acres and the longest segrnent of 
unaltered river valley in the state. 
Surging waters carved the Pembina · ' '' 
9orge out of soft marine shale' s, 
creating one of the deepest and steepest 
river valleys in North Dakota. In this 

· rugged. and sheltered setting, an . ·· 

enormous swath af forest is nestled in . . 
transition zone where three different 
biogeographical provinces come 
together - boreal forest, eastern 
deciduous forest and central grassland. 
The Pembina Gorge is horne to the most 
extensive oak woodland in the state. It 
also contains extensive wetland thicket 
with notable fauna density, the greatest 
development of birch woodlands, the 
least locally disturbed river system, the 
largest collective area and greatest 
association nun1ber of upland shrub 
lands. At least 65 different natural 
diversity features have been documented 
to be in the Pembina Gorge, including 
30 plant species and 2 1  animal species, 
which are categorized as "rare" in the 
state . Recre;ation in the Pembina Gorge 
consists of danoeing, hiking, biking 
horseback r�ding, downhill ski and 
snowboard �rea, cross cotmtry skiing, 
snowrnobilip.g, hunting, wildlife 
viewing, goifing and birding 
guaranteeing year round family 
entertainment. 



PE M lH �A RJ VER 'I RA I L  

The Pembina River, located in the northeast comer of  North Dakota, 
has the only white water found in the State. Upstream of Walhalla, 

paddlers may find Class I Rapids, despite the easy rating, the fast water and 
rivers bend of the Pembina River in the spring can be challenging compared 
to the water and bends of other North Dakota rivers. The Pembina River 
originates North of La Riviere, Manitoba, flows southeast and enters the 
United States northeast of Langdon, ND. 
From the international border, it flows southeast to Walhalla and east to 

Neche and Pembina, finally emptying into the Red River of the North. The river valley winding through the hills is 
known as the Pembina Gorge. The Pembina Hills form a unique ecoregion, the Pembina Escarpment, within North 
Dakota and encompass one of the largest woodland blocks in the State of North Dakota. 
The Pembina River meanders through the thickly wooded slopes, broad uplands, and isolated tranquility, which 
symbolizes North Dakota' s  Pembina River valley. It flows with a beauty and grace distinctly different than any other 
river in the state. The Pembina River's rocky bed offers mild white water experiences. The timbered hills of the river 
corridor not only provide a stately scenic backdrop for canoeists, but also host many unique flora and fauna, wildlife 
viewing, and bird watching. The area is rich in natural history and human history. The Pembina River valley is,a .well­
kept secret, even from many North Dakotans. The valley is dotted with public lands and historic sites. Several museums 
herald the rich history. While canoeing might take only a day of an adventurer' s  time, there are'rt;J.any'trails to hke, travel 
the Rendezvous Regions Scenic Backway and explore the other recreational opporturiities,iri the.a±ea!:l·, · 

· ' ·: · · · 

The City of Walhalla through ND Parks and Recreation Department matched a<R�c;eatio�)Fr.�il�Gra.itrand'�' . ��-
installed three (3) floating docks along the Pembina River for canoe and kayak�enthusiastic.,. \,y,;>•··�,; .. :, 

'' 
f , . , , , :· i{c 

RENDEZVOU S  REGION BACKW A Y 

The Rendezvous Region ofNortheast North Dakota is a special 
place steeped in history, with natural resources, recreation, and 
scenic beauty and cultural. The cities of Pembina, Walhalla, 
Langdon and Cavalier are the anchor communities of the 
Rendezvous Region. Pembina and Cavalier County comprise the 
boundaries of the Rendezvous Region. Counties and communities 
have joined forces to bring a new focus on their comer of the state 
in order to promote one of the most unique areas in North Dakota. 

�-

The Rendezvous Region has all the 
components to provide ecological and 
recreational experiences unlike any other 
in North Dakota. It is unique to Nort 
Dakota as residents and visitors i mmers 
themselves in an undisturbed natura ·a e 
with a range of diversity that requires 
continued protection and managemen . 
The State of North Dakota continues to 
support tourism, the 3 rd largest in dust 
North Dakota, and to maintain its 
associated benefits. It is  important to 
ensure that residents and visitors ate 
satisfied with the "Legendary 
Experiences" North Dakota provides. � 
Since 1 996 the State of North D ota, 
through NDDOT has supported the 
Scenic Byway and Backway Progra . .. 
With that support the Rendezvous Region 
Backway has continued to expand 
because of these efforts, developing 
scenic overlooks, signage, trail systems, 
camoing and park services.  



House Bil l  1 0 1 9  
Senate Appropriations 
Hearing, March 1 4, 20 1 3 ,  l Oam 

Chairman Holmberg and members of Senate Appropriations, I am Doug Prchal, resident 
of Bismarck, state park system advocate and park user. 

While I support the ND Parks and Recreation Department Executive budget submittal I 
appear in opposition to the amended section 7 inserted by House Appropriations. 

It frankly surprises me the amended item to purchase Frost Fire Ski Area was approved 
by House Appropriations. The floor vote, however, only passed by a narrow margin. 

My reasoning for opposing section 7 is  the state purchase of a private business and the 
l iabi l ity a purchase l ike this poses to the existing park system. A ski area, restaurant and 
summer theater do not mesh with the mission of the state park system. 

As I understand the proposal, these services will be contracted to private operators by the 
department . Why does the state need to own this property and business interest? Current 
owners could just as easily contract for deed or lease the operations. It appears perceived 
"deep pockets" of the state is a solution to retirement. Approving this purchase would set 
a dangerous precedent, encouraging other business interests wishing to retire. 

All the risk in this venture rests with the state. The contracted operators wil l  provide the 
services and rightly take the revenue for service less a contract fee. These are seasonal 
services so margins are very narrow along with the impacts of seasonal weather. Capital 
repairs and replacement wil l  not fall on vendors, rather the state. The state risks loosing 
operators if fees are too large or additional capital obligations are placed on them. 

A Visitor Center in one of the buildings has been discussed but history indicates Visitor 
Centers do not generate substantive revenue. Contrary to what may be stated about the 
revenue prospects of this purchase, there wil l  not be much revenue going into the parks 
revenue fund from this site. There wil l, however, be significant expenses. 

Pursuing this purchase is not prudent for the ND taxpayer nor is it prudent for the state 
park system. The addition and operation expenses of this proposed property pose 
unknown l iabi l ities. This proposal is a hastily advanced initiative that I fear wil l  be at the 
expense of the existing park system. 

For the sake of the North Dakota taxpayers, park users and existing state park system I 
ask Senate appropriations to remove section 7 from funding consideration in HB 1 0 1 9. 

Respectfully, Doug Prchal. 
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• 

• 

This Building Assessment, Environmental S ite Assessment and 

Appraisal was funded by the Cavalier County IDA, Pembina 

County JDA and administered by the City of Walhalla. 

This proj ect began several years ago through proactive 

economic development strategies in the region to continue the 

efforts and secure the future of many businesses through the 

development of tourism. Economic Developers understand that 

a formal business transition plan puts the goals, priorities and 

strategies in place for a successful exit and transition for both 
the owners and communities . Without a clearly defined plan, 

business owners can leave a regions financial future at risk. 

Therefore, developers especially in a rural area work very 

closely with business owners on transition plans especially when 

a family succession plan is not an option and where the business 

plays a maj or role in the overall growth and future of the region 

and state. 

This is the case with Frost Fire Mountain, there is no family 

succession plan, and Frost Fire being located in the heart of the 

Pembina River Gorge has been an anchor and key draw to the 

tourism industry in the Rendezvous Region. The entire region 

has taken advantage of the traffic Frost Fire provides by 

developing and expanding attractions and services throughout 

the area. 

Business owners, county and city officials know that if Frost 

Fire Mountain is sold to a private party, there is no guarantee 

that it will continue as a recreation tourism attraction, and 



• continue to develop Frost Fire to meet the needs of the growing 

number visitors to the area, thus impacting every rural 

community in its path. Business owners, county and city 

officials also know that there are many people in the Valley that 

would love Frost Fire and could write a check to make Frost Fire 

their family home with a great backyard, and deer stands on 

every corner or another Bar and Gril l .  If this should ever 

happen, the years and money spent on developing and 

promoting the area would be a "natural disaster" with no hopes 

of clean up. 

• 

• 

The Pembina Gorge needs someone to love her, and develop her 

with a disciplined management program and that someone is ND 

Parks and Recreation. ND Parks and Recreation needs the 

infrastructure, tools and a home in the Pembina Gorge to 

continue to grow and develop in an environment visible to North 

Dakotan ' s  and visitors with year round family adventures.  A 

home for education and interpretation. A home to develop and 

manage the wonders of the Pembina Gorge and Frost Fire 

Mountain has all the amenities to become that home, the 

"Pembina Gorge State Recreation Interpretive Center" therefore 

giving North Dakota a must see destination. 

An added advantage is that the business sectors of Frost Fire 

will  be leased to entrepreneurs therefore, directly supporting the 

fixed expenses of the proposed "Pembina Gorge State 
Recreation Interpretive Center" . 



• Executive Summary 

• 

This document includes the Building Assessments, Environmental Assessment and Appraisal, 
for Frost Fire Pembina River Gorge Ski & Snow Board Area and Summer Theatre. 

Frostfire Pembina River Gorge Ski & Snow Board Area and Summer Theatre is for sale. 

The Building Assessments, Environmental Assessment and Appraisal, were paid for by the 
Pembina County Job Development Authority ($ 1 5,300.00) and the Cavalier County Job 
Development Authority ($ 1 5 ,000.00). Kathy Stremick, Director City of Walhalla Economic 
Development coordinated the efforts for the project. 

Tourism has been identified as one of the largest and fastest growing industries in the world. In 
particular, nature-based ecotourism has been singled out as an important component of the 
tourism industry and has experienced significant growth. Ecotourism is nature based tourism 
that involves education and interpretation of the natural environment and is managed to be 
ecologically sustainable. 

Nature-based and ecotourism attractions provide substantial economic gains, retail, and service 
related businesses in and around host communities. To sustain the growth of tourism and 
maintain its associated benefits, it is important to ensure that residents and visitors are satisfied 
with the experiences provided. Natural attractions are widely regarded as key draw card for 
international visitors. Nature-based and ecotourism comprises a number of outdoor activities 
undertaken by tourists in the natural environment. It ranges from high impact adventure activities 
such as skiing, snowboarding, and snowmobiling, four (4) wheeling, cross-country skiing, 
adventure racing and biking, to more relaxing activities such as hiking, bird watching wildlife 
viewing, photography, stargazing, camping, hiking, hunting, fishing, horseback riding, scenic 
tours, along with cultural, and historical experiences, and visiting parks. Canoeing and kayaking 
offer a more personal way to connect with nature. The quiet of being out on the water allows 
paddlers to experience a closer view of. wildlife and scenery. 

The Rendezvous Region in the NE comer of North Dakota has all the components to provide 
ecological and recreational experiences unlike any other in North Dakota. It is unique to North 
Dakota as residents and visitors immerse themselves in an undisturbed natural area with a range 
of diversity that requires continued protection and management. 

The State ofNorth Dakota continues to support tourism, the 3rd largest industry in North Dakota, 
and maintain its associated benefits. It is important to ensure that residents and visitors are 
satisfied with the "Legendary Experiences" North Dakota provides. 

Since 1 996 the State ofNorth Dakota, through NDDOT has supported the Scenic Byway and 
Backway Program. With that support the Rendezvous Region Backway has continued to expand 
because of those efforts, developing scenic overlooks, signage, camping and park services, along • with the other ten ( 1 0) byways that circle the state. 



• 

• 

• 

In 2005 the State ofND, through NDDOT, continued to support the Rendezvous Region with the 
Master Plan for Trail Development in the Turtle Mountain and Pembina Gorge Areas. Because 
of this Master Plan, the State ofND, through the ND Parks and Recreation Department, has hired 
an onsite manager to oversee the development and management of the Pembina Gorge State 
Recreation Area. The headquarters for the operation is located in Walhalla at the ND Forest 
Service Field Office. The trailhead for the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area is located 7 
miles west of Walhalla. 

The Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area is being developed in a way new to the state of North 
Dakota. The North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department has developed a multiuse trail 
system to accommodate the three classes of Off-Highway Vehicles (OHVs): dirt bikes, four 
wheelers, and side by sides. While designed for the use of OHVs it is also open to hikers, 
mountain bikers, horseback riders and birders. It accommodates OHVs up to 60 inches wide. 
The trail currently consists of a 24 mile looped network of trails. More traditional, non­
motorized trail opportunities are in the works for 20 1 3 .  Also included in the Pembina Gorge 
State Recreation Area is the Tetrault Woods State Forest, located south and west of Walhalla. 
The NDPRD has assumed management of the recreational aspect of the forest due to the trail 
aspects and on-site management. Thus far, the NDPRD has completed trail enhancements which 
included a floating bridge across a beaver pond and trail repairs to provide an unforgettable walk 
through the woods 

The City of Walhalla recently completed some beautiful scenic overlooks along the Rendezvous 
Region Backway showcasing the Pembina River Gorge. In addition to the ecotourism 
development in the area, there is also plenty of North Dakota history on display at the Gingras 
Trading Post, the Kittson Trading Post, Icelandic State Park, Pioneer Heritage Center, Gunlogson 
Homestead and Nature Preserve, and the Pembina State Museum. 

As we look to the continued development of the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area an 
adequate and appropriate management regime needs to be developed and closely monitored. The 
ND Parks and Recreation Department is already ensuring that the natural areas used for 
ecotourism remain in a conserved natural state for future generations to enjoy. 
But, they need the infrastructure and tools to continue to grow and develop in an environment 
visible to the general public to provide a year round family adventure. 

To date the State of North Dakota has invested $430,000.00 in appropriated funds and an 
additional $4 1 0,000.00 has been received from the Recreational Trails Program through the 
Federal Highway Department in the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area for development of 
trails. It is imperative that development continues in ways that foster support for the protection 
and sensitive use of the Pembina River Gorge, a North Dakota treasured resource. 
Frost Fire Ski & Snow Board Area and Summer Theatre is located in the heart of the Pembina 
River Gorge and has been an anchor and key draw to the Rendezvous Region. The entire region 
has taken advantage of the traffic Frost Fire provides by developing and expanding attractions 
throughout the area. Frost Fire would provide the facilities for a great interpretive center of the 
Pembina River Gorge and the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area, providing ND Park and 
Recreation Department a home to expand in NE North Dakota where tourism is a legendary 
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journey steeped in history, with natural resources, scenic beauty, cultural, and recreation, 
enhanced through nature-based ecotourism. 

It is our plan that the State of ND purchase Frost Fire Ski & Snow Board Area and Summer 
Theatre, for the appraised value of $ 1 ,  1 79,000.00, plus an additional $50,000.00 for start up. It 
will be managed by the ND Parks and Recreation Department as an interpretive center for the 
Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area to deliver memorable experiences that engage the senses, 
tap the intellect, and enhance the understanding of the importance of protecting and sharing our 
natural resource and cultural heritage so it may be preserved and enjoyed for future generations 

Entrepreneurship Opportunities 
The Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area Interpretive Center will lease to entrepreneurs the Ski 
and Snow Board Area, Summer Theatre and Dining/Food retaining thus creating employment in 
the region. Leasing the vending operation will ensure the State of ND, and the ND Park and 
Recreation Department adequate income to support the day to day operations of the facility, 
utilities, general maintenance, and upgrades, Frost Fire's financial history supports this claim. 

Other potential Entrepreneurship Opportunities 
Bike Rental, Canoe and Kayak Rental, ATV Rental, Snowmobile Rental and Repair Shop. 
Tour Operators, Host Conferences etc. 
Local Artist would have the opportunity to continue the operation of the current gift shop, 

Having ownership of Frost Fire gives the Red River Valley, and North Dakota' s tourism 
industry, the guarantee that Frost Fire will always be a key component in developing ecotourism 
for North Dakota. The increased traffic provides an economic impact not only to the Rendezvous 
Region, which includes Iceland State Park, Pembina State Museum, ND State Historical Society 
site, but for rural communities that travelers pass through making their way to the Pembina River 
Gorge State Recreation Area, Interpretive Center. 

The Rendezvous Region has seen a pattern of visitors that has increased over the past ten ( 1  0) 
years. They are either coming from Medora or traveling to Medora via the Scenic Byways. What 
an effective way of creating new wealth and economic growth across the state, by moving 
money into the rural communities along the ND Scenic Byways offering visitors a Legendary 
Experience. We need to take advantage of these visitors and give them one of the premier 
family destinations in the country, the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area, in the Heart of 
the Rendezvous Region. 

Medora offers the entire family spectacular scenery and dozens of indoor and outdoor 
activities to make their visit a modern "Old West" experience that they will never forget. 

Now let's expand their Legendary Experience with a unique journey across our great state 
to an adventure of nature . 



FROST F IRE  SKI and SNOWBOARD AREA 
www.frostfi reskiarea .com 

Frost F ire is located about 7 west of the city of Walha l la  in  the Pembina Gorge Region of northeastern 
North Dakota . The Frost Fire property of approximately 172 acres conta ins 10 ski runs and two chair 
l ifts; a double and a triple l ift. The vertical drop on the site is 350 feet. There is a lodge bui ld ing that 
provides food and beverage. There is a ski and snow boa rd renta l shop and lounge space on two leve ls. 
There is a ski school avai lab le for begi nners. The faci l ity employs a fu l l  contingent of Ski Patro ls for 
skiers' safety. The site a lso incl udes a tubing area.  The faci l ity is ab le  to make snow and is therefore 
o pen for the winter season beginning in late November or early December and extending through 
March .  

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 



View from the Ski Lift Lodge Bu i ld ing 

Ski Storage at the Lodge Ski Lessons 

Frost-Fire Walhalla, North Dakota 



FROST FIRE THEATER 

www.frostfi retheatre.com 

Frost Fire a lso offers a summer theater experience. The site has a covered amphitheater where 
productions are offered about 6 weekends during the summer Ju ly i nto August. The Amphitheatre has 
approximately 400 seats. The productions are musica ls put on  by the regions'actors and musicians. The 
ven ue a lso offers a l im ited d in ing experience prior to the theatre production .  The loca l a rtisans and 
crafters offer gifts and a rt to  the theater patrons .  

Frost-Fire Walhal la,  North Dakota 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

Amph itheater 

The amph itheater faci l ity was bui lt in 1 988. The facility includes a stage 
with a small back stage area, a small l ighting/sound control bu i ld ing and 
a sloped seating space covered with a large steel truss roof. The faci l ity 
can seat approximately 400 people in rows of molded plastic chairs that 
are attached to a wood and metal bleacher structure. The aisles on the 
sides of the theater are constructed of wooden steps with a wood half 
wal l  running the perimeter. This wal l  has some bowing and 
deterioration .  The stage and back stage are wood framed. The entire 
facility has a metal roof and there are canvas rolled tarps that can be 
lowered to enclose the sides. There is electrical service to the stage 
area and the sound/l ighting enclosure at the back of the theater. The 
facil ity is in  good cond ition overal l .  

View from back to stage Side aisle with half wall 

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 

View from stage 



BU I LDING ASSESSMENT 

Amphitheater 

View of the Seating 

View of the Stage with a set 

Frost-Fire Walhal la,  North Dakota 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

Amphitheater 

STA6E 

CONTROL 
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Frost-Fire Wa lha l la, North Dakota 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

Hattie's Gift Shop 

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 

Hattie's Gift Shop is an old farmhouse, bui lt in 1 928, that was 
moved on site in 1 989. It was a fine house in its day. The 
building was placed on a block foundation/open crawl space. 
This bui lding is only used in the summer time as a g ift 
shop/concession space by local artists. The house is two 
stories and is approximately 1 ,603 square feet. 

The house is wood framed with wood sid ing and an asphalt 
shingle roof. The roof was replaced in 2009. The windows are 
orig inal and in poor condition.  There are several windows that 
are totally rotted away in the corners. Several of the windows 
have leaded g lass panes. The exterior needs to be re-painted. 
The front porch needs some repair as the ends of the porch 
board are deteriorating and the column supports need to be 
replaced. 

Original windows 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

The i nterior original woodwork and wood stair  with its ornate 
rai l ing and balustrade is i ntact. The raised decorative wainscot 
is sti l l  evident in the stairwel l .  The floors are wood. The upper 
floors have the original l inoleum "rugs" in each of the 
bedrooms. The interior wal l  fin ish is plaster. The plaster has 
severe damage from water penetration and as a result of being 
subjected to extreme temperature swings. 

Central Stair rai ling 

Detail of wall panels at stairway 

The bui ld ing has no heating system.  The original brick chimney was removed when the house was moved on site. 
There is a min imal electrical system.  The house does not have any kind of p lumbing system.  

Frost-Fire Wa lha l la, North Dakota 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

Carriage House 

Frost-Fire Wa lha l la, North Dakota 

Adjacent to Hattie's g ift Shop is an old carriage house structure. 
This structure is in poor condition and it has been determined 
that it will be torn down and removed from the site pending the 
sale of the property. 



BUILDING ASSESSM ENT 

H attie's Gift S hop 

D D 

Main Level (Approx. Sq. Ft. = 740) 

CLOSET CL. CLOSET 

CL . 

STORAGE 

Second Level (Approx. Sq. Ft. = 863) 

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 



BUILDING ASSESSM ENT 

Dorm 

The bui lding cal led the Dorm was also moved onto the property. 
This bui lding was orig inal ly a school in Olga, N D. It was moved to Walhal la and served as a convent for the Cathol ic 
Church in Walhal la u nti l 1 995 when it was moved to Frost Fire. The bui ld ing is two stories plus the basement level .  
The bui ld ing is approximately 3, 1 50 square feet. 

The bui ld ing has a central stair accessing al l  levels. It appears that two of the four  upper level classrooms were 
d ivided into small bedrooms at some time, perhaps when it became a convent. There is evidence of the bui ld ing 
having a front and back porch or entry structure at some previous time. The bui lding is now used as a 
dormitory/housing facility for the ski and theater ven ues on site on a l imited basis. The bui lding has a large l iving 
room on the main floor and the remainder of the bui ld ing is divided into sleeping quarters with communal 
toilet/shower facilities. There are plans for future expansion over the years. 

Typical bedroom 

Living room 

Frost-Fire Walhal la,  North Dakota 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

The bui lding was moved onto a basement structure. The basement has a concrete slab and wood foundation walls. 
The exterior foundation walls have treated wood sheath ing.  There is no evidence of waterproofing.  The bui ld ing is 
wood framed with a gable roof. The roof is a standing seam metal system. The orig inal interior double hung 
windows are sti l l  intact and are in fai r  condition.  Metal storm windows were installed at  some time and they are in 
good condition. The windows are in fair cond ition. The exterior has wood sid ing that is in fair condition, no evidence 
of rotting or decay, however, most of the exterior paint is gone. The exterior doors are in poor condition with cracks 
and gaps. There is a newer hol low metal door that was instal led on the second floor that accesses a fire escape. 

Back of Dorm - back entry structure removed 

Fire escape 

Second floor - fire escape door 

F rost-F i re Walhal la, North Dakota 



BUILDING ASSESSM ENT 

The orig inal walls were plaster and the subsequent remodeling to create smaller bedrooms is constructed of wood 
studs and drywal l  with simple ranch casings. There is some wood paneling on some of the walls. The orig inal floors 
are wood and they remain wood. The toilet rooms on the main and upper floors have sheet vinyl flooring in poor 
cond ition .  The cei l ings are al l painted plaster cei l ings. There are minor cracks in the cei l ings. 

Bedroom 

Bedroom - panel wall 

The lower level has two larger bathrooms with 4 shower stal ls each and a toilet and lavatories with a vanity counter 
top.  These rooms are in good cond ition. The floors are concrete. There is a small kitchen in the lower level that has 
a sink, m icrowave, pizza oven and small refrigerator. The remainder of the basement is storage and the mechanical 
room . 

Lower level bathroom Shower Lower level kitchen 

The upper floors have a toilet room on each floor. These appear to be original and are in fair to poor cond ition .  

Frost-Fire Walha l la, North Dakota 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

The bui ld ing is heated with a small electric boiler that suppl ies hot water to 
base board radiation throughout the bui ld ing.  There is an electric water 
heater in the basement also. There is a window air cond itioner in the l iving 
room. 
The bui lding also has a wired fire a larm system throughout. 

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

Dorm 

STORAGE 

KITCHEN 

0 
0 

t-1ECHANICAL 

Basement 
(Approx. Sq . Ft. = 1 ,050) 

Second Level 
(Approx. Sq . Ft. = 1 , 050) 

Frost-Fire Walhal la,  North Dakota 

BEDROOM BEDROOM 

Main Level 
(Approx. Sq . Ft. = 1 , 050) 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 
I 

Pump House 

Pump House 

Pump 

Frost-Fire Walhal la,  North Dakota 

The pump house is at the bottom of the ski runs. This structure 
is wood framed with a gable roof. The roof has asphalt shingles 
in fair condition. There is a single door. The interior has wood 
plywood sheath ing that is painted. The bui ld ing houses the 
pump that pumps water from the river. The water is used for 
making snow for the ski hi l ls .  There is a large electrical service 
that suppl ies the power to the pump. This bui ld ing and 
equ ipment are in good condition.  

Electrical Service 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

Shop 

Exterior 

Exterior - sl iding barn doors 

Interior - sliding barn doors 

F rost-F ire Walha l la, North Dakota 

The shop is a metal bu i ld ing bu ilt in 1 98 1 -1 982. It has a 
concrete floor and is an insu lated metal panel structure. There 
are two large door open ings, a 20 foot wide overhead door and 
a large sl id ing door opening on the end. There is also a 
pedestrian door. There is a 4 foot deep concrete pit in the 
m iddle of the space with a steel g rate over the top. This is used 
to access the underside of equipment to change oil or make 
repairs. 
The bui lding is heated with a small propane furnace and an 
electric un it heater hang ing h igh on the wall near the work 
bench. This bui ld ing is in good condition .  

Pit  inside shop 



BU I LD ING ASSESSMENT 

Shop 

PIT  

(Approx. Sq. Ft. = 1 , 385) 

Frost-Fire Walhal la,  N orth Dakota 
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BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

Lodge Bui ld ing 

The main bu i ld ing on the Frost Fire property is the Lodge Bui ld ing.  Th is  bui ld ing has two construction episodes, the 
orig inal  log structure was bu ilt in  1 975-1 976 and the addition was added in 1 985. The orig inal bui ld ing is two stories 
with the main floor and a walkout lower level .  The addition has three stories, the main level ,  basement and a small 
upper level loft area. The bui lding is approximately 5 1 20 square feet on two floors, plus the 330 sq uare foot loft. The 
lodge bui ld ing houses the ski/boot storage and rental facilities, a small pub area, restrooms and locker rooms and 
storage on the lower level .  The main floor has two very large gathering/lounge areas, the kitchen and a large office 
space. The small loft area is a private space used by the owners. It has a small bath with a shower. 

Main Floor Lounge Space View from the parking area 

Frost-Fire Walhal la,  North Dakota 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

Main Floor Lounge Space 

Detail of the Log structure 

This bui lding is in good to excellent cond ition .  There were no structural issues observed with this bui ld ing.  The log 
structure is in excellent condition .  The 1 985 addition is wood frame and also in excel lent condition . There are 
interior structural wood columns and the floor structure consists of 2 X 1 2  rafters 1 2  i nches on center. The 
basement space u nder the original building has concrete masonry wal ls. The 1 985 lower level was constructed with 
2 X 8 wood fou ndation walls. 
The large windows throughout were al l  replaced in approximately 2009 and are in excel lent cond ition .  The roof has 
a metal panel system in  excellent condition. The exterior walls have an opaque stain in good condition. Three sides 
of the bui lding have a wood framed exterior deck and rai l ing structure. The deck is in fair condition with areas of 
deterioration showing in the ends of some of the deck boards and in the rai l ings. Repairs wi l l  be requ i red to the 
deck with in  the next few years. 

Main Floor Fireplace 

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 
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BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

The interior fin ishes in the lower level include concrete floors and sheet vinyl flooring in the restrooms. The walls 
are either painted or varnished wood board. The cei l ing is a decorative wood panel system or there is no cei l ing .  
The main floor is primari ly varnished wood floor, wal ls and cei l ings with the exception of the kitchen which has a 
vinyl ti le floor and painted wal l  fin ishes. The interior fin ishes are in excellent to fair condition. The flooring i n  the 
restrooms and the kitchen are in fair condition with some cracking and deterioration.  

Lower Level Rental Area Lower Level Lounge Space 

The kitchen is a commercial kitchen with commercial 
appl iances and stain less steel countertops. There is a 
sta in less steel hood with an Ansu l fire extinguishing system.  

Kitchen Equipment: S ix burner commercial range 
Warming oven 
Small  oven 
3 compartment sink 
U nder-counter commercial dishwasher 
Reach-in freezer and cooler 

The bui ld ing is heated with electric forced air furnaces. There 
are 6 -200 amp panels in the bui ld ing supporting the electric 
loads including the kitchen equ ipment and the electric 
furnaces. Outlets are min imal. Light fixtures are simple and 
most often surface mounted. There are several locations 
where l ight fixtures were wired for but no fixture was installed. 
The building has numerous battery operated smoke detectors 
throug hout. 

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

Lodge Bui lding 

EW'N 
(IG&l) 

Barn and Additions 
(Approx. Sq . Ft. = 2,235) 

Main Floor Total 
(Approx. Sq . Ft. = 4 ,965) 

Second Level 
(Approx. Sq. Ft. = 330) 

Frost-Fire Walhal la,  North Dakota 

HAIN LOD6E 
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ADDITIOO 
(IGB5) 

Lodge - Main Floor 
(Approx. Sq. Ft. = 2,400) 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

LOJl-,\SE I ASSEMBLY AREA 

5TORA5E 

Basement 
(Approx. Sq . Ft. = 4,630) 

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 
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BU I LDING ASSESSMENT 

Barn and Add ition 

Barn main floor 

F rost-F i re Walhal la, North Dakota 

The Barn was moved on site in 1 989. This structure is attached to the 
main lodge bui lding with an entry corridor a long the north side of the 
Lodge. The barn houses the d in ing room on the main floor and another 
large gathering space, storage and restroom on the lower level .  The barn 
has an upper loft area but it is only accessible through  a ceil ing hatch. 
There are some plans that would make use of this space in the future but 
they have not been implemented. When the barn was moved in ,  there 
was also an add ition added to the main lodge that expanded the kitchen.  
The barn and adjacent additions is 4 1 40 square feet. 

Addition link to barn 

Compressor for cooler I freezer 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

The barn sits on a wood framed foundation.  The exterior wal l  is constructed on 2 X 8 wood studs with treated 
exterior sheath ing.  This wall is insu lated with fiberg lass batt insulation. There is some evidence of exterior 
pressu re that is causing the separation of the wood studs from the main floor si l l  plate. There is also evidence of 
water penetration on the south side with wet carpet and water damage to the walls and doors in the locker room 
area. 
The floor is structured with 2 X 1 2  rafters 1 2  inches on center. The structure is in  good condition. 

The exterior walls of the barn is stained wood siding in good condition . There are a number of sl iding g lass doors 
both in the lower level and the main floor. The main floor doors access the wood deck system that surrou nds the 
bui ld ing.  The siding and glass doors and windows are in  good condition. 

Barn addition 

Frost-Fire Walhal la,  North Dakota 



BUILDING ASSESSMENT 

The interior of the spaces are varnished tongue and groove wood walls and cei l ings. The floors have a low pi le 
carpet. The interior fin ishes of these large spaces are in good condition. The restrooms have sheet vinyl flooring 
and fiberglass wall panels. Countertops are plastic laminate with porcelain sinks set into the tops. The restrooms 
are in good condition ,  with minor cracks in the flooring and chips on the counter tops. 

Restrooms - Women's Men's Restroom 

The bui lding is heated with electric forced a ir  furnaces. 

Frost-Fire Wa lha l la, North Dakota 
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PHASE I 
ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT 

FROST FIRE SKI RESORT AND THEATRE 
1 1 950 County Road 55 
Walhalla, North Dakota 

Frost Fire is located at 1 1 950 County Road 55, 7 miles west of Walhalla, North Dakota 
I 

1 1 28 Westrac Drive 
Fargo, NO 581 03 

Tel: 701 .271 .6779 
Fax: 701 . 271 .4796 

The legal description including the Parcel Number as provided by the Cavalier County Assessor's office is as follows: 
• 30227000, That part of SW4NE4 Lying S of Hwy 55 (less 23.8 acres enrolled in NWL Parcel 3022701 0. 1 .2 

acres. 
• 3022701 0, Native Woodlands (Contract 1 55) That part of SW4NE4 Lying S of Hwy 55 (23.8  Woodland Acres). 
• 30229000, SW4SE4 (Less 40 Acres Enrolled in NWL Parcel 3022901 0). 
• 302290 1 0, Native Woodlands (Contract 1 55) SW4SE4 (40 Woodland Acres). 
• 30233000, Point of NE4SE4 Lying W of Twp. Rd Crossing Land In N-S Direction (Less 14.3 Acres Enrolled in 

NWL Parcel 3023301 0) 5.7 Acres. 
• 302330 1 0. Native Woodlands (Contract 1 55) Point of NE4SE4 Lying W of Twp. Rd Crossing Land in N-S 

Direction ( 1 4.3  Woodland Acres). 
• 30236003, Tract of Land I n  NE4SW4. 1 .0 Acres. 
• 30237000, NW4SE4 Less Rd (Less 2 1 .4 Acres Enrolled in NWL Parcel 31 23701 0). 1 8.6 Acres. 
• 3023701 0, Native Woodlands (Contract 1 55) NW4SE4 Less Rd (21 .4 Woodland Acres). 

The following properties are in Mr. Jay R. Johnson's name, son of Richard and Judith Johnson: 
• 30236001 , Point of NE4SW4 Plus Portion of S of Hwy 55 in NW4 (Less 27.6 Acres Enrolled in NWL Parcel 

3023601 1  ). 5. 1 5  Acres. 
• 3023601 1 ,  Native Woodlands (Contract 1 64) Point of NE4SW4 Plus Portion S of Hwy 55 in NW4 (27.6 

Woodland Acres). 
The estimated total number of acres is 1 58.75. 

The site is in  North Olga Township: mostly in the SE quarter of Section 30, Township 1 63N,  Range 57W, of the Fifth 
Principal  Meridian, situate in  the County of Cavalier and the State of North Dakota. 

YHR Partners 
420 Main Avenue, Moorhead, Minnesota 56560 

LEGEND NO. 1 203843 Issued : October 30, 201 2  

Submitted By: LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC. 
Minnesota Operations: 88 Empire Drive, St Paul,  MN 551 03, 651 -642-1 1 50 

North Dakota Operations: 1 1 28 Westrac Drive, Fargo, NO 581 03, 701 -271 -6779 
Wisconsin Operations: 1 324 W Clairemont Ave. Suite #1 2,  Eau Claire, WI 54701 ,  

7 1 5-955-4839 
Arizona Operations: 1 7631 N.  25th Avenue, Phoenix, AZ 85023, 602-942-8220 
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ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT 

FROST FIRE SKI RESORT AND THEATRE 
1 1 950 County Road 55, 
Walhal la,  North Dakota 
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L E G E N D 
Technical Services, Inc. 
w w w . l e g e n d · g r o u p  . c o m  Frost Fire Ski Area - Phase 1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

LEGEND was retained by YHR Partners of Moorhead , Minnesota to perform a Phase I 
with an Asbestos and Lead Paint survey - Environmenta l Site Assessment (ESA) of the 
property identified as Frost Fire Ski Resort and Theatre located at 1 1 950 County Road 
55 Walhal la, North Dakota. The Frost Fire Ski Resort and Theatre provide winter 
downhi l l  skiing , snowboard ing and tubing during the winter months with theatre and 
musica ls during the summer. 

The Subject Property/Site is a developed -1 58.75 acre parcel which is located in 
approximately 7 miles west of Walhal la, ND.  The portions of the site that involve the 
skiing operation are zoned Commercial and the undeveloped wood lands are zoned Ag . 
The site has seven main bu ildings on the site; main lodge, barn/cafeteria , Hatties's Gift 
shop, carriage House, Dormitory, Shop, and the Theatre. The first bu ilding was the 
lodge in 1 976 with several bui ld ings moved in; the barn/cafeteria, Carriage House, 
Hatties's Gift Shop, and the dormitory. The theatre and the shop were bui lt on site. The 
Frost Fire Ski Resort is surrounded by a hi l ls , native wood lands, and agricu ltural fields. 

The property is surrounded by wood lands or agricultural farmland to the west, east, 
north and south. To the north is County Road 55 and across the road is the former 
Clarence Runfold and later Gendreau fami ly small farm . The farm is vacant and is 
surrounded by a hay field or wood lands. To the south are hi l ls and wood lands. To the 
east are hi l ls and wood lands and a grass meadow owned by the Vern Bennett fami ly. 
To the west are hi l ls and wood lands with a Gornowicz family cu ltivated farm field. Also 
to the east is the Gary Romfo farm that is rented out. 

Frost Fire is on the west side of the Pembina Gorge and util izes the slope for downhi l l  
ski runs. 

The Frost Fire Ski Resort operational area is zoned Commercial and is a permitted use. 
The adjacent undeveloped wood lands are zoned Ag and are a permitted use . 

Cavalier County has not been platted by FEMA except for the City of Langdon and 
therefore Frost Fire does not have a FEMA Floodplain map or designation . 

Access to Frost Fire is by the gravel township road , County Road 55 from Walhal la 
approximately 7 miles to the east. A short gravel road from County Road 55 leads to 
the Frost Fire lodge and parking lots. 
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Frost Fire Ski Area - Phase 1 

Findings and Conclusions 

Th f I I  e o ow1ng T b l  a e summanzes th f d" f . T t I t f th" . f f e 1n mgs o s1gn1 1can e emen s o 1s mves 1ga 1on. 
PARAMETER ACCEPTABLE REQUI RES ADDITIONAL SECTION 

ATTENTION. SITE REFERENCE 
EVALUATION 

RECOMENDED 
H istorical Review Yes 
Site Operations No Shop vehicle Excavate or 5.4 

service pit soil borings 
Adjacent Properties Yes 
Hazardous No Spi l led Excavate or 5.4 
Materials veh icle soil boring 

waste oil 
Solid Waste Yes 
PCBs Yes 
Asbestos Yes/No Only if Completed 5.8 and 

d isturbed Appendix 8 
Storage Tanks No Leaking fuel Excavate or 5.7 

hose soil boring 
Solid Waste Yes 

The fue l  ASTs are sitting on the ground without a membrane beneath them or a berm to 
contain a leak or spi l l .  

Recommendations 

Based on a review of h istorical and current site uses, and state and federal 
environmental regu latory data bases for the subject property/Site; three Recognized 
Environmental Concerns (RECs) were noted for the property: 

1 .  The shop has a below ground service pit accessed from the surface by a ladder. 
The pit has concrete walls and a d irt floor covered with wood . LEGEND 
observed standing water in the pit with petroleum products floating on the water 
and staining on the shop floor and pit walls . The pit is used to change oil on the 
various vehicles and equ ipment requ ired to operate a ski resort. Reported ly, the 
service pit has been in operation approximately two years. 

2. Vehicle waste oi l is stored in an old metal bushel basket outside the shop . The 
bushel basket has an open top and is exposed to rain .  The container was ful l  to 
the top and running over. The adjacent ground was stained black. The owner 
stated they have a firm come by and empty the bushel basket as needed . 

3 .  The one thousand gallon above ground storage tank (AST) for d iesel fuel has a 
d ischarge hose with a coupl ing that is leaking diesel fuel into the ground . The 
d iesel fuel stain on the ground is approximately two feet in d iameter. 
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L E G E N D 
Technical Services, Inc. 

Frost Fire Ski Area - Phase 1 

LEGEND recommends excavating the stained waste oi l soil and the diesel fuel sta ined 
soi l .  The quantity of soil to be removed should be approximately 3 to 6 cubic yards. 
The service pit is located inside the shop and a small backhoe could attempt to 
excavate the soil from the bottom of the pit. After the excavations have been completed 
the remaining soil should be tested for gasoline range organics (GRO) , diesel range 
organics (ORO), Volatile Organic Hydrocarbons (VOCs), and the EPA RCRA 8 metals. 
If any of the three locations cannot be excavated to clean levels as determined by the 
North Dakota Department of Health (NDDH), the NDDH should be notified and soi l  
borings conducted to determine the extent laterally and vertical ly of the contamination. 
LEGEND contacted the nearest sanitary landfi l l  at Grand Forks , NO and they can 
accept the soil if it is tested and meets their waste profi le criteria. 

The existing asbestos and lead paint on the site are not recognized environmental 
concerns un less d isturbed by sand ing, grind ing, scraping, or dri l l ing/abrad ing etc. If the 
asbestos contain ing materials are going to be impacted or removed ; LEGEND 
recommends retain ing a North Dakota Certified Abatement Contractor to properly 
complete the work. The lead painted surfaces can be painted over and all surfaces 
washed with a tri-sod ium phosphate detergent. If loose delaminated paint is present it 
should be stabil ized by a North Dakota Certified Lead Abatement Contractor or an EPA 
Certified Renovate Right Lead Based paint contractor. 

Therefore there are recognized environmental concerns (RECs) that warrant further site 
investigation and proceed ing to a Phase I I  Environmental Site Assessment. 

" 1 ,  Mark Waltz of LEGEND Technical Services, Inc. declare to the best of my 
professional knowledge and belief, I meet the defin ition of Environmental Professional 
as defined in 3 1 2 . 1 0  of 40 CFR 3 1 2 . "  

LEGEN D has performed a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) in 
conformance with the scope and l imitations of ASTM Practice E 1 527 of the Frost Fire 
Ski Resort and Theatre site at 1 1 950 County Road 55, Walhal la ,  North Dakota (the 
property/site) . Any exceptions to, or deletions from, this practice are described in 
Section 1 .4 ,  Scope of Work as outlined for the Phase I report. 

This assessment has revealed three recognized environmental conditions and 
has asbestos and lead paint bui lding materials in connection with the property. 
LEGEND recommends proceeding to a Phase I I  ESA incorporating contaminated 
soil  excavation and/or soil borings to determine the extent of the petroleum 
contam ination. 

LEGEND Project # 1 203 843 October 30, 20 1 2  



THE REGION 

Frost F ire Ski/Theater Mountain Area 

In the northeast corner of North Dakota, j ust 5 mi les south of the Canadian border and 7 miles east of Walhal la, is 
Frost Fire, a 1 40 acre ski and summer theater destination .  The property lays in the North Dakota Rendezvous 
Region with the Pembina Gorge the key geolog ical feature of th is reg ion. The site sits on the east slope of the 
western edge of the Pembina River. Frost Fire is part of numerous points of interest for recreation ,  education and 
cu ltural events. 

Frost-Fire Walhal la,  North Dakota 
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Geology and the Pembina Gorge 

The Pembina Escarpment is an impressive landscape in what is otherwise a very flat topography of the state of 
North Dakota, including The Red River Val ley, one of the flattest areas in the country. The mountains along the 
edge of the Pembina River rise up between 300 and 400 feet in elevation creating the Pembina Gorge. This 
geological formation dates back mi l l ions of years and is the result of an ancient seaway covering North America. 
Thousands of years ago, geolog ical actions including volcanic eruptions from the Rocky Mountains, large glacier 
formations and wave action of g lacial Lake Agassiz on the east and Lakes Souris, Reg ina and others on the west 
resulted in the gorge and the deep valley of the Pembina River. This topography is a stark contrast to the Red River 
Valley and is a un ique area to the State of North Dakota. 

The Pembina Gorge encompasses approximately 1 2 , 500 acres of woodlands and has the longest unaltered river 
valley in the state. The waters of the Pembina River have cut one of the deepest and steepest river valleys in North 
Dakota. The woodland forest of the reg ion has three different biographica l provinces; boreal forest, eastern 
decid uous forest and central g rasslands. The reg ion is home to a wide variety of plant and animal species including 
30 rare plant species and 20 rare an imals in the state. 

Recreational Opportunities 

The North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department has developed the Pembina Gorge State Recreation Area, just 
to the north of Frost Fire, as a multiuse trai l  system that provides avenues to horseback rid ing,  off-highway veh icles; 
d irt bikes, four  wheelers and side by sides. 

"At the trai lhead (located one mi le west and a quarter mile north of Walhalla Country Club) trail head riders are 
treated to a breathtaking view from the top of Three Sisters H i l ls ." (from North Dakota Parks and Recreation 
brochure: Pembina Gorge Recreation Area. )  The trail travels northwest a long the Little Pembina R iver and  goes up  
the valley to  the confluence of the Little Pembina River and the Pembina River. From this spot there is  a view of 
Frost Fire Mou ntain ski a rea. The tra i l  continues west and ends in the meadows north of the river. Add itional trai ls 
have been added and are planned for this site. 

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 
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Golf Courses: There are several Golf Courses in the area, including Walhalla Country C lub which is  a 9 hole 
course, Cavalier Cou ntry Club 6 miles west of Caval ier, 9 hole, and Langdon Cou ntry Club a lso a 9 hole course. 

Rendezvous Reg ion Scenic Backway is 33.5 Mi les commencing in Caval ier, North Dakota travel ing west to Vang , 
North Dakota. This backway trai l  offers a scenic route through portions of the Pembina Gorge and the surround ing 
countryside. 

Map from North Dakota Tourism Office. 

Along the Backway: Peter's Lutheran Church 

Frost-Fire Walha l la, North Dakota 



I 
' THE REGION 

Vang Bridge 

Masonic Scenic Overlook is with in  the Walhal la city l imits. The site is just off the scenic backway trai l  and offers a 
view of the Pembina Gorge. 

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 
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There are benches and a picnic table. 

Tetrau lt Woods State Park is one and a half mile south of Walhal la and offers approximately 420 acres of natural 
wilderness. This park was establ ished in 1 970. Visitors can bike, horseback ride, picnic, cross country ski and 
snowmobi le in the park. 

Tetrault Woods State Forest 

f>arklng 
Seen lc Overlook 

o 0 1s 0 3  o e  09  
M a p  from North Dakota State Forest Service Web Site 

Frost-Fire Walhal la,  North Dakota 
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Cultural and Historic Interest 

Gingras Trad ing Post 

Trading Post 

" The Gingras Trading Post State Historic Site preserves the 1 840s home and trading post of Metis legislator and 
businessman Antoine Blanc Gingras, northeast of Walhalla, Pembina County. Metis, meaning "mixed blood" or 
"mixed race, " is a term used by people of combined Indian and European ancestry to describe themselves. Gingras 
was a prominent fur trader, who in 1 861 claimed a net worth of $60, 000 and later increased his holdings to include 
a chain of trading posts extending across northern Dakota Territory and southern Manitoba. Gingras's hand-hewn 
oak log store and home are among the few tangible remains of the fur trade in the Red River Valley. 

Both buildings on Gingras State Historic Site have been restored to their original appearance. While the logs are 
exposed on the two-story trading post, clapboard siding covers the log structure of the house. The siding was added 
soon after the house was built. The house has been painted in its original historic colors, as determined by study of 
traces of the original paint. The exterior is deep red with white trim, and the interior reproduces the original color 
scheme of blue walls, yellow floors, pink ceilings, and green and brown trim. Interpretive panels and exhibits about 
Gingras, Metis heritage, and the fur trade are located in the restored house. A uthentic reproductions of fur trade 
goods are sold in the Gingras store. 

The site is listed on the National Register of Historic Places. " 

Description is from the State Historical Society's Web site Gringras Trading Post State Historical Site. 

Looking to the south towards the Pembina River. The foreground at one time in h istory was the actua l  river much 
closer to the Trad ing post. 

F rost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 
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Kittson Trading Post and State Historical Park 

Norman Kittson establ ished this Fur Trading headquarters in 
1 844. H is operation was in  competition with the H udson Bay 
Company. Kittson was also a steamboat and rai lroad 
entrepreneur in the Red River Valley. He operated numerous ox­
carts in the Valley as wel l .  
The park is heavily wooded and includes a picnic area, shelter, 
restrooms, and h iking tra i l .  

Red River Ox Cart Trai ls 
(Photo from State Historical Society Web Page) 

Another important h istoric feature of this area in the state is the h istoric ox-cart trails that crisscrossed the reg ion 
from approximately 1 800 to 1 870. The ox cart was an important means of transportation for commerce. 

Frost-Fire Wa lha l la, North Dakota 

R E D  R I V E R  
T R A I L S  

Early in the 1 91n century, it is recorded in a 
fur trader's journal, that a cart was fitted 
with solid wheels. This was the first 
evidence of the cart. The cart was typical ly 
a two wheel veh icle, pu l led by horse or 
oxen. The size, construction and materials 
al l varied , but the general  design was the 
same. These carts were used by the Fur  
Trading Companies to transport furs to St. 
Paul ,  MN .  Without wheels they could float 
on water down the rivers. 
There were several major routes from 
Canada through Minnesota. Minor trails 
included the Red R iver Trai ls, 
one on the east of the Red River and the 
other two on the west. The north most trail 
traveled west from Pembina to Walhalla 
along the north shore of the Pembina 
River. The Gingras Trad ing Post, j ust 
northeast of Walhal la was one spot along 
this tra i l .  The trail then went south in North 
Dakota to Fort Abercombie. 
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Icelandic State Park and Caval ier Park Nature Trai l / Gunlogson Nature Preserve 

Icelandic State Park is located west of Cavalier on the north shore of Lake Renwick. The park was established with 
a variety of amenities including camping, boating, swimming, fishing, and nature hiking. There is a museum located 
in the Pioneer Heritage Center and the site contains several h istoric structures open to tour. The Gunlogson Nature 
Preserve and Recreational Trai l ,  a long the Tongue River, allows visitors to experience several eco-systems, marsh,  
bog , woods and prairie and i t  supports numerous rare plant and wildl ife species. This was the first nature preserve 
in the State of North Dakota. 
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Pembina County Museum and Pioneer Machinery Grounds 

The Pembina County Museum is across Highway 5 from Icelandic State Park and Pioneer Center. This site 
includes a museum,  4 exhibit bui ldings, the Bathgate Depot, The McKenzie-McKechine Granary,  the Paton House,  
St. Anthony's Church, and Blacksmith's Shop. A barn and tractor pul l  are located on land leased from the N D  Parks 
and Recreation adjacent to the Pembina County Museum Site. 

Pembina State Museum 

This museum is located just off I nterstate 29, 3 miles south of the Canadian border in Pembina, North Dakota. 

Permanent Exhibit Gallery 

Follow the river graphic in the sidewalk inside to discover 1 00 million years of the region 's history. See fossils from a 
time before glacial Lake Agassiz as well as stone and bone tools of the first peoples. Examine the Red River oxcart 
and other objects of Pembina 's fur trade industry. Investigate the history of frontier military forts and the U. S. and 
Canadian border survey. Learn about the diverse peoples who call Pembina home, including Native American 
peoples and Euro-American settlers. Find out about agriculture and transportation industries that continue to play a 
role in the economics of the Observation Tower. 

Get a stunning view of the Red River Valley from seven stories above the ground. On a clear day visitors have a 
360-degree view for ten miles: a neatly organized patchwork of modern farmlands and evidence of the region 's 
historic sites, industry, transportation, and communications. 

Source; State Historical Society of North Dakota Web Site 

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 
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PLEASE NOTE 
TH IS APPRAISAL IS B E I NG EVALUATED/ASSESSE D  BY 

ANOTH E R  I N DEPE N D E NT APPRAISE R  

RESASONS BE I N G :  
NATU RE OF TH E TH REE DI FFERENT BUSI N ESSES 

I NVOLVED:  

• SKI  RESORT 
• O UTDOOR AM P ITH EATER 
• FOO D SERVICE 
• LARG E VOLU M E  OF  EQU I P M E NT AN D 

SPECIALIZED D U E  TO TH E NATU R E  OF  TH E 
BUS I N ESSES I NVOLVED 

TH E APPRAISED VALU E WI LL BE TH E 
PRUCHASE PRICE 

Busi ness sector wi l l  be lea sed to entrepreneurs 

Therefore, d i rectly su pporting the fixed expenses 

of the proposed 11Pembina Gorge State Recreation 

e I nterpretive Center" 
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December 1 0, 20 1 2  

Kathy Stremick, Director 
Walhalla Economic Development 
City of Walhalla 
PO Box 3 1 8  
Walhalla, ND 5 8282 

Property Identification: Frost Fire Ski and Snowboard Area 
Walhalla, ND 

2 1 1 West Hol mes Street Suite #306 
P.O. Box 1 368 

Detroit Lakes, MN 56502 
(2 1 8) 847-3885 

Fax (2 1 8) 847- 1 368 
MARILYN E. TINJUM 
Certified Residential Appraiser 

MN I .D #20005597 

Legal Description: Part of Section 30, Township 1 63, Range 57, Cavalier County 
(North Olga Township), North Dakota (see addendum for complete 
legal description) 

Date of Value: October 1 8, 20 1 2  

I have completed an appraisal of the above referenced property for the purpose of providing an 
opinion of market value to assist the Client and intended users in the acquisition of the property 
by the State ofNorth Dakota. The subject property is presently improved with a Ski Area and 
Theater. The following written report represents the findings, analysis and conclusions of this 
appraisal. I have made an inspection of the property and have identified the real estate in the 
report. A summary report was prepared. 

Based upon facts and opinions contained in the attached report, together with other information 
in my possession, as of the 1 81h day of October, 20 1 2, the date of inspection, it is my opinion that 
the value of the real estate, furniture, fixtures, and equipment is: 

Market Value 
Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($450,000) 

Value As Operated 
One Million One Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand Dollars ($1 , 179,000) 



Kathy Stremick 
December 1 0, 20 1 2  
Page 2 

The valuation is subject to the Assumptions and Limiting Conditions, plus the Extraordinary 
Assumptions and Hypothetical Condition contained on Pages 5 thru 7 of this report. 

This letter is to be used in conjunction with the attached report. Separation of this letter from the 
attached report invalidates this letter and makes it void. 

I certify, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the reported analyses, opinion and conclusions 
were developed, and this report has been prepared, in conformity to the appraisal guidelines as 
outlined in the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practices (USP AP) and to the 
requirements ofthe Code of Professional Ethics and the Standards of Professional Appraisal 
Practice of the Appraisal Institute. 

I certify that the use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating 
to review by its duly authorized representatives. 

Sincerely, 

� a� R. Tinjum MAl 
Certified General Appraiser 
North Dakota Permit# CG-2908 



SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT DATA AND CONCLUSIONS 

1. Ownership: 

2. Location: 

3. Legal Description : 

4. Zoning: 

5. Date of Inspection: 

6. Property Rights Appraised: 

7. 2011  Real Estate Taxes: 

8. Assessor's  CMV 2012: 

9. PID Numbers: 

10. Site Size: 

1 1 .  Improvements: 

12 .  Main Building Area: 

13.  Highest and Best Use: 

14.  Valuation Date: 

15. Value Opinions: 
Market Value: 

Value As Operated: 

Richard & Judith Johnson 
Jay Johnson 

County Road 55, Near Walhalla, North Dakota 

Part of Section 30, Township 1 63 ,  Range 57, 
Cavalier County (North Olga Township), North 
Dakota (see addendum for complete legal 
description) 

Commercial - Agricultural Service Center District 

October 1 8, 20 1 2  

Fee simple interest 

$4,498.3 1 

$3 1 5,660 

30227000; 302270 1 0; 30229000; 3 02290 1 0; 
3 0233000; 3 023 30 10; 30237000; 3 02370 1 0; 
3 0226000; 3023600 1 ; 3 02360 1 1 

1 72.75 acres 

All Class D structures 

Approximately 2 1 ,233 square feet 

Ski Area and Theater plus Additional Land 

October 1 8, 20 1 2  

Improved Real Estate with 9 2  Ac: 
Personal Property (F, F, & E): 
Extra Land (80.75 Acres) 
Total Market Value: 

Improved Real Estate with 92 Ac: 
Personal Property (F, F, & E): 
Extra Land (80.75 Acres) 
Total Value: 

$ 266,000 
$ 75,000 
$ 1 09,000 
$ 450,000 

$ 829,600 
$ 240,400 
$ 1 09,000 
$ 1 , 1 79,000 
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ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 

5 

The following report is prepared subject to these conditions. Do not rely on the report unless you 
accept the conditions. 

1 .  Fee simple title is assumed to rest in the named owner. This appraisal does not include 
any title investigation and no warranty of title is here implied. The title is assumed to be 
marketable. 

2. Fee simple interest is being appraised. 

3 .  It i s  assumed that there are no liens, easements, covenants or other restrictions currently 
interfering with full enjoyment of all the property rights ordinarily accorded by law to real 
estate of this character, except those noted. 

4. It is assumed that applicable zoning regulations permit use of the property for any lawful 
purpose. 

5.  This appraisal repmi has been prepared for the exclusive benefit of  Kathy Stremick, Director 
of Walhalla Economic Development (Client), Pembina and Cavalier County JDA (Job 
Development Authority), YHR Partners, Richard Johnson, and Judith Johnson. It may not be 
used or relied upon by any other party. Any party who uses or relies upon any information in 
this report without the preparer' s  written consent does so at his own risk. 

6.  No responsibility is assumed for matters of legal nature. 

7.  The adj ustments used within this report are valid for the sales and subj ect in this report. 
The adj ustments are not valid outside the context of this report and are not to be used for 
comparing different circumstances than those presented here. 

8 .  O i l  and gas production i s  not prevalent i n  this area o f  North Dakota. Because exploration 
in the area of the subj ect property has not, to the appraiser' s  knowledge, proven the 
existence of significantly valuable minerals, mineral rights are considered to not affect 
value. 

9. Tlris report is made under proper appraisal procedures to conform to the "Uniform 
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice". 

1 0. Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report shall be conveyed to any person or 
entity, other than the appraiser' s or firm's  client, through advertising, solicitation 
materials, public relations, news, sales, or other media without the written consent and 
approval of the authors, particularly as to valuation conclusions, the identity of the 
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appraiser or firm with which the appraiser is connected, or any reference to the Appraisal 
Institute. Further, the appraiser or firm assumes no obligation, liability, or accountability 
to any third party. If this report is placed in the hands of anyone but the client, the c lient 
shall make such party aware of all the assumptions and limiting conditions of the 
assignment. 

1 1 . The value determined considers the property to be free and clear of any hazardous waste 
or pollutants which may have a negative effect on value; no opinions as to the probability 
of pollutants is rendered. 

1 2 . Although a walk-through inspection has been performed, an appraiser is not an expert in 
the field of building inspection and/or engineering. An expert in the field of 
engineering/seismic hazards detection should be consulted if an analysis of seismic safety 
and seismic structural integrity is desired. 

1 3 . As part of the visual walk-through inspection performed by the appraiser, the appraiser 
has not inspected inaccessible areas. If an inspection of areas which are not accessible is 
desired, an expert in the field should be consulted. 

1 4. It is assumed that there are no structural defects hidden by floor or wall coverings or any 
other hidden or unapparent conditions of the property; that all mechanical equipment and 
appliances are in good working condition; and that all electrical components and the 
roofing are in good condition. If the client has any questions regarding these items, it is 
the client's responsibility to order the appropriate inspections. The appraiser does not 
have the skill or expertise needed to make such inspections. The appraiser assumes no 
responsibility for these items. 

1 5 . The appraisal assignment was not based on a requested minimum valuation, a specific 
valuation, or a maximum valuation. 

1 6. The appraisal includes real estate, furniture, fixtures and equipment. 

EXTRAORDINARY ASSUMPTIONS 

DEFINITION: Extraordinary Assumption:  an assumption, directly related to a specific 
assignn1ent, as of the effective date of the assignment results, which, if 
found to be false, could alter the appraiser's opinions or conclusions. 

Comment: Extraordinary assumptions presume as fact otherwise 
uncertain information about physical, legal, or economic 
characteristics of the subject property; or about conditions external 
to the property such as market conditions or trends; or about the 
integrity of data used in an analysis. 

(USPAP, 20 1 2-20 1 3  Edition) 
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1 .  Data and information on the subject property including building sizes, and floor plans are 
based on information and sketches provided by YHR Partners. The assumption is made 
that the data provided is accurate. 

2. A Phase One Environmental Audit indicated the subject site has some contamination due 
to the use of petroleum products. The contamination is to be cleaned up. The assumption 
is made that the contamination has been cleaned up. The value dete1mined considers the 
property to be free and clear of any hazardous waste or pollutants which may have a 
negative effect on value. 

The use of the extraordinary assumptions might have affected the assignment results. 

HYPOTHETICAL CONDITIONS 

DEFINITION: Hypothetical Condition :  a condition, directly related to a specific 
assignment, which is contrary to what is known by the appraiser to exist 
on the effective date of the assignment results, but is used for the purpose 
of analysis. 

Comment: Hypothetical conditions are contrary to known facts 
about physical, legal, or economic characteristics of the subject 
property; or about conditions external to the property, such as 
market conditions or trends; or about the integrity of data used in 
an analysis. 

(USPAP, 20 1 2-20 1 3  Edition) 

1 .  The parcel of land recently purchased from Loren and Betty Gendreau has buildings and 
improvements which are to be excluded from the analysis. This portion is to be 
considered "as if vacant". The current owners plan to have the buildings removed from 
the site. As of the date of inspection and value, the residence and garage were listed for 
sale. Prior to the completion of the report they had been sold and are to be removed from 
the site. 

2.  The subj ect owners have purchased additional equipment, a magic carpet lift, to replace 
an existing lift. The new lift was not delivered and installed when the property was 
viewed on October 1 8, 20 1 2. The assumption is made that the new lift was been 
installed. 

The use of the hypothetical conditions may have affected the assignment results. 
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APPRAISER COMPETENCY 

The appraiser, Brian R. Tinjum, MAl, has 25 years of experience in the real estate appraisal field 
and received the MAl designation in April 2008.  Types of properties appraised include single 
and multi-family residential, agricultural, recreational, commercial, light industrial, resorts, 
campgrounds, restaurants, convenience stores, retail, office, nursing homes, residential 
subdivisions, vacant land, and special purpose properties. In the last 1 5  years he has completed 
appraisals of many resorts in the northern and central part of Minnesota. He has completed 
reports for both private parties and governmental agencies, including appraisals of properties in 
northern and north central Minnesota and eastern North Dakota. This is the first appraisal of a 
ski area in  northeastern North Dakota completed by the appraiser. To complete a competent 
appraisal of the subject property, the appraiser read articles on appraising a ski area and 
recreational properties, interviewed an appraiser experienced in appraising ski areas, interviewed 
operators of other ski areas, and researched the local and expanded market area. 

DEFINITION OF VALUE 

The definition of market value is: 

"Market value is the amount in cash, or on terms reasonably equivalent to cash, 
for which in all probability the property would have sold on the effective date of 
the appraisal, after a reasonable exposure time on the open competitive market, 
from a willing and reasonably knowledgeable seller to a willing and reasonably 
knowledgeable buyer, with neither acting under any compulsion to buy or sell, 
giving due consideration to all available economic uses of the property at the time 
of the appraisal ." 1 

The definition of market value utilized does not link the estimate of value to a specific exposure 
or marketing time estimate. The property is required to be exposed on the open market for a 
reasonable length of time, given the character and market of the subject property. 

1 Unifonn Appraisal Standards for Federal Land Acquisitions, Section A-9, Page 13  
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APPRAISER CERTIFICATION 

I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 
The reported analyses, opinions and conclusions are limited only by the reported 
assumptions and limiting conditions, extraordinary assumptions and hypothetical 
conditions, and are my personal, unbiased professional analyses, opinions and 
conclusions. 
I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report, 
and I have no personal interest or bias with respect to the parties involved. 
I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties 
involved. 
My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting 
predetermined results. 
My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development 
or reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the 
client, the an1ount of the value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the 
occurrence of a subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal. 
My analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been 
prepared in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice 
(USPAP). 
This report has been prepared in conformity with the requirements of the Code of 
Professional Ethics and the Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal 
Institute. 
I have made a personal viewing of the property that is the subject of this report on 
October 1 8, 20 1 2 .  
I have not previously appraised the subject property o r  provided professional real property 
services for the subject property in the last three years. 
No one provided significant real property appraisal to the person signing this certification . 
That the use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating 
to review by it's duly authorized representatives. 
As of the date of this report, I have completed the continuing education program of the 
Appraisal Institute. 

� ���m, MAI 
Certified General Appraiser 

ND Permit# CG-2908 

December 1 0, 20 1 2  
Date of Signature 



1 0  

STATEMENT OF CO-AUTHORSHIP 

Brian R. Tinjum assumes the responsibility for the analysis, conclusions and opinions concerning 
real estate and attached appurtenance in this report. Catie Herman and Brittany Easton assisted 
in describing the property, preparing exhibits and assemblage of the report. 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS 

Environmental concerns were not investigated; no opinion as to the probability of pollutants is 
rendered. The value estimated considers the property to be free and clear of any hazardous waste 
or pollutants which may have a negative effect on value. 

SOURCES 

Building measurements were based on building plans and sketches, on-site measurements and 
county records. Estimates for replacement costs were derived from various sources. Those used 
were the Marshall Valuation Service, actual costs reported by the property owner, websites 
listing the cost for equipment, and actual cost estimates from our files. 

EXPOSURE TIME 

The exposure time is estimated to be 1 2  to 24 months due to the uniqueness of the property and 
the need to find a qualified purchaser. 

SCOPE OF APPRAISAL 

The subj ect property was inspected on October 1 8, 201 2. Photographs were taken. The 
surrounding property was viewed. Sketches and information on the improvements were obtained 
and reviewed. Sales of vacant land in Cavalier and Pembina Counties of North Dakota were 
researched. Sales similar to the subject were found to help determine the value of the subject 
land. Sales of ski areas similar to the current use of the subj ect were researched. Research was 
completed to locate rental rate information. The Sales Comparison, Cost and Income 
Approaches to value were considered. The Cost and Income Approache

.
s were found applicable 

and were used to value the subj ect property. A summary report was prepared. 



PURPOSE OF THE APPRAISAL 

The purpose of the appraisal is to determine the Market Value of the property on October 1 8, 
201 2, the date of inspection, to assist the Client and intended users in the acquisition of the 
property by the State ofNorth Dakota. 

PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED 

1 1  

The property is appraised in fee simple considering that the title is marketable and that no liens, 
assessments or special assessments remain outstanding. 

CLIENT 

The client is Kathy Stremick, Director of Walhalla Economic Development. 

INTENDED USE THE OF REPORT 

The intended use is to assist the Client and intended users in the acquisition of the property by 
the State of North Dakota. 

INTENDED USERS OF REPORT 

The intended users are Kathy Stremick, Director of Walhalla Economic Development (Client), 
Pembina and Cavalier County JDA (Job Development Authority), YHR Partners, Richard 
Johnson, and Judith Johnson. 

PROPERTY USE AND IDSTORY OF USE 

The subj ect is presently used as a ski area and summer theater. 

The current owners purchased the main parcel in 1 976 and have developed and expanded the 
facility over the years. The original area of the main lodge was constructed in 1 976 with 
additions made at various times. 

The ski resort, known as Frost Fire Ski and Snowboard Area, includes ten ski runs; three 
beginners, two intermediate, five advanced runs and a Half Pipe and Terrain Park. The facility 
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has one double and one triple chair lift. A tubing area with a magic carpet lift is also available. 
Frost Fire has the ability to make snow on all runs, combined with daily grooming. Rental 
equipment is available, as well as a day lodge, grill, lounge and dining room. The subj ect enj oys 
approximately 15 ,000 annual ski area visitors. 

The amphitheater musical runs during the summer on Saturday and Sunday evenings, usually 
beginning the last weekend in June through the first weekend in August. The subject enjoys 
4,000 to 5,000 theater ticket sales each year depending on the popularity of the production. 

FIVE YEAR PROPERTY SALE HISTORY 

An 1 1  acre tract of land north of County Highway 55 was purchased by Richard and Judith 
Johnson from Loren and Betty Gendreau, Carol Bjornson Salwei and John Salwei, Maxine 
Bjornson, Olava Bjornson, and Wilmar Gendreau on October 4, 20 1 2  for the sum of $69,000, by 
a Warranty Deed filed on October 4, 20 1 2  as Document 23 56 1 5  in the Cavalier County 
Recorder' s Office. The sale included a residence and garage which the current owners have sold 
with the buyers to move the buildings from the site. The residence reportedly sold for $5,500 
and the garage sold for $750. 

No other known transfers have occurred in the last five years . 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Part of Section 3 0, Township 1 63 ,  Range 57, Cavalier County (North Olga Township), North 
Dakota (see addendum for complete legal description) 

IDENTIFICATION OF PROPERTY 

Address: 

PID Numbers: 

Frost Fire Ski and Snowboard Area 
County Road 55 
Near Walhalla, North Dakota 

30227000; 3022701 0; 30229000; 302290 1 0; 30233000; 3 023 30 1 0; 
30237000; 302370 1 0; 30226000; 3023600 1 ; 302360 1 1 

The subj ect is  presently used as a ski area and summer theater. 
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ZONING 

The subject is zoned Agricultural Service Center District (AS) by North Olga Township. The 
subject property is a preexisting use and is currently considered a legal non-conforming property. 
Discussions with the local township indicated that the current use of the subj ect is allowed to 
continue and expand. 

Purpose: To establish and preserve areas for a general purpose land use district for rural 
unincorporated service centers. An Agricultural Service Center District serves to recognize 
these unincorporated villages and provides for a continuation with limited expansion into the 
adjacent countryside. 

Permitted Uses: Agriculturally oriented commercial uses, one and two family detached 
dwellings, mobile homes affixed to a permanent foundation or concrete slab, home occupations, 
office service or retail establishments, places of amusement, warehousing and indoor storage 
facilities, churches, parks and playgrounds, community buildings and school, accessory uses to 
the pemutted uses. 

Conditional Uses: The following conditional uses and their accessory uses are permitted subj ect 
to the stipulation of the zoning board: sanitary disposal facilities for use by community residents 
only, agriculturally oriented industrial uses, mobile home parks. 

Other uses of the same nature that are classed as those listed above in "Permitted Uses" section 
which in the opinion of the Board of Adjustment as evidenced by a resolution of record, are not 
obnoxious or detrimental to the health, safety, morals, or the general welfare of the area than 
those uses listed as permitted uses. 

Zoning Requirements 
AS 

Agricultural Service Center District 
Lot Size - Residential A) One acre without either public sewer or water 

B) 7,500 square feet with either public sewer or water 
Lot Width A) 1 00 feet without either public sewer or water 

B) 75 feet with either sewer or water 

Area Coverage Principal and accessory buildings shall not occupy 
more than 40% of the area of the lot 

Setbacks Residential 30 feet 
Commercial None 
Industrial 40 feet 

Yards Residential 1 0  feet 
Commercial None 
Industrial Height of Building 



1 4  

LOCATION 

The property is located on Cavalier County Road 55, approximately 6 miles west of Walhalla, 
North Dakota. Area properties include agricultural unimproved land, heavily wooded land, and a 
few rural residences. To the north of the subj ect is County Road 55 .  To the east, south, and west 
of the subject is agricultural unimproved farmland and heavily wooded areas. 

SITE 

The site has a total of approximately 1 72.75 acres, excluding a one acre tract that includes a 
residence. 

TOPOGRAPHY AND SOIL 

The subject topography is mostly sloping to steeply sloping. The general subject area soils are 
the Olga-Kloten complex, Rollete silty clay loam, Olga silty clay loam, and Rolette clay loam.  
The soils are moderately well drained. The soils can create some difficulty when building and 
generally need excavation and backfilling with granular material. 

PARKING 

On-site parking is available on a gravel surfaced parking area to the northeast of the Lodge and 
Bam. 

UTILITIES 

This property is served with Langdon Rural Water, a private well, a septic system and electricity. 

REGIONAL AND COMMUNITY DATA 

Walhalla, North Dakota is a picturesque community nestled along the bends of the Pembina 
River just east of the colorful panorama of the Pembina Gorge and surrounding the hills and 
valleys, located in the "Rendezvous Region". As the second-oldest community in the State, 
Walhalla has also been blessed with a rich historical heritage. The two amenities of natural 
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beauty and a rich colorful history provide an exciting and tremendous future for the community. 

The rugged, unspoiled beauty of 1 2,500 acres of the state's largest block of undisturbed 
woodlands, the longest segment of untouched river valley and the oldest rocks and fossils -
makes northeast North Dakota's Pembina Gorge near Walhalla a destination unlike any other 
tourism spot in the state. Hikers, birders, kayakers and other nature lovers catch glimpses of elk, 
moose and an occasional bear that are among more than 20 different types of animals living in 
the gorge. Eight wildlife management areas within the greater Rendezvous Region attract 
hundreds of bird species. 

Walhalla, "Valley of the Gods", the center of the Pembina Hills, is located in northwestern 
Pembina County in the extreme northeastern part of North Dakota. It is approximately 95 miles 
southwest of Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada and approximately 1 00 miles northwest of Grand 
Forks, ND, and approximately 1 80 miles northwest of Fargo, ND. The city is 5 miles south of 
the Canadian border and 30  miles west of Minnesota. Walhalla is served by ND State Highway 
No. 32, County Highway No. 55 and by Burlington Northern Railroad. Interstate 29 is 
approximately 30 miles east. Walhalla serves as a trade center of western Pembina and 
northeastern Cavalier Counties. It is a residential center and serves as an outlet for the 
agricultural and manufacturing products produced in the area. 

The City of Walhalla has a population of 996 people, per the 201 0  Census. This is down 5 .77% 
from the 2000 Census of 1 ,057 people. 

Pembina County, where Walhalla is located, has seen a population decrease from 8,585 (2000 
Census), to 7,4 1 3  per the 20 1 0  Census. Cavalier County, where the subject is located, has seen a 
population decrease from 4,83 1 (2000 Census), to 3 ,993 per the 20 1 0  Census. 

Transportation includes the Burlington Northern Railway. The Walhalla Municipal Airport, 
located one mile nm1h of the city, has a 3,400-foot paved runway and provides general aviation 
services. A major highway serving the area is North Dakota State Highway 32.  Interstate 
Highway 29 is located approximately 30 miles east of Walhalla. 

Community services include a bank, hotels/motels, a nursing home, doctor, dentist, and churches. 

In the Walhalla, Langdon, and Cavalier, North Dakota and Winkler, Manitoba area there is 
approximately 250 lodging rooms. 

Education opportunities located in Walhalla include a K-1 2  public education system. 

The area climate typically includes about 1 9  inches of precipitation per year with about 3 7 inches 
of snow. July is the hottest month; January is the coldest month. The growing season is 1 00± 
days. 

The city and area economy is dependent on a mix of governmental, manufacturing, healthcare, 
agricultural, forestry, fishing, and hunting. Walhalla is a stable community. 
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NEIGHBORHOOD DATA 

The property is located on Cavalier County Road 55,  approximately 6 miles west of Walhalla, 
North Dakota. The subject is located on County Road 55 ,  a two-way, bituminous and gravel 
surfaced road which travels generally in an east-west direction. Visibility and access to and from 
the subject property is considered to be average for the use to which it is put. Ingress and egress 
to the subject is available from County Road 55 onto a gravel surfaced drive. 

The Pembina Gorge, located in the subject area, extends from the Canadian border to just 
northwest of Walhalla. It is the deepest and steepest river valley in the state. The gorge also 
encompasses much of the largest uninterrupted area of woodlands, as well as the longest 
unaltered segment of river valley in North Dakota. 

Located east of the subject approximately one mile is the Walhalla Country Club, a 9-hole grass 
green golf course located in the Pembina Hills. A club house, restaurant, lounge and banqueting 
facilities are also available to the public. 

Also in the area of the subject are large areas of unimproved agricultural woodland and farmland. 
Photographic and map exhibits in this report depict the subject property and its immediate 
vicinity. 

The neighborhood has accessibility to utilities available in the area including garbage pickup, 
telephone, and electricity. No other nuisances, hazards, or detrimental conditions were noted. 
Police and fire protection are average for the area. 

Financing is available and varies from conventional or owner types for commercial properties to 
government insured and conventional for residential properties. Interest rates vary from three to 
1 0 percent depending on the type of property and the qualifications of the borrower. Mortgage 
ratios are typically from 50 to 80 percent for commercial-industrial properties, and 80 to 95 
percent for residential properties. 

201 1 REAL ESTATE TAXES - PAYABLE 2012 

PID: 30227000; 302270 1 0; 3 0229000; 302290 1 0; 3 0233000; 302330 1 0; 30237000; 
3 02370 1 0; 30226000; 3023600 1 ; 302360 1 1  

Taxes: $ 4,73 1 .72 
SQecial Assessments: $ 0.00 
Total : $ 4,73 1 .72 
Discount for early .Qayment: $ 233 .4 1  
Total Paid 20 1 2  $ 4,498 .3 1 



ASSESSOR'S CERTIFIED MARKET VALUE - 2012 

Parcel # True & Full Value 

30227000 $500 

302270 1 0  $0 * 

30229000 $0 

3 022901 0  $0 * 

3 0233000 $203 , 1 80 

3 023 3 0 1 0  $0 * 

30237000 $ 1 00,000 

302370 1 0  $0 * 

30226000 $1 0,560 

3023600 1 $ 1 ,420 

3022601 1  $0 * 

Totals $315,660 

*Enrolled in Native Woodlands (Forest Stewardship Tax Law) which calculates taxes at $0.50 
per acre. Cavalier County does not determine a value for these areas. 

FLOOD HAZARD 

None 

CENSUS TRACT 

95 1 1  (Map Reference C3 8-0 1 9) 

LAND DESCRIPTION 

The subject site is located west of Walhalla, North Dakota (see the Addenda for a visual 
description of the site). The land is summarized as follows: 

Land area: 1 72.75 Acres 
(Includes 1 27. 1 0  Acres enrolled in Native Woodlands) 

Shape: Irregular 
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Topography: Level to steeply sloping 

Soils: No soil tests were made; we assume all soils are buildable 
and free from toxic waste and environmental hazards. 

Vegetation: 

Apparent easements: 

Utilities: 

Accessibility onto site: 

Street surface: 

Parking: 

Trees, Shrubs, Grass 

Road, access, and utility easements 

Private well and septic system, electricity 

Direct access comes from County Road 55 

Gravel surfaced County Road 

On site gravel-surfaced parking spaces 

ACCESSIBILITY AND IDENTITY 

Accessibility of the property is good from County Road 55. Identity is good with the use of 
s1gns. 

IMPROVEMENTS 

The subject property is presently improved with a Lodge, Barn, Gift Shop, old Carriage House, 
Amphitheater, Dormitory, Shop, Pump House, and Attendant Houses. 

All improvements are Class D construction, see grid below for a breakdown of square footages. 

Main Buildings 
Lodge, Bam and Additions 

Hattie's Gift Shop 

Dormitory 

Amphitheater 

Shop 

Total 

Area (Sq. Ft.) 
9,595 

1 ,603 

3 , 1 5 0  

5,500 

1 ,385  

2 1 ,233 



LODGE 

Foundation: 

Frame: 

Exterior wall: 

Floor structure: 

Roof structure: 

Roof cover: 

Interior construction: 

Ceiling finish: 

Wall finish: 

Insulation: 

Floor covering: 

Electrical : 

Plumbing: 

HVAC: 

Sprinklers: 

Condition: 

Construction Quality: 

Age 

Poured concrete and wood 

Class D - Wood frame 

Wood 

Wood 

Wood 

Metal panel system 

Wood frame 

Wood panel system 

Varnished or painted wood board 

Good 

V ami shed or painted wood board, and vinyl tile 

Six 200 amp panels 

Adequate 

Forced air; gas 

No 

Good 

Average 

36-37 years - Built 1 975- 1 976 addition added in 1 985 
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Frost Fire Mountain's main building is the Lodge Building. Built in 1 975- 1 976, the original two 
story log structure includes a main level and a walkout lower level. A three story wood framed 
addition was added in 1 985 which includes a main level, basement, and a small upper level loft 
area. Total approximate building area is 5 ,450 square feet (5, 1 20 square feet on two floors, plus 
3 3 0  square feet of loft area) . 

The Lodge Building houses the ski/boot rental and storage facilities, a small pub area, restrooms, 
locker rooms, and storage on the lower level. The main level houses two large lounge areas, a 
commercial kitchen, and a large office space. The loft area is a private space used the by owner 
and includes a small % bathroom. 

In 2009, the large windows throughout the building were replaced and are now in excellent 
condition. The roof, also in excellent condition, has a metal panel system. Exterior walls, with 
an opaque stain, are in good condition. A wood framed exterior deck and railing structure, in fair 
condition, wraps around three sides of the building and will require repairs within the next few 
years. 
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Interior finishes of the lower level include concrete and vinyl floors. Walls are either varnished 
or painted wood board. Ceilings are a decorative wood panel system or no ceiling. Main level 
interior finishes include varnished wood floors, walls and ceilings. The kitchen has a vinyl tile 
floor and painted wall finishes. All interior finishes are in excellent to fair condition, with the 
flooring in the restrooms and kitchen having some cracking and deterioration. 

The main level kitchen is a commercial kitchen, including commercial-grade appliances, 
stainless steel countertops, and a stainless steel hood with an Ansul fire extinguishing system. 
Equipment located in the kitchen includes a six-burner commercial range, warming oven, small 
oven, three compartment sink, under-counter commercial dishwasher, and reach-in freezer and 
cooler. 

BARN & ADDITION 

Foundation: 

Frame: 

Exterior wall :  

Floor structure: 

Roof structure: 

Roof cover: 

Interior construction: 

Ceiling finish: 

Wall fmish: 

Floor covering: 

Electrical: 

Plumbing: 

HVAC: 

Sprinklers: 

Condition: 

Construction Quality: 

Age 

Wood framed 

Class D - Wood frame 

Wood 

Wood 

Wood 

Asphalt Shingled 

Wood frame 

Wood 

Wood 

Carpet and sheet vinyl 

Adequate 

Adequate 

Forced air: electric 

No 

Good 

Average 

Unknown 

Attached to the Lodge Building with an entry corridor along the north side of the Lodge is the 
Barn, which was moved to the site in 1 989. The Barn houses the dining room on the main floor, 
and a large gathering space, storage area, and restroom on the lower level. Only accessible 
through a ceiling hatch, the Barn also has an upper loft area. There are plans that would make 



use of this space in the future, but have not been implemented yet. Also, when the Bam was 
moved, an addition to the Lodge was added which expanded the kitchen space. Total 
approximate building area is 4 , 140 square feet, including the Bam and adjacent additions. 
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The Barn sits on a wood framed foundation, walls are constructed with wood studs and filled 
with fiberglass insulation, and the floor structure is constructed with wood rafters. Exterior walls 
are stained wood siding. There is some evidence of exterior pressure that is causing the 
separation of the wood studs from the main floor sill plate, and evidence of water penetration on 
the south side of the building with water damage to the walls and doors in the locker room area. 
Overall, the structure is in good condition. 

The main and lower levels house a number of sliding glass doors which access the wood deck 
system that surrounds the building. The doors and windows are in good condition. 

Interior finishes within the Bam include varnished tongue and groove wood walls and ceilings, 
and carpeted floors. Finishes within the large spaces are in good condition. Restrooms include 
sheet vinyl flooring, fiberglass wall panels, laminate countertops with porcelain sinks. The 
restrooms are in good condition, with minor cracks in the flooring and chips in the countertops. 

HATTIE'S GIFT SHOP & CARRIAGE HOUSE 

Foundation: 

Frame: 

Exterior wall: 

Floor structure: 

Roof structure: 

Roof cover: 

Interior construction: 

Ceiling finish: 

Wall finish: 

Floor covering: 

Electrical : 

Plumbing: 

HVAC: 

Sprinklers: 

Condition: 

Construction Quality: 

Age 

Concrete block with open crawl space 

Class D - Wood frame 

Wood 

Wood 

Wood 

Asphalt Shingle 

Wood frame 

Plaster 

Plaster 

Wood 

Minimal 

Adequate 

None 

No 

Fair to Average 

Average 

84 years - Built in 1 928 



Originally an old two story farmhouse built in 1 928, Hattie's Gift Shop was moved on site in 
1 989. Total approximate building area is 1 ,603 square feet, and is used in the summer as a gift 
shop/concession space. 
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The building was placed on a block foundation/open crawl space, is wood framed construction 
with wood siding, and has an asphalt shingled roof. The roof was replaced in 2009, but the 
original windows are still in place and are in poor condition. Several repairs to the home are 
needed to be made including replacement of several windows that are rotted away at the comers, 
repainting of exterior wood siding, and repairs to the front porch floor boards, as well as 
replacement of deteriorating porch column supports. 

Interior finishes within the building include many of the original features. Original wood floors, 
plaster walls, wood work, and staircase with beautiful railing and balustrade. In some areas, the 
plaster has severe water damage. 

The building has no heating system, as the original chimney was removed when the house was 
moved to its current site. Minimal electrical systems are in place as well. 

Adjacent to Hattie' s Gift Shop is an old carriage house which is in poor condition. The building 
has no value, and it has been determined that it will be torn down. 

DORMITORY 

Foundation: 

Frame: 

Exterior wall :  

Floor structure: 

Roof structure: 

Roof cover: 

Interior construction: 

Ceiling finish: 

Wall finish: 

Floor covering: 

Electrical: 

Plumbing: 

HVAC: 

Sprinklers: 

Condition: 

Concrete slab with wood walls 

Class D - Wood frame 

Wood 

Wood 

Wood 

Metal 

Wood frame 

Plaster 

Plaster and wood paneling 

Wood and sheet vinyl 

Adequate 

Adequate 

Electric boiler to base board radiation; air conditioning unit 

No 

Fair to Average 



Construction Quality: 

Age 

Average 

Unknown 
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The building known as the Dorm was also moved onto the property. Originally a school in Olga, 
ND, the building was moved to Walhalla and used as a convent for the Catholic Church until it 
was moved to Frost Fire in 1995. The Dorm includes three stories plus a basement and has a 
total approximate building area of 3 , 1 50 square feet. 

Now used as a dormitory/housing facility for the ski and theater venues on the site, the building 
consists of a large l iving room on the main floor with the remainder of the interior divided into 
sleeping quarters and communal toilet/shower facilities. A central staircase accesses all levels 
within the building. 

The Dorm was moved onto a basement structure with a concrete slab with wood foundation 
walls. The building has wood framed construction and a gable roof with a standing seam metal 
system. The exterior has wood siding that is in fair condition with no evidence of rotting or 
decay, although most of the paint is gone. Original windows are still in place and are in average 
condition. Exterior doors are in poor condition, except for the newer hollow metal door installed 
on the second floor. 

Interior finishes within the Dorm include walls with the original plaster and a few remodeled 
walls with painted drywall ,  some wood wall paneling, original wood floors and some sheet vinyl 
flooring. Ceilings, with minor cracking, are painted plaster. 

The upper floors of the building have a toilet room on each floor, with original fixtures in fair to 
poor condition. The two large bathrooms on the lower level consists of four shower stalls each 
plus one toilet, lavatory, and countertop each. Both bathrooms are in average condition. Also on 
the lower level is a small kitchen with a sink, microwave, pizza oven and small refrigerator. The 
remainder of the basement is storage and mechanical areas. 

AMPHITHEATER 

Built in 1 988 ,  the 60 by 90 foot (or approximately 5 ,500 square feet) amphitheater area includes 
a stage with a small back-stage area, lighting/sound control enclosure (8 by 1 5  feet), and a sloped 
seating space covered with a large steel truss roof. Rows of molded plastic chairs attached to a 
bleacher structure can seat approximately 450 people. The aisles of the seating area are 
constructed with wooden steps and wooden half walls running the perimeter of the amphitheater. 
The stage and back-stage areas are wood framed construction. Electrical service is provided to 
the stage area and the l ighting/sound enclosure. Overall,  the facility is in good condition. 
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SHOP 

The shop is a metal building, built in 198 1 - 1 982, has approximately 1 ,385 square feet of area. 
The building has a concrete floor and an insulated metal panel structure. The two large door 
openings, a 20-foot wide overhead door, a large sliding door opening, and a pedestrian door are 
located along the exterior of the building. A four foot deep concrete pit with a steel grate over 
the top of it is located in the middle of the building, and is used to access the underside of 
equipment for repairs, etc. Heating of the Shop is by a small propane furnace and wall-mounted 
electric unit heater. Overall, the building is in average condition. 

PUMP HOUSE 

Located at the bottom of the ski runs is the Pump House, a wood framed building with an asphalt 
shingled gable roof. Interior finishes are painted wood plywood sheathing. A single door allows 
access to the interior. The small building houses a pump that pumps water from the river and is 
used for making snow for the ski hills. Electrical service is available to supply power to the 
pump. Both the building and the pump are in average to good condition. 

ATTENDANT HOUSES 

A total of five attendant houses are located on the property, one at the top and bottom of each ski 
lift, and one near the snowboarding hill. They are each approximately 36 square feet, and are 
wood framed construction. 

HIGHEST AND BEST USE DEFINITION 

The Highest and Best Use has been defined as: 

"The reasonably probable and legal use of vacant land or an improved property that is physically 
possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible, and that results in the highest value. The 
four criteria the highest and best use must meet are legal permissibility, physical possibility, 
financial feasibility, and maximum productivity. Alternatively, the probable use of land or 
improved property -specific with respect to the user and timing of the use-that is adequately 
supported and results in the highest present value." 

Source: Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th ed. (Chicago: Appraisal 
Institute, 20 1  0). 
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HIGHEST AND BEST USE 

AS IF VACANT 

Leeallv Permissible: The subject is located west of Walhalla, North Dakota, and has an 
agricultural service district zoning. Part of the property is in enrolled in Native Woodlands 
(Forest Stewardship Tax Law) with the owner agreeing to prohibit clearing, grazing, burning, and 
destructive cutting. The owner can remove part or all of their property from Native Woodlands 
with notice to the NDSU-North Dakota Forest Service. 

Physically Possible: The subject property contains 172.75 acres within the Pembina Gorge area. 
The subj ect has steeply sloping topography with a mixture of wood and open areas. The size, 
location and topography make agricultural use less likely than a rural residential or recreational 
use. Most allowed recreational and residential uses are possible. 

Financially Feasible: Located in the subject neighborhood are mostly rural residential and 
wooded recreational properties. The size would allow for multiple parcels. 

Maximum Profitability: The Highest and Best Use of the subject, as if vacant, is for a rural 
residential/recreational use. 

AS IMPROVED 

Leeallv Permissible: The subject is presently used as a ski area, and summer theater. The 
subject property improvements include a lodge, theater, dormitory, and several outbuildings. The 
subject property currently is considered a legal non-conforming property. The specific use of the 
subject is not included within the allowed uses. The current use of the subject is allowed to 
continue and expand according to the local township clerk. 

Physically Possible: The improvements are in average to good condition. Some deferred 
maintenance is needed. The buildings have been designed and/ or updated over time for their 
current uses. The ski area and theater occupy approximately 92 acres. The remaining 80.75 
acres could be separated off and put to a different use. 

Financially Feasible: The present improvements lend value to the property. 

Maximum Profitability: In my opinion, the Highest and Best Use of the subject, as improved, 
is its present use as a Ski Area and Summer Theater plus 80.75 acres of additional land. 

CORRELATION OF HIGHEST AND BEST USE 

As If Vacant -
As Improved -
Highest and Best Use -

Rural Recreational/Residential 
Ski Area with Theater plus additional land 
Ski Area with Theater plus additional land 



APPROACHES CONSIDERED WHEN ESTIMATING VALUE 

In estimating the value of real estate, the real estate appraiser recognizes three standard 
approaches to value. They are the Sales Comparison Approach, the Income Approach, and the 
Cost Approach. The type of property being appraised, the purpose of the appraisal, and the 
adequacy and reliability of the data available in each ofthese approaches determines to a large 
extent the relative weight of importance given to each in arriving at the final conclusions of 
value. 
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There are many properties where all three approaches may be applied and where possible are 
used as a check against each other. Certain data relative to each of these three approaches is 
assembled by the appraiser, classified and interpreted in accordance with its relative importance. 
The three indications of value, one by each approach, are usually developed. 

Then, these value indications are correlated into final conclusions of value. An appraisal report 
is prepared outlining the process used and the data and reasoning upon which the appraiser relied 
in arriving at this conclusion. 

The three approaches to value are briefly outlined as follows: 

I.  COST APPROACH 
The Cost Approach involves the sum total of the current costs of reproducing the property, less 
depreciation, from all sources; that is, physical, functional, and external obsolescence. The 
depreciated cost is then added to the estimated land value to obtain a total estimated value. The 
value estimated by this approach assumes the cost of reproduction sets the upper limit of value. 
It also assumes that a newly constructed building would have advantages over an existing 
building to the extent of the total depreciation from all causes. This approach is most applicable 
when new or proposed improvements are being considered. 

II. SALES COMPARISON APPROACH 
The value indicated by the Sales Comparison Approach is estimated by considering recent sales 
of the most nearly comparable properties in the market. It is based on the theory that property 
cannot be worth more than the cost of a similar property of like adequacy. Depending upon the 
number of qualified sales available, this approach is most reliable when considering vacant land 
or properties with older improvements. 

III. INCOME APPROACH 
The Income Approach requires the processing of income, usually by capitalization, to produce a 
value. The value estimated is supported by the projected earning power of the property. 
Predicated on the theory that value is the present worth of future benefits, this approach is given 
considerable weight when the projected income and expense estimates can be reasonably 
stabilized. 
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With the application of an Overall Capitalization Rate, or a factor, the total value of the property 
is indicated. By residual technique, the value of the land or improvements, as separate units, may 
be estimated by proper capitalization of that portion of the income imputable to each. 

METHOD OF VALUATION 

All three approaches to value where considered. 

The COST APPROACH is used as it considers the estimated replacement cost of the structures 
less any loss due to age, condition, design, location or any other factor. 

The SALES COMPARISON APPROACH is not used as limited sales were located of properties 
that could be put to a similar ski area, and summer theater use as the subject. The reliability of 
the Sales Comparison Approach is limited for valuing the subject. 

The INCOME APPROACH is used as the subject is an income generating property. The Income 
Approach considers the income potential of the subject property. 

The approaches to value used are then correlated and a value opinion is  rendered. 



SYNOPSIS 

Improvements 
Land Value 
TOTAL 

COST APPROACH 

Replacement 
Cost New 

$ I ,735,600 
233 .200 

$ 1 ,968,800 
INDICATED VALUE BY COST APPROACH 

TECHNIQUE 

Depreciated 
Value 

$ 705 ,400 
233,200 

$ 938,600 
$ 938,600 
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As previously stated, the Cost Approach is  based on the proposition that an informed purchaser 
would pay no more than the cost of producing a substitute property with the same utility as the 
subject property. This is accomplished by estimating the cost to replace the improvements, adjusting 
the cost to reflect depreciation (physical, functional and economic obsolescence) and finally adding 
the land value to arrive at an estimate for the approach. This approach is particularly applicable to 
proposed construction. 

APPLICATION 

The cost of the improvements can be estimated in several ways. A reliable cost service can be used 
or a knowledgeable building contractor can accurately estimate the replacement cost. This appraiser 
used the Marshall-Swift Cost Service in this appraisal . 

The estimate of accrued depreciation is the most difficult part of this approach, particularly when the 
improvements have passed middle age. The total accrued depreciation estimated by the appraiser is 
subtracted from the replacement cost new of the improvements. Obviously, the higher percent 
depreciation an appraiser must estimate, the greater are his chances of making an error with a 
resulting distortion in the final indicated value. For this reason, the value indicated by the Cost 
Approach tends to be more reliable on newer prope1iies than older properties. 

The land value was estimated based on sales of area properties. Replacement cost estimates were 
based on information obtained from Marshall and Swift Valuation Service and supplemented by 
local cost estimates. Depreciation was estimated based on inspection of the property. An 
estimated value for the subject was determined by adding the estimated value of the land to the 
estimated value ofthe improvements. 
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COST ESTIMATE 

The next step in the Cost Approach is to estimate the construction costs new of the 
improvements as of the effective date of the appraisal. There are two theoretical alternative ways 
to measure the utility ofthe existing improvements through cost analysis: ( 1 )  Reproduction Cost 
and (2) Replacement Cost. 

There is an important distinction between Reproduction Cost and Replacement Cost which is 
shown by the following definitions: 

( 1 )  Reproduction Cost is defined as "The estimated cost to construct, at current prices as of the 
effective date of the appraisal, an exact duplicate or replica of the building being appraised, using 
the same materials, construction standards, design, layout, and quality of workmanship and 
embodying all the deficiencies, superadequacies, and obsolescence of the subject building."2 

(2) Replacement Cost is defined as "The estimated cost to construct, at current prices as of the 
effective appraisal date, a substitute for the building being appraised, using modern materials and 
current standards, design, and layout. "3 

For this appraisal the cost new of the subject improvements will be estimated by the 
Replacement Cost method. There are two types of costs that need to be considered and 
estimated; Direct and Indirect Costs. 

Direct Costs are defined as the following; "Expenditures for the labor and materials used in the 
construction of improvements; also called hard costs". 4 

Indirect Costs are defined as the following; "Expenditures or allowances for items other than 
labor and materials that are necessary for construction, but are not typically part of the 
construction contract. Indirect costs may include administrative costs; professional fees; 
financing costs and the interest paid on construction loans; taxes and the builder's or developer's 
all-risk insurance during construction; and marketing, sales, and lease-up costs incurred to 
achieve occupancy or sale. Also called soft costs".5 

ESTIMATED DIRECT COSTS 
The direct costs of the improvements can be estimated by one or a combination of the following 
methods: 

1 .  Actual costs as supplied by the builder or owner. 
2. Actual costs of recent, similarly constructed buildings. 
3 .  Reliable cost service. 

2 Source: Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th ed. (Chicago: Appraisal Institute), 20 10 .  
3 Ibid 
4 1bid 
5 Ibid 



4. Employing a building contractor knowledgeable in the construction of the subject 
building to supply a cost estimate. 

The reliable cost service method is used to estimate the replacement cost of the subject. The 
Calculator Cost method from a nationally recognized cost service, Marshall Valuation Service, 
was used. 

ESTIMATED INDIRECT COSTS 
The Cost Estimate does not include the indirect costs associated with the construction of the 
subject property. Costs not included are indirect costs such as Architectural and Engineering 
Expenses; Appraisal, Legal and Accounting Expenses; Construction Loan Interest; Financing, 
Title and Closing Fees. Studies for other properties have indicated indirect costs are typically 
approximately five percent. An allowance for indirect costs of five percent is utilized. 

ENTREPRENEURIAL PROFIT 
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Entrepreneurial Profit i s  defined as the following; " 1 .  A market-derived figure that represents the 
amount an entrepreneur receives for his or her contribution to a project and risk; the difference 
between the total cost of a property (cost of development) and its market value (property value 
after completion), which represents the entrepreneur's compensation for the risk and expertise 
associated with development. An entrepreneur is motivated by the prospect of future value 
enhancement (i.e., the entrepreneurial incentive) . An entrepreneur who successfully creates value 
through new development, expansion, renovation, or an innovative change of use is rewarded by 
entrepreneurial profit. Entrepreneurs may also fail and suffer losses. 2.  In economics, the actual 
return on successful management practices, often identified with coordination, the fourth factor 
of production following land, labor, and capital; also called entrepreneurial return or 
entrepreneurial reward."6 

A search was done to determine Entrepreneurial Profit. No sales of similar properties were 
located in the area to indicate an entrepreneurial profit in the last several years. Due to the 
current economic times, developers do not expect to receive any Entrepreneurial Profit from the 
construction of new improvements. The incentive for the owner is the annual income stream 
from the use ofthe facilities and rental of equipment. Improvements similar to the subject 
typically are constructed for the business owner/operator, with no Entrepreneurial Profit expected 
or received from the construction of new improvements, beyond the contractor's profit, which is 
already included in the direct costs. No Entrepreneurial Profit is included in the cost estimate. 

6 Source: Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th ed. (Chicago: Appraisal Institute), 2010.  



DEPRECIATION 

Generally speaking, there are three kinds of depreciation: Physical Deterioration, Functional 
Obsolescence and External Obsolescence. These general types can be broken down more 
precisely as follows: 

PHYSICAL DETERIORATION 

3 1  

Physical Deterioration is the loss in value caused by physical wear and tear, through use and by 
age. It can be broken down into three categories: Curable Physical Deterioration, Incurable 
Physical Deterioration Short-Lived, and Incurable Physical Deterioration Long-Lived. 

Curable Physical Deterioration: This is sometimes called deferred maintenance. It normally 
refers to repairs or replacements needed on the effective date of the appraisal . These items are 
curable as the cost to cure is less than or equal to the value added, or the cure will allow other 
items to maintain their value or utility. 

Incurable Physical Deterioration Short-lived: This involves short-lived items that do not need 
to be replaced or repaired on the effective date ofthe appraisal but will need to be in the 
foreseeable future. Short-Lived Items are: "A building component with an expected remaining 
economic life that is shorter than the remaining economic life of the entire structure."7 An 
Age/Life calculation is typically used to estimate Incurable Physical Deterioration to short-lived 
items. 

Incurable Physical Deterioration Long-lived: This applies to all items not included in Curable 
Physical or Incurable Physical Short-lived. These are the long-lived items: "A building 
component with an expected remaining economic life that is the same as the remaining economic 
life of the entire structure." 8 They include the foundation, basement, frame, roof structure, etc. 
These items do not need replacing but are deteriorating slowly. An Age/Life calculation is 
typically used to estimate Incurable Physical Deterioration to long-lived items. 

FUNCTIONAL OBSOLESCENCE 
Functional Obsolescence is defined as: "The impairment of functional capacity of a property 
according to market tastes and standards."9 Functional obsolescence can be broken down as 
curable and incurable. 

· 

7 Source: Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th ed. (Chicago: Appraisal Institute), 2010. 
8 Ibid 
9 1bid 
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Curable: Functional items are curable when they are reasonable and economic to cure. There 
are three kinds of curable functional obsolescence: a deficiency requiring an addition, a 
deficiency requiring substitution or modernization, and a superadequacy. Depreciation for each 
is measured as follows: A deficiency requiring an addition is measured by the excess cost to 
cure. A deficiency requiring substitution or modernization is measured by the depreciated cost of 
the existing item plus the excess cost to cure. A curable superadequacy is measured by the 
depreciated cost of the existing item plus the excess cost to cure. 

Incurable: These are items that cannot be reasonably or economically corrected. There are two 
kinds of incurable functional obsolescence: a deficiency and a superadequacy. A deficiency is 
measured by the value of the loss less the cost if the item was installed new. A superadequacy is 
measured by the depreciated cost of the existing item plus the value of the loss. 

EXTERNAL OBSOLESCENCE 
External Obsolescence is defined as : "An element of depreciation; a diminution in value caused 
by negative externalities and generally incurable on the part of the owner, landlord, or tenant."10 

This is the loss in value from influences outside the property itself. It is rarely, if ever, curable. 
Commonly, it is caused by a change in neighborhood environment, legislation, inharmonious 
property uses, location in a low economic area, etc. External Obsolescence is basically a loss in 
value to real estate due to external influence or forces which are not within the property 
bOtmdaries. External Obsolescence is measured by market extraction or the capitalized value of 
the actual rent loss due to the condition. 

LODGE and BARN 
Replacement cost was estimated using Average to Good Cost Class D Clubhouses, and Finished 
Basements - County Clubs from Section 1 1 , pages 30  and 32, of the Marshall Valuation Cost 
Manual. This is adjusted by the Current Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 3 and the Local 
Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 9 using Grand Forks, North Dakota as the base level. 

Base Cost - Main Floor 
Heating and Cooling 
Floor Area/Perimeter (363 feet) 
Current Cost Multiplier 
Local Cost Multiplier 
Direct Costs: 
Indirect Cost Allowance (5%) : 
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Main Floor 
Rounded to 

$ 1 02 .07 
2 . 1 1 

X 1 .0 1 6  
X 0.99 
X 0.94 
$ 94.5 1  

4.73 

$ 99.24 
$ 99.00 

10 Source: Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th ed. (Chicago: Appraisal Institute), 201 0. 
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Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Main Floor $ 99.24 
Times Log Construction Factor X 1 . 1 2  
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Log Construction $ 1 1 1.15 
Rounded to $ 1 1 1 .00 

Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Main Floor $ 99.24 
Times Second Floor Factor X 0.92 
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Second Floor $ 91 .30 
Rounded to $ 91 .00 

Base Cost - Basement $ 69.03 
Floor Area/Perimeter (363 feet) X 1 .0 1 6  
Current Cost Multiplier X 0.99 
Local Cost Multiplier X 0.94 
Direct Costs: $ 65.27 
Indirect Cost Allowance (5%): 3 .26 
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Basement $ 68.53 
Rounded to $ 69.00 

The replacement cost for the fireplace is based on Section 1 1 , page 35 ,  of the Marshall Valuation 
Cost Manual. This is adjusted by the Current Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 3 and the 
Local Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 9 using Grand Forks, North Dakota as the base 
level. 

Fireplace/ Average/Custom/Two Story = $ 1 2,770 
Current Cost Multiplier X 0.99 
Local Cost Multiplier X 0.94 
Direct Costs: $ 1 1 ,884 
Indirect Cost Allowance (5%): 594 
Replacement Cost $ 1 2,478 
Rounded to $ 12,500 

The replacement cost for the deck is based on Section 66, page 2, of the Marshall Valuation Cost 
Manual. This is adjusted by the Current Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 3 .  

Decks: 2,080 sf @ $ 1 0/sf= $ 20,800 



ESTIMATED REPLACEMENT COST 

Main Floor 
Log Construction 
Loft 
Basement 
Cost of Lodge and Barn 
Fireplace 
Deck 
Total 
Rounded to 

DORM 

3,525 sq. ft. @ $99.00 = 

1 ,440 sq. ft. @ $ 1 1 1 .00 = 
330 sq. ft. @ $91 .00 = 

4,965 sq. ft. @ $69.00 = 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

348,975 
1 59,840 
30,030 

342,585 
881 ,430 

1 2,500 
?O 800 

914,730 
914,700 
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Replacement cost was estimated using Average Cost Class D Single-Family Residential from 
Section 1 2, pages 25 and 26, of the Marshall Valuation Cost Manual. This is adjusted by the 
Current Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 3 and the Local Cost Multiplier from Section 99, 
page 9 using Grand Forks, North Dakota as the base level. 

Base Cost - Main Floor 
Heating and Cooling 
Floor Area/Shape ( 1 ,050 square feet) 
Current Cost Multiplier 
Local Cost Multiplier 
Direct Costs: 
Indirect Cost Allowance (5%): 
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Main Floor 
Rounded to 

Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Main Floor 
Times Second Floor Factor 
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Second Floor 
Rounded to 

Base Cost - Semi-finished Basement 
Heating and Cooling 
Floor Area/Shape (1 ,050 square feet) 
Current Cost Multiplier 
Local Cost Multiplier 
Direct Costs: 
Indirect Cost Allowance (5%): 
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Basement 
Rounded to 

$ 77.39 
+ 2 .55  
X 1 .04 
X 1 .0 1  
X 0.94 
$ 78.93 

3 .95 
$ 82.88 
$ 83.00 

$ 82.88 
X 0.92 
$ 76.25 
$ 76.00 

$ 35 .36 
+ 6. 1 0  
X 1 .04 
X 1 .0 1  
X 0.94 
$ 40.94 

2.05 
$ 42.99 
$ 43.00 



ESTIMATED REPLACEMENT COST 

Main Floor 
Second Floor 
Basement 
Total 

GIFT SHOP 

1 ,050 sq. ft. @ $83 .00 = 
1 ,050 sq. ft. @ $76.00 = 
1,050 sq. ft. @ $43.00 = 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

87, 1 50 
79,800 
45,150 

2 12,100 
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Replacement cost was estimated using Average Cost Class D Single-Family Residential from 
Section 1 2, pages 25 and 26, of the Marshall Valuation Cost Manual. This is  adjusted by the 
Current Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 3 and the Local Cost Multiplier from Section 99, 
page 9 using Grand Forks, North Dakota as the base level. 

Base Cost - Main Floor $ 77.39 
Heating and Cooling 3 .55 
Floor Area/Shape (740/863 square feet) X 1 .025 
Current Cost Multiplier X 1 .0 1  
Local Cost Multiplier X 0.94 
Direct Costs: $ 7 1 .86 
Indirect Cost Allowance (5%): 3 .59 
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Main Floor $ 75.45 
Rounded to $ 75.50 

Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Main Floor $ 75.45 
Times Second Floor Factor X 0.92 
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot - Second Floor $ 69.41 
Rounded to $ 69.00 

The replacement cost for the porch is based on Section 66, page 2, of the Marshall Valuation 
Cost Manual. This is adjusted by the Current Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 3 .  

Porch: 1 23 sf @ $20/sf = $ 2,460 

ESTIMATED REPLACEMENT COST 

Main Floor 740 sq. ft. @ $75.50 = $ 55,870 
Second Floor 863 sq. ft. @ $669.00 = $ 59,547 
Cost of Building $ 1 1 5 ,4 1 7  
Porch 2.460 
Total $ 1 17,877 
Rounded to $ 1 17,900 
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THEATER 

Replacement cost was estimated using Fair to Average Class D Pavilions from Section 1 6, page 
23 of the Marshall Valuation Cost Manual. This is adjusted by the Current Cost Multiplier from 
Section 99, page 3 and the Local Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 9 using Grand Forks, 
North Dakota as the base level. 

Base Cost $ 63 .82 
Floor Area/Perimeter (363 feet) X 1 .044 
Current Cost Multiplier X 1 .05 
Local Cost Multiplier X 0.94 
Direct Costs: $ 65.76 
Indirect Cost Allowance (5%): 3 .29 
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot $ 69.05 
Rounded to $ 69.00 

The replacement cost for the seating is based on Section 65, page 1 0, of the Marshall Valuation 
Cost Manual. This is adjusted by the Current Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 3 .  

Base Cost per Seat 
Current Cost Multiplier 
Direct Costs: 
Indirect Cost Allowance (5%): 
Replacement Cost per Seat 
Rounded to 

ESTIMATED REPLACEMENT COST 

SHOP 

Cost of Building 
Seating 
Total 
Rounded to 

5,550 sq. ft. @ $69.00 = 

450 seats @ $98 each = 

$ 92.00 
X 1 .0 1  
$ 92.92 

4.65 
$ 97.57 
$ 98.00 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

3 82,950 
44,1 00 

427,050 
427,000 

Replacement cost was estimated using Average Cost Light Commercial Equipment (Shop) 
Buildings Class D Pole from Section 1 7, page 1 3  of the Marshall Valuation Cost Manual. This 
is adjusted by the Current Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 3 and the Local Cost Multiplier 
from Section 99, page 9 using Grand Forks, North Dakota as the base level . 



Base Cost 
Floor Area/Perimeter ( 1 52  feet) 
Current Cost Multiplier 
Local Cost Multiplier 
Direct Costs: 
Indirect Cost Allowance (5%): 
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot 
Rounded to 

ESTIMATED REPLACEMENT COST 

PUMP HOUSE 

1 ,385 sq. ft. @ $ 1 9.50 = 

Rounded to 

$ 
X 
X 
X 
$ 

$ 
$ 

1 7 .66 
1 .075 
1 .04 
0.94 

1 8 .56 
0.93 

19.49 
19.50 

$ 27,008 
$ 27,000 
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Replacement cost was estimated using Average Cost Tool Shed Class D from Section 1 7, page 
1 2  of the Marshall Valuation Cost Manual. This is adjusted by the Current Cost Multiplier from 
Section 99, page 3 and the Local Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 9 using Grand Forks, 
North Dakota as the base level. 

Base Cost $ 1 1 .08 
Floor Area/Perimeter (60 sq ft/32 feet) X 2. 1 6  
Current Cost Multiplier X 1 .04 
Local Cost Multiplier X 0.94 
Direct Costs: $ 23 .40 
Indirect Cost Allowance (5%): 1 . 1 7  
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot $ 24.57 
Rounded to $ 24.50 

Total Cost: 60 sq. ft. @ $24.50 = $ 1,470 
Rounded to $ 1 ,500 

ATTENDANT HOUSES 

Replacement cost was estimated using Average Cost Tool Shed Class D from Section 1 7, page 
1 2  of the Marshall Valuation Cost Manual. This is adjusted by the Current Cost Multiplier from 
Section 99, page 3 and the Local Cost Multiplier from Section 99, page 9 using Grand Forks, 
North Dakota as the base level. 



Base Cost 
Floor Area/Perimeter (36 sq ft/24 feet) 
Current Cost Multiplier 
Local Cost Multiplier 
Direct Costs: 
Indirect Cost Allowance (5%): 
Replacement Cost Per Square Foot 
Rounded to 

Total Cost: 36 sq. ft. @ $25.00 = 
$900 per buildings times six buildings = 

SITE IMPROVEMENTS 

Septic System: 
Roads and parking areas: 
Miscellaneous: 
Total Site Improvements 

$ 1 1 .08 
X 2.20 
X 1 .04 
X 0.94 
$ 23.83 

1 . 1 9  
$ 25 .02 
$ 25.00 

$ 900 each 
$ 5,400 

$ 1 0,000 
$ 1 5,000 
$ 5 .000 
$ 30,000 

3 8  



SUMMARY OF IMPROVEMENTS REPLACEMENT COST 

Lodge and Bam 
Dorm 
Gift Shop 
Theater 
Shop 
Pump House 
Attendant Houses 
Site Improvements 
Replacement Cost of Improvements 

DEPRECIATION 

$ 9 14,700 
2 12, 1 00 
1 1 7,900 
427,000 

27,000 
1 ,500 
5,400 

30,000 
$ 1,735,600 

Depreciation is the loss in property value from any cause as of the date of the appraisal, or in 
other words, the difference between reproduction or replacement cost new and market value. 
Depreciation can be broken down into three basic areas: Physical Deterioration, Functional 
Obsolescence and External Obsolescence. 

Physical Deterioration is the loss in value caused by the wearing out process of the 
improvements from everyday use and exposure to the elements. Physical deterioration can be 
broken down as curable and incurable. 
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Functional Obsolescence is the loss in value caused by defects in design or changes in structural 
standards and building materials. Functional obsolescence may be caused by a deficiency or a 
superadequacy and can be broken down as curable and incurable. 

External Obsolescence is loss in value caused by negative influences from outside of the site. 
External obsolescence, sometimes called economic depreciation, can be caused by the economic 
or market conditions, neighborhood, location, governmental influences and other factors outside 
the site. External obsolescence is incurable. 

Physical deterioration is reflected for the subject due to the wearing out of the buildings . After 
inspection of the buildings, considering the age and condition of the improvements, physical 
deterioration was estimated. Functional obsolescence is not reflected. External obsolescence 
is not reflected. 

PHYSICAL DEPRECIATION 

The Effective Age-Life method of calculating depreciation is utilized. Physical depreciation is 
calculated by dividing the effective age by the expected life to obtain a percentage. 

Effective Age + Expected Life = Depreciation % 
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Expected life is estimated by using Section 97 of the Marshall Swift Valuation Service. Estimated 
effective age is based on the inspection of the building. 

Lodge and Barn 

Expected Life 

40 years 

Dorm 

Expected Life 

55 years 

Gift Shop 

Theater 

Shop 

Expected Life 

55 years 

Expected Life 

30 years 

Expected Life 

25 years 

Pump House 

Expected Life 

1 5  years 

Attendant Houses 

Expected Life 

1 5  years 

Actual Age Effective Age 

27 to 3 6  years 20 years 

Actual Age Effective Age 

unknown 4 5 years 

Actual. Age Effective Age 

unknown 45 years 

Actual Age 

24 years 

Effective Age 

20 years 

Actual Age Effective Age 

30 years 1 5  years 

Actual Age Effective Age 

unknown 7 years 

Actual Age 

unknown 

Effective Age 

1 0  years 

Depreciation 

20 + 40 = 50% 

Depreciation 

40 + 55 =73% 

Depreciation 

45 + 55 =82% 

Depreciation 

20 + 30 =67% 

Depreciation 

1 5  + 25 = 60% 

Depreciation 

7 + 1 5  =47% 

Depreciation 

1 0  + 1 5  =67% 



Site Improvements 

At same rate as the Lodge and Bam. 

FUNCTIONAL OBSOLESCENCE 

The subject suffers no apparent functional obsolescence. 

ECONOMIC OBSOLESCENCE 

The subject as operated suffers no apparent economic obsolescence. 

CALCULATION OF DEPRECIATED VALUE 

Lodge and Barn 

Replacement Cost 
Less Physical Depreciation (50%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Functional Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Economic Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Rounded to 

Replacement Cost 
Less Physical Depreciation (73%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Functional Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Economic Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Rounded to 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

9 1 4,700 

457.350 
457,350 

0 
457,35 0  

0 
457,350 
457,400 

2 1 2, 1 00 
1 54.83 3  
57,267 

0 
57,267 

0 
57,267 
57,300 

4 1  



Gift Shop 

Replacement Cost 
Less Physical Depreciation (82%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Functional Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Economic Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Rounded to 

Theater 

Shop 

Replacement Cost 
Less Physical Depreciation (67%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Functional Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Economic Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Rounded to 

Replacement Cost 
Less Physical Depreciation (60%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Functional Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Economic Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 

Pump House 

Replacement Cost 
Less Physical Depreciation (47%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Functional Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Economic Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Rounded to 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

1 1 8 ,700 
97 334 
2 1 ,366 

0 
2 1 ,366 

0 
2 1 ,366 
2 1 ,400 

427,000 
286.090 
1 40,9 1 0  

0 
1 40,9 1 0  

0 
1 40,9 1 0  
1 40,900 

27,000 
1 6.200 
1 0,800 

0 
1 0,800 

0 
1 0,800 

1 ,500 
69 1 
795 

0 
795 

0 
795 
800 
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Attendant Houses 

Replacement Cost 
Less Physical Depreciation ( 67%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Functional Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Economic Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Rounded to 

Site Improvements 

Replacement Cost 
Less Physical Depreciation (50%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Functional Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 
Less Economic Obsolescence (0%) 
Depreciated Value 

SUMMARY OF DEPRECIATED VALUE 

Lodge and Barn 
Dorm 
Gift Shop 
Theater 
Shop 
Pump House 
Attendant Houses 
S ite Improvements 
Total Depreciated Value 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

5 ,400 
3 .6 1 8  
1 ,782 

0 
1 ,782 

0 
1 ,782 
1 ,800 

30,000 
15 .000 
1 5,000 

0 
1 5,000 

0 
1 5,000 

$ 457,400 
57,300 
2 1 ,400 

140,900 
1 0,800 

800 
1 ,800 

1 5,000 
$ 705,400 

43 
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LAND VALUE ANALYSIS 

SYNOPSIS 

The subject contains approximately 1 72.75 acres of area. The estimated market value for the site 
is $ 1 ,350 per acre including special assessments, or: 

1 72.75 Acres @ $ 1 ,350/ac = $ 233,2 1 3  

ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE OF LAND $ 233,200 

TECHNIQUE 

The technique used for this approach is best described as the five-step procedure in the following 
excerpt from The Appraisal of Real Estate, Thirteenth Edition, pages 3 0 1 -302 .  

1 .  Research the competitive market for information on properties that are similar to the 
subject property and that have recently sold, are listed for sale, or are under contract. 
Consider the characteristics of the properties such as property type, date of sale, size, 
physical condition, location, and land use constraints. The goal is to find a set of 
comparable sales as similar as possible to the subject property to ensure they reflect the 
actions of similar buyers. Market analysis and highest and best use analysis set the stage 
for the selection of appropriate comparable sales. 

2 .  Verify the information by confirming that the data obtained i s  factually accurate and that 
the transactions reflect arm's-length market considerations. Verification should elicit 
additional information about the property and the market so that comparisons are 
credible. 

3 .  Select the most relevant units o f  comparison in the market (e.g. ,  price per acre, price per 
square foot, price per front foot) and develop a comparative analysis for each unit. The 
appraiser's goal is to define and identify a unit of comparison that explains market 
behavior. 

4. Look for differences between the comparable sale properties and the subject property 
using all appropriate elements of comparison. Then adjust the price of each sale property, 
reflecting how it differs, to equate it to the subject property or eliminate that property as a 
comparable. This step typically involves using the most similar sale properties and then 
adjusting for any remaining differences. If a transaction does not reflect the actions of a 
buyer who would also be attracted to the subject property, the appraiser should be 
concerned about comparability. 

5 .  Reconcile the various value indications produced from the analysis of  comparables to  a 
value bracket and then to a single value indication. 
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APPLICATION 

Limited sales were located in the immediate area of the subject. Research of land sales in 
Cavalier and Pembina County in the subject area was conducted. The sales which were 
considered comparable have been included in the Addendun1. They have been compared to the 
subject to compensate for differences. Price per acre was used as the unit of comparison. The 
grid below SUUliDarizes the sales information and indicates how the subject is considered in 
relation to the comparable sales. 

ANALYSIS TECHNIQUE 

Available market data may allow for quantitative adjustments for those factors that can be 
quantified or qualitative adjustments for those that can't. Qualitative adjustments are made by 
ranking the sale data to their degree of similarity to the subject property. While both techniques 
produce a bracketed range of value indications, the qualitative analysis recognizes 
inefficiencies in the market and further recognizes the difficulty in making precise adjustments 
when comparing the sale data to the subject property. This analysis tends to be more consistent 
with actual market practice, and therefore is the preferred method used in this report. 

LAND VALUE GRID 

Sale Date Size (Acres) Sale Price $/Acre Location 

1 Aug-1 2  1 92.27 $380,000 $ 1 ,976 Hope Township 

2 Aug-1 2  1 20.00 $ 1 38,000 $ 1 , 1 50 Hope Township 

� Nov-09 50.63 $55 ,000 $ 1 ,086 Fremont Township 

4 Nov-08 1 59.5 1 $ 1 7 1 ,200 $ 1 ,073 Fremont Township 

Subject Oct- 1 2  1 72.75 North Olga Township 



ELEMENTS OF COMPARISON 

Elements of comparison are the characteristics of properties and transactions that cause the 
prices paid for real estate to vary. The appraiser considers and compares the differences 
between the comparable properties and the subject property that could affect their values .  
Adjustments for differences are made to the price of each comparable property to make the 
sales equal to the subject on the date of the appraisal . Adjustments for differences in 
elements of comparison may be made to the total property price or to a common price unit, 
but the price units used must be consistently applied to the subject and comparable 
properties. 
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For vacant rural land, the typical price unit is price per acre. Price per acre is used. The 
amount of adjustment made for each element of comparison depends on the extent to which 
each comparable property differs from the subject property. Appraisers should consider all 
appropriate elements of comparison and avoid adjusting for the same difference more than 
once. 

There are eight common elements of comparison that should be considered in land sales 
comparison analysis. 

1. PROPERTY RIGHTS CONVEYED 
2. FINANCING TERMS 
3. CONDITIONS OF SALE 
4. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ASSUMED 
5. EXPENDITURES AFTER PURCHASE 
6. MARKET CONDITIONS (TIME) 
7. LOCATION 
8. PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS 

1 .  The PROPERTY RIGHTS CONVEYED in  all the sales i s  fee simple, which is 
the same interest valued in the subject property; thus, no adjustment is needed. 

2 .  FINANCING TERMS were cash or  terms considered equal to  cash; thus, no 
adjustment is made for financing terms. 

3. CONDITIONS OF SALE - Sales 1 and 2 were purchased at an auction. Multiple 
bidders bid on the properties. The purchaser of Sales 3 and 4 was a North Dakota 
State government agency. The sale price was based on appraisal and the sellers did 
not have to sell the property. After analysis no adjustment is needed. 

4. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ASSUMED - No adjustment is needed. 

5. EXPENDITURES AFTER PURCHASE - No adjustment is needed. 
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6. MARKET CONDITIONS - The date of sale to date ofvalue varies from 
November 2008 to September 201 2. After analysis a 1 0  percent upward adjustment 
to Sales 3 and 4 for time or market conditions is felt appropriate. 

7. LOCATION - Geographic/Market Area: The factor of location, like other 
differences, is a difficult factor to call or estimate. The subject and sales are all in 
the same general area. No adjustment is made. 

8. PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS - The major items under physical 
characteristics are topography, size, cover and other features. 

a. TOPOGRAPHY - The subject is gentle to steeply sloping. The sales are 
level to sloping. Sale 1 has superior topography to the other sales and the 
subject. After considering other adjustments, a downward 1 5  percent 
adjustment to Sale 1 is made. 

b. SIZE - Sales 1 ,  2, and 4 are similar in size to the subject. Sale 3 is 
smaller in size than the subject. After analysis, no adjustment is needed. 

c. COVER - Sale 1 is mostly open land. Sale 2 has a mixture of wooded 
and open land. Sales 3 and 4 are wooded land only. After analysis a 
downward 1 5  percent to Sale 1 ;  and an upward 1 5  percent to Sales 2, 3 ,  
and 4 is made. 

d .  OTHER FEATURES - No adjustment is needed. 

9. ZONING - The subject and sales are considered similar; no adjustment 
is made. 
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LAND SALES ADJUSTMENT GRID 

Sale 1 2 J. 4 
Date of Sale Aug-1 2  Aug-1 2  Nov-09 Nov-08 
Sale Price $380,000 $ 1 38,000 $55,000 $ 1 7 1 ,200 
Size/Acres 1 92.27 1 20.00 50.63 1 59.5 1  
Price per Acre $ 1 ,976 $ 1 , 1 50 $ 1 ,086 $ 1 ,073 
Adjustments Considered 
( 1 )  Property Rights 
(2) Financing Terms 
(3) Conditions of Sale 
(4) Special Assessments 
(5) Expenditures after Sale 
(6) Market Conditions $5,500 $ 1 7, 1 20 
(7) Location 
Adjusted Sales Price $380,000 $ 1 3 8,000 $60,500 $ 1 88,320 
Adjusted Price per Acre $ 1 ,976 $ 1 , 1 50 $ 1 , 1 95 $ 1 , 1 8 1  
(8) Physical Characteristics 
(A) Topography -$296 
(B) Size 
(C) Cover -$296 $ 1 73 $ 1 79 $ 1 77 
(D) Other Features 
(9) Zoning 
Estimated Value $ 1 ,384 $ 1 ,323 $ 1 ,374 $ 1 ,358 
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CORRELATION OF LAND VALUE 

The sales indicate a range from $ 1 ,323 to $ 1 ,384 per acre. The mid-point ofthe range is $ 1 ,3 53  
per acre. The average i s  $ 1 ,359 per acre. The median i s  $ 1 ,366 per acre. Sales 1 and 4 are the 
closest in size to the subject. Sale 2 is closest in location. Sales 1 and 2 are the most recent. 

All the Sales are given some weight. Based on the sales located, a value of $ 1 ,350 per acre is 
determined. 

Land Value - $ 1 ,350 per acre. 

1 72.75 Acres @ $ 1 ,350/ac = $233 ,2 1 3  

MARKET VALUE OF LAND $233,200 (rounded) 

CORRELATION OF COST APPROACH 

Improvements 
Land 
TOTAL 

INDICATED VALUE BY COST APPROACH 

$ 705,400 
$ 233.200 
$ 938,600 

$ 938,600 



INCOME APPROACH 

SYNOPSIS 

INDICATED VALUE BY THE INCOME APPROACH (As Operated) 
With Management and Reserve 

TECHNIQUE 

$1,070,000 
$341 ,000 
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The Income Approach is a procedure where anticipated benefits (income or amenities, primarily 
cash flows and reversion) to be derived from the ownership of property are converted into an 
indication of value. Two techniques are available to the appraiser for this conversion process: 
Direct Capitalization where one year's income expectancy can be capitalized at a market-derived 
capitalization rate, and a Discounted Cash Flow Analysis where the annual cash flows for the 
holding period and the reversion can be discounted at a specified yield rate. 

Direct Capitalization is defined as: "A method used to convert an estimate of a single year' s 
income expectancy into an indication of value in one direct step, either by dividing the net 
income estimate by an appropriate capitalization rate or by multiplying the income estimate by an 
appropriate factor. Direct capitalization employs capitalization rates and multipliers extracted or 
developed from market data. Only a single year's income is used. Yield and value changes are 
implied but not identified."1 1  

Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) Analysis is defined as: "The procedure in which a discount rate is 
applied to a set of projected income streams and a reversion. The analyst specifie� the quantity, 
variability, timing, and duration of the income streams and the quantity and timing of the 
reversion, and discounts each to its present value at a specified yield rate." 12 

The major income component of the appraised property includes the annual income from the rent 
(net operating income) and the income from the future resale ofthe property. These amenities 
can be discounted at an appropriate rate to provide an indication of the subject' s value. 

Discount is: "Conversion of benefits received in the future (e.g., periodic incomes, cash flows, 
reversion) to present value."13 

APPLICATION 

The Income Approach is given strong consideration when appraising income-producing 
properties. The Direct Capitalization Method is used to estimate the value of the subject. The 
more detailed DCF is not required. 

1 1  Source: Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th ed. (Chicago: Appraisal Institute), 2010. 
12 Ibid 
13 Ibid 



The capitalization process requires an estimate of the annual net operating income from the 
property, and an estimate of the appropriate capitalization rate. 

5 1  

Net Operating Income (NOI) is the annual income remaining after deducting all the fixed and 
operating expenses but before deducting financial charges, such as recapture or debt service. It is 
determined by considering potential revenues (rent) and deducting expenses incurred under 
prudent operation of the appraised property. The scarcity oftmly comparable information may 
indicate a market tendency to owner occupancy. Market rent is estimated by researching the 
market area and determining what going rentals are. Contract rent is the present rent which a 
property enjoys. At times contract rent and market rent are the same; at other times they differ. 

RENT 

Rent is defined as: "An amount paid for the use of land, improvements, or a capital good." 14 

MARKET RENT 

Market Rent for real estate is defined as: "The most probable rent that a property should bring in 
a competitive and open market reflecting all conditions and restrictions of the lease agreement, 
including pem1itted uses, use restrictions, expense obligations, term, concessions, renewal and 
purchase options, and tenant improvements (Tis)." 15  

RENT DISCUSSION 

The subject property currently generates income from the sale of lift tickets, rental of downhill 
ski, snowboarding, and snow tubing equipment, and ski lessons, plus food and beverage sales 
during the winter. In addition, the subject generates revenue from the sale of theater tickets and 
related retail items, plus food and beverage sales during the summer. 

The typical ski season is from late November to March depending on weather. The theater has 
shows typically from late June thm early August. 

The 2012  and 20 1 3  rates are listed on the following grid. 

14 Source: Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th ed. (Chicago: Appraisal Institute), 20 10. 
15 lbid 



2012-201 3  Rental Rates 

Lift Ticket Prices 
Adult 
Child 
5 & under 

Ski & Snowboard Rental 
Adult 
Child 

Season Pass Prices 
Adult 
Child 
Family - 2 person 
Family - 3 person 
Family - 4 person 
Family - 5 person 
Family - 6 person 

$39.00 
$29.00 

Free 

$26.00 
$21 .00 

$400.00 
$250.00 
$500.00 
$600.00 
$700.00 
$800.00 
$900.00 

* 1 0% discount applied if purchased by 9-3 0-12 

Ski School Rates - per 1 .5 hours 
Group Lessons 
Private Lessons 
Snowboarding Lessons 

Hours of Operation 
Months of Operation 

Days of Operation 

COMPETITIVE RATES 

Early Season 
Holiday Season 

Late Season 

9:30am-4:30pm 
November thru March 

$20.00 
$25 .00 
$30.00 

Open Saturday & Sunday Only 
December 22 thru January 6 
Open Every Day 
January 1 0  thru March 30 
Thursday thru Sunday 
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Limited rental information was located in the area. Rental information for similar facilities was 
located. The grids on the following pages summarize the information located. The subject rates 
are competitive to the rates of other facilities and are considered reasonable. 



years & 
$39.00 $25.00 

3-1 8 years) 
12 years) $29.00 $21 .00 

$21 .00 
Free Free 

years & 
$400.00 $250.00 

Jth (6-12  
$250.00 $1 90.00 

� under Free Free 

3-1 7  years) 

· operation 9:30am-4 :30pm 1 0am-5pm 

Adults 
Student 
Child 
Group - Adult 
Group - Child 
Seniors 
Military Special 
Adult Season Pass 
Child Season Pass 

Performance. Times: 

$28.00 $28.00 $38.00 
$25.00 $38.00 

$23.00 $1 5.00 $30.00 
$23.00 $30.00 

$250.00 $270.00 $495.00 

$200.00 $ 1 00.00 $395.00 
Free Free Free 

$200.00 $235.00 $395.00 
$580.00 $560.00 $1 ,205.00 

$205. 00 

1 0am-9pm 1 0am-8pm 

Theater Rates 

$26.00 $35.00 $31 .00 

$1 2.00 $1 6.00 $ 14.00 
$24.00 
$1 1 .00 

$29.75 $26.35 I 
$1 7.50 $1 5.50 

$65.00 
$30.00 

June 8-September 8 
Sunday-Saturday Evenings 

$29.00 
$22.00 
$22.00 
$22.00 

$240.00 

$225.00 
Free 

$225.00 
$420-$560 

$225.00 

9am-1 0pm 

$1 3.00 
$ 1 1 .00 

$9.00 
1 0%-20% off I 

$ 1 1 . 00 

Mount 
These rates are Canadian CLJ 

$34.00 $48.00 $30.00 $23 
$26.00 $48.00 $30.00 $23 
$26.00 $32.00 $20.00 $ 1 7  

$34.00 $38.00 $20.00 $23 

$240.00 $21 5.00 $480.00 $35C 

$1 80.00 $1 1 5.00 $31 5.00 $32� 

Free Free Free 
$1 80.00 $414-$823 $31 5.00 

$430-$660 $61 0-$ 1 075 $32t 
$1 90.00 $169.00 $370.00 

1 0am-8pm 9am-8pm 1 0am-9: 30pm 1 Oam-1 c 

$25.00 I $ 1 9 .00 
$20.00 
$1 7.00 I $9.00 

1 0%-20% off $1 7.00 

$2o.oo I $ 1 8.00 

Select dates July-September 
Matinee & Evenings 
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The income for the subject over the last several years is listed below. 

201 1  201 0  2009 2008 2007 Average 
Gross Receipts $426,739 $536, 1 9 1  $439,585 $474,095 $527,396 $480,801  

The income has varied over the last several years due to the weather conditions and the success 
of the summer theater. Rates have increased slightly over the years. Currently gross receipts of 
$429,459 have been indicated for 20 1 2  year to date (September). The theater had a good year 
due to the popularity of performance presented. The 2012-201 3  lift rates indicate an increase of 
1 1  percent from 201 1 -2012  rates. Estimated income of 10 percent above the average is 
considered reasonable and used. 

Average Gross Receipts 
Plus 1 0% 
Total Gross Receipts 
Rounded to 

$480,801 
$48,080 

$528,881  
$528,900 

Gross Annual Receipts: $528,900 

COST OF GOODS SOLD 

The following grid summarizes the Cost of Goods sold from 2007 to 20 1 1 .  

Gross Receipts 
Cost of Goods Sold 
Percent of Gross 

201 1 201 0  2009 2008 2007 Average 
$426,739 $536, 1 9 1  $439,585 $474,095 $527,396 $480,80 1 

$42,384 $45,950 $42,290 $43,370 $46,997 $44, 1 98 
9.93% 8.57% 9.62% 9. 1 5% 8.9 1% 9. 1 9% 

The Cost of Goods Sold has ranged from $42,290 to $46,997 or 8 .57 percent to 9.93 percent of 
Gross Receipts over the last several years. The average cost of goods sold is $44 , 198 which 
equals 9 . 1 9  percent of the average gross receipts. Based on this, Cost of Goods Sold is 
estimated to be 9 percent of Gross Annual Receipts. 

Total Gross Receipts 
Cost of Goods Sold (9%) 
Rounded to 

$528,900 
$47,60 1 
$47,600 

Cost of Goods Sold: $47,600 
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OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operating Expenses include both fixed and variable expenses plus a replacement allowance. 
Fixed Expenses do not vary with the occupancy of the property and are paid whether the property 
is occupied or vacant. Variable Expenses vary with the occupancy of the property. The 
Replacement Allowance is "An allowance that provides for the periodic replacement of building 
components that wear out more rapidly than the building itself and must be replaced during the 
building's economic life."16  Fixed expenses for the subject include real estate taxes and building 
insurance. Variable expenses for the subject include management, general operating expenses 
and a reserve for replacement of major building improvements. 

REAL ESTATE TAXES 

The real estate taxes are included in the expenses reported. An additional expense for real estate 
taxes is not required. 

BUILDING INSURANCE 

The building insurance was included in the operating expenses reported. An additional expense 
for insurance is not required. 

MANAGEMENT FEE 

A rate for management needs to be considered. The expense for management of the operation 
needs to be included. No additional expense for a management fee was included in the operating 
expenses reported. A fee of $41 ,600 for a management salary is determined considering 40 
hours per week at $20 per hour for 52 weeks per year. This equates to approximately eight 
percent of Gross Revenues. Local information indicates an average salary of $44, 1 6 1  for 
professional and technical service in the area. Research in the region indicated management fees 
for managing commercial real estate are typically between three to seven percent of rent received, 
depending on the property. Properties like the subject require more time and effort to manage 
then most commercial properties. The manager of another ski area similar in size to the subject 
indicated that a management salary from $30,000 to $60,000 would be typical for similar 
operations. A management fee of $41 ,500 is considered reasonable and used. 

Management Fee: $41 ,500 

16 Source: Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th ed. (Chicago: Appraisal Institute), 20 1 0. 
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ANNUAL EXPENSE DATA 

Year 201 1 2010 2009 2008 2007 
Advertising $25,692 $2 1 ,577 $2 1 ,429 $ 1 9,799 $24,41 6  
Auto Expense $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Insurance $22,75 1  $23,5 1 1  $21 ,865 $25,958 $29, 12 1  
Payroll $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Contract Labor $3,590 $8,029 $600 $0 $5,800 
Theater $ 1 8,426 $47,083 $24,291 $23,476 $ 1 1 ,724 
Workers Comp $540 $2,478 $739 $ 1 ,300 
Taxes and Licenses $36,537 $36,536 $37, 1 70 $45 , 1 89 $42,33 9  
Salaries and Wages $97,748 $96,680 $ 1 08, 1 1 9  $93 ,7 14  $ 1 13 ,225 
Purchases (Merchandise) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Accounting and Legal Fees $725 $566 $ 1 ,675 $ 1 ,500 $481 
Utilities - REA $27, 148 $58,30 1  $39,776 $48, 1 33 $53,852 
Telephone $8,809 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Repairs and Maintenance $27,080 $44,436 $38,885 $77,71 8  $62,602 
Resale $0 $0 $0 $864 $ 1 67 
Travel $2,463 $4,676 $3 1 9  $900 $400 
Meals and Entertainment $444 $808 $0 $600 $200 
Fuel $ 1 7,762 $2 1 ,628 $8,826 $21 ,789 $5,967 
Office Supplies $ 1 5,540 $ 1 1 ,209 $7,562 $6,083 $9, 1 08 
Other $0 $0 $2,406 $6,700 $2,241 

Total Expenses $305,255 $377,5 1 8  $3 12,923 $373 , 1 62 $362,943 

Expense Ratio (% of Adjusted Gross) 79.33% 76.87% 78 .76% 86.64% 75.55% 
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ESTIMATED OPERATING EXPENSES 

Income and expense information for 2007 thru 2012  (year to date) was provided for the 
operation. The expenses (on the previous page), excluding rent from the property owners to the 
business entity, amortization, depreciation, and interest expenses, were reported for the subject 
for the last five years. 

The expenses indicated an expanse ratio from 75.55 percent to 86.64 percent for the last five 
years. The average is 79.4 percent. Based on this, annual expenses of 80 percent are considered 
reasonable and are used. Expenses are estimated based on 80 percent of the estimated gross 
mcome. 

REPLACEMENT ALLOWANCE 

A replacement allowance for the replacement and repair of major building and improvements 
such as roofing, parking lot, mechanical, electrical, heating, ventilation and cooling (HV AC), 
plus equipment needs to be considered. The reported expenses include repairs and maintenance, 
which includes the replacement of some improvements and equipment. Discussions with the 
current owners indicated that there are no capital improvements that are anticipated to need 
replacement in the near future. Commercial building owners and managers typically are setting 
aside a replacement allowance of 0 percent (none) to 10  percent of gross income. An allowance 
of five percent of gross income, which is near the midpoint of the range, is felt appropriate. A 
replacement allowance of 5 percent of gross income is added to the expense estimate of the 
subject. 

Replacement Allowance: 5% 



CORRELATION OF INCOME AND EXPENSES 

Without Management Fee and Reserve (As Operated) 

Gross Receipts 
Cost of Goods Sold 

Total Gross Income 
Adjusted Expenses 

Net Income 

Rounded to 

$528,900 
9% $47,600 

$481 ,300 

80% $385,040 

$96,260 

$96,300 

Net Income: $96,300 

With Management Fee 

Gross Receipts 
Cost of Goods Sold 

Total Gross Income 

Management Fee 

Operation Expenses 
Reserve for Replacement 

Net Income 

Rounded to 

$528,900 
9% $47,600 

$48 1 ,300 

$4 1,5 00 

80% $385,040 
5% $24,065 

$30,695 
$30,700 

Net Income: $30,700 
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CAPITALIZATION RATE 

The band of investment can be a suitable tool for estimating capitalization rates. The rate 
developed is a weighted average of the return on investment required to provide a competitive 
equity return and provide for mortgage debt service. 
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Conventional mortgage terms for commercial properties are presently offered at 4% to 6% fixed 
for three to seven years with a loan to value ratio of 70% to 80%, an amortization period of 1 5  to 
25 years and monthly payments. Ski areas tend to be seasonal properties and are considered 
higher risk and therefore typically have a higher interest rate and more conservative terms. After 
discussions with a commercial lender, the following loan terms are considered: 5% interest, fixed 
for 5 years, amortized over 1 5  years with a loan to value ratio of 70%. 

According to the PwC Real Estate Investor Survey, Second Quarter 2012, published by the 
Appraisal Institute, Overall Cap Rates from 3 .75 to 12 percent, with an average from 5 .76 to 7.33 
percent on all cash transactions were indicated nationally during the second quarter of201 2. The 
subject is a higher risk property. A rate above the mid-point of the range is considered 
appropriate. An equity rate of return of 8 percent is estimated. The following is the Band of 
Investment calculation: 

Source of Capital 

Mortgage Loan 
Equity Funds 

Portion 

.7000 

.3000 
1 .000 

X 

X 
X 

Cash Flow Rate 

.0949* 

.08 

= Weighted Rate 

.0664 

.0240 

.0904 

Rounded to: 9% 

*Annual constant for 5%, 1 5  years, monthly payments. 

The mortgage equity band of investment indicates a capitalization rate of 9 percent. 

CAPITALIZATION RATES FROM SALES 

A study of Capitalization Rates for Resorts was made. Resorts are considered to be similar in 
risk to ski areas due to typically being seasonal in nature and dependant on favorable weather 
conditions. 
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Sale Overall Rate 
A 1 1 .9% 
B 8.5% 
c 8 .0% 
D 9.6% 
E 7.7% 
F 8.7% 
G 8% 
H 7.5% 
I 1 1 .7% 

The above information was received from county courthouse records and parties involved in the 
sales. The sales are not identified in the report due to confidentiality. Additional information is 
located in the appraiser's file. 

All the sales sold in the last five years. A range from 7.5% to 1 1 .9% for cap rates is indicated. 
The midpoint of the range is 9.7 percent. The average is 9 . 1  percent. The subject has had a 
reasonable operating history. A rate near the average is considered appropriate. Considering this 
and the cap rate indicated by the mortgage equity band of investment, a Cap Rate of 9 percent is 
considered reasonable and is used. 

Capitalization Rate: 9% 

DIRECT CAPITALIZATION 

Net Income 

$30,700 

With Management Fee 

Capitalization Rate 

9% 

= 

= 

VALUE BY INCOME APPROACH: 

$341 , 1 1 1  

$341,000 (rounded) 

Without Management Fee and Reserve (As Operated) 

Net Income + Capitalization Rate 

$96,300 9% 

VALUE BY INCOME APPROACH: 

= 

= $ 1 ,070,000 

$1,070,000 



CORRELATION AND FINAL VALUE 

COST APPROACH (Real Estate Only with 172.75 acres) 

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH 

INCOME APPROACH (Real Estate and FF & E) 
(As Operated) 

$938,600 

Not Used 

$341,000 
$1 ,070,000 

6 1  

In the COST APPROACH the estimate of land value i s  based upon a consideration of market 
sales of similar type land and the estimate of cost and depreciation are processed into a 
reasonable estimate of value. The subject is an older property which makes depreciation harder 
to determine. The reliability of the Cost Approach is considered average. The Cost Approach 
included real estate only and does not include the furniture, fixtures, and equipment (FF & E). 
No Economic Obsolescence was reflected in the Cost Approach as it considered the property as 
operated without deducting management and reserves. If the cost of management (for the owners 
input) and reserves is included, Economic Obsolescence would need to be reflected. 

The INCOME APPROACH is based upon the current annual income. Income is converted to 
value by deducting expenses and capitalization of net income. The cap rate is based on a band of 
investment and a capitalization rate study. Limited information was located. The reliability of 
the Income Approach is considered reasonable as it is based on the current income. 

Normally, most weight is given to the Market and Income Approaches in the final value estimate, 
but on new or near new properties or special purpose properties, the Cost Approach is given 
equal or greater weight. 

The Income Approach is given most weight as it considers the income the subject can generate. 
The Cost Approach provides support. The Cost Approach included the additional 80.75 acres of 
land. The Income Approach considered only the 92 acres utilized by the improved Ski Area and 
Theater. 

Value of Additional Land 

The land value determined in the Cost Approach was $ 1 ,350 per Acre. Based on this the 
additional land has the following contributor value: 

80.75 Acres @ $ 1 ,350/ac = $1 09,0 1 3  

Market Value of Additional Land: $109,000 (rounded) 



Value of Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 

The property owner provided a list of the existing furniture, fixtures, and equipment (FF&E). 
Refer to the list in the addendum. 
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Value as Operated: The value of the FF&E is allocated after deducting the depreciated value of 
the improvements from the cost approach from the total indicated value. 

Value of Real Estate Improvements from Cost Approach 
Plus Land Value (92 acres @ $ 1 ,350 per acre): 
Total Value ofReal Estate 

Total Value As Operated 
Less Total Value of Real Estate 
Value of Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment (As Operated): 

$705,400 
124,200 

$829,600 

$1 ,070,000 
829,600 

$240,400 

Market Value: The value of the FF&E allocated in the Value as Operated is approximately 22 
percent of the total value. ($240,400 + $ 1 ,070,000 = 0.22) This percentage is used to allocate 
the FF&E. 

Total Market Value 
Times 22 percent 
Value of Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 

Rounded to: 

Total Market Value 
Less Value of Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 
Total Market Value of Real Estate 

$34 1 ,000 
x 22% 

$75,020 
$75,000 

$341 ,000 
75,000 

$266,000 

Note: Without the Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment (FF&E) the subject property cannot 
operate and would have a lower value. The operation needs furniture, linens, and other items of 
personal property to allow for the residence to be used. The reception area needs equipment, 
tables, chairs, and other personal property to be operated .  



ALLOCATION OF VALUE 

Without Management Fee and Reserve (As Operated) 

Improved Real Estate with 92 acres: 
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment: 
80.75 acres of Extra Land: 
Total Value as Operated 

$829,600 
240,400 
1 09,000 

$ 1 , 1 79,000 
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Note: A potential purchaser would consider an allowance to cover the cost of paying for the 
management of the property and consider an allowance for a replacement reserve. The current 
operators indicated that they do not receive a salary for their time and management of the 
property. They also do not set aside an allowance for a replacement reserve. Their compensation 
is the balance remaining each year after all operating expenses are covered including any 
replacement of improvements is made. This is typical for smaller operations similar to the 
subject property. 

With Management Fee and Reserve 

Improved Real Estate with 92 acres: 
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment: 
80.75 acres of Extra Land: 
Total Market Value 

$266,000 
75,000 

1 09,000 
$450,000 

Note: The valuation is subject to the Extraordinary Assumptions and Hypothetical Condition 
contained on Pages 5 thru 7 of this report. 
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Subject Summer Theater Brochure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 1 0 

Land Sales Location Map . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 1 1  

Land Sales Data . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1 2 

Appraiser Qualifications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 3 1  

Appraiser License . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 33 



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Signage at Entrance to Frost Fire Mountain 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012 By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

County Road 55 - Looking West 

County Road 55 - Looking Easterly 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 201 2  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Entrance Road - Looking North 

Parking Area 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 201 2  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Site Road to Dormitory and Shed- Looking East 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

View from Lodge down OLD MAN'S BEARD Run 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

View Down OLD MAN'S BEARD Run 

View Up OLD MAN'S BEARD Run - Looking West to the Lodge 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012 By Brian R. Tinjum, MAI 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Map ofFrost Fire Mountain's Runs 

Triple Chair Lift 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 201 2  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 

7 1  



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

View Down PRAIRIE SMOKE Run 

Dragon's Mouth Terrain Park 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012 By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Snow Making Equipment 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 201 2  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Front View of Lodge Building - Looking West 

View of Lodge Building and Bam - Looking Southwesterly 

Frost Fire Ski & Snow board Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012 By Brian R. Tinjum, MAI 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

View of Lodge from Barn 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012 By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Front View of Bam - Looking South 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012 By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 

76 



e e 

SUBJEC T  PHOTOGRAPHS 

Rear of Bam and Addition to Lodge Building - Looking Northeasterly 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012 By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 

e 
77 



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Front View of Hattie's Gift Shop 

Side View of Hattie's Gift Shop 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 201 2  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Main Floor 

Main Floor 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Upper Level 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 201 2  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Carriage House 
(To be removed by current property owners) 

Frost Fire Ski & Snow board Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012 By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 

8 1  



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Amphitheater Seating Area 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 

82 



SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Amphitheater Lighting and Ceiling 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Front View of Dorm Building - Looking Northerly 

Rear View of Dorm Building - Looking Southwesterly 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Main Floor Living Room 

Typical Sleeping Area 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 20 1 2  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Basement 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 20 1 2  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Front View of Shop 

Interior of Shop 

Frost Fire Ski & Snowboard Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 2012  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS 

Front View of Residence - Building Excluded from Appraisal 

Frost Fire Ski & Snow board Area - Near Walhalla, ND 
Taken October 1 8, 201 2  By Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 
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SUBJECT LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

That part of Section Thirty (30), Township One Hundred Sixty-three ( 1 63), Range Fifty 
Seven (57), Cavalier County (North Olga Township), North Dakota, described as 
follows: 

Tract 1 :  

8 9  

... T.h� ... N�r.�h��-��LQ.��.r�i�.r..:�.f. .. th� ... §!?.���-��.�-�.�9.��-r.��-�:.J�.i��-�l. .. 9.f . .  _���.!J9.r. ..... . 
·Ihlr.t.)i-.(�D.).�· .. xawn��lp. .. o ne .. Hu n.d�e.<l .. S:i.�t }!::t.hr-.�e:·:. h63 L . .':���e .. f.i.f.t Y.::: i.e ¥.e.n .. (57) .• 

· . . excr.e p.t. 
. . . . 

' ) . . : . . . . ' . ' . J :  
afl.y .. :f�a.&�-· <:>l'·:·•'.f.ght-of.-wa.•f-1··-<�G.f'.o.S.��;�J� . . -l•nd .... pr-ev,J�u.sly·:·s�l:d .. . t� . .c�nt.y . . or . . . :r.ow�s':l i.p-; . .  
ALSD., ... a.l.l...that .. p.ar.t:.o.f..t.he ... So.utbt,��t . . Quarte.r: . .  o.f, .. the., .. Nor.tP.ea.s.t.:O,ua.r.te.r. .. .(sw�)V . . . .. . 
o-f--:SeGt·i.�ll .. 'fhl-r-:t-y: .. (3? L· · -T-�ns.h + � ::.�. �:Huad�ed .. s+x:ty -:tht�e .... (.J6 3) · , . . -Ran9'1· F t.fty.-s$ven · ·-· 

·(5'7}·;-·: .. ly!ng .. So�h ... :of·'eava·Her'·C�nty .. t!Tghway--tto-: . .  :55·; .. AlSO-; .. a·t ·l ·  .. that .. pa rt· of ··the·· . .. .. 

N'ortn�a·sT''Qi.i�ir.\:e·y·of ... t:he"Soi.ilJiei:r�t"'Q.uiirte r·"(NEtsr*' ·· ·or·se·ctToii'.TliTI'tY··(3o} ·; .. TQ.iln:.:. · · . . . . . . . . . ' ' . 
5'filP.·-oii·� .. Hun·c:fre'Cf .. s'fxfy:.:ffi·r�e-.. {lo�r�· .. iri!n9·e .. F'rr'fy�1�e.�.:en ... (s"1l·;· · · rylii9 

... west:· ··af .tl,.e.... · · ·  .. . 

;:"c;��-shl'p, .. �-��;i . . �h .. i�h ... p,re·���-t- ·iy .. ·�-�-o�-��,�-,.5a·i d ... t:ra.ct :·j� .. a··�9e.�e.rai- 1'-Y .. N.
or·a;:·s;;;:itii .... · · · · · · 

......... - ................. ................ . . .. . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . ....... .... \ ............ .... . ..... --.-·-·····- ··· · ·  ......... .......... ........ : ........ . . ............................. · · ·· ···· .. . ·-· ·· - · · · ·· .. . 
d i rect i on ;  s u bj ect howeve r to the· · .re s erva t l on by· one , · c l a ra M .  Pe t e r s on , of a 
·····--•-.·•••·••·"•···••••••• • • ••·• �·•••& •••••••••••,•·•••·•·· ····•••••••·••••••··••••"'•'••••·•• •••••••·•• •• -'·••\-�1'"'"' '"' • ••••'• •• • • • ·••••••• ·- ·•·•••• •• •••••••••••••· •••••• . .,.. · •• . • , • . . . .1 1 
.U.f�-.. ��J�.t� .. .1.!'! ... �.f.!� . •  �Q .. �.!J . ... IJIJ.D,�r�J.� . . .l9.<;:.?!.t�� . . . l!P..9.Q. ·Jh�J . . P.�.r..t. 9.f. . . t.l:!� . . . t:!�.�s.; 1i o f . .. s.��.�. J <?., 
Iwp .... .I63. .... Rge.:.. .. $7., . .. de.sc.r. ib.ed . .  .abo'lle ... �,.,. . ., . .. .. .. . . . ... . . ..... .. . . . .... . . .. . 

Tract 2 :  

North Hal f  o f  the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter 
�( N l / 2NE 1 /4 SW1 /4 ) ; Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter 

o f  the Southwest Quarter � SE 1 / 4NE 1 / 4 SW1 /4 ) ;  East Half of the 
East Hal f  o f  the Southwest Quarter o f  the Northeast Quarter 
o f  the Southwest Quarter "'( E l/ 2 E l / 2 SW1/4NE 1 / 4 SW1 / 4 ) ;  North 
Hal f  o f  the West Hal f  o f  the East Hal f  o f  the Southwest 
Quarter o f  the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter 

�Nl / 2Wl / 2 E l / 2 SW1 / 4NE 1 / 4 SW1/ 4 ) ; and all that portion of the 
Southeast Quarter o f  the Northwest Quarter Y(SE l / 4NW1 /4 ) lying 
south of County Highway #55 ; Al l loc ated in Section Thirty 
( 3 0 ) , Township One Hundred Sixty-three North ( 16 3N ) , Range 
Fifty-seven West ( 5 7W)  of  the Fifth Princ ipal Meridian . 



The following is excluded from Tract 2 :  

Tract 3 :  

A tract o f  land located i n  the NE 1 .'4SW I /4
�
of Section 30, Township g; O,;J 

163N, Range 57W of the 5'h P.M., Cavalier County, North Dakota, l./Y � 
described as follows: Commencing at the found BLM corner at the 
NE corner ofthe NW I /4 of said Section 30; thence South 00 .09'44" 
East, along the quarter line, for a distance of 2,990.00 feet to the 
point of beginning of the tract to be described; thence South 89.50' 1 6" 
West for a distance of 1 80.00 feet; thence, South 00°09'44" East for 
a distance of288.00 feet; thence, North 68.03'24" East for a distance 
of 1 57.00 feet; thence, North 08 °25'49" East for a distance of 80.00 
feet; thence, North 64 o 17'52" East for a distance of 24.68 feet, more 
or less to the point of beginning. Said tract o f  land containing 1 .00 
acres, more or less and subject in all easements of record. Access is 
provided to this property along the following described Ingress/Egress 
Easement. 
Ingress/Egress Easement Description to Parcel "A": A strip of land 
located in the SWI/4NE l/4 and the NW1/4S E I /4 of Section 30, 
Township 1 63N, Range 57W ofthe 51h P.M., Cavalier County, North 

Dakota, described as follows: Commencing at the found BLM comer 

at the NE comer of the NW I /4 of said Section 30; thence South 
00.09"44" East, along the quarter line, for a distance of 2, 1 75 . 1 1 feet, 
thence, North 89°50'16" East for a distance of205.10 feet to the point 
of beginning of the Ingress/Egress Easement to be described, which 
point is within the Right of Way of Cavalier County Road No. 55; 
thence, 1 6.5 feet on either side of the following described centerline: 
thence, along a curve to the right with a Radius of 396.01 feeL Delta 
Angle of 52° 1 6' 1 3", Chord Bearing of South 1 9°20'47", Chord 
Length of 348.87 feet, for a distance along the curve of 361 .27 feet to 
the point o f  reverse curve (PRC); thence, along a tangential curve to 
the left, with a Radius of 1 34.92 feet, Delta Angle of 99• 1 0'28" for a 
distance of 233.54 feet to the PRC; thence, along a tangential curve to 
the right, with a Radius of 9 1 .92 feet, Delta Angle of 87"45'24" for 
a distance of 1 40.79 feet; thence, along the tangent on a bearing of South 

9 0  

Southwes t  Quarter £{f the Southeast Quarter ( SW 1 / 4 SE 1 / 4 ) , Sec ­
tion Thirty ( 3 0 ) r'Towns hip One Hundred S ixty-three North 
( 1 6 3N ) , Range Fifty- s even We s t  ( 5 7W )  of the F i fth Princ ipal 

Meridian . 

Tract 4: 

That part of the Southwest Qua rter of the Northeast Quarter 
(SW1f4NEY4) of Section Thirty (30), Township One H u ndred 
Sixty-three (1 63) , Range Fifty-seven (57) described as 
fol lows: Beginning at the point of intersection of the North l ine 
of the Right of Way of Cavalier County Highway No. 55 and the 
West line of the Southwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter 
(SW%NEV4) of Section Thirty (30 ) ;  thence North on the West 
line of the Southwest Quarte r  of the Northeast Quarter 
(SW%NEY4) of Section Thirty (30) to the Northwest corner of 
the Southwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter (SWY4NEY4 ) of 
Section Thirty (30) ; thence East on the North line of the 
Southwest Qua rter of the Northeast Quarter (SWY4 N E1f4) of 
Section Thirty (30) six hundred feet (600') ;  thence South to 
the point of inte rsection with the N orth line of the Right of way 
of Cava l ier County Hig hway No 55, thence Southwest on the 
North line of the Right of Way of Highway No. 55 to the point of 
begin ning.  Bein g  a tract of land containing eleven ( 1 1 )  acres 
more or less. 



Lodge Bui ld i ng /7 
I 

� I / 
) / 

h�A� \ E�Rt � 

Barn and Additions 
(Approx. Sq. Ft. = 2,235) 

Main Floor Total 
(Approx. Sq. Ft. = 4,965) 

Second Level 
(Approx. Sq .  Ft. = 330) 

Frost-Fire Walhalla, North Dakota 

HAIH LOD6E 
(Jqlb) 

�r---.., - - - - --l-<£1.-)- - - - -
,_,. 

ADDITION 
MB5) 

Lodge - Main Floor 
(Approx. Sq. Ft. = 2,400) 



LOJHGE I A55EMBL Y ARfA 

5TORA5E 

Basement 
(Approx. Sq. Ft. = 4,630) 

Frost-Fire Walhalla, North Dakota 

LOUN0E SPAcE 
0<116) 

0 

0 

SKI RENTAL SPACE 
(IC!Z>5) 



Hattie's Gift Shop 

0 0 

Main Level (Approx. Sq. Ft. = 7 40) 

CLOSET CL. CLOSET 

CL. 

STORAGE 

Second Level (Approx. Sq. Ft. = 863) 

Frost-Fire Walhalla, North Dakota 



Dorm 

STORAGE 

0 
0 

t·1ECHAI·IICAL 

Basement 
(Approx. Sq. Ft. = 1 , 050) 

BEDROOI'I 

BEDROOH 

Second Level 
(Approx. Sq. Ft. = 1 , 050) 

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 

\ 

BEDROOH 

LIWJG ROOH 

BEDROOH BEDROOH 

Main Level 
(Approx. Sq. Ft. = 1 , 050) 



Amphitheater 

UP 

CONTROL 

Frost-Fire Walhalla, North Dakota 



Shop 

PIT 

(Approx. Sq.  Ft. = 1 , 385) 

Frost-Fire Walhalla, North Dakota 
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Maps provtded by: 

. � � �-�r��Y 
www.AgriDatalnc.com 

Aerial  Map 

30-1 63N-57W 

Caval ier Cou nty 

North Dakota 

9 8  

map center: 48" 54' 40.85, 98" 4' 2.92 

scale: 8645 

s 
1 1/ 1 2/2012 

Field borders provided b y  Farm Service Agency a s  of 5/21/2008. Aerial photography provided by Aeria l  Photograpy Field Office. 



Soil Description 

F591 F Olga-Kioten complex, 
wooded, 9 to 35 
percent slopes 

F51 2C Rolette silty 
6 to 9 

F�9 1 F  

0.1 

Soils Map 

Productivity 
Index 

State: 
County: 
Location: 
Township: 

North Dakota 
Cavalier 
30-1 63N-57W 
North Olga 
1 73.8 
1 1 /1 2/20 1 2  

Acres: 
Date: 

72 17 

Maps provided by: 

rl -� �yr_ety 

55 34 

9 9  



Maps provided by: 

� �!!r.��y 
CAgriData, lnc. 20 12 
www.AgriDatalnc.com 

Topography Map 

30-1 63N-57W 

Cavalier County 

North Dako�a 

1 0 0  

niap center. 48• 54' 40.85, 98, 4' 2 . . 92 
scale: 8645 

s 
1 1 /1212012 

Field borders provided by Farm Service Agency as of  5/21/2008. Aerial photography provided by Aerial Photograpy Field Office. 
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7 miles west on County Road #55 

Walhalla, ND 58282 
1 .701 .549.3600 

DAY LOUCE 

Easiest 
B More Difficult 
• Most Difficult 

Terrain Park 
!�. � .) Half Pipe 

.. ---· 
•. .• 1..-c·} . ,: .  

•· 

' 
....} ''*· . · - -· - r  � ··- •O 
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1 0 2  

- :  .... £�· �u��_Lc' 
PEMBINA RIVER GORGE 

* N O R T H  D A K O T A *  



FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT LIST 
1 0 3  

RENTAL ITEMS Q!}: Notes: 

Snow Boarding Boots 1 1 5  $150 each 0 - 1 0  years old 

Snow Boards 1 00 $1 ,050 each 0 - 1 0  years old 

Snow Board Bindings 1 00 $150 each 0 - 1 0  years old 

Helmets 1 00 $55 each 0 - 1 0 years old 

Ski Boots (pairs) 350 $1 50 each 0 - 1 0  years old 

Skies & Bindings 2 1 6  $200 each 0 - 1 0 years old 

Poles (sets) 360 $50 sets 0 - 1 0 years old 

Tubes 36 each 0 - 10 years old 

Time Clock 1 
Ski Tuner 1 1 5  Yrs old; Purchase price of $1 2,000 new 

2-Way Handheld Radio 1 
Various Tools and Waxing Equipment 

SOUTH ROOM Q!}: Notes: 
Folding Tables & Benches 2 
Church Pews 2 
Round Tables 2 
Chairs 1 2  
Lounge Chairs 2 
Reading/Coffee Tables 2 
Dumpsters 1 
Vacuum Cleaner 1 
Picture and Wall Decor 

LOG ROOM Q!}: Notes: 
Leather Sofas 4 
30" x 30" Tables 7 
Chairs 1 2  
Dumpsters 2 
Wood Benches 3 
Area Rugs 6 5' X 10' 

BARN ROOM Q!}: Notes: 
Tables 43 30" X 30" 
Chairs 78 
Church Pew 1 
Ice Cream Freezer 1 
Cash Register and Table 1 
Credit Card Terminal 1 
Soda Coolers 2 
Food Counters 6 
Dumpster 1 
Hot Chocolate Maker 1 
Coffee Maker 2 
Large Folding Table 2 
Small Freezer 1 
Roaster Oven 4 
Small  Display Case 1 
Cheese Warmer 1 
Wall Hangings 
Window Shades 

BAR LOWER LEVEL Q!}: Notes: 
Bar Stools 4 
Popcorn Popper & Stand 1 
Beer Cooler 1 
Cash Register 1 
Work Table 1 
High Tables 2 



FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT LIST 
1 0 4  

High Chairs 
Low Tables 
Low Chairs 
Flat Screen TV 
Pictures, Signs, Decor, etc. 

LOWER LEVEL GENERAL AREA 
Benches 
Area Rugs 
Carpet 
Rubber Rug ·• 

Retail Showcase 
Fire Extinguisher 
Pictures, Clocks, Bulletin Board 

LADIES RESTROOMS · 2 
Floor Rug 

MENS RESTROOM • 1 
Floor Rug 

BARN LOWER LEVEL 
Folding Tables w/ Attached Benches 
Folding Tables w/ Matching Benches 
Wood Benches 
Blue Sofa 
Fire Extinguisher 
Wall Decor, Pictures, etc. 

LOCKER ROOM 
Wood Benches 
Wall Clothing Rack 
Large Lockers 
Coin Lockers 

SNOW MAKING & 
RIVER PUMPS/PUMPHOUSE 
Ingersoll Rand 
Gorman-Rupp 
Ingersoll Rand pump with US Electrical Motors 
House for river pump 
Aveco Snow Makers 
High Pressure Water Line 
Self Draining, Hydrants Below Grade 
Electrical Outlet 
Pipe from River to Holding Pond 

LIFTS 
Triple Chair Lift 

Double Chair Lift 

Towers 
Chairs 

Towers 
Chairs 

6 
3 
9 
1 

Qty Notes: 
5 
4 5' X 1 0' 
1 6" x 28" 
1 3' x 20' 
1 8' 1ong 
1 

Qty Notes: 
1 4' x 6' 

Qty Notes: 
1 4' x 6' 

Qty Notes: 
5 Red 
4 Light Brown 
7 
1 
1 

Qty Notes: 
2 
1 

24 
1 5  

Qty Notes: 
1 50 hp 400 gallon per minute 
1 40 hp 200 gallon per minute 
2 600 gallon per minute. 1 25 hp Motors 
1 With Starters 
6 2000-2008 at $20,000 each 

6000 feet 4" 
1 6  
24 

5000 4" 

Qty Notes: 
1 top drive 

1 1  
75 1-1/2" haul rope, 75 hp drive motor w/ 50 hp backup gas 

motor and all starters and disconnects; Rebuilt in 1990 
from double chair to triple chair 
Purchased used but reengineered in 1 995 

1 Bottom Drive 
8 

50 1 -1/2" haul rope, 75 hp drive motor w/ backup motor and 
all strarters and disconnects locate in a heated house 
along with pumps for snow making. 



FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT LIST 
1 0 5  

Handle Tow 

Magic Carpet Lift 

GROOMING EQUIPMENT 
Piston Bully 200 w/ Flex Tiller 
LMC 3700G w/ Flex Tiller 
LMC 3700C w/ Straight Tiller 
1 995 Ford F 1 50 Pickup 
John Deere Crawler 450 
John Deere 400 backhoe 
1 999 Arctic Cat Snowmobile 
201 3  Arctic Cat side by side 
Pipe Dragon 
Rolling cultivator 
EZgo Golf Cart 

OFFICE 
Paper Shredder 
Fax Machine 

Handles 

Video Screen w/ Hardware for Triple Chair 
Piano w/ Bench 
Steel Desk w/ Chair 
Lap Top Computer 
Book Shelf 
Leather Sofa, Chair & Ottoman 
Television 
Wall Decor 
Small Money Vault 
Steel 4-Drawer Filing Units 
End Table 
Lamp 
Antique Record Player 

THEATER EQUIPMENT 
201 1  Electric Piano 
2000 E lectric Piano 
1 995 Electric Piano 
Speakers 

Light Board 
Dimmer Pak 
Sound Boards 
Amps 
Snakes 
Wireless Mic's 
Synthesizer 
Stage Lights 
Mic w/ Cords 
Digital EQ Delay 
Concession House 
Cords, Connectors, etc. 

HATTIES GIFT HOUSE 
Tables 
Benches 
Chairs 
Deck C hairs 

30 

400 feet w/ top drive, house for starter and disconnects 
at top; 1 5  hp 3 phase 440 volts 

*All towers on chairlifts have tower pads at bottom of towe 
1 New, purchase price of $1 50,000 

Qty Notes: 
1 1 0  years old, purchase price of $60,000 
1 1 8  years old, purchase price of $45,000 
1 27 years old, purchase price of $60,000 
1 
1 46 years old, purchase price of $1 5,000 
1 30± years old, purchase price of $12,000 
1 Purchase price of $1 0,000 
1 Purchase price of $1 2,000 
1 
1 
1 

Qty Notes: 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

1 
4 
1 
1 
1 

Qty Notes: 
1 Purchase price of $3,000 
1 Purchase price of $5, 000 
1 Purchase price of $2,500 

1 0  1 990-2006; Qty-2 purchased at $5,000; Qty-4 purchased 
at $750; Qty-4 purchased at $1 ,000 

1 
1 
3 
5 
2 

20 $600 each 
1 

30 
3 $200 each 
1 
1 

Qty Notes: 
8 

1 4  
4 
2 



FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT LIST 
1 0 6  

Umbrellas & Stands 5 
Display Tables 3 
Display Shelves 4 
Rug 1 5' X 8' 
Antique Glass Display Case 1 8' long 
Glass Shelves 4 
Metal Shelves 3 
Wood Tables 5 
Fans 2 
Air Conditioner 2 

SHOP Q� Notes: 
Portable Work Bench 1 
Battery Chargers 2 
Welder 1 
Portable Welder 1 
Pressure Washer 1 
Air Compressor 1 
Table Saw 1 
Gas Welder & Torch 1 
Step Ladders 2 
Extension Ladders 2 
Two-Wheel Trailer 1 
Spare Part for Drive Of LMC's 1 
Allis Chalmer Diesel Engine 1 200 hp Stand By 
Complete Set of Metric Tools 1 
Complete Set of US Tools 1 
Log Chains 3 
Portable Jacks 2 
300 Gallon Gas Tank 1 
1 000 Gallon Diesel Tan k  1 
Dixon 51" Lawn Mower 1 
Saftey Harness 2 
Welding Helmets 2 
Metal Ski Racks 4 
Snow Board Rails 5 
Misc. Shovels. Rakes & Brooms 

DORMITORY - FIRST FLOOR Q� Notes: 
Sofas 2 
Upholstered Chairs 2 
Television 1 
Wood Bench 1 
Coffee Table 1 
Single Beds w/ Mattresses 1 6  
M irrors 2 
Lamps 2 
Fans 4 

DORMITORY - SECOND FLOOR Q� Notes: 
Sofas 3 
Chairs 3 
Fans 4 
Mirror 1 
Single Beds w/ Mattresses 8 
Table 1 
Air Conditioner 1 

DORMITORY - THIRD FLOOR Q� Notes: 
Misc. Costumes & Props for Theater Endless 



FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT LIST 
1 0 7  

DORMITORY - BASEMENT Qty Notes: 
Microwave 1 

Pizza Baker 1 
Refrigerator 1 

Sink 1 
Wash Rack 1 

KITCHEN Qty Notes: 
Plates 1 80 1 2" 
Cups 1 56 
Saucer Plates 40 
Glasses 168 
Dessert Plates 1 50 
Salad Bowls 85 
Butter Dish 48 
Water Pitcher 9 
Water Carraf 36 
Clear Glass Salad Plates 90 
Coffee Warmer 1 2  
Wine Glasses 48 
Chafers 4 
Knives, Forks & Spoons 12 dz. each 
Large Tubs 6 
Coffee Maker 1 
Baking Pans 24 
Roasting Containers 6 
Microwave 1 
Fire Extinguisher 2 
Freezers 2 
Stainless Steel Work Tables 3 
Deep Fryers 2 
Heat Lamp 1 
Electric Range 1 
Convection Oven 1 
Compartment Sink 3 
Dishwasher 1 
Two-Door Refrigerator 1 
Large Warmer 1 
Hood (Over Fryer & Range) 1 
Ansel System 1 
Air Conditioner 1 
Misc. Pots, Pans, Utensils 

MISC. Qty Notes: 
50' 1 - 1 /2 Snowmaking hose 40 
Rescue Tobbagins 2 
Desk 1 
Triple Chair Pads 75 
Triple Chair Tower Pads 1 1  
Double Chair Pads 50 
Patients Beds 2 
Theater Side Curtains 1 2  
Back Stay Pads for Tubing 8 
Propane Torches 2 
Shovels & Rakes 1 2  
Ropes for Chair Evacuation 
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FROST FIRE SKI & SNOWBOARD BROCHURE 
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SOME THI NGS DO NOT REQUIRE POETRY. .. THEY ARE 
Ski the spectacular Pembina River Gorge 

Frost Fire Ski and Summu Resort is located in 

the Heart of the Scenic Pembina River Go rae. 
ARb\ � .... \TI'\l'll .. ; 
Snow making covers 100% or our area. 
Number of Runs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 0  
Longest Run . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2600' 
Vertical Drop . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 350' 
Elevation • • • • . •  , • • • • • • • . • • • • • • .  1 350' 
Lift Facilities 
I double chair lilt, I triple chair lift, handle tow 

V.\RIElY <IF TlRJIAJI'o: 
Variety of terrain will ke�p skiers and 
snuwboarders happy and having fun! 

• Beginner - l 
• Intermediate - 4 
• Advanced - 3 

Terrain park with rails and tabletops. 
Half Pipe 

Foou SEJII'Jl'E: 
• Tasty choices at the frost fire 
Daylodge Cafeteria. Great food for 
big appetites. 
• Winter&kol l.ounge. Food and 
drink plus big screen TY. 
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FROST FIRE SKI & SNOWBOARD BROCHURE 
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1 1 0 
FROST FIRE SUMMER THEATER BROCHURE 

FROST FIRE SOllER TIEATIE 2012 
PIIISIIITS 

I RING OF FIRE I 
SUMMER 2012 

INDIVIDUAL PRICES GROUP PRICES 
(TAXES NOT INCLUDED) 

Theall• 
Adulls S26.00 
Chnd , S12.00 
Cantdian Guests f)lla• cd fol' 
... �.,.... 70t...S.I-3500 

(TAXES NOT INClUDED) 
Valid rot groups of 1 o or morw 

Theatre Onty � •• U..OO 
Theatre & Oinn• .. , . $41 00 
Child TheW. Only 111 00 
Child Th�alN a Olnnu $25 00 

GRILL MENU ALSO AVAILABLE 

The gmup numbllrs must be conirmfod 24 boutl btlort: lM �tfom���nca and •I btl dlaflled loc lh•l null'lber Frnl Fn wo1 not hDtiOI' Qll�\loN a liM 'fOUf 2<4 !tour nol'lee 
Addlliol\l MJ be; .aaw.d lnyin'w bul MabnQ IM't ftOI. be ytiJI your (tfOUp Tic:ll .... mull. 'M 

�1!1.:&!1� et.wif):Q.Mtell� • lWJn  � 

Sunday 
Wednasday 
Saturday 
Sunday 
w-.sday 
Salulilay 
SUnday 
Wednesday 
Sab.Jrday 
SUnday 
Wednuday 
Sab.Jrday 
Sunday 
Wednesday 
Salurday 
Sunday 

PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE 

July 1 
July 4 . 
Juty 7 
July .  
July ,, 
July 14 
July 15 
July 11 
July 21 Juty 22  
July 25 
July 28 
July 29 
August 1 
Auguot 4 
August 5 

2:00 p.m MaUnae 
2:00 p m  MoU,_ 
8:00 p m Evening 
2:00 p m  MaUnM 
2:00 p m  M-
8:00 p m Evening 

, 2:00 p.m MlltinH 
2:00 p m� Matinee 
8:00 p m Evering 
2:00 p m Matinee 
2:00 p m  M-
6:00 p m E ... nlng . 2:00 p m Mollnee 
2:00 p m MallnM 
8:00 p m Evening 
2:00 p m Malinee 

MUSICAl HIGHliGHTS ..,. � .. t :1 ., I 
* RIIG IFHRI 
* DADDY SANG BASS 

* A BOY NAMED SUE 

* COUNTRY BIY 
* FOlSOM PRISON BlUH 

* I WALK THE UN£ 
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Date of Sale: 

Location:  

Grantor: 

Grantee: 

Legal Description: 

Parcel Number: 

Zoning: 

Topography: 

Soils: 

Land Size: 

Sale Price: 

Unit Price: 

Confirmed by: 

Comments: 

LAND SALE #1 

August 22, 2012  

Section 26, Hope Township, Cavalier County 

Hilford S.  Olson 

Bjornstad Farms 
603 Riverside A venue, Walhalla, ND 

1 1 2  

W � of the SE Y-1, NE Y4 of the SE 1/4, SE Y4 of the NW Y-1, and the NE 1/4 
of the SW \l.i less part of the NE Y4 of the SW Y-1, Section 26, Township 
1 63, Range 58, Cavalier County, North Dakota. 

1 8 1 25000, 1 8 1 26000, and 1 8 129000 

Agricultural 

Level to steeply sloping; slopes to 3 5  percent. 

Swbol Name Slo_ge Class Acres % PI 

F203B Waukon loam 3-6% lie 63.7 3 3 . 1  76 
F591F  Olga-Kloten complex, wooded 9-35% Ve 53.2 27.7 32 
F200A Kelvin loam 0-3% lis 30.8 1 6.0 88 
F203A Waukon loam 0-3% lie 26.7 1 3 .9  82 
F 1 1 0A Suomi, moist-Kelvin complex 0-3% lis 9.9 5 .2 89 
F303B V ang-Coe complex 2-6% IVs 7.0 3 .7 52 
F 1 47f Buse-Barnes-Darnen loams 9-35% VIe 1 .0 0.5 34 

1 92.2 7 acres 

$380,000 PRD (Document #2355 1 3) 

$ 1 ,976/acre 

Buyer & Courthouse Records 

Average Productivity Index - 66.2 



t-1aps.provided by: 
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Aerial Map 

26-1 63N-58W 

Cavalier County 

North Dakota 

1 1 3  

map center: 48' 54' 42.22, 98' 6' 47.29 

scale: 8422 

s 
1 1 /1 9/2012  

Field borders provided b y  Farm Service Agency a s  of 5/21/2008. Aerial photography provided by Aerial Photograpy Field Office. 



Soils Map 

F203B 

F59 1 F  

F203A 

� 
HWY 55 

State: 
County: 
Location: 
Township: 
Acres: 
Date: 

North Dakota 
Cavalier 
26-163N-58W 
Hope 
1 92.3 
1 1 /1 9/2012 

Maps provided by: 

t'iif�!!!..�Y 

1 1 4  
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26-1 63N-58W 

Cavalier County 

North Dakota 

. .. .. • ' 

1 1 5  

• • • 
: I  

map center: 48• 54' 40.52, 98• 6' 39.24 

scale: 6809 

s 
1 1 /19/2012  

Field borders provided by Farm Service Agency a s  o f  5/21/2008. Aerial photography provided by Aerial Photograpy Field Office. 



Date of Sale: 

Location: 

Grantor: 

Grantee: 

Legal Description: 

Parcel Number: 

Zoning: 

Topography: 

Soils: 

Land Size: 

Sale Price: 

Unit Price: 

Confirmed by: 

Comments: 

LAND SALE #2 

August 22, 2012 

Section 25,  Hope Township, Cavalier County 

Hilford S .  Olson 

Bjornstad Farms 
603 Riverside A venue, Walhalla, ND 

1 1 6  

S Y2 ofthe NE '14 and the NE Y4 of the SE Y-1, Section 25, Township 1 63 ,  
Range 58,  Cavalier County, North Dakota. 

1 8 1 1 5000 

Agricultural 

Level to steeply sloping; slopes to 3 5 percent. 

Symbol 

F591F 
F203B 
F203A 
F200A 
F594D 

1 20 acres 

Name 

Olga-Kloten complex, wooded 

Waukon loam 
Waukon loam 
Kelvin loam 
Olga silty clay loam 

$138,000 PRD (Document #235491 )  

$ 1 , 1 50/acre 

Buyer & Courthouse Records 

Average Productivity Index - 39.2 

Slope Class Acres 

9-35% Ve 100 .0 
3-6% lis 5 .9 
0-3% Ilc 5 . 1  
0-3% Ils 4.6 

9- 1 5% IVe 4.4 

% PI 

83.4 32 
4.9 76 
4.2 82 
3 .8  88 
3 .7 53 



Maps provided by: 

�Yr��Y 

Aerial Map 

25-1 63N-58W 

Cavalier County 

North Dakota 

1 1 7  

map center: 48° 54' 46. 1 6, gs• 5' 29.6 

scale: 861 0  

1 1 /24/20 1 2  

Field borders provided by Farm Service Agency as of 512 1 /2006. Aerial photography provided by Aerial Photograpy Field Office. 



Soils Map 

F59 1 F  

. n _____ 24.----------- -

State: 
Cou nty: 
Location: 
Township: 
Acres: 
Date: 

North Dakota 
Cavalier 
25-163N-58W 
Hope 
1 20 
1 1 /24/2012 

Maps provided by: 

rnw�'!r.�H�Y 

1 1 8  
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Topography Map 

25-1 63N-58W 

Cavalier County 

N orth Dal<ota 

1 1 9  

map center: 48* 54' 46.1�, 9�· 5' 29.8 

s�le: 8610 

s 
1 1/24/2012 

Field borders provided by Farm Service Agency as of  5/2 1 /2008. Aerial photography provided by Aerial Photograpy Field Office. 



Date of Sale: 

Location: 

Grantor: 

Grantee: 

Legal Description: 

Parcel Number: 

Zoning: 

Topography: 

Soils : 

Land Size: 

Sale Price: 

Unit Price: 

Confirmed by: 

Comments: 

LAND SALE #3 

November 1 6, 2009 

Sections 2 & 29, Fremont Township, Cavalier County 

Donald & Evelyn I. Nelson 
1 0204 Hwy 32, Walhalla, North Dakota 

State ofNorth Dakota - North Dakota Parks and Recreation Dept. 
1 600 E. Century Avenue, Suite 3 ,  Bismarck, North Dakota 

1 2 0 

A tract of land in the N lh of the SE 1.4 and the SE 1.4 of the SE 1.4 Section 
2, Township 163, Range 58, and a tract of land in Lot 1 and the SE 1.4 of 
the SE 1.4 of Section 29, Township 164, Range 58,  all in the 5th Principal 
Meridian, Cavalier County, North Dakota. 

1 126801 1 and 1 1 3290 10  

Agricultural 

Level to steeply sloping; slopes to 35 percent. 

Parcel A: 
S):lllbol___Name 
F59 1F  Olga-Kloten complex, wooded 

F 1 10A Suomi, moist-Kelvin complex 

F200A Kelvin loam 

Parcel B: 

SJo_pe__Class_AcLes 
9-35% Ve 25.3 

0-3% lis 3 .5  
0-3% lis 0.6 

85 .9 
1 2.0 
2 . 1  

Symbol Name Slope Class Acres % 
F591F 
F200A 

Olga-Kloten complex, wooded 9-35% Ve 1 6.2 76.2 
Kelvin loam 0-3% lis 5 .0 23 . 8  

50.63 acres 

$55,000 WD (Docwnent #23 1 7 1  0) 

$ 1  ,086/acre 

State of North Dakota - North Dakota Parks and Recreation Dept. 

Average Productivity Index: Parcel A - 40.0 
Parcel B - 45 .3 

PI 
32 
89 
88  

PI  
32 
88  



Maps provided by: 

At:/�.�r.�� y 

Aerial  Map 

2-1 63N-58W 

Cavalier Cou nty 

N o rth Dakota 

1 2 1  

map center: 48• 58' 1 .7, ga• 6' 24.64 

scale: 4637 

1 1 /1 6/20 1 2  

Field borders provided by Farm Service Agency as of 5/21/2008. Aerial photography provided by Aerial Photograpy Field Office. 



Soils Map 
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Sta.te: 
Cou nty: 
Location: 
Township: 
Acres: 
Date: 

North Dakota 
Cavalier 
2-163N-58W 
Fremont 
29.4 
1 1 /1 6/201 2  

Maps provided by: 
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1 2 2  

1 2  
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2-1 63N-saw 

Caval ier County 

North Dakota 

1 2 3 

map Qenter; 4a• 58' 1 .7; ge• 6' ;24.64 
SCt'11�: 4637 

$ 
1 1 /1612012  

Field borders provided by Farm Service Agency a s  o f  5/21/2008. Aerial photography provided by Aerial Photograpy Field Office. 
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Aerial Map 

29-1 64N-58W 

Cavalier County 

N orth Dakota 

1 2 4  

map �nter. 4&• �g· 39.97, es• 1 0' 1Q.89 

seale: 3463 

1 1 /1 6/2012 
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Date of Sale: 

Location: 

Grantor: 

Grantee: 

Legal Description: 

Parcel N urn ber: 

Zoning: 

Topography: 

Soils : 

Land Size: 

Sale Price: 

Unit Price: 

Confirmed by: 

Comments: 

LAND SALE #4 

November 7, 2008 

Sections 1 1  & 14, Freemont Township, Cavalier County 

Donald & Evelyn I .  Nelson 
1 0204 Hwy 32, Walhalla, North Dakota 

State ofNorth Dakota - North Dakota Parks and Recreation Dept. 
1 600 E. Century Avenue, Suite 3 ,  Bismarck, North Dakota 

1 2 7  

A tract of land in the N �  of the S W  � and the SE � ofthe SW Y-1 of 
Section 1 1 , and the NW Y-1 ofthe NE Y4 with the NE Y4 of the NW � of 
Section 14, all in Township 163, Range 5 8, ofthe 5th Principal Meridian, 
Cavalier County, North Dakota. 

1 128401 1 , 1 1 285001 , 1 1 285010, 1 1 304000 and 1 1 30401 0  

Agricultural 

Level to steeply sloping; slopes to 35  percent. 

Symbol 
F591 F  
F568A 
F200A 

Name Slope Class Acres % 
Olga-Kloten complex, wooded 9-3 5% Ve 1 56.2 97.9 
Fairdale loam, wooded* 0-2% lie 2.2 1 .4 
Kelvin loam 0-3% lis 1 . 1  0. 7 

*occasionally flooded 

1 59 .5 1 3  acres 

$171,200 WD (Document #23041 0) 

$ 1  ,073/acre 

State ofNorth Dakota - North Dakota Parks and Recreation Dept. 

Average Productivity Index - 33.0 

PI 
32 
75 
88 
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APPRAISER' S QUALIFICATIONS 

Brian R. Tinjum, MAl 

EDUCATION: 

North Dakota State University, Fargo, ND 
B.S.  Degree, Business Administration, May 1 987 

APPRAISAL EXPERIENCE: 

Tinjum Appraisal Company, Inc, Detroit Lakes, MN: 
Senior Real Property Appraiser, February 2008 - Present 
Real Estate Appraiser, June 1 996 - February 2008 
Appraisal Trainee under Rodger K. Tinjum, ARA, May 1 987 - July 1 988 

Minnesota Department of Transportation: 
Real Estate Representative, Detroit Lakes, MN, June 1 996 - February 2008 
Right of Way Agent - Appraiser, St. Paul, MN, May 1 989 - May 1 996 
Right of Way Agent, Brainerd, MN, July 1988 - May 1 989 

Appraised special purpose, commercial, industrial, residential, agricultural, and 
recreational properties. 

Served as expert valuation witness before jury trial and court appointed commissions. 

APPRAISAL EDUCATION: 

11 12 

American Institute of Real Estate Appraisers Courses: 
Real Estate Appraisal Principles, July 1 989 
Basic Valuation Procedures, July 1 989 
Capitalization Theory and Techniques, Part A and B, August 1 990 

Appraisal Institute Courses: 
Case Studies in Real Estate Valuation, August 1 992 
540: Report Writing and Valuation Analysis, August 1 993 
2 1 0: Residential Case Study, August 1 994 
4 1 0: Standards of Professional Practice, Part A, July 1 995 
420: Standards of Professional Practice, Part B, July 1 995 
520: Highest & Best Use and Market Analysis, July 1 997 
430: Standards of Professional Practice, Part C, May 1 999 
530:  Advanced Sales Comparison and Cost Approaches, July 1 999 
400 : USPAP Update 2003, Standards and Ethics of Professionals, August 2003 
Business Practices and Ethics, July 201 0  

1 3 1 



Appraisal Institute Seminars: 
The New Uniform Residential Appraisal Report (URAR), December 1 993 
Hotel/Motel Valuation, April 1 996 
Business Valuation - Part 1 and 2, October 1 996 
Small Hotel/Motel Valuation, May 1998 
Case Studies in Commercial Highest and Best Use, June 2001 
Real Estate Finance, Value, and Investment Performance, July 2004 
Evaluating Commercial Construction, January 2005 
Appraising Convenience Stores, July 2007 
Using Spreadsheet Programs in Real Estate Appraisals, June 201 0  
Advanced Spreadsheet Modeling for Valuation Applications, January 201 1  
Appraising the Appraisal: Appraisal Review - General, November 201 1 

American Society of Farm Managers and Rural Appraisers Courses: 
Requirements ofUASFLA - The "Yellow Book", July 2008 
Valuation of Conservation Easements, September 2008 

The Appraisal Foundation: 
National USPAP Update Course, September 2004, October 2006, June 2009, July 
2010 
National USPAP Course, March 2008, 

National Highway Institute Courses: 
Basic Relocation, March 2000, February 2002 
Advanced Relocation, July 2002 
Business Relocation, November 2002, February 2007 
Eminent Domain Training for Attorneys and Appraisers, March 2003 

Tenth Annual Business Valuation Seminar, University of St. Thomas, Minneapolis 
May 2000 

Appraisal seminars sponsored by Minnesota Farm Managers and Appraisers, Inc: 
July 1 987, February 1 988, February 1 989, February 1 990, January 1 99 1 ,  February 
1 992, February 1 993, and February 1 994. 

PROFESSIONAL DESIGNATION: 

MAl Designated Member of the Appraisal Institute 

APPRAISAL LICENSES: 

1/12 

Resident Appraiser: Certified General, State ofMinnesota, License ID #400 1 324 
Certified General Appraiser, State ofNorth Dakota, Permit No. CG-2908 

1 3 2  



APPRAISER LICENSE 

North Dakota Real �te 
Appraiser Quallftcdqna tnd f!thlce Board 

Thla la to certify that: Brian R. TlnJum 
t. fully queJified In lhe sr..te 1:/f Notth O.kofll u 1: 

CeltJff«J General Apptalser 
Pennft Number: CG-2908 
Date of lauance: 01101112 
Expiration Date: 12131112 Un�s��er SIJSP&nded �r �YOked as provided by law. 

- �-----------

1 3 3  



BUSIN ESS PROFI LE 

Currently Frost Fire Ski Area and Theater operates two business ventures. The Ski and Snow board recreation 
venue and the theater venue. The winter operation occurs between December and March for 4 months of the year 
and the Theater in the summer is typically approximately 6 weeks. The rest of the year the facil ity is inactive in 
terms of revenue generating activities. The ski venue has approximately 1 5,000 participants per year. 

The revenue generated for the business averages about $529,000 per year. This revenue is from the l ift ticket 
prices and the tickets for the theater performances. The cost of Goods sold reduces that revenue by approximately 
9% so the net revenues are $48 1 ,300. 

Expenses average about $385 ,000 per year. Expenses include wages, benefits, marketing, insurance, uti l ities, 
maintenance and repairs, suppl ies and other miscel laneous expenses. With a 5% percent replacement reserve the 
expenses exceed $41 0 ,000. 

Average net income is less than $1 00,000 per year. *These costs do not include a management fee cost. Currently 
the facil ity is managed by the owners. 

Potential : 
The ski and snow board venue is l imited by the weather and the abi l ity to keep snow on the slopes. Frost F i re has 
nine (9) snow makers and if weather is 21 degrees or below has the abi l ity to make snow on al l  the runs, and 
normally are open Thanksg iving week-end, which does give them an advantage over other l ike resorts. With the 
number of runs it would appear that there is room to expand the usage. Exploration of this opportun ity is warranted. 
Currently all runs face the east and property is avai lable on the west side of the property to expand the ski and 
snow board runs. 

The Theater venue is sold out for the period of t ime productions are offered. Again ,  perhaps there is opportunity to 
expand this function with another production or other entertainment brought to the site. The Amphitheater is a 
u nique faci l ity for entertainment. 

The d in ing/food opportun ity is perhaps another opportunity as there are few options in the area for din ing 
experiences. Providing an expanded menu and add itional hours in the evening may generate additional revenue. 

Area Potential :  
The Rendezvous Region holds many advantages for development and growth for Frost Fire to expand. 

The Pembina Gorge encompasses the largest un interrupted block of wood lands in North Dakota, and the longest 
segment of unaltered river valley in the state. 

With the recent development of the Pembina Gorge State Park Recreation Area the new multiuse trai l  is designed 
to accommodate non-motorized and motorized traffic, including the three classes of OHVs - dirt bikes, fou r  
wheelers and side-by-sides. 

While designed for the use of OHVs it is a lso open to hikers, mountain bikers and horseback riders to explore the 
Pembina Gorge. The trail head is located 1 mile north, 1 mile west, and % mile north of the beautiful Walhal la 
Country Club and three (3) miles from Frost Fire. The trail is made possible through  the North Dakota Park and 
Recreation Department's partnersh ips with state agency and private landowners. An add itional 1 2-mi le loop is being 
planned as well as more trad itional ,  non-motorized trai l  opportunities. 

The Tetrau lt Woods State Forest, located south of Walhal la,  is undergoing non motorized trail enhancements which 
wil l  provide an unforgettable experience through the woods for h ikers, bikers and horseback riders. 

Rendezvous Reg ion Scenic Backway: 
This backway located in northeast North Dakota is a special place steeped in h istory, with natural resources, 
recreation ,  scenic beauty, and cu lture. Winding a long the bends of the Pembina River you can enjoy the panoramic 
view of the Pembina Gorge along with the year-round recreational opportunities of the area. 

Frost-Fire Walhal la, North Dakota 



1 3 . 8 1 48 .03001 
Title. 

3 - J- 1-18 N h JO I� � 
Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for � j 
Senator Carlisle fll 

March 1 6 , 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE B I LL NO. 1 01 9  

Page 2 ,  replace l ines 9 through 1 1  with : 

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total special funds 
Grand total al l  funds 

Page 2,  after line 22, insert: 

"Brady artifact collection 

Page 2,  replace l ines 24 through 26 with: 

"Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general fund 

Page 3 ,  after l ine 1 9, insert: 

$1 1 ,874,346 
1 1 ,641,532 

$23,51 5,878 

$6,765,722 
797,980 

$7,563,702 

0 

$5,777,2 1 0 
1 .028,000 

$4, 749 ,21 0 

$1 8 ,640,068 
1 2,439,51 2  

$31 ,079,580" 

42,500" 

$7,205,300 
1 ,937,800 

$5,267, 500" 

"SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in  
the general fund in  the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of  $42,500, 
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the parks and recreation department 
for the purpose of purchasing the collection of mi l itary artifacts currently on d isplay at 
Fort Abraham Lincoln state park, for the bienn ium beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  201 3, and ending 
June 30, 201 5." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 3. 8 1 48.03001 



LISTING OF PROPOSED CHANGES TO HOUSE BILL NO. 

Department -

Proposed funding changes: 

Description 

restore House adjustment to compensation package 

2 Restore House change relating to accrued leave - net effect $0, change line item 
Administration - $26,757 
Natural resources - $142,170 
Recreation - $12,650 
Accrued leave payments - ($1 81 ,577) 

3 Restore House change to funding for marina to bring back to $800,000 
4 Brady collection of military artifacts from Fort Abraham Lincoln (13.8148.03001) 

optional package adjustments not included in executive rec or House version 

5 One time equipment purchase (exec rec included $300,000 from other funds) 

6 Salary increase to address Hay Group recommendation (exec rec included $672,790) 
7 New administrative assistant positions (exec rec included 1 FTE) 

8 Information technology position 

9 Community grants program (exec rec included $400,000) 
10 Recreation Educator position 

1 1  Increase Game and Fish cooperative agreement funding 

12 new capital projects (exec rec included $3,730,000) 
13 Peace Garden capital projects 

14 
15 

Total proposed funding changes 

Other proposed changes: 

2 

3 

4 

General 

FTE Fund 

$347,944 

$175,000 
$42,500 

$150,000 
$487,274 

2.00 $174,345 
1 .00 $1 10,383 

$600,000 
1.00 

$300,000 
$4,716,000 

$7,1 03,446 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff 

for 

March ? , 2013 

Special 

Funds 

$7,442 

$175.000 

$1 32,929 
$70,000 

$320,000 

$705,371 

Total 

$355,386 

$350,000 
$42,500 

$1 50,000 
$487,274 
$174,345 
$11 0,383 
$600,000 
$132,929 

$70,000 
$620,000 

$4,716,000 
$0 
$0 

$7,808,817 

,r 0  � \  
J/ ,) � I 3 
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Krebsbach, Karen K. 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Senators, 

sgoettle@odney.com 
Tuesday, April 02, 2013 10:27 AM 
Krebsbach, Karen K.; Lee, Gary A.; O'Connell , David P. 
Armstrong, Kelly 
Captain  Kit's Marina's F inancial Status 

����;o l� 
.y_ :;z -1 9 

On behalf of Ca pta in Kit's Marina, I am asking that you restore the Governor's request of $800,000. We know this does 
not represent the fina l  deal and that the state must go through it's due di l igence before framing an offer. However, to 
even get these parties to the table, there m ust be adequate resources. The House's action of cutting the fund ing to 
$450,000 means there would be no deal .  

We would submit that th is  wi l l  be a good purchase for the state. The business has cash-flowed for 25 years. The current 
owners just want to retire from the busi ness and the State of North Da kota is the on ly buyer they can turn to. Without a 
long-term lease, no third party would be interested in the business. Currently, there is no lease a rrangement, not even 
for the 2013 season .  

I a lso wa nt address some hal lway rumors that I picked up in  recent days about the Marina 's  financia l  status--specifica l ly 
that a bank foreclosure was imminent. There is NO truth to these rumors. 

This morn ing I spoke with Bob Larson of North Country Bank.  Capta in Kit's Marina has been doing business with North 
Cou ntry Bank for 25 yea rs .  M r. Larson confirmed for me that the Marina is current on its obl igations with .the bank and 
there is a bsolutely NO discussions of forec losu re.  He stated "that's the farthest from the truth."  

If you want to verify that for yourself, p lease give Bob Larson, North Country Bank, a ca l l .  H i s  number is: 701-442-3722. 
He is wi l l i ng to confirm that there is no truth to the rumors of a foreclosure by the bank. 

If you have a ny concerns about this potential transaction, I am more than wi l l ing to address them straight up .  P lease do 
not hesitate to catch me in the hal lway, by emai l, or  by phone (701-426-0576) . 

Shane Goett le 
On Behalf of Capta in Kit's Marina 

Sent from my Verizon Wireless BlackBerry 

1 



,. 
INTERNATIONAL ?:1 

PEACE 
GARDEN 

March 14, 2013 10:00 AM Harvest Room North Da kota Legis lature 

Good Morning Chai rman Holmberg and Committee members, 

Do� 1/e.ve_nor 
f(B / D t Cf 

~ 
I would l ike to tha n k  you and North Dakota Pa rks & Recreation D i rector M a rk Zimmerman fo r the opportun ity to come and 
testify today in support of  H B  1019. My rema rks wi l l  address the State G rant  for  the Internatio n a l  Peace Garden 

D u ring the 62nd Legislative Assembly of the State of North Da kota appropriated $ 1,000,699.00 for 2011-2013 fu n ding. The 

a l location included $ 267,000.00 in Capital Funding for the Conservatory expansion and �he 911 Stroll & Contemplative Gard e n .  

The Basic and the first section o f  the Operational  Adjustment portions o f  t h i s  budget request w i l l  deal  with t h e  o ngoing 
o perational needs of the l PG. The current North Da kota a l location is  $ 733,699.00 as established d u ring the 2011-2013 session .  

Optional Adjustment Request 

We have made a req u est for an increase of $100,000 annual ly to the annual  a l location from North Dakota to the l P G  fo r 

$200,000 per bienn i u m .  The Governor's budget suggests this request. 

This optional adjustment request includes two a reas of concern. The funds $200,000 for the Bien ni u m  wi l l  target two core a reas:  

1 .  Wages for acquisition and retention of employees. We a re now feeling the effect of the Ba kken Shale Oi l  expansion 
as it moves nea re r  to Bottineau and R olette Counties and it  is becoming ha rde r and h a rd e r  to retain and locate young low wage 

workers to either make a career with us at the l PG o r  come and work seasonal ly here at the Peace Ga rden. 

2. Enhanced advertising and p ro motion with our new facilities and the specta cular  Succulent Collection we n eed to 

increase our  advertis ing and p ro motion for the Peace Garden. 

In the Governor's B u d get the State provided for this operationa l  i ncrease of $200,000 and we would encourage you to a p p rove 
and pass this increase as presently ind icated in H B  1019. 

Capital Requests 

The International Peace Garden is a lso made two Capital project requests. The first is for a p re-appropriation request to 
Investigate the best plan of action to deal with the degradation to the col u mns and cross member bea ms of the Peace Tower 
and a second request for Water & Wastewater I nfrastructure U pgrades. 

N either of these req uests were included in the Governor's Budget. We ask that you consider them and approve them as S enate 
Legislative changes to Capital Appropriations for H B  1019. 

Planning Pre-Appropriation Peace Tower $500,000 

In 1980 the North Da kota H istorical Society, The National  Parks Service a n d  the I nternational Peace Ga rden worked jointly to 
provide fu nding for the design & construction of the Peace Tower. 

O u r  Plan is to work with Kadrmas, Lee Jackson ( K L&J) from Bisma rck North Dakota. KL&J provides a wide range of structu ra l 

e ngineering services. Their engineers a re experienced in aviation,  energy, i n d ustria l, l a n d  management, tra nsportation a n d  
water-resource management structures. Their versati le  team d esigns with a variety of bui ld ing materials including a luminum, 
concrete, a nd mason ry, steel and wood. They also specialize in Foundation Design, Structural Load Rating of Existing Systems, 

and Structural Assessments. 

In the past, the NO Legislature has p rovided fund ing for pre-appropriations. We a re asking fo r such a pre-app ropriation to study 
of the best plan of a ction to deal with this problem with the Peace Tower. We bel ieve that that the Province of Manitoba will  

assist in funding the a ctual repair of the towers so we anticipate these construction costs could be shared between Province a n d  

State. Because o f  t h e  h igh degree o f  appreciation o f  this structu re, w e  also bel ieve that w e  could be successful i n  acqu i ri n g  s o me 

p rivate fun ds towards the future repair. 

The Peace Tower was constructed from 1980 to 1983. In 1984, the base pools began leaking and had to be d ra ined and fi l led  

with rock. I n  the  ear ly  1990's the concrete floors and base started cracking and heaving. Concrete resurfacing has  been ongoing 
to the sidewalks a n d  floor  basal a rea. In  2 0 1 1, we spent $25,000 resurfacin g  sidewalks a n d  landings at or near  the Peace Tower. 



During the winter of 2011, rust spots from the i ron-rebar, reinforcing, rods started to become visible on the Peace Towers o uter 

service __ At the same time, white calcium depos its have shown up leaking down the s ide of the Peace Tower. I n  the spring o f  
2012 s m a l l  pieces of cement have started fa l l i n g  and the towers cross members have visible sca ring and a brasion o n  the 

h o rizontal connecting cross members. We a re a l so starting to see major cracking and fractu ring in the on ground basal 
structures. As the Peace Tower continues to degrade, the l PG will have to restrict entry to the base a rea of the tower a n d  m a ke 

plans to dea l with the future removal of the towers. 

N o  professional engineering study has been undertaken to date. We have had two indepen dent contractors offer opinions 

concern i ng the towers. They both suggested that the towers would continue to degrade and eventually beco m e  u nsafe for 
pedestrian traffic underneath them on the floor  base. 

We have determined that the original construction tender was for $1,350,000 in 1980. I f  the Peace Tower were constructed now 
i n  2013, the associated cost wou l d  be $6,356,054 USD (if designed & tendered summer 2 013) 

It has now been 30-years since construction was completed. We want to find out through a n  engineering study how we can 

make this tower last for many, many more years o r  consider the costs of removing it co m pletely. 

M oreover, over h u n d reds of thousands of visitors have come to the Internationa l  Peace G a rden to see this "Iconic Peace Tower" 
looking across the State of North Da kota from its Northern Border. 

Infrastructure Requirements 

Water system 
Sewer System 
Roads, Ditches & Throughways 

Design 

General Contractor 

Soft Costs 
Total Costs 

$ 1,500,000 
$ 1,075,000 
$ 875,000 

$ 245,000 

$ 245,000 

$ 276,000 
$ 4,416,000 

The sewer waste and water systems, were i nsta lled and renovated from the 1930's and 1950's, with the current systems being 

d eveloped in  the late 1970,s and ea rly, 1980's. 

These a re our prima ry a n d  only sources to supp ly  our needs. At this time, there is no Cou nty source for wate r supply or sewage 

evacuation available to the I nternational Peace G a rden ( lPG) 

We recently completed a Water & Wastewater Assessment h iring the firm AECOM/Earth Tech working from two of their office 
sites in Minneapolis-St Paul,  Minnesota and W i n nipeg, Manitoba. We completed pipe eva luation i ns pected severa l  main water 

u nions, completed geotechnical tests and usage calculations to determine our needs. Two reports were compi led supporting the 

identified costs : 

(i) Waste water System Assessment for the lPG 

( i i )  Water Assessment for the l PG 

We bel ieve adequate pla nning has been completed for this project by consulting industry experts. We do not feel that we need 
to i ncur more, exploratory costs. We bel ieve that there is an opportunity to have these costs shared with Manitoba. 

These systems are privately operated by the l PG and we have no other sources for water or treatment of wastewater avai lable 
to us from Rolette County. Without these systems in  operation, the Peace Garden would eventual ly  not be a ble to continue to 

operate them and continue to meet the State Health code. 

Respectful ly, 

Doug H evenor, CEO 

10939 Hwy 281 

D u nseith, ND 58329-9445 

{701) 263-4390 

To l l  Free {888) 432-6733 

FAX ( 701) 263-3169 

P . O. Box 4 19 

Boisseva in ,  MB ROK OEO 
{204) 534-2510 
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Prepared by the Leg islative Council staff fo Jf � 
Senator Carl isle : . _ _ �A ) 

March 1 6, 201 3 9Jrtff'rr-
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� / 0 ]  1 PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE B ILL NO. 1 0 1 9  

Page 2 ,  replace l ines 9 through 1 1  with : 

"Grand total general  fund 
Grand total special funds 
Grand total al l  funds 

Page 2, after l ine 22, insert: 

$1 1 ,874,346 
1 1 ,641 .532 

$23,5 1 5,878 

"Lewis and Clark interpretive center expansion 

Page 2 ,  replace l ines 24 through 26 with: 

"Total al l funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general fund 

Page 3,  after l ine 1 9, insert: 

$9,873,222 
797.980 

$ 1 0 ,671 ,202 

0 

$5,777 ,2 1 0  
1 .028.000 

$4,749,2 1 0  

$2 1 ,747,!"ln11----
1 2,439.5 1 2  

$34, 1 87,080" 

3, 1 50,000" 

$1 0 ,31 2,800 
1 .937,800 

$8,375,000" 

"SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated out of any moneys in  
the general  fund in  the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated,  the sum of 
$3, 1 50,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the parks and recreation 
department for the purpose of a one-time grant for expansion of the Lewis and Clark 
i nterpretive center, for the biennium beginning July 1 ,  201 3,  and ending June 30, 
201 5."  

Renumber accord ingly 

Page No. 1 1 3 .8 1 48.03002 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Counci l  staff for :if- { 
Senator Krebsbach 

Fiscal No. 1 Apri l 41 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE B I LL NO.  1 0 1 9  

Page 1 I l ine 3 1  remove "and" 

Page 1 I l ine 3 1  after "exemption" insert "; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 I replace l ines 1 5  through 22 with :  

"Admin istration  $2,4841885 $235 1 1 32 $2172010 1 7  
Natural resources 1 2 1 7681203 61 5881206 1 91356,409 
Recreation 7,4891091  1 .870.750 9,359,84 1  
Total a l l  funds $22,7 42, 1 79 $8,694,088 $31 ,436,267 
Less estimated i ncome 1 1 ,641,532 1 50,422 1 1 ,791,954 
Total general fund $1 1 , 1 00,647 $8, 543,666 $1 9,64413 1 3  
Ful l-time equivalent positions 54.00 1 .00 55.00" 

Page 2, replace l ines 3 and 4 with: 

"I nternational  Peace Garden �773,699 �2.700,000 �3,473,699 
Total general fund $773,699 $2,700,000 $3,4731699" 

Page 2,  replace l ines 9 through 1 1  with: 

"Grand total general fund $ 1 1 , 874,346 $1 1 ,243,666 $23, 1 1 8 ,0 1 2  
Grand total special funds 1 1 ,641,532 1 50,422 1 1,791 ,954 
Grand total a l l  funds $23 ,51 5,878 $1 1 , 394,088 $34,909,966" 

Page 2, replace l ines 1 7  through 26 with: 

"Parks capital projects and deferred maintenance $5,269 ,2 1 0  $3,955,300 
Parks equipment 1 1 6 ,000 375,000 
Lewis and Clark interpretive center grant 0 3, 1 50,000 
Little M issouri state park trai l  leases 85,000 0 
Parks SCORP plan 40,000 0 
Parks strategic plans 0 1 00,000 
Community grant program 0 600, 000 . 
I nternational Peace Garden capital projects 267,000 2,500,000 
Total a l l  funds $5,777 , 2 1 0  $ 1 0, 6801300 
Less estimated income 11028.000 1,282,800 
Total general fund $4,749,2 1 0  $9,397,500" 

Page 3, line 1 5, replace "$400,000" with "$600,000" 

Page 3, remove lines 25 through 3 1  

Page 4 ,  replace l ines 1 and 2 with: 

"SECTION 7. CONTI NGENT F U NDING - INTERNATIONAL PEAC E GARDEN 
CAPITAL PROJECTS. The sum of $2,500,000 from the general  fund included in 
subd ivision 2 of section 1 of th is Act is for capital projects at the I nternational Peace 
Garden and is contingent upon the I nternational Peace Garden raising matching funds 
on a dol lar-for-dol lar basis from nonstate sources. 

Page No. 1 1 3 . 8 1 48 .03003 



S ECTION 8. E M ERGENCY. The natural resources l ine item in subdivision 1 of 
section 1 of this Act includes $3,730,000, of which $2 , 930,000 is from the general fund 
and $600 ,000 is from special  funds derived from federal funds and other income, for 
various capital projects, which is declared to be a n  emergency measure ."  

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF P U RPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

House Bi l l  No. 1 0 1 9 - Summary of Senate Action 

Executive House 
Budget Version 

Parks and Recreation 
Department 

Total all funds $27,962,785 $30,063,381 
Less estimated income 11 ,791,835 12,439,512 
General fund $16 , 170,950 $17,623,869 

International Peace Garden 
Total all funds $973,699 $973,699 
Less estimated income 0 0 
General fund $973,699 $973,699 

Bill total 
Total all funds $28,936,484 $31 ,037,080 
Less estimated income 11 ,791 ,835 12,439,512 
General fund $17,144,649 $18,597,568 

Senate 
Changes 

$1 ,372,886 
(647 558) 

$2,020,444 

$2,500,000 
0 

$2,500,000 

$3,872,886 
(647,558) 

$4,520,444 

Senate 
Version 

$31 ,436,267 
1 1 ,791 ,954 

$19,644,313 

$3,473,699 
0 

$3,473,699 

$34,909,966 
1 1 ,791,954 

$23, 1 18,012 

House Bil l  No. 1 0 1 9 - Parks and Recreation Department - Senate Action 

Executive 
Budget 

Administration $2,71 9,322 
Natural resources 19,234,022 
Recreation 6,009,441 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds $27,962,785 
Less estimated income 11 791 835 

General fund $16,170,950 

FTE 55.00 

House 
Version 

$2,652,000 
21 ,256,353 
5,973,451 

1 81 ,577 

$30,063,381 
1 2,439,512  

$17,623,869 

55.00 

Senate 
Changes 

$68,017 
(1 ,899,944) 

3,386,390 
(181 ,577) 

$1 ,372,886 
(647 558) 

$2,020,444 

0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$2,720,017 
1 9,356,409 
9,359,841 

$31 ,436,267 
11 791 954 

$19,644,313 

55.00 

Department No. 750 - Parks and Recreation Department - Detai l  of Senate Changes 

Removes 
Restores Separate Line Adds Funding Adds Funding 

Executive Item for Restores for Military for Community 
Compensation Accrued Leave Marina Artifact Adds Funding Grants 

Package' Payments' Funding' Collection' for Equipment' Program• 

Administration $41 ,260 $26,757 
Natural resources 290,386 142,170 350,000 42,500 75,000 
Recreation 23,740 1 2,650 200,000 
Accrued leave payments (181 ,577) 

Total all funds $355,386 $0 $350,000 $42,500 $75,000 $200,000 
Less estimated income 7 442 0 175 000 0 0 0 

General fund $347,944 $0 $175,000 $42,500 $75,000 $200,000 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
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Adds Funding 
for Lewis and Removes 

Clark Funding for 
Interpretive Walhalla Gorge T ota I Senate 

Center Granf Property' Changes 

Administration $68,017 
Natural resources (2,800,000) (1 ,899,944) 
Recreation 3,1 50,000 3,386,390 
Accrued leave payments (181 5n) 

Total all funds $3,150,000 ($2,800,000) $1 ,372,886 
Less estimated income 0 {830,000) (647,558) 

General fund $3,150,000 ($1 ,970,000) $2,020,444 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Fund ing reductions made by the House to the state employee compensation and benefits package are 
restored to the Governor's recommended level .  

2 The accrued leave payments l ine item added by the House is removed and the associated funding 
returned to l ine items with salaries and wages funding. 

3 Funding removed by the H ouse for purchase of a marina is restored to the executive budget 
recommendation leve l .  

4 Fund ing is added for purchase of  a mi l itary artifact collection currently on d isplay at  Fort Abraham 
Lincoln State Park. 

5 F unding is added for one-time equipment purchases of picnic tables ($50,000) and fire rings ($25, 000). 

6 Fund ing is added to increase the community g rant program from $400,000 included in the executive 
budget recommendation to $600, 000 . 

7 F unding is added for a one-time grant for expansion of the Lewis and C lark interpretive center 
expansion. 

8 Funding added by the House for the purchase and operation of property in the Wal hal la Gorge and 
Frost Fire area is removed. 

A section is added to provide for an emergency clause for various capital projects. 

House Bill  No. 1 01 9  - International Peace Garden - Senate Action 

Executive 
Budget 

International Peace Garden $973,699 

Total all funds $973,699 
Less estimated income 0 

General fund $973,699 

FTE 0.00 

House 
Version 

$973,699 

$973,699 
0 

$973,699 

0.00 

Senate 
Changes 

$2,500,000 

$2,500,000 
0 

$2,500,000 

0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$3,473,699 

$3,473,699 
0 

$3,473,699 

0.00 

Department No. 751 - International Peace Garden - Detai l  of Senate Changes 

I nternational Peace Garden 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

Adds Funding 
for Peace 

Garden Capital 
Projects' 

$2,500,000 

$2,500,000 
0 

Total Senate 
Changes 

$2,500,000 

$2,500,000 
0 

Page No. 3 1 3 . 8 1 48.03003 



General fund $2,500,000 $2,500,000 

FTE 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding is added for capital projects at the International Peace Garden. 

A section is added requiring funds for capital projects of the I nternational Peace Garden. 
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·cal)' Satern 

4/28/08 

Appraisal of Harold Brady Collection 
Request of Fort Abraham Lincoln Foundation 

fiB 1 0 1  tf 
tf-5- 13 

This is not a replacement cost' appraisal for the reason that the conditions when the items 
were col lected do not exist in today 's  world. The value shall be set on the total of the 
artifacts and their place in history. 

I have set my appraisal of $42,500 on the quantity and quality of the items in the 
thousands collected, dating back to the 1 920's, and skillfully displayed in eighty cases 
which record the history of Fort Abraham Lincoln. 

The value in part is based on the private treaty sales, auctions and "The Official Price 
Guide to Military Collectibles" By Colonial Robert H. Rarnkin, along with my thirty 

years of m usewn, collecting and appraisal background. 

Also factored in is the knowledge that any item connected to General George Custer will 
have a serious increase in market value. 

The placing of this col lection back to the site where it was collected, also adds value to 
the collection while enhancing the attraction for the visitors to Fort Lincoln. 

Please see attachments - i.e. photos, recorded narrative history by Harold Brady 

Gary Satern � � 
State of �or--\h 6\st\-C--�. 
C&Junty of �wlti ,v.._ 

On this /-� . _ date of · �pv\ l , 20 °� , before �e the 
�ders ig.nc,d. u ,notary public in and f�r the said state, appeared . f:::1a10 _ _  ?.caJ:e_t:.Jd-_ _ _ __ knf)wn to me o� ()roved �o m� on the basts. of 
� " t: · t·:r t't·' "  r·, ; . . . ,· . , _. .,. t" �.; .. · �w per""')n wiwse name IS subscr:bed m the forego111g 
�u � ;, u ... n _ ; ,.. / ,  • .,. , 1  •. - v l''"' "' - r.7": 
im;trum�ni- ac!o:n:::w t�dg�d that he/she e:ocfc.uted the e. 

TONI JOHNSON 
Notary Public 

State of North Dakota 



• Lewis & Clark Interpretive Center 
$3 Million Request to Complete Funding of Expansion/New Exhibits 

This amendment will provide a grant to the Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan 
Foundation of Washburn to complete the funding for a 9,0 0 0  square foot 
expansion and new exhibits at the North Dakota Lewis & Clark Interpretive 
Center. 

Through a unique public-private partnership, the Foundation has been 
responsible for the operation and maintenance of this State-owned facility 
since 1 997.  Over the years, the State has granted $2.45 million to the 
Foundation. During that time, the Foundation has raised over $20 million in 
non-State funding. (see charts attached) 

This request will help the Foundation complete the expenses of the major 
improvements to the Interpretive Center. The balance of an $8 million capital 
campaign is being raised by the Foundation, which will be used for an 
endowment fund for future maintenance and care of the facility, along with 

3 

• related expenses. 

• 

The Interpretive Center is a State-owned facility, with all ongoing expenses, 
including maintenance and care, borne by the non-profit Lewis & Clark Fort 
Mandan Foundation in a successful public-private partnership that saves 
North Dakota taxpayers over $1 million a year. 

This is a one-time expenditure. 

The Interpretive Center includes a 24-hour official US Highway 83 rest area, 
maintained by the Foundation for the ND Department of Transportation. 

The Interpretive Center welcomes 50,000 visitors a year from all SO states 
and dozens of foreign countries, providing an economic stimulus to the region 
through tourism dollars . 
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lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Fou ndation 

Funding 1999-2011 

$2,350,000 

• State Funding 

B Foundation Funding 

$20,630,500 
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January 16, 2013  

Representative Robert Skarphol 

�'" 
L E W I S  & C LA R K  

FORT M A N DA N  FO U N DA T I O N  

X 

C hairman, House Appropriations, Education and Environment Division 
State Capitol 
Bismarck, North Dakota 

Dear Chairman Skarphol and Committee Members 

JIB /D/ 9 
i! -5-/ 3 

Our Foundation respectfully requests that as you review HB 1 0 1 9, the budget for ND Parks and 
Recreation, you amend the bil l  by adding $ 3  million as a grant to our Foundation through the 
agency, for the purpose of finalizing the fundraising necessary for expansion and new exhibits of 
the State-owned N orth Dakota Lewis & Clark Interpretive Center. ND Parks and Recreation holds 
title to the Interpretive Center building and 16  acres. 

Our project cost is $5 .5 million, with a total campaign goal of $8 m illion, which includes funds for 
our endowment trust to ensure future maintenance and sustainability. This appropriation will 
bring total State funding on this project to $4.5 million. We have raised over $2 m illion in private 
donations thus far. 

As the attached chart shows, over the past 15 years, our Foundation has matched 1 0  to 1 any State 
funding provided us, as we welcome hundreds of thousands of visitors from around the world, on 
behalf of the People of N orth Dakota. 

Our public-private partnership has proven of great value to the State, and we appreciate your 
consideration at this time. We will provide additional supporting data and i nformation for your 
benefit when we may meet with you. 

We have enjoyed your support in the past, and appreciate your consideratio n  for this one-time 
expenditure for a State-owned facility that is world-class and getting better! 

S incerely 

David Borlaug, President 

CC :  Board Members AI Christianson, Dennis Boyd, Kari Cutting, Dave Searle, Kathy Neset, 
David Lindell, Paul Sukut, Fran Gronberg and joe Hauer; Vice President Wendy Spencer 

PO B O X  607, WA� H B U R N , ND 5 8 577 

O F F I C E :  70 1 . 4 6 2 . 8 5 3 5  • TOLL F R E E :  877. 4 6 2 . 8 5 3 5  • FAX: 70 1 . 4 6 2 . 3 3 1 6  

WWW. FORT M A N DA N .COM YIJ DAKOTA 
I NST I TUTE 
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The Board of Directors 

� ..... ». 

EideBaill� � 
CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS 

I ndependent Aud itor's Report 

Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. 
Washburn, North Dakota 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. as of 
December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 and 20 1 0, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the years then 
ended. These financial statements are the responsibi l ity of the Foundation's management. Our 
responsib i l ity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards general ly accepted in  the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of 
i nternal control over fi nancial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Foundation' s  internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
An audit  also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and s ignificant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall  financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al l  material respects, the 
financial position of Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. as of December 3 1 , 20 1 1  and 20 1 0, 
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in  conformity with accounting 
princ iples general ly accepted in the United States of America. 

B ismarck, North Dakota 
July 20,  20 1 2  

w w w .  e i d e b a i l l y. c o m  
1 730 Burnt Boot Loop, Ste. 1 00 I P.O.  Box 1 9 1 4  I Bismarck, ND 58502- 1 9 1 4  1 T 70 1 . 255. 1 09 1  1 F 701 .224. 1 582 1 EOE 
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I Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc . 

Balance Sheets 
December 3 1 ,  20 1 1  and 20 1 0  

I 
20 1 1  20 1 0  

I A ssets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5 62,925 $ 486,4 1 7  

I Certificates of deposit 209,348 5 1 5 , 546 

Accounts receivable 6,062 2 ,43 8 

P ledges rece ivable (net of al lowance for uncol lectibles 

I of $3 3 3 , 864 and $86,546 and d iscount on pledges of 
$94,503 and $50,308 in 20 1 1  and 20 1 0, respectively) 1 ,08 1 ,403 1 , 1 53 , 1 78 

Grants receivable 1 5 ,000 

I Accrued interest receivable 2,403 2,403 

Inventory 1 46,326 1 78 ,275 

Investments 470,698 492,909 

I Prepaid expenses 1 5 ,272 9,035 

Real estate held for sale 1 5 8,860 

Property and equipment, net 4,3 87,467 3 , 1 84,046 

I Total assets $ 7,040,764 $ 6,03 9,247 

I L iabi l ities and Net Assets 

Cunent Liab i l ities 

I Accounts payable $ 1 1 ,258  $ 3 3 ,82 1 

Accrued expenses 50,3 88 49,653 

Total l iabi l ities 6 1 ,646 83 ,474 I Net Assets 
Unrestricted 

Undesignated 4,868,878 3 ,782,29 1 

Board designated 450,000 5 00,000 

Temporari ly restricted 1 ,095,240 1 , 1 0 8,482 

Permanently restricted 565 ,000 5 6 5 ,000 

Total net assets 6,979, 1 1 8  5 ,955 ,773 

Total l iabil ities and net assets $ 7,040,764 $ 6,03 9,247 

See Notes to F inancial Statements 2 



20 1 1  

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

Revenues, Gains and Other Support I Contributions $ 1 63 , 895 $ 927, 1 3 8 $ $ 1 ,09 1 ,033 
Grants 1 ,464,707 1 ,464,707 
Memberships 47,5 1 5  47,5 1 5  I Admissions 39,600 3 9,600 
Interpretive programs 1 3 ,883 1 3 ,883 
Gift shop income - Center 1 32,965 1 32,965 I Concessions 756 756 
Memoria ls  4,775 4,775 
Investment loss ( 1 7,682) ( 1 7,682) 
Other income 1 6,244 1 6,244 I Net assets released from 

restrictions 954,263 (954,263 ) 

I Total revenue 2,807,038  ( 1 3 ,242) 2,793 ,796 

Expenses I Program services 
Interpretive Center 559,945 5 59,945 

Fort Mandan 454,793 454,793 I Specia l  events 23 ,40 1 23 ,40 1 

Support services I General and administrative 342,0 1 0  342,0 1 0  

Fundraising 390,303 390,303 

Total expense 1 ,770,45 1 1 ,7 70,45 1 I 
Change in N et Assets 1 ,036,587 ( 1 3 ,242) 1 ,023,345 I 
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 4,282,29 1 1 , 1 08,482 5 65 ,000 5 ,955 ,773 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 5 ,3 1 8,878 $ 1 ,095 ,240 $ 5 65,000 $ 6,979, 1 1 8  I 
I 
I 
I 

See Notes to F inancial Statements I 



Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc . 
Statements of Activities 

Years Ended December 3 1 ,  20 l l  and 20 I 0 

20 1 0  

Temporari ly Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

Revenues, Gains and Other Support 
Contributions $ 4 1 6, 1 87 $ 5 52,602 $ $ 968,789 
Grants 1 1 1  ' 1 79 1 1 1 , 1 79 
Memberships 55 , 1 65 5 5 , 1 65 
Admissions 69, 842 69,842 
Interpretive programs 1 2,565  1 2,565 
Gift shop income - Center 1 60,582 1 60,5 82 
Concessions 254 254 
Memorials 1 ,990 1 ,990 
Investment income 62,644 62,644 
Other income 5,2 7 1 5,2 7 1  
Net assets released from 

restrictions 33 8,76 1 (33 8,76 1 )  

Total revenue 1 ,22 1 ,875 226,406 1 ,448,28 1 

Expenses 
Program services 

Interpretive Center 557,699 5 5 7,699 

Fort Mandan 462,003 462,003 

Special events 27, 1 82 27, 1 82 

Support serv ices 
General and administrative 3 85,997 3 85 ,997 

Fundraising 1 74,756 1 74,756 

Total expense 1 ,607,63 7 1 ,607,63 7 

Change in Net Assets (385,762) 226,406 ( 1 5 9,356) 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 4,668,053 882,076 5 65,000 6, 1 1 5 , 1 29 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 4,282,29 1  $ 1 ' l 08,482 $ 5 65 ,000 $ 5 ,955 ,773 

3 
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Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended December 3 1 , 20 1 1 and 20 1 0  

20 1 1 20 1 0  

Operat ing Activities 
Change in net assets $ 1 ,023 ,345 $ ( I  59,3 56) 
Adj ustments to reconcile change in net 

assets to net cash from (used for) operating activities 
Depreciation 9 1 ,407 94,677 
Unreal ized loss (gain) on investments 35 ,500 (3 0,778) 
Al lowance for doubtfu l  pledges 249,268 1 5 ,497 
Donation of real estate held for sale ( 1 58 ,860) 

Change in assets and l iabi l ities 
Accounts receivables (3 ,624) 2,407 
Pledges receivable ( 1 77,493 ) (2 1 7,24 I )  
Grants receivable 1 5 ,000 3 5 , 1 72 
Accrued interest receivable 1 0,664 

Inventory 3 1 ,949 (4,392) 

Prepaid expenses (6,237)  1 ,243 

A ccounts payable (22,563)  32,494 

Accrued l iabil ities 735  8,648 

Net Cash provi ded by (used for) Operating Activities 1 ,078,427 (2 I 0,965) 

Invest ing Activities 
Redemption of certificates of deposit, net 3 06, 1 98 734,454 

Purchase of investments ( 1 66,730) (43 , 1 29) 

Sales of investments 1 53 ,44 1 

Purchase of property and equipment ( 1  ,294,828) (494,42 1 )  

Net Cash (used for) provided by Investing Activ ities ( 1  ,00 1 ,9 1 9) 1 96,904 

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 76,508 ( 1 4,06 1 )  

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 486,4 1 7  500,478 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 562,925 $ 486,4 1 7  

See Notes to F inancial Statements 4 
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Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc . 
Notes to F inancial Statements 
December 3 1 , 20 1 1  and 20 1 0 

Note 1 - Nature of Organization and Summary of Sign ificant Acco u n ting Policies 

Nat u re o f  Organization 

The Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. (Foundation) is incorporated as a non-profit foundation . The 
primary purpose of the Foundation is to assist in promoting, upgrading, and managing the reconstruction, 
development and maintenance of the Fort Mandan Historical Site, the North Dakota Lewis & Clark Interpretive 
Center, and other Lewis & Clark interpretive areas. 

Fi nancial  Statement Presentation 

Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. is required to report information regarding its financial position and 
activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and 
permanently restricted net assets. 

Reclassifications 

Certain amounts in the 20 1 0  financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 20 1 1 presentation . 
These reclassifications have no effect on total assets, l iabil ities, net assets, or changes in net assets for the year 
ended December 3 1 , 20 1 0 . 

Contri butions 

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a pledge to give to the Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan 
Foundation, Inc.  that is, in substance, unconditional. The Foundation uses the allowance method to determine 
uncol lectible p ledges receivable. The Foundation reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they 
are received w ith donor stipu lations that l imit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that 
is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accompl ished, temporarily restricted net assets 
are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and repmted in the statement of activities as net assets released from 
restrictions. Gifts of cash and other assets restricted by the donor to be invested in perpetuity where only the 
income is made available for program operations are classified as permanently restricted. All other contributions 
are cons idered to be avai lable for unrestricted use. 

Cash and Cash Eq u ivalen ts 

Cash and cash equivalents include monies in banks and h ighly l iquid investments with maturity dates of less than 
three months. The certificates of deposit, with a maturity date in excess of 90 days, are stated at cost, which 
approximates fair  value. As of December 3 1 , 20 1 1 and 20 1 0, the Foundation held certificates of deposit in the 
amount of $209,348 and $5 1 5 ,546. 

5 
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Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc . 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 3 1 , 20 1 1 and 20 1 0  

I n vest m e n ts 

The Foundation ' s  investments in securities are classified as available-for-sale and are recorded at fair value based 
on quoted market prices. The securities may be sold in response to changes in interest rates and l iquidity needs 
and for other purposes. 

Gains or losses on investments shall be reported in the statement of activities as increases or decreases in 
unrestricted net assets. 

Invento ries 

Inventories are val ued at the lower of cost or market using the weighted-average costing method. 

Real Estate Held fo r Sale 

Real estate held for sale consists of a home which is valued at market. 

Property a n d  E q uipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost or fair market value when received as a gift. Additions, renewals and 
betterments are capitalized, whereas expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. The cost 
and related accumulated depreciation of assets retired or sold are removed from the appropriate asset and 
depreciation accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in income. 

It is the pol icy of the Foundation to provide depreciation using the straight- l ine method based on the estimated 
useful l ife of 5 to 40 years for individual units of property and equipment. The l ibrary and artwork are not 
depreciated. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and l iabil ities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Concentrations of C redit Risk 

The Foundation maintains its cash balances in a financial institution insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation up to $250,000. At December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 ,  the Foundation had a bank balance in excess of $25 0,000, 
however the Bank has pledged additional security for the cash balance in excess of $250,000. 

Adve rtisi ng 

The Foundation expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended 
December 3 1 , 20 1 1  and 20 1 0  was $44,892 and $54,033 . 

6 
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Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 3 1 , 20 1 1 and 20 1 0  

Sales Tax 

The Foundation has customers in states and municipal ities in which those governmental units impose a sales tax 
on certain sales .  The Foundation col lects those sales taxes from its customers and remits the entire amount to the 
various governmental units. The Foundation's accounting pol icy is to exclude the tax col lected and remitted from 
revenue and cost of revenue. 

Fai r Value Measu rements 

The Foundation has determ ined the fair value of certain assets and l iabilities in accordance with the provis ions of 
Fair Value Measurements, which provides a framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

It defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a l iabil ity (an exit 
price) in the princ ipal or most advantageous market for the asset or l iabi l ity in an orderly transaction between 
market participants on the measurement date. Fair Value Measurements requires that valuation techniques 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs and establ ishes a fair value 
h ierarchy, which prioritizes the valuation inputs into three broad levels. 

Level 1 inputs consist of quoted prices in  active markets for identical assets or l iabi l ities that the reporting entity 
has the abi l ity to access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included 
within Level 1 that are observable for the related asset or l iabi l ity. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs related 
to the asset or liabi l ity. 

Income Taxes 

The Foundation is a nonprofit organization that is exempt from federal income tax under Internal Revenue Code 
Section 5 0 1  (c)(3) .  

The Foundation has adopted provisions of FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic ASC 740- 1 0  
(previously Financial Interpretation No. 48), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes). The implementation 
of this standard had no impact on the financial statements. As of December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 and 20 1 0, the unrecogn ized 
tax benefit accrual was zero. 

The Foundation wi l l  recognize future accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income 
tax expense if incurred. The Foundation is no longer subject to federal tax examinations by tax authorities for 
years before 2008  and state examinations for years before 2008.  

S u bseq uent Events 

The Foundation has evaluated subsequent events through July 20, 20 1 2, the date which the financial statements 
were avai lable to be issued. 

7 



Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc .  

N ote 2 - Man agement and M a i n tenance Agreem ents 

Notes to F inancial Statements 
December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 and 20 1 0  

Agreements have been establ ished between the Foundation and the North Dakota Parks and Recreation 
Department to maintain and manage the Lewis & Clark Visitor Center and associated lands owned by the 
Department on wh ich the visitor center is located, and between the Foundation and the McLean County Historical 
Society to manage and maintain the Fort Mandan Historic Site and the lands included at the s ite owned by the 
Society . Both agreements are for 50 years and end in 2047. 

N ote 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 and 20 1 0  consist of the fol lowing: 

20 1 1  

Cash on hand $ 1 ,568  

US Bank 9,892 

Farmers Security Bank 29 1 ,485 

BNC National Bank 
Union State Bank Hazen 
Bank of Turtle Lake (money market) 259,267 

Stife l  N icolaus (money market) 7 1 3  

$ 5 62,925 

N ote 4 - Pledges Receivable 

P ledges receivable as of December 3 1 ,  2 0 1  1 and 20 1 0  were computed as fol lows: 

20 1 1 

Pledges receivable in less than one year $ 479,750 

P ledges receivable in one to five years 1 ,0 1 7 ,520 

P ledges receivable in more than five years 1 2, 5 00 

Total 1 ,5 09,770 
Less present value d iscount (3 . 5% in  20 1 1 ;  3 .25% in 20 1 0) (94,503)  

Less allowance for uncol lectible pledges (333 ,864) 

Pledges receivable, net $ 1 ,08 1 ,403 

20 1 0  

$ 1 ,250  
3 3  

478,600 
3 ,022 
2,799 

7 1 3  

$ 486,4 1 7  

20 1 0  

$ 475,762 
80 1 ,270 

1 3 ,000 

1 ,290,032 
(50,308) 
(86,546) 

$ 1 , 1 53 , 1 78 
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Lewis  & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 3 1 ,  2 0 1 1 and 20 1 0  

I The carrying amount of an investment security is shown in the balance sheet of the Foundation and its 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

approximate fair value at December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 and 20 1 0  is as fol lows: 

Gross 

Unrealized 

Cost Gain 

December 3 1 , 20 1 1 

Securities avai lable for sale 

Cash Equivalents $ 69,2 1 1 $ 

Mutual Funds 400,93 3 554  

$ 470, 1 44 $ 5 54 

December 3 1 ,  20 I 0 

Securities avai lable for sale 

Cash Equivalents $ 5 5 ,665 $ 

Mutual Funds 426,03 0 1 1 ,2 1 4  

$ 48 1 ,695 $ 1 1 ,2 1 4  

Investment return consists of the fol lowing: 

Interest and d iv idend income 
Unreal ized investment ( losses) gains 

Gross Estimated 

Unrealized Fair 

Loss Value 

$ $ 69,2 1 1 

40 1 ,487 

$ $ 470,698 

$ $ 5 5 ,665 

43 7,244 

$ $ 492,909 

20 1 1  20 1 0  

$ 1 7,8 1 8  $ 3 1 ,866 
(3 5 ,5 00)  3 0,778 

$ ( 1 7,682) $ 62,644 
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Note 6 - Property and Eq u ipment 

Detai ls  pertaining to property and equipment are as follows: 

Bu i ld ing and ground improvements 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 
A rt work 
Li brary 
Exhi bits 
Construction-in-progress 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. 

$ 

$ 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 3 1 , 20 1 1  and 20 1 0  

20 1 1 20 1 0  

2,266,544 $ 2,266,544 
3 7 1 ,48 1 366,586 
872,69 1 867,29 1 

65 ,493 65,286 
3 00,66 1 3 00,66 1 

1 ,6 1 4, 1 8 1  329, 855  
5,49 1 ,05 1 4, 1 96,223 
1 , 1 03 , 584 1 ,0 1 2, 1 77 

4,3 87,467 $ 3 , 1 84,046 

Depreci ation expense totaled $9 1 ,407 and $94,677 during 20 1 1  and 20 1 0, respectively. The artwork, exh ibits, and 
l ibrary are not being depreciated. 

During 2009, the Foundation began designing an expans ion to their faci l ity located in Washburn, North Dakota. 
The Foundation has entered into contracts for the expansion of the bui lding and planning, design, and production 
of new i nterpreti ve exhib its totaling approximately $4,33 2,000 as of December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 .  As of December 3 1 , 
20 1 1 and 20 1 0, the amount of costs capitalized as construction in progress totaled $ 1 ,6 1 4, 1 8 1  and $329,855 ,  
respectively. The estimated completion date for the expansion i s  February 20 1 3 .  As of  December 3 1 , 20 1 1 ,  the 
Foundation had approximately $2,690,000 in future commitments related to the expansion to their faci l ity. 

I Note 7 - Line of C redit  

I 
I 
I 
I 

The Foundation has a $30,000 l ine of credit with US Bank that is due on demand. Interest on the line of credit is 
set at the Wal l Street Journal Prime rate, which was 3 .25% at December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 .  The Foundation had $0 
outstand ing balance at December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 and 20 1 0 . 

The Foundation entered into a s ingle advance term loan agreement in the amount of $2,000,000 with US Bank 
that is due on demand. Interest on the loan is set at the Wall Street Journal Prime rate plus 0 .25%, which was 
3 . 5 %  at December 3 1 , 20 1 1 .  The outstanding balance at December 3 1 ,  2 0 1 1 was zero. 

1 0  
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Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. 

Note 8 - Tempora rily Restricted Net Assets 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 3 1 ,  20 1 1  and 20 1 0  

Temporari ly restricted net assets of $ 1 ,095 ,240 and $ 1 , 1  08,482 at December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 and 20 1 0  are avai lable for 
capital campaign expenditures for enhancement of program services, artwork, Fort Mandan renovations, and 
exhi bits at the Center. 

Net assets of $954,263 and $3 3 8, 76 1  for 20 1 1 and 20 I 0, were released from donor restrictions by incurring 
expenditures satisfying the purpose or time restrictions by donors. 

Note 9 - Perman ently Restricted Net Assets 

The Foundation ' s  permanently restricted net assets consist of approximately I 0 individual funds establ ished for a 
variety of purposes. As required by generally accepted accounting princ ip les, net assets associated with 
permanently restricted funds are classified and reported based on the existence of donor-imposed restrictions. 

I nterpretatio n  of Relevant Law 

The Board of Directors of the Foundation has interpreted the State Prudent Management of lnstitutional Funds 
Act (SPMIF A) as requiring the preservation of the fair value as of the original gift date of the donor-restricted 
endowment funds absent expl icit donor stipulations to the contrary . As a result of th is interpretation, the 
Foundation classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent 
endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the pennanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the 
permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the appl icable donor gift instrument at the time 
the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is  not 
c lass ified in pennanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net asset unti l those amounts 
are appropriated for expenditure by the college in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by 
SPMIF A .  In accordance with SPMIF A, the organization considers the fol lowing factors in making a 
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted ·endowment funds:  

1 .  The duration and preservation of the fund 
2 .  The purpose o f  the Foundation and the donor-restricted endowment fund 
3 .  General economic conditions 
4 .  The possible effect of inflation and deflation 
5 .  The expected total return from income and the appreciation o f  investments 
6 .  Other resources o f  the Foundation 
7 .  The investment pol icies of the Foundation 

1 1  
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Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 3 1 , 20 1 1 and 20 1 0  

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 and 20 1 0  is  as fol lows : 

Composition by Fund Type 
Temporarily Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

December 3 1 , 20 1 1  

Donor-restricted Endowment 
Funds $ $ $ 5 65,000 $ 565 ,000 

B oard-designated Endowment 
Funds 450,000 4 5 0,000 

$ 450,000 $ $ 565 ,000 $ 1 ,0 1 5 ,000 

December 3 1 ,  20 1 0  

Donor-restricted Endowment 
Funds $ $ $ 565 ,000 $ 565 ,000 

B oard-des ignated Endowment 
Funds 500,000 5 00,000 

$ 500,000 $ $ 565,000 $ 1 ,065 ,000 

1 2  
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Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. 

I Notes to F inancial Statements 
December 3 1 , 20 1 1 and 20 1 0  

I Changes in Endowment Net Assets for the years end ing December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 and 20 1 0, respective ly, are as 
fol lows: 

I Change in Endowment Assets 
Temporari ly Permanently 

I Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

December 3 1 ,  20 1 1  

Endowment Net Assets, 
Beginning of Year $ 5 00,000 $ $ 5 65 ,000 $ 1 ,065 ,000 

Investment Return 
Interest income 4,530 4,530  
Investment income 1 3 ,288 1 3 ,288 

Net unrealized loss (3 5 ,500) (35 ,500) 

N et Assets Released from 
Restrictions (4,53 0) (4,530)  

Assets transferred from 
unrestricted net assets 22,2 1 2  22,2 1 2  

Release of Board-Designated 
Funds (50,000) (50,000) 

Endowment Net Assets, 

End of Year $ 450,000 $ $ 565 ,000 $ 1 ,0 1 5 ,000 

December 3 1 , 20 1 0  

Endowment Net Assets, 
Beginning of Year $ 1 ,263,067 $ 1 2,667 $ 565 ,000 $ 1 , 840,734 

Investment Return 
Interest income 20,578 20,578 

Investment income 1 1 ,288  1 1 ,288 

N et unrea l ized appreciation 3 0,778 3 0,778 

Net A ssets Released from 
Restrictions (33 ,645) (54,73 3 )  (88,3 78) 

Release of Board-Designated 
Funds (750,000) (750,000) 

Endowment Net Assets, 

End of Year $ 500,000 $ $ 5 65 ,000 $ 1 ,065 ,000 

1 3  
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Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc. 
Notes to F inancial Statements 
December 3 1 , 20 1 1 and 20 1 0  

The components of endowment funds classified as pe1manently restricted net assets as of December 3 1 , 20 1 1 and 
20 1 0 ,  respectively, are as fol lows: 

20 1 1 20 1 0  

Permanently Restricted Net Assets 
The portion of perpetual endowment funds that is required to 
be retained permanently either by expl icit donor stipulation 

or by SPMIFA $ 565 ,000 $ 565 ,000 

E n d owment Assets 

The Foundation has an investment fund that consists of endowment assets and has commingled other endowment 
assets with unrestricted assets . 

Ret u rn O bjectives and Risk Paramete rs 

The Foundation has adopted investment and spending pol icies for permanently restricted net assets that attempt to 
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment whi le seeking to maintain the 
purchasing power of the permanently restricted net assets. Permanently restricted net assets include those assets of 
donor-restricted funds that the Foundation m ust hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period. Under th is 
pol icy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the permanently restricted net assets are invested in a manner that 
i s  intended to produce results that realize competitive returns while assuming moderate level of risk based on the 
Asset Al location Plan adopted by the Investment Committee. 

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives 

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Foundation rel ies on a total return strategy in which 
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield 
( interest and dividends). The Foundation targets a diversified asset allocation that places an emphasis on equity­
based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints. 

S p e n d i n g  Policy and How the I nvestment Objectives Relate to Spend i n g  Policy 

The Foundation has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year 5 percent of its permanently restricted 
fund's average fair value over the prior 1 2  quarters through the calendar year-end preceding the fiscal year in 
wh ich the distribution is planned. In establ ishing this pol icy, the Foundation considered the long-term expected 
return on its permanently restricted net assets. Accordingly, over the long term, the Foundation expects the current 
spending pol icy to al low its permanently restricted net assets to grow at an average of 4 percent annually. This is 
cons istent with the foundation's objective to maintain the purchasing power of the permanently restricted net 
assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide additional real growth through new gifts and 
investment return . 

1 4  
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Note 1 0 - Employee Pension Plan 

Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc . 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 3 1 , 20 1 1 and 20 1 0  

The Foundation has a S imple IRA plan for all qualified employees where the Foundation wi l l  contribute up to 3% 
of the employee ' s salary. The employee must have been with the Foundation for one year before being el igible to 
participate in the p lan. The Foundation contributed $ 1 1 ,274 and $ 1 1 ,896 for the years ended December 3 1 , 20 1 1 
and 20 1 0 . 

Note 1 1  - G ra n ts 

The Foundation has entered into grant agreements with various entities. These reimbursable grants require the 
Foundation to incur expenditures for specific purposes in order to rece ive these funds. The Foundation incuned 
expenses towards these grants of $ 1 ,464,707 and $80, 1 59 for the years ending December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 and 20 1 0 . The 
Foundation has grants receivable as of December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 and 20 1 0  relating to these grants of $0 and $ 1 5 ,000.  

Note 12  - Donated Services 

The Foundation receives donated services from unpaid volunteers who assist in fundraising and special projects . 
No amounts have been recognized in the statement of activities because the criteria for recogn ition under have not 
been satisfied. 

N ote 1 3 - Related P arty Transactions 

The Foundation has pledges receivable from employees and directors of $5 1 4, 1 00 and $547,500 as of December 
3 1 ,  20 1 1  and 20 1 0  and accounts receivables of $ 1 ,776 and $647 at December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 and 20 1 0 . 

Note 14 - Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of providing the various programs and activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statement of activities. Accordingly, ce1tain costs have been al located among the programs and supporting 
serv ices benefited.  
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Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation, Inc . 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 3 1 , 20 1 1 and 20 1 0  

Note 1 5 - Sponsorship Agreement 

In March 2004, the Foundation signed a sponsorship agreement granting Headwaters Incorporated certain 
advertising rights. The initial term is for the two years ending December 3 1 , 2005,  with automatic renewals for 
subsequent terms of one year unless term inated by either party. Headwaters shall make sponsorsh ip payments to 
the Foundation for naming and sponsorsh ip rights of not less than $50,000 per year with total payments not 
exceeding $500,000 over a ten year period. If the maximum payments of $500,000 are made, sponsorship rights 
granted to Headwaters shall remain in ful l  force and effect for a period of ten years subsequent to reaching the 
maximum. As of December 3 1 , 20 1 1 and 20 1 0, $45 0,000 and $400,000 has been received on the agreement. 

Note 1 6 - Fair Value Measu rements 

A three- level valuation h ierarchy was establ i shed for fair value measurements. These valuation techniques are 
based upon observable and unobservable inputs. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent 
sources, whi le unobservable inputs reflect our market assumptions. These two types of inputs care the fol lowing 
fair  value h ierarchy: 

• Level 1 - Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets; 
• Level 2 - Quoted prices for s imi lar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or s imi lar 

i nstrument sin markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations whose sign ificant inputs are 
observable; and 

• Level 3 - Instruments who sign ificant inputs are unobservable .  

The fol lowing table summarizes the financial instruments measured at fair  value on a recurring basis at  December 
3 1 , 2 0 1 1 and 20 1 0  are as fol lows: 

Level l 

December 3 1 ,  20 1 1 

Cash equivalents $ 69,2 1 1 
Mutual funds 40 1 ,487 

$ 470,698 

December 3 1 ,  2 0 1  0 

Cash equivalents $ 5 5 ,665 
Mutual funds 43 7,244 

$ 492,909 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fair Value Measurements on a 
Recurring Basis 

Level 2 Level 3 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 

69,2 1 1  
40 1 ,487 

470,698 

5 5 ,665 
43 7,244 

492,909 

The fair  value of investments i s  estimated based on third-party pricing services information. This information is 
derived from comparison to s imilar securities traded in active markets. 
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0 -:to - o33Z 
TWYI1� 
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2007 $ 238,326 ?99��-� -- -· · ,;J�·-::?.:}:�;-. �;49:t??-
2007 $ 5,457.74 

';cci-�:Uii:;,, i(i\!;:!�[\�B,',":::•f{s.? .. Jl :':ru,[;]![,1. ;:,!f !f;Emo * Cantina Sales $43617.7 4 

2008 $ 230,747 • 
2009 $ 226,223 
2010 ' $ 

. 

�.27 .S,§�;. 
2011 $ 22 1,468 
Total $ 3,625,589 

Average $ 164,800 

$ 4,766.52 * Cantina Sales $44951.07 

?PQ§ · . . ,. . .• �'!m· s . ��-·: ·§��5.? ;9§. 
2009 $ 5,079.11 
?919 .: :  '.L.c; J!!�P± .. ·�?Jc . 
2011 $ 4,673.33 
Totals $ 111,454.75 

Average $ 5,066.12 

Due S/15/10 
. 

Due 5/15/11 
Due 5/15/12 
$ 

$ 

60,243.10 

2,738.32 

Average lease payment was 1 .6% of average gross revenue 

Cantina Sales $44,219.90 

Cantina Sales $36,681.21 

Cantina Closed 

Cantina Closed 

Adding 2009/10/11 payments - average lease payment is 2% of average gross revenue 

* Whole or  partial waiver of lease fees 
* *  New contract - lease fee reduced from 5% to 2% 
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PROPOSED AMENDM ENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1 0 1 9  

Page 1 ,  l ine 3 ,  remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  line 3, after "exemption" insert " ;  and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  replace lines 1 5  through 22 with: 

"Administration 
Natural resources 
Recreation 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general fund 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 3 and 4 with: 

" International Peace Garden 
Total general fund 

Page 2, replace lines 9 through 1 1  with: 

"Grand total general fund 
Grand total special funds 
Grand total all funds 

Page 2, replace lines 1 7  through 26 with: 

$2,484,885 
1 2 ,768,203 

7,489,091 
$22,742, 1 79 

1 1,641,532 
$1 1 ' 1  00,647 

54.00 

�773,699 
$773,699 

$ 1 1 ,874,346 
1 1,641,532 

$23,515,878 

"Parks capital projects and deferred maintenance 
Parks equipment 
Lewis and Clark interpretive center grant 
Little Missouri state park trail leases 
Parks SCORP plan 
Parks strategic plans 
Community grant program 
International Peace Garden capital projects 
Total all  funds 
Less estimated income 
Total general fund 

Page 3, line 1 5, replace "$400,000" with "$600,000" 

Page 3, remove lines 25 through 31 

Page 4, replace l ines 1 and 2 with: 

$235 , 1 32 
9,738,206 

(1 ,279,250) 
$8,694,088 

1 50.422 
$8,543,666 

1 .00 

�2.700,000 
$2,700,000 

$ 1 1  ,243,666 
1 50.422 

$ 1 1 ,394,088 

$5,269,2 1 0  
1 1 6,000 

0 
85,000 
40,000 

0 
0 

267,000 
$5,777,2 1 0  

1,028,000 
$4,749,2 1 0  

$2,720,017 
22,506,409 

6,209,841 
$31 ,436,267 

1 1  ,791,954 
$1 9,644,313 

55.00" 

�3,473,699 
$3,4 73' 699" 

$23 , 1 1 8,0 1 2  
1 1  ,791,954 

$34,909 ,966" 

$3,955,300 
375,000 

3 , 1 50,000 
0 
0 

1 00,000 
600,000 

2,500,000 
$1 0 '680' 300 

1,282,800 
$9,397,500" 

"SECTION 7. CONTINGENT FUNDING - INTERNATIONAL PEACE GARDEN 

CAPITAL PROJECTS. The sum of $2,500,000 from the general fund included in 
subdivision 2 of section 1 of this Act is for capital projects at the International Peace 
Garden and is contingent upon the International Peace Garden raising matching funds 
on a dollar-for-dollar basis from nonstate sources. 
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SECTION 8. EMERGENCY. The natural resources line item in subdivision 1 of 
section 1 of this Act includes $3,730,000, of which $2,930,000 is from the general fund 
and $600,000 is from special funds derived from federal funds and other income, for 
various capital projects, which is declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

House Bill No. 1 01 9 - Summary of Senate Action 

Executive House 
Budget Version 

Parks and Recreation 
Department 

Total all funds $27,962,785 $30,063,381 
Less estimated income 11,791,835 12,439,512 
General fund $16,170,950 $17,623,869 

International Peace Garden 
Total all funds $973,699 $973,699 
Less estimated income 0 0 
General fund $973,699 $973,699 

Bill total 
Total all funds $28,936,484 $31,037,080 
Less estimated income 11,791,835 12,439,512 
General fund $17,144,649 $18,597,568 

Senate 
Changes 

$1,372,886 
(647,558) 

$2,020,444 

$2,500,000 
0 

$2,500,000 

$3,872,886 
(647,558) 

$4,520,444 

Senate 
Version 

$31 ,436,267 
11 791 954 

$1 9,644,313 

$3,473,699 
0 

$3,473,699 

$34,909,966 
11,791 954 

$23,118,012 

House Bill No. 1 01 9  - Parks and Recreation Department - Senate Action 

Executive 
Budget 

Administration $2,719,322 
Natural resources 19,234,022 
Recreation 6,009,441 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds $27,962,785 
Less estimated income 11,791,835 

General fund $16,170,950 

FTE 55.00 

House 
Version 

$2,652,000 
21 ,256,353 

5,973,451 
181,577 

$30,063,381 
12,439,512 

$17,623,869 

55.00 

Senate 
Changes 

$68,017 
1,250,056 

236,390 
(181,577) 

$1,372,886 
(647,558) 

$2,020,444 

0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$2,720,017 
22,506,409 

6,209,841 

$31 ,436,267 
11,791 ,954 

$1 9,644,313 

55.00 

Department No. 750 - Parks and Recreation Department - Detail of Senate Changes 

Removes 
Restores Separate line Adds Funding Adds Funding 
Executive Item for Restores for Military for Community 

Compensation Accrued leave Marina Artifact Adds Funding Grants 
Package' Payments' Funding' Collection' for Equipment' Program' 

Administration $41,260 $26,757 
Natural resources 290,386 142,170 350,000 42,500 75,000 
Recreation 23,740 12,650 200,000 
Accrued leave payments (181,577) 

Total all funds $355,386 $0 $350,000 $42,500 $75,000 $200,000 
Less estimated income 7,442 0 1 75,000 0 0 0 

General fund $347,944 $0 $175,000 $42,500 $75,000 $200,000 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
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Adds Funding 
for lewis and Removes 

Clark Funding for 
Interpretive Walhalla Gorge Total Sen ate 

Center Grant' Property' Changes 

Administration $68,017 
Natural resources 3,150,000 (2,800,000) 1,250,056 
Recreation 236,390 
Accrued leave payments (181,577) 

Total all funds $3,150,000 ($2,800,000) $1,372,886 
Less estimated income 0 (830,000) (647 558) 

General fund $3,150,000 ($1' 970, 000) $2,020,444 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding reductions made by the House to the state employee compensation and benefits package are 
restored to the Governor's recommended level. 

2 The accrued leave payments line item added by the House is removed, and the associated funding 
returned to line items with salaries and wages funding. 

3 Funding removed by the House for purchase of a marina is restored to the executive budget 
recommendation level. 

4 Funding is added for purchase of a military artifact collection currently on display at Fort Abraham 
Lincoln State Park. 

5 Funding is added for one-time equipment purchases of picnic tables ($50,000) and fire rings ($25,000). 

6 Funding is added to increase the community grant program from $400,000 included in the executive 
budget recommendation to $600,000. 

7 Funding is added for a one-time grant for expansion of the Lewis and Clark interpretive center. 

8 Funding added by the House for the purchase and operation of property i n  the Walhalla Gorge and 
Frost Fire area is removed. 

A section is added to provide for an emergency clause for various capital projects. 

House Bill No. 1 01 9 - International Peace Garden - Senate Action 

Executive 
Budget 

International Peace Garden $973,699 

Total all funds $973,699 
Less estimated income 0 

General fund $973,699 

FTE 0.00 

House 
Version 

$973,699 

$973,699 
0 

$973,699 

0.00 

Senate 
Changes 

$2 500,000 

$2,500,000 
0 

$2,500,000 

0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$3,473,699 

$3,473,699 
0 

$3,473,699 

0.00 

Department No. 751 - International Peace Garden - Detail of Senate Changes 

International Peace Garden 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

Adds Funding 
for Peace 

Garden Capital 
Projects' 

$2,500,000 

$2,500,000 
0 

$2,500,000 

Total Senate 
Changes 

$2,500,000 

$2,500,000 
0 

$2,500,000 
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General fund 

0.00 � FTE 

1 Funding is added for capital projects at the I nternational Peace Garden. 

A section is added requiring funds for capital projects of the International Peace Garden. 
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L EW I S  & C LA R K  

FORT M A N DAN FO U N DAT I O N  

X 
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Friday, April 19, 2013 

HB 1019 Conference Committee Chairman Rep. Mark Dosch 
And Committee Members:  

H B I rJ 11 

Please accept this paper with answers to questions posed by you during the conference committee this 
morn ing. We are grateful for your consideration of the $3,150,000 amendment to pay off construction 
costs for the North Da kota Lewis & Clark Interpretive Center, a State-owned faci l ity managed by our 
non-profit foundation .  

For  fund ing background, the Center was bui lt in 1997 using $1 .2  mi l l ion in  federa l  highway funds, 
matched with $300,000 of State funds. This arrangement incl uded the contract that our foundation be 
responsible for the ongoing operation and ma intena nce of the 16-acre grounds and the origina l  5,500 
square foot faci l ity. 

In the year 2000, our foundation was granted $1 .5  mi l l ion in federa l  h ighway funds for an expansion of 
the Center, doubl ing the size to 11,000 sq uare feet. No State funds were used in this project, with a 
tota l of $2 mi l l ion ra ised by the foundation to com plete the project . 

I n  yea r 2001, State DOT spent $300,000, matched by $100,000 from our foundation, for an  expanded 
parking lot, further enhancing the State-owned grounds. This new parking lot has been of tremendous 
benefit now, with large amounts of truck activity from the Bakken and our 24-hour a day officia l US 
H ighway 83 Rest Area.  

Through the yea rs, the Legislatu re has appropriated $100,000 per biennium for operational support to 
our foundation .  The last session those funds were appropriated was 2007. 

In 2009, the Legislature appropriated $1 .5  mi l l ion for this current 9,000 square foot expansion of the 
faci l ity, which the foundation matched with fundraising. 

The enclosed information from our arch itects deta i ls the tota l cost outlays for this expansion and 
exh ibits. You will note that the grand tota l costs come to over $5,500,000. With this appropriation, the 
State wil l be funding $4,500,000 of that amount. We have fronted the funds thus fa r for this project and 
have a construction loan, which the one-time grant wil l pay off. 

By com pleting the construction costs of this project, our foundation wi l l  be able to devote a l l  of our 
fundra ising efforts to operational  and future susta inabil ity. We plan to ra ise $1,500,000 for our 
endowment trust, for example.  A l l  of  the State funds wi l l  have been used for construction costs. 

Our  annua l  operating budget is currently $1,500,000. We have 11 fu l l  t ime, year round 

PO BOX 607, WAS H B U R N ,  N D  58577 

O F F I C E :  70 1 .462.8535 • TO L L  F R E E :  877.462.8535 • FAX: 70 1.462.33 1 6  
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employees, with additional pa rt time and seasonal staff. Our budget has grown through the years since 
1997, but has been consistent the past four years. 

Our  budget incl udes a l l  of the operation, maintena nce and care of the I nterpretive Center and Fort 
Mandan, including custodial costs of the Rest Area.  We pay a l l  uti l ities, inc luding a large number of l ight 
poles in  our two parking lots. Snow removal and groundskeeping are included in  our responsibi l ities. 

We are qu ite certa in  that the Rest Area maintained by us for the State is the on ly US Highway Rest Area 
in America operated by a non-profit foundation !  The cost savings over the past 16 years to the State are 
very significa nt!  

Of course, the costs of providing world-class interpretation to visitors from al l  50 states and around the 
world is a significant part of our annual  budget. Our interpretive staff is  national ly-certified, the on ly 
such interpreters in a l l  of North Dakota. 

In addition, through the years, thanks to the generosity of ind ivid ual  donors, we have developed a one 
of a kind co l lection of rare artifacts and art. We have items that were actua l ly on the Lewis & Cla rk 
Expedition or of the era, over 200 years o ld .  We are among a ha ndfu l of ga l leries in the world hold ing 
complete col lections of Ka rl Bodmer and George Catl in  art .  We a lso have a va riety of contemporary 
North Da kota artists featured in our col lections. 

In  total, the foundation, since 1997, has ra ised and invested over $20 mil l ion to provide a un ique, world­
c lass visitor experience, al l on behalf of the people of North Dakota. We are grateful for the support of 
the Legislature on this ca pita l project in  our unique publ ic-private partnership . 

Tha nk  you !  

?2,�. 
Office 701-462-8535 
Cel l  701-220-3491 
dborlaug@fortmandan.org 

CC: Board Members AI Christianson, David Lindell, Dennis Boyd, Kari Cutting, Kathy Neset and David 
Searle 
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M a rch 14, 2013 10:00 AM H a rvest Room N o rth Da kota Legislature 

Good Morning Chai rman Holmberg and Committee members, 

A +fach rnent < .  
A?f6 I 1 tt1 2P 1'3 

!-1- e t o  rcr 

I would l ike to thank you and North Dakota Parks & Recreation D irector Mark Zimmerman for the opportunity to come and 
testify today in suppo rt of  H B  1019. My rema rks wi l l  a d d ress the State G ra nt for  the Internation a l  Peace G a rden 

D u ring the 62nd Legislative Assembly of the State of N o rth Da kota a ppro p riated $1,000,699.00 for 2011-2013 fu nding.  The 
a l l o cation included $267,000.00 in Capital Funding for the Conservatory expansion and the 911 Strol l  & Contemplative G a rden.  

The Basic a nd the first section of the Operational Adjustment portions of  th is  budget request wi l l  deal  with the ongoing 
o p e rational needs of the l PG .  The current North D a kota a l location is $733,699.00 as establ ished d u ring the 2011-2013 sess ion.  

Optional Adjustment Request 

We have made a req uest fo r an increase of $100,000 a nnually to the annual  a l location from N o rth Dakota to the l P G  for 

$200,000 per biennium. The Governor's budget suggests this request. 

T h is optional adjustment request incl udes two a reas of concern. The funds $200,000 fo r the Biennium wi l l  target two core a reas :  

1 .  Wages for a cquisition and retention of  employees. We a re now feeling the effect of the Ba kken Sha le  Oi l  expansion 
as it moves nea rer to Bottineau. and R olette Counties and it is becoming h a rder and harder to retain and locate youn g  low wage 
workers to either m a ke a career with us at the l PG or come and work seasona lly here at the Peace G a rden.  

2.  Enhanced advertising and promotion with our new facilities and the spectacular  S u cculent Collection we n ee d  to 
i ncrease our advertis ing and promotion for the Peace G a rden. 

I n  the Governor's Budget the State provided for this operational increase of $200,000 and we would encoura ge you to approve 
and pass this increase as presently indicated in H B  1019. 

Capital Requests 

The International  Peace Garden is also made two Capital project requests. The first is for a pre-appropriation request to 

i nvestigate the best plan of action to deal  with the d egradation to the col u mns and cross member beams of the Peace Tower 
and a second request for Water & Wastewater Infrastructure Upgrades. 

N either of these requests were included in the Governor's Budget. We ask that you consider them and a p p rove them as Senate 
Legis lative changes to Capital Appropriations for HB 1019. 

Planning Pre-Appropriation Peace Tower $500,000 

In 1980 the North D a kota H istorical Society, The N ational  Pa rks Service a n d  the I nternational P eace G a rden worked j ointly to 
p rovide funding fo r the design & construction of the Peace Tower. 

Our Plan is to work with Kadrmas, Lee Jackson (KL&J) from Bismarck North Da kota. KL&J provides a wide range of structu ra l 
engineering services. Their engineers a re experienced in aviation, energy, industrial, land management, transportation and 
water-resou rce management structures. Their versatile tea m  designs with a variety of  bui lding materials including a lu m i n u m, 
concrete, a nd mason ry, steel and wood . They a ls o  special ize in Foundation Design, Stru ctu ral Loa d  Ratin g  of Existing Syste ms, 
and Structural Assessments. / 
I n  the past, the N D  Legislature has provided fund ing fo r pre-appropriatio ns .  We are asking for s u ch a pre-appropriation to study 
of the best plan of action to dea l with this problem with the Peace Tower. We believe that that the Province of Ma nitoba wi l l  
assist in  funding the actual repair  of the towers so we anticipate these construction costs could be shared between P rovince and 

State. Because of the high degree of a ppreciation of this  structure, we also bel ieve that we cou l d  be successful in acq u iri n g  some 
p rivate funds towards the future repair. 

The Peace Tower was constructed from 1980 to 1983. In  1984, the base pools began leaking a n d  had to be d ra ined a n d  fi l led 
with rock. I n  the ea rly 1990's the concrete floors and base started cracki ng and heaving. Concrete resu rfacing has been ongoing 
to the sidewalks and floor basal a rea. I n  2011, we spent $25,000 resurfa ci ng sidewalks and lan d ings at or near the Peace Tower. 



During the wi nter of 2011, rust spots from the iron-rebar, reinforcing, rods started to become visible on the P eace Towet·s o u te r  
se rvice . At the same time, white calci u m  deposits have shown u p  leaking down the side of the Peace Tower. I n  the spring of 
2012 small  pieces of cement have started fall ing and the towers cross members have visible scaring and abrasion on the 
horizonta l con necting cross members. We are also starti n g  to see major cracking and fractu ring in the on ground basal 
structures. As the Peace Tower contin ues to degrade, the l PG will have to restrict entry to the base a rea of the tower and make 
plans to deal with the future removal of the towers. 

N o  professional  engineerinc study has been undertaken to date. We have had two independent contractors offer opinions 
concerning the towers. They both suggested that the towers would continue to degrade and eventual ly become unsafe fo r 
ped estrian traffic underneath the m  on the floor base. 

We have determined that the original construction tend e r  was for $ 1,350,000 in 1980. If the Peace Tower were constructed now 
in 2013, the associated cost would be $6,356,054 USD (if designed & tendered summer 2013) 

It  has now been 30-years since construction was completed. We want to find out through an engineering study how we can 

m a ke this tower last for many, many more years or  consider the costs of removing It completely. 

M o reover, over hundreds of thousan ds of visitors have come to the International  Peace Ga rden to see this "Iconic Peace Tower" 
looking across the State of North Dakota from its N o rthern Border. 

Infrastructure Requirements 
Water system 
Sewer System 
Roads, Ditches & Th roughways 
Design 
G e n e ral Contractor 
Soft Costs 
Total Costs 

$ 1,500,000 
$ 1,075,000 
$ 875,000 
$ 245,000 
$ 245,000 
$ 276,000 
$ 4,416,000 

The sewer waste and water systems, were installed and renovated from the 1930's and 1950's, with the current systems being 
d eveloped in the late 1970,s and ea rly, 1980's. 

These a re o u r  primary and only sources to supply our needs. At this time, there is no County sou rce for water s upply or sewage 
evacuation available to the I nternatio nal Peace Ga rden ( l PG) 

We recently completed a Water & Wastewater Assessment hiring the f irm AECOM/Earth Tech working from two of their  office 
sites in Minneapolis-St Paul, Minnesota and Winnipeg, Manitoba. We completed pipe evaluation inspected several main water 
un ions, completed geotechnical tests and usage calculations to determine our needs. Two reports were compiled supporting the 
i d e ntified costs : 

( i )  Waste water System Assessment for the l P G  

( ii) Water Assessment for the lPG 

W e  believe adequate planning has been completed for this p roject by consulting industry experts. We do not feel that we need 
to incur mo re, exploratory costs. W e  bel ieve that there is an opportunity to have these costs shared with Ma nitoba. 

Thes e  syste ms are p rivately operated by the l PG and we have no other sources for water or treatment of wastewater available 
to us from Rolette County. Without these systems in  operation, the Peace G a rden would eventually not be a ble to continue to 
o p e rate them and conrinue to meet the State H e a lth code. 

Respectfully, 

Doug H even o r, CEO 

10939 Hwy 28.1 

Dunseith, ND 58329-9445 

(701) 263-4390 

Tol l  Free (888) 432-6733 

FAX,(701) 263-3169 

P . O .  Box 419 

Boissevain, MB ROKOEO 
(.204.) 534,2510 
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April 22, 2013 

Rep. Mark Dosch 
Sen.  Karen Krebsbach 
Conference Committee Members 

� .. 
LEW I S  & C LA R K  

FORT M A N DA N  FO U N DAT I O N  

:X: 

A frvrc h rnen t- 1 .  
Apr l / 2 3, 2 0 13 
t-1 13 I o 11'  

RE: H B  1019 with amendment for $3,150,000 for N O  Lewis & Clark Interpretive Center expansion 

Here is a more complete breakdown, showing you precisely how the funds in  the amendment to the 
Parks and Recreation budget wil l be spent: 

Total amount paid to date to Missouri River Contracting: 

$2,554,489.39 

Total amount remaining to be paid to Missouri River Contracting: 

$1,149,187.26 

Total amount of construction costs: 
$3,703,676.65 

The project is scheduled for completion by the end of June. 

The Lewis & Clark Fort Mandan Foundation has been drawing upon a $2 mi l l ion construction loan, which 
is nea rly depleted. The remain ing ba lance has been getting paid from fundrais ing campaign payments. 

If you have any additional  q uestions, I may be reached on cel l  phone anytime at 701-220-3491 or via 
emai l  at dborlaug@fortmandan.org 

Thank you !  

!?.I aug < 
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Proposed amendment language for House Bi l l  No.  1 0 1 9  
A ft-�tt-lt m e n  t- /. 
.Aprn zs, 201' 
14 8  /O IOf 

Rental Space - Pembina Gorge Area. The natura l  resources l ine item in subdivision 1 of section 1 

of this Act includes $300,000 from the general fund which the parks and recreation department may 

use to rent property in the Pembina gorge area for the purpose of provid ing office space for employees 

or individuals responsible for monitoring or patroll ing the trail systems in the area, developing a plan for 

continued monitoring and patrol l ing of the trai l  systems, and to determine the feasibil ity of establ ishing 

an interpretive center. 



HB 1 0 1 9  
Suggested language for amendment for funds for International Peace Garden 

April 25,  20 1 3  

ENGINEERING STUDY AND REPAIR OF THE "PEACE TOWERS" AT THE INTERNATIONAL 
PEACE GARDENS 

"Amendment includes $1, 000, 000 for an engineering study and repair of the Peace Towers at the International 
Peace Gardens contingent on a dollar for dollar match be obtained from other sources to include the Province 
of Manitoba or private funds. Of the $1, 000, 000 appropriated in this budget, no more than 5% will be used for 
the engineering study with an additional 5% coming from the other sources. ND Parks and Recreation will 
review and accept engineering study proposals and recommendations of the study before state ofND funds are 
obligated. ND Parks and Recreation will assist with bidding and construction oversight of repair work. No 
amount of the state of ND funds will be obligated without approval by the ND Parks and Recreation 
Department ". 




